City of Fruitland Park Urick Street Force Main Extension Fruitland Park, Florida

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

prepared for:



prepared by:



902 North Sinclair Avenue ♦ Tavares, Florida 32778 Phone (352) 343-8481 ♦ Fax (352) 343-8495

> BESH Contract No. 043866.050 Bid No. 2021-04 December 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK URICK STREET FORCE MAIN EXTENSION PROJECT

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

CONTRACT	DOCUMENTS
- 00020	INVITATION TO BID
- 00100	INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS
- 00200	INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO BIDDERS
- 00300	BID FORM
- 00301	QUESTIONNAIRE
- 00301A	SUBCONTRACTOR LISTING
- 00410	BID BOND
- 00420	CORPORATE RESOLUTION
- 00480	NONCOLLUSION AFFIDAVIT
- 00490	TRENCH SAFETY AFFIDAVIT
- 00500	AGREEMENT
- 00610	PERFORMANCE BOND
- 00620	PAYMENT BOND
- 00700	STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS
- 00800	SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS
- 00810	FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION STATE REVOLVING
	FUND PROGRAM SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS
-	AIS STEP CERTIFICATION FORM
-	DAVIS-BACON WAGE
- 00841	NOTICE OF AWARD FORM
- 00842	NOTICE TO PROCEED
- 00843	CHANGE ORDER FORM
- 00844	APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATION FOR PAYMENT FORM
- 00845	SCHEDULE OF VALUES
- 00846	MATERIALS STORED ON-SITE
- 00847	SHOP DRAWING SUBMITTAL FORM
- 00848	CERTIFICATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
- 00849	PARTIAL AND FINAL RELEASES OF LIEN
- 00850	FIELD ORDER
- 00851	CONTRACTOR REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
- 00852	CONSTRUCTION ACCIDENT REPORT
- 00853	PRESSURE TEST
- 00861	WORK DIRECTIVE FORM
- 00862	DAILY CONSTRUCTION REPORT
- 00863	CHANGE PROPOSAL SUMMARY FORM
- 00864	REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL CHANGE FORM
- 00865	CHECK OUT FORM
- 00866	CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETED DEMONSTRATION FORM

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK URICK STREET FORCE MAIN EXTENSION

SPECIFICATIONS

DIVISION ONE - GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Section 01000 - Project Requirements
Section 01025 - Measurement & Payment
Section 01027 - Applications for Payment
Section 01050 - Field Engineering
Section 01065 - Permits and Fee's
Section 01070 - Abbreviations & Symbols

Section 01070 - Abbreviations & Symbols Section 01100 - Special Project Procedures

Section 01200 - Project Meetings Section 01310 - Progress Schedules

Section 01340 - Shop Drawings, Work Drawings & Samples

Section 01370 - Schedule of Values

Section 01380 - Construction Photographs

Section 01410 - Testing & Testing Laboratory Services

Section 01500 - Temporary Facilities

Section 01505 - Mobilization

Section 01568 - Temporary Erosion and Sedimentation Control

Section 01580 - Project Identification & Signs

Section 01700 - Contract Close-out

Section 01710 - Cleaning

Section 01720 - Project Record Documents

Section 01740 - Warranties & Bonds

DIVISION TWO - SITE WORK/MATERIALS

Section 02050 - Demolition

Section 02110 - Clearing, Grubbing and Stripping

Section 02140 - Dewatering
Section 02200 - Earthwork
Section 02210 - Site Grading
Section 02212 - Finish Grading

Section 02220 - Excavation, Backfilling, and Grading

Section 02822 - Solid Sodding

Section 02922 - Loaming, Seeding, and Mulching

Section 02960 - Piping

DIVISION THREE - CONCRETE

Section 03100 - Concrete Formwork

Section 03150 - Concrete Joints & Accessories
Section 03200 - Concrete Reinforcement
Section 03300 - Cast In Place Concrete
Section 03350 - Concrete Finishes

DIVISION NINE - FINISHES

Section 09900 - Painting

DIVISION FIFTEEN - MECHANICAL

Section 15044 - Pressure Testing of Piping
Section 15062 - Ductile Iron Pipe and Fittings

Section 15064 - Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) Pipe and Fittings

Section 15065 - Fusible PVC Pipe

Section 15070 -**Horizontal Direction Drilling**

High Density Polyethylene (HDPE) and Fittings Valves and Appurtenances Section 15071 -

Section 15100 -

Section 15116 Section 15117 Section 15120 -Valve Boxes Plug Valves
Piping Specialties

Section 15122 -Air Release Valves and Vacuum Release Valves

END OF TABLE OF CONTENTS

CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK – URICK STREET FORCE MAIN EXTENSION INVITATION TO BID

PROJECT NAME: CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK - URICK STREET FORCE MAIN EXTENSION

BID NO: 043866.050

OWNER/BID NO: CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK/ BID NO. 2021-04

LOCATION OF PROJECT:

Location of project will be in the rights-of-way of Urick Street, C.R. 468, Berckman Street, Rose Avenue, Hall Street and Poinsettia Avenue.

SCOPE OF WORK:

The project generally consists of the installation of a capital sanitary force main extension from Urick Street just west of Thomas Avenue westward to C.R. 48 then northward to Poinsettia Avenue by way of Berckman Street, Rose Avenue and Hall Street.

DESCRIPTION OF WORK:

The work generally includes the furnishing of all labor, materials and equipment for the construction of a new capital force main consisting of the following principal items: approximately 3,400 LF of PVC force main, 5,000 LF of 10" PVC force main, 100 LF of 10" DIP force main, and 600 LF of 8" PE and 2,300 LF of 12"PE force main to be installed via directional boring.

MANDATORY PRE-BID CONFERENCE:

A mandatory pre-bid conference will be held at the City of Fruitland Park, 506 West Berckman Street, Fruitland Park, Florida 34731, on

JANUARY 19, 2022 @ 10 A.M.

All bidders must be in attendance in order to submit a bid.

RECEIPT OF BIDS:

Sealed bids for the work described herein shall be received until

FEBRUARY 2, 2022 @ 2 P.M.

at the City of Fruitland Park, 506 West Berckman Street Fruitland Park, Florida 34731, at which time and place bids will be publicly opened and read aloud. ALL BIDS MUST BE CLEARLY MARKED "SEALED BIDS" AND WHETHER HAND DELIVERED OR MAILED MUST BE AT THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER, GARY LAVENIA, CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK, BEFORE THE ABOVE STATED DEADLINE TO BE CONSIDERED. Please provide one (1) original and two (2) copes of bid.

INFORMATION REGARDING BIDDING MATERIAL, ETC:

Complete plans and specifications may be reviewed at the office of Halff Associates, Inc., 902 North Sinclair Avenue, Tavares, Florida, 32778, and obtained from said office for a non-refundable \$250.00 fee, with three (3) days' notice or by download for the city website at www.fruitlandpark.org. **These plans and specifications will be available January 6, 2022 after 1:00 p.m.** For review at the City of Fruitland Park, contact **Gary LaVenia**, **City Manager**, City of Fruitland Park, 506 West Berckman Street, Fruitland Park, Florida 34731, phone: (352) 360-6727; e-mail: glavenia@fruitlandpark.org. All request for further information should also be addressed to Gary LaVenia (contact info listed above).

BIDDER CERTIFICATION

"I, the undersigned, certify that I have received all addenda. I understand that timely commencement/delivery may be considered in award of bid, and that cancellation of bid/award will be considered if commencement/delivery time is not met, and that untimely delivery may be cause for assessment of liquidated damages claims. I certify that the equipment or products meet or exceed the Specifications, and that the undersigned declares that I have carefully examined any and all plans, blueprints, specifications, terms and conditions as applicable for this bid, and that I am thoroughly familiar with all provisions, and the quality and type of coverage specified and bid herein. I certify that neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members or agents who are active in the management of the entity, nor an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989. I further declare that I have not divulged, discussed or compared this bid with any other bidders and have not colluded with any other bidders or parties to a bid proposal whatsoever for any fraudulent purpose."

Signature	Date Signed	
Printed Name	Title	
Title	Telephone Number ()
Company	Fax Number ()	
Address	City/State	Zip
Email		

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATE

I, the ι	undersigned, in accordance with Florida Statu	ıte 287.087, her	reby certify that,				
	(Print or Type	Name of Firm)		•			
•	Publishes a written statement notifying that possession or use of a controlled substant specifying actions that will be taken against	ce is prohibited	in the workplace named abo	ensing ve, and			
•	Informs employees about the dangers of drug abuse in the work place, the firm's policy maintaining a drug free working environment, and available drug counseling, rehabilitation, a employee assistance programs, and the penalties that may be imposed upon employees drug use violations.						
• Gives each employee engaged in providing commodities or contractual services that a bid or proposal, a copy of the statement specified above.							
•	Notifies the employees that as a condition services that are under bid or proposal, the and will notify the employer of any conviviolation of Chapter 1893, or of any contrudited States, for a violation occurring in the conviction, and requires employees to sign their receipt.	e employee will ction of, plea o olled substance ne work place,	abide by the terms of the sta of guilty or nolo contendere e law of the State of Florida no later than five (5) days aft	atemen to, an or the er sucl			
*	Imposes a sanction on, or requires the sati rehabilitation program, if such is available i is so convicted.	sfactory particip n the employee	pation in, a drug abuse assista e's community, by any employ	ance o			
•	Makes a good faith effort to continue to implementation of the drug free workplace p		drug free work place throu	igh the			
corpor	"As a person authorized to sign this statem ration complies fully with the requirements set		at the above named business,	firm o			
			Authorized Signature				
State	of:		Date Signed				
Count	y of:						
	nto (or affirmed) and subscribed before me by zation thisday of			online			
Perso	nally knownor Produced Identification		of Identification)				
	, <u> </u>	(Specify Type	of Identification)				
	Signature of Notary	_					
My Co	ommission Expires						
.viy Oc	Anninosion Expiroo	_					
	END OF D	OCUMENT					

INVITATION TO BID

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

1. EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SITE

- 1.1 The Bidder is required to examine carefully the sites of the work and the Plans and other Contract Documents for the work contemplated, and it will be assumed that the Bidder has investigated and is fully informed of the conditions and materials to be encountered, of the character, quality, and quantities of work to be performed and materials to be furnished, and of the requirements of the Plans and other Contract Documents.
- 1.2 Each Bidder must inform himself fully of the conditions related to construction and labor under which the work will be performed, and will have inspected the site of the work and will have read and be thoroughly familiar with the plans, specifications and other Contract Documents. Failure to do so will not relieve the successful Bidder of his obligations to furnish all labor, material, and equipment necessary to carry out the provisions of the Contract Documents and to complete the contemplated work for the consideration set forth in this bid. There is no expressed or implied agreement that the character of the materials have been correctly indicated and Bidders should take into account the possibility that conditions affecting the work to be done may differ from those indicated.
- 1.3 Any estimate or estimates of quantities of work or materials shown on the Plans or in the Specifications, or based on borings, test excavations, and other subsurface investigations or otherwise are in no way warranted to indicate the true quantities or distribution of quantities or character and quality of materials involved. The CONTRACTOR agrees that he will make no claims against the OWNER if the actual character, quality, quantity or quantities of such work or materials do not conform to the estimated character, quality, quantity or quantities.
- 1.4 It is understood by the Bidder that no additional compensation shall be allowed for extra work, unless requested by the owner, and that the quantities submitted by the contractor in the Schedule of Unit Prices are for purposes of bid comparison and establishing the Lum cost of the project. Should said quantities increase or decrease from those established by the Schedule of Unit Prices schedule, as a result of changes to the contract, Contractor agrees to accept as compensation for said item the unit prices listed on the Schedule of Unit Prices.
- 1.5 CONTRACTOR understands that the quantities may be increased or diminished as provided in the General Conditions without in any way invalidating any of the unit or lump sum prices bid. OWNER reserves the right to submit Change Orders increasing or decreasing the bid quantities for any item without affecting the unit price for that item, by an amount not to exceed fifty percent (50%).

2. ADDENDA AND INTERPRETATIONS

No interpretation of the meaning of the plans, specifications or other pre-bid documents will be made to any Bidder orally. Every request for such interpretations should be in WRITING addressed to Gary LaVenia, City of Fruitland Park, 506 West Berckman Street, Fruitland Park, Florida 34731; e-mail: glavenia@fruitlandpark.org with copy to Troy Mitchell, P.E., Project Engineer, addressed 902 North Florida 32778;email Sinclair Avenue, Tavares, Troy.Mitchell@Halff.com. Requests must be received at least seven working days prior to the date fixed for the opening of bids. Any and all such interpretations and any supplemental instruction will be in the form of written addenda to the specifications which, if issued, will be faxed or mailed by U.S. Mail to all prospective Bidders (at the respective fax numbers or addresses furnished for such purposes), not later than two days prior to the date fixed for the opening of bids. Any addenda or interpretation requested by the Bidder to be express mailed, will only be done at the Bidder's expense. Failure of any Bidder to receive any such addendum or interpretation shall not relieve such Bidder from any obligation under his bid as submitted. All addenda so issued shall become part of the Contract Documents.

3. PREPARATION OF BIDS

- 3.1 <u>Bids must be submitted on the attached Bid Form</u>. All applicable blank spaces to the project being bid in the Proposal and Bid Form must be filled in legibly and correctly in ink. Per Paragraph 3.5 below, the Bidder shall specify the quantity and price per unit of measure and the extended total, or the lump sum bid price if such is called for, for each scheduled item of work as well as the Total Price for the entire work under the Contract. Each bid must be submitted in a sealed opaque envelope bearing on the outside the name of the Bidder, his address, and the name of the project for which the bid is submitted. If forwarded by mail, the sealed envelope containing the bid must be enclosed in another envelope addressed as specified in the Schedule of Unit prices. Bids shall be on a lump sum basis. In addition to the lump sum amount the City will also consider the experience of the firms submitting bids in completing similar projects.
- 3.2 All Bidders who will be performing work will submit, with their bids, <u>proof of adequate</u> insurance coverage and copy of current license.
- 3.3 All prospective Bidders are advised that this project is subject to the Florida Sales Tax. Bidders shall include in their bids any sales or use taxes which they are required by law to pay.
- 3.4 The Bidder shall include with his bid, a list of similar, successfully completed projects which include, at the minimum, the following information: (a) Name of Job, (b) Brief Description of Work, (c) Total Dollar Amount of Work, (d) Owner's Information (including contact name, title, address and phone number), (e) Design Engineer's Information (including contact name, title, address and phone number).

4. BID SECURITY

- 4.1 Unless otherwise specified, each bid must be accompanied by a deposit of not less than <u>five percent</u> of the Bidder's maximum bid price. The deposit shall consist of a certified check, cashier's check or bid bond payable to the OWNER. Bid bond must be with a surety company listed by the U.S. Treasury Department as approved for writing bonds in an amount not less than the bid bond submitted and authorized to transact business in Florida. Within ten (10) calendar days after the formal opening of bids, checks or bid bonds will be returned except those deposited by the lowest formal Bidder. The bid security of the successful Bidder will be returned to him without interest when the Contract has been approved and executed.
- 4.2 Should the successful Bidder fail or refuse to execute the bond and the Contract required, within ten (10) calendar days after he has received notice of award of his bid, he shall forfeit to the OWNER, as liquidated damages for such failure or refusal, the security deposited with his bid.

5. RECEIPT AND OPENING OF BIDS

- 5.1 The OWNER may waive any informalities or reject any and all bids.
- 5.2 Attention is called to the fact that Bidders not only offer to assume the obligations and liabilities imposed upon the Contract in the form of Contract, but expressly make certain of the representations and warranties made therein. No effort is made to emphasize any particular provision of the Contract, but Bidders must familiarize themselves with every provision and its effect.
- 5.3 Bids will be considered irregular and may be rejected if they show omissions, alterations of form, additions not called for, conditions, limitations, unauthorized alternate bids or other irregularities of any kind.

- 5.4 The OWNER reserves the right to waive any informalities or irregularities of bids, or to reject any or all bids.
- Any of the following causes may be considered as sufficient for the disqualification of a Bidder and the rejection of his bid:
 - (a) Submission of more than one bid for the same work by an individual, partnership, or corporation under the same or different names;
 - (b) Evidence of collusion among Bidders;
 - © Submission of an unbalanced bid in which the prices bid for some items are out of proportion to the prices bid for other items;
 - (d) Lack of competency of Bidder (the Contract will be awarded only to a Bidder rated by the ENGINEER as capable of performing the work as specified; the ENGINEER may declare any Bidder ineligible at any time during the process of receiving proposals or awarding the Contract where developments arise which, in the opinion of the ENGINEER, adversely affect the Bidder's responsibility; however, the Bidder will be given an opportunity by the ENGINEER to present additional evidence before final action is taken);
 - (e) Lack of responsibility as shown by past work judged from the standpoints of workmanship, progress, compliance with requirements of Contract Documents or other appropriate concern.
- 5.6 Following the bid opening, the low bidder shall be required to submit to the City six (6) copies of a complete Schedule of Unit Prices for the entire project, to be reviewed and approved by the City. Failure to submit the required Schedule of Unit Prices within 48-hours shall be cause for rejection of the bid.

6. ACCEPTANCE OF BID AND AWARD OF CONTRACT

- 6.1 The correct summation of the correct products, obtained by multiplying the quantities submitted by the Contractor on the Schedule of Unit prices by the unit bid prices entered therein, together with lump sum prices if any, will be considered as the Total Bid Price. In the event of a discrepancy between a unit bid price and an extension, the unit bid price will govern.
- 6.2 If the lowest base bid submitted by a responsible Bidder does not exceed the amount of funds then estimated by the OWNER as available to finance the contract, the contract will be awarded on the base bid only. If such bid exceeds such amount, the OWNER may reject all bids or may negotiate the contract with the Bidder with the lowest bid so as to produce a net amount which is within the available funds.
- 6.3 An award of the contract will not be made until the necessary investigations of the responsibility of the low Bidders has been made. Unless all bids are rejected, the Contract will be awarded to the lowest and best responsible qualified Bidder whose bid appears to be in the best interest of the OWNER. Such award will be made, or all bids rejected, within one hundred twenty (120) calendar days after the opening of bids.
- When the Contract has been executed on the part of the OWNER, it shall be forwarded to the CONTRACTOR together with a notice from the ENGINEER to commence work. The notice to proceed will include the time for completion.
- 6.5 Contractor agrees to begin work within thirty (30) calendar days from date of written Notice to Proceed.

7. SECURITY FOR FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT

7.1 Simultaneously with his delivery of the executed Contract, the successful Bidder will be required to deliver to the OWNER, an executed performance and payment bond in the amount of 110% of the accepted bid as security for faithful performance of his Contract and for payment of all persons performing labor or furnishing materials in connection therewith, prepared on standard forms, and having as surety a company authorized to do business in Florida, and which is listed by the U.S. Treasury Department as approved for writing bonds in the amount not less than 110% of the contract price.

8. LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Bidder's attention is directed to the fact that all applicable State laws, municipal ordinances, and the rules and regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction over construction of the project shall apply to the Contract throughout, and they will be deemed to be included in the Contract the same as though herein written out in full.

9. WARRANTY

The Contractor warrants the subject premises for a period of one year subsequent to acceptance of the improvements. The Contractor will provide the Owner with all warranties pursuant to the terms of the general conditions. In the event that the Contractor must return to perform warranty work, the Contractor must thereafter provide for an extended warranty period of at least six (6) months for parts, materials or workmanship replaced or the equivalent of a new replacement part warranty, which ever is greater. Prior to issuance of final payment, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner a Maintenance Bond for one (1) year valued at 10% of the contract total.

10. APPLICATION FOR PROGRESS PAYMENT

Applications for Payment shall be as outlined in the Contract Documents submitted less ten (10%) percent retainage.

11. TIME OF COMPLETION

The work shall be completed as outlined in the Agreement.

12. FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT

The Bidder's attention is directed to the enactment of the Florida Trench Safety Act which incorporates OSHA Standards 29CFR s 1926.650 Subpart P, as the state's trench excavation safety standards. The Bidder shall list separately in the Proposal the cost of compliance with these standards on a lineal footage basis and the method of compliance. The Bidder shall determine if special shoring requirements are needed. Special shoring shall be identified and priced on a square footage basis in the proposal. The successful Bidder is fully responsible for the design of the trench safety system and the compliance with the applicable standards for the project.

END OF DOCUMENT

SECTION 00200 INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO BIDDERS

1. Existing utilities have been shown on the Drawings insofar as information is reasonably available. However, it will be the Contractor's responsibility to preserve all existing utilities whether shown on the Drawings or not. Damage to any utilities which, in the opinion of the Owner and Engineer, is caused by carelessness on the part of the Contractor shall be repaired at the Contractor's expense. Any delay ensuing from this damage will be considered an inexcusable delay.

SECTION 00300 BID FORM

DATE	SUBMITTED:			
PRO	JECT IDENTIFICATION:	CITY OF FRUITLAND PAURICK STREET FORCE CITY OF FRUITLAND PA	MAIN EXTENSION	
NAMI	E OF BIDDER:			
BUSI	NESS ADDRESS:			
Telep	hone Number:			
CON	TRACTOR'S FLORIDA LI	CENSE NO.:		
THIS	BID IS SUBMITTED TO:	Gary La Venia City Manager CITY OF FRUITLAND P 506 West Berckman Str Fruitland Park, FL 347	eet	
1.	The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into ar agreement with Owner in the form included in the Contract Documents to perform and furnish al Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents for the Bid Price and within the Bid Times indicated in this Bid and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.			
2.	Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Advertisement or Invitation to Bid and Instructions to Bidders, including without limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid security. This Bid will remain subject to acceptance for ninety (90) days after the day of Bid opening. Bidder will sign and deliver the required number of counterparts of the Agreement with the Bonds and other documents required by the Bidding Requirements within ten (10) days after the date of Owner's Notice of Award.			
3.	In submitting this Bid, Bidder makes all representations required by the Instructions to Bidders and further warrants and represents that:			
		mined and carefully studied tof which is hereby acknowless.		ts and the following
	No No No No No	Dated Dated Dated Dated Dated	No No No No No No	Dated_ Dated_ Dated_ Dated_ Dated_ Dated

- (b) Bidder has visited the site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local and site conditions that may affect cost, progress, performance and furnishing of the Work:
- (c) Bidder is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state and local Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, performance and furnishing of the Work.
- (d) Bidder has carefully studied all reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the site and all drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at or contiguous to the site (except Underground Facilities) which have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions as provided in the General Conditions. Bidder accepts the determinations set forth in the Supplementary Conditions of the extent of the "technical data" contained in such reports and drawings upon which Bidder is entitled to rely as provided in the General Conditions. Bidder acknowledges that such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents and may not be complete for Bidder's purposes. Bidder acknowledges that Owner and Engineer do not assume responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of information and data shown or indicated in the Bidding Documents with respect to Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the site. Bidder has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for having done so) all such additional or supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and data concerning conditions (surface, subsurface and Underground Facilities) at or contiguous to the site or otherwise which may affect cost progress, performance of furnishing of the Work or which relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of construction to be employed by Bidder and safety precautions and programs incident thereto. Bidder does not consider that any additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies or data are necessary for the determination of this Bid for performance and furnishing of the Work in accordance with the times, price and other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.
- (e) Bidder is aware of the general nature of Work to be performed by Owner and others at the site that relates to Work for which this Bid is submitted as indicated in the Contract Documents.
- (f) Bidder has correlated the information known to Bidder, information and observations obtained from visits to the site, reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents and all additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and data with the Contract Documents.
- (g) Bidder has given City Clerk written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities or discrepancies that Bidder has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Bidder, and the Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performing and furnishing the Work for which this Bid is submitted.
- (h) This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, firm or corporation and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of any group, association, organization or corporation; Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid; Bidder has not solicited or induced any person, firm or corporation to refrain from bidding; and Bidder has not sought by collusion to obtain for itself any advantage over any other Bidder or over Owner.

City of Fruitland Park Urick Street Force Main Extension Bid Form

BASE BID FROM: Point of Connection at the instersection of W. Miller Street (CR466A) and Rose Avenue **Point of Termination on Urick Street** DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE **AMOUNT MOBILIZATION** LS 1 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC 2 LS CLEARING & GRUBBING R/W LS 3 4" C-900, DR18 PVC FORCE MAIN 4 LF 5 4" DIP FORCE MAIN LF DIRECTIIONAL DRILL 6" PE-3408 SDR11 FORCE MAIN 1 F 6 7 4" PLUG VALVE & BOX EΑ AIR RELEASE VALVE AND VAULT EΑ 8 9 CONNECT TO EXISTING FORCE MAIN FΑ PIPE FITTINGS 10 LS 11 OPEN CUT AND REPAIR ASPHALT ROADWAY SY 12 OPEN CUT AND REPAIR ASPHALT DRIVEWAY SY OPEN CUT AND REPAIR CONCRETE DRIVEWAY SY 13 14 OPEN CUT AND REPAIR CONCRETE SIDEWALK SY OPEN CUT AND REPAIR GRAVEL DRIVEWAY 15 SY 16 REMOVING AND REINSTALLING 18" CMP LF 17 REMOVING AND REINSTALLING MITERED END SECTION EΑ 18 CONSTRUCTION STAKING/AS-BUILT LS PRESSURE TESTING LS 19 20 **DENSITY TESTING** LS 21 RESTORATION/BAHIA SOD & WATERING SY 22 **EROSION CONTROL/SILT FENCE** LS 23 NPDES PERMIT LS 23 110% PAYMENT/PERFORMANCE BOND LS **BASE BID TOTAL**

- 1. It shall be the responsibility of the BIDDER to perform whatever tests and/or calculations as are necessary to determine quantities required for the performance of the work described herein.
- 2. Should certain additional work be required, or should the quantities submitted by the Contractor of certain classes of work be increased or decreased from those required by the Contract Documents, by authorization of the Owner, the unit prices contained in the following Schedule of Unit Prices shall, at the option of the Owner, be the basis of payment to the Contractor credit to the Owner, for such increase or decrease in the work.
- 3. The Unit Prices shall represent the exact net amount per unit to be paid by the Contractor (in the case of additions or increases) or to be refunded by the Owner (in the case of decrease). No additional adjustments will be allowed for overhead, profit, insurance, or to other direct or indirect expenses of the Contractor or Subcontractors, and no additional adjustments will be allowed.

City of Fruitland Park Urick Street Force Main Extension Bid Form

ALTERNATE BASE BID FROM: Point of Connection at the instersection of Poinsette Avenue and Hall Street Point of Termination on Urick Street DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT **UNIT PRICE AMOUNT** MOBILIZATION LS MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC LS 2 CLEARING & GRUBBING R/W LS 3 4 8" C-900, DR18 PVC FORCE MAIN LF 5 10" C-900, DR18 PVC FORCE MAIN LF 6 10" DIP FORCE MAIN LF DIRECTIIONAL DRILL 10" PE-3408 SDR11 FORCE MAIN LF DIRECTIIONAL DRILL 12" PE-3408 SDR11 FORCE MAIN LF 8 9 8" PLUG VALVE & BOX EΑ 10 10" PLUG VALVE & BOX EΑ 11 AIR RELEASE VALVE AND VAULT EΑ CONNECT TO EXISTING FORCE MAIN EΑ 12 13 PIPE FITTINGS LS OPEN CUT AND REPAIR ASPHALT ROADWAY SY 14 OPEN CUT AND REPAIR ASPHALT DRIVEWAY 15 SY OPEN CUT AND REPAIR CONCRETE DRIVEWAY 16 SY OPEN CUT AND REPAIR CONCRETE SIDEWALK 17 SY 18 OPEN CUT AND REPAIR GRAVEL DRIVEWAY SY 19 REMOVING AND REINSTALLING 18" CMP LF 20 REMOVING AND REINSTALLING MITERED END SECTION EΑ 21 CONSTRUCTION STAKING/AS-BUILT LS

1. It shall be the responsibility of the BIDDER to perform whatever tests and/or calculations as are necessary to determine quantities required for the performance of the work described herein.

LS

LS

SY

LF

LS

LS

22

23

24

25

26

27

PRESSURE TESTING

DENSITY TESTING

RESTORATION/BAHIA SOD & WATERING

EROSION CONTROL/SILT FENCE

NPDES PERMIT

110% PAYMENT/PERFORMANCE BOND

BASE BID TOTAL

- 2. Should certain additional work be required, or should the quantities submitted by the Contractor of certain classes of work be increased or decreased from those required by the Contract Documents, by authorization of the Owner, the unit prices contained in the following Schedule of Unit Prices shall, at the option of the Owner, be the basis of payment to the Contractor credit to the Owner, for such increase or decrease in the work.
- 3. The Unit Prices shall represent the exact net amount per unit to be paid by the Contractor (in the case of additions or increases) or to be refunded by the Owner (in the case of decrease). No additional adjustments will be allowed for overhead, profit, insurance, or to other direct or indirect expenses of the Contractor or Subcontractors, and no additional adjustments will be allowed.

NAME OF BIDDER:

All Bid items shall include all materials, equipment, labor, permit fees, taxes, tests, miscellaneous costs of all types, overhead, and profit for the item to be complete, in place, and ready for operation in the manner contemplated by the Contract Documents.

Unit Prices have been computed in accordance with Article 11 of the General Conditions. Bidder acknowledges that quantities are not guaranteed and final payment will be based on actual quantities determined as provided in the Contract Documents.

- 5. The following documents are attached to and made a condition of this Bid:
 - (a) Bid Security (surety bond or cashier's check).
 - (b) Power of Attorney (for surety bond only).
 - (c) Questionnaire (Bidding Documents, Section 00301).
 - (d) Subcontractor Listing (Bidding Documents, Section 00301-A).
 - (e) Corporate authority to execute Bid (any corporate employee other than president or vice president, Section 00420).
 - (f) Noncollusion Affidavit (Bidding Documents, Section 00480).
 - (g) Trench Safety Affidavit (Bidding Documents, Section 00490).
 - (h) A separate sheet or sheets, clearly identified and numbered, of exceptions or deviations from the Specifications.
 - (i) Bidder Certification (Bidding Documents, Section 00020)
 - (j) Drug Free Work Place Certificate (Bidding Documents, Section 00020)
 - (k) Certificate of Insurability
- 6. The terms used in this Bid, which are defined in Article 1 of the General Conditions shall have the meanings assigned to them in the General Conditions as amended by the Supplementary Conditions.
- 7. Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages in the event of failure to complete the Work within the times specified in the Agreement.

The Work shall be performed under a Florida Contractor's License. Contract shall not be awarded unless proof of valid license(s) is provided.

NAME OF BID	DER:	
lf Bidder is:	(ALL SIGNATORIES MUST HAVE THEIR NAME PRINTED OR T'SIGNATURE)	YPED BELOW THEIR
SOLE	<u>PROPRIETORSHIP</u>	
		(SEAL)
	(Individual's Signature)	
		(SEAL)
	(Individual's Name)	
Doing	Business as:	
Busin	ess Address:	
		<u> </u>
Telep	hone No.:	

Florida License No.:

<u>A PARTNERSHIP</u>	
	(SEAL)
(Partnership Name)	,
(General Partner's Signature)	
(General Partner's Name)	
Doing Business as:	
Business Address:	
Telephone No.:	
Florida License No.:	

NAME OF BIDDER:

(Corporation Name)	(SEA
(State of Incorporation)	
,	
(Name of Person Authorized to Sign)	
(Title)	
(Authorized Signature)	
(Authorized Signature) ORPORATE SEAL)	
ORPORATE SEAL)	
ORPORATE SEAL)	
ORPORATE SEAL) TEST(Secretary)	
ORPORATE SEAL) TEST(Secretary) Doing Business as:	

NAME OF BIDDER:

By		(SEAL
,	(Name)	
Ву		
,	(Address)	
Ву		(SEAL
	(Name)	
Ву		
	(Address)	
Doing Business as:		
Rusiness Address:		
	t sign. The manner of signing for	
	t sign. The manner of signing for y to the joint venture should be in	
List the following in conr Surety's Address:	nection with the Surety which is pr	oviding the Bid Bond. Surety'
Surety's Name:		
Suretv's Address:		
Name and address of Si	ırety's resident agent for service o	of process in Florida:
Name and address of ot	•	

NAME OF BIDDER:

SECTION 00301 QUESTIONNAIRE

DATE	
PRO.	JECT IDENTIFICATION: City of Fruitland Park – Urick Street Force Main Extension
NAM	E OF BIDDER:
BUSI	NESS ADDRESS:
TELE	EPHONE NO.:
CON	TRACTOR'S FLORIDA LICENSE NO.:
	undersigned warrants the truth and accuracy of all statements and answers herein contained. de additional sheets if necessary.
1.	How many years has your organization been in business as a General Contractor?
2.	Describe and give the date and owner of the last project that you have completed similar in type, size, and nature as the one proposed?
3.	Have you ever failed to complete work awarded to you? If so, where and why?
4.	Name three (3) municipalities for which you have performed work and to which you refer:
5.	Have you personally inspected the site of the proposed Work? Describe any anticipated problems with the site and your proposed solutions?

What	equipment do you own that is available for the Work?
What	equipment will you purchase for the Work?
What	equipment will you rent for the Work?
The fo	ollowing is given as a summary of the Financial Statement of the undersigned: (List
	s and Liabilities and use insert sheet if necessary).

SECTION 00301-A SUBCONTRACTOR LISTING

List all proposed	Subcontra	ctors to be used	for this Project.
Firm Name: Address:			
Telephone No: Trade:	()		Estimated Dollar Amount
Trade.			Lotinated Bondi Anodite
Firm Name:			
Address:			
Telephone No: Trade:	()		Estimated Dollar Amount
114401			
Firm Name:			
Address:			
Telephone No:	()	-	Fatimate d Dallan Amazont
Trade:			Estimated Dollar Amount
F ' N			
Firm Name: Address:			
Telephone No:	()		
Trade:			Estimated Dollar Amount
Firm Name:			
Address: Telephone No:	()		
Trade:		-	Estimated Dollar Amount
Firm Name:			
Address:			
Telephone No: Trade:	()	-	Estimated Dollar Amount
Firm Name:			
Address:			
Telephone No:	()	-	Fatimate d Dallar Amazart
Trade:			Estimated Dollar Amount

SECTION 00410 BID BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned,	
as Principal, and	
as Surety, are hereby held and firmly bound unto the CITY OF FRUITLAND I	PARK, as Owner in the
penal sum of, (five percent (5%) of the Contract Bid)	for the payment of
which, well and truly to be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind o assigns to pay Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the fa	
Signed, thisday of, 20	

The condition of the above obligation is such that whereas the Principal has submitted to CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK, a certain Bid, attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof, to enter into a contract in writing, for the City of Fruitland Park – Urick Street Force Main Extension

NOW THEREFORE,

- 1. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding Documents the executed Agreement required by the Bidding Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents and Contract Documents.
- 2. This obligation shall be null and void if:
 - 2.1 Owner accepts Bidder's bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents and Contract Documents, or
 - 2.2 All bids are rejected by Owner, or
 - 2.3 Owner fails to issue a notice of award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when required by paragraph 5 hereof).
- 3. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner which notice will be given with reasonable promptness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due.
- 4. Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue notice of award agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the time for issuing notice of award including extensions shall not in the aggregate exceed one hundred twenty (120) days from Bid Due without Surety's written consent.
- 5. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to thirty (30) calendar days after the notice of default required in paragraph 3 above is received by Bidder and Surety, and in no case later than one year after Bid Due Date.
- 6. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the state in which the Project is located.

- 7. Notice required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shown on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier or by United States Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective upon receipt by the part concerned.
- 8. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the authority of the officer, agent or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal and deliver such Bond and bind the Surety thereby.
- 9. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at length. If any provision of the Bond conflicts with any applicable provision of any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shall govern and the remainder of the Bond that is not in conflict therewith shall continue in full force and effect.
- 10. The term 'bid" as used herein includes a bid, offer or proposal as applicable.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of them as are corporations have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be signed by their proper officers, the day and year first set forth above.

Principal (Print Full Name):		Surety (Print Full Name):	
		(Seal) Surety's Name and Corporate Seal	
Ву:	(L.S.)	By:	
Title:		Title:	
Attest:Signature and Title		Attest:Signature and Title	

IMPORTANT - Surety companies executing bonds must appear on the Treasury Department's most current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the State of Florida. See Article 5 of the General Conditions as amended by Supplementary Conditions.

SECTION 00420 CORPORATE RESOLUTION

l,	, Secretary of		
a corporation organized and	existing under the laws o	f the State of	, hereb
certify that at a meeting of the	Board of Directors of the C	orporation duly ca	illed and held on
	20 at which a quorum	was present an	nd acting throughout, the
following resolutions were adop	oted and are now in full force	e and effect:	
RESOLVED that the fol	lowing individuals of this co	orporation are auth	orized to execute on behalf
of this corporation a Bid and	Agreement to		_ for the construction o
		·	
I further certify that the authorized to act under this res	names of the officers of this olution and their official sig	natures are as follo	•
		<u> </u>	
IN WITNESS WHEREC	OF, I have hereunto subsc	ribed my name as	s Secretary and affixed the
seal of the corporation this	day of	, 20	

SECTION 00480 NONCOLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

ST	ATE OF		
CC	DUNTY OF		
	, being first duly sworn deposes and says that:		
1.	He is the, of, the Bidder that has submitted the attached Bid;		
2.	He is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached Bid and of all pertinencircumstances respecting such Bid;		
3.	Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Bid;		
4.	Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives employees, or parties in interest, including this affiant, have in any way, colluded, conspired connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham Bid in connection with the Contract for which the attached Bid has been submitted; or to refrain from bidding in connection with such Contract; or have in any manner, directly or indirectly sought by agreement or collusion, or communication, or conference with any Bidder, firm, or person to fix the price or prices in the attached Bid or of any other Bidder, or to fix any overhead profit, or cost elements of the Bid price or the Bid price in any other Bidder, or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against the Owner or any person interested in the proposed Contract;		
5.	The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by a collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any other its agents, representatives, owners, employees or parties in interest, including his affiant.		
	By		
	Sworn and subscribed to before me thisday of, 20, in the State of		
	, County of		
	Notary Public		
Му	Commission Expires:		

SECTION 00490 TRENCH SAFETY AFFIDAVIT

Trench excavations on this Project are expected to be in excess of 5 feet deep. The Occupational Safety and Health Administration excavation safety standards, 29 CFR 1926.650 Subpart P trench safety standards will be in effect during the period of construction of the Project.

Bidder acknowledges that included in the Bid Price are costs for complying with the Florida Trench Safety Act (90-096, Laws of FL) effective October 1, 1990, and hereby gives assurance that, if awarded the Contract, the Contractor or Subcontractor performing trench excavation work on the Project will comply with the applicable trench safety standards. The Bidder further identifies the costs as follows:

Trench Safety Item (Description) Cost

City of Fruitland Park - Urick Street Force Main Extension

•	
Α.	
-	(Cost in Words)
TOTAL	\$
FAILUR RESPO	E TO COMPLETE THE ABOVE MAY RESULT IN THE BID BEING DECLARED NON NSIVE
COMPA	NY NAME:DATE:
BY:	

EJCDC

STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR ON THE BASIS OF A STIPULATED PRICE

THIS AGREEMENT	r is dated as of the_	day of	in the year	
by and	l between	The City of Fruitland Park	(hereinafter called	
OWNER) and		(her	einafter called CONTRACTOR).	
OWNER and CONTRACTOR, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as follows:				
Article 1. WORK.	Article 1. WORK.			
CONTRACTOR shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Work is generally described as follows:				
The project generally involves the construction of water treatment upgrades for the City of Fruitland Park.				
Article 2. ENGINEER.				
Engineer:	BESH Halff, Inc 902 North Sinc Tavares, Florid	air Avenue		

ENGINEER is to act as OWNER's representative, assume all duties and responsibilities and have the rights and authority assigned to ENGINEER in the Contract Documents in connection with completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Article 3. CONTRACT TIMES.

3.1 The Work will be substantially completed and finally completed and ready for final payment in accordance with paragraph 14.13 of the General Conditions on or before the following dates:

Substantial Completion - 150 calendar days after the issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

Final Completion - 30 calendar days after the substantial completion date for a total contract time of 180 days.

3.2 Liquidated Damages. OWNER and CONTRACTOR recognize that time is of the essence of this Agreement and that OWNER will suffer financial loss if the Work is not completed within the times specified in paragraph 3.1 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with Article 12 of the General Conditions. They also recognize the delays, expense and difficulties involved in proving the actual loss suffered by OWNER if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, OWNER and CONTRACTOR agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty) CONTRACTOR shall pay OWNER Five Hundred dollars (\$500.00) for each day that expires after the time specified in paragraph 3.1 for Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially complete. After Substantial Completion, if CONTRACTOR shall neglect. refuse or fail to complete the remaining Work within the time specified in paragraph 3.1 for completion and readiness for final payment or any proper extension thereof granted by OWNER, CONTRACTOR shall pay OWNER Five Hundred dollars (\$500.00) for each day

Agreement 00500-1

Article 4. CONTRACT PRICE.

OWNER shall pay CONTRACTOR for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents an amount in current funds equal to the sum of the established unit price for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of the item as indicated on the Bid Form.

TOTAL OF ALL UNIT PRICES:		
		(use words)
\$	(dollars).	
As provided in paragraph 11.9 of the G	•	•

determinations of actual quantities and classification are to be made by ENGINEER as provided in paragraph 9.10 of the General Conditions. Unit prices have been computed as provided in paragraph 11.9.2 of the General Conditions.

Article 5. PAYMENT PROCEDURES.

CONTRACTOR shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 8 of the Supplementary General Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by ENGINEER as provided in the Supplementary General Conditions. Payment will be processed as per Florida Statue 218.735 covering timely payment for purchases of constructions services.

- Progress Payments; Retainage. OWNER shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of CONTRACTOR's Applications for Payment as recommended by ENGINEER, on or about the <u>30th</u> day of each month during construction as provided in paragraphs 5.1.1 and 5.1.2. below. All such payments will be measured by the schedule of values established in paragraph 2.9 of the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price Work based on the number of units completed) or, in the event there is no schedule of values, as provided in the General Requirements.
 - 5.1.1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal to the percentage indicated below, but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments previously made and less such amounts as ENGINEER shall determine, or OWNER may withhold, in accordance with paragraph 14.7 of the General Conditions.
 - 90 % of Work completed (with the balance being retainage).
 90 % (with the balance being retainage) of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (but delivered, suitably stored and accompanied by documentation satisfactory to OWNER as provided in paragraph 14.2 of the General Conditions).
 - 5.1.2. Upon Substantial Completion, in an amount sufficient to increase total payments to CONTRACTOR to 90 % of the Contract Price (with the balance being retainage), less such amounts as ENGINEER shall determine, or OWNER may withhold, in accordance with paragraph 14.7 of the General Conditions.
- 5.2 Final Payment. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with paragraph 14.13 of the General Conditions, OWNER shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as recommended by ENGINEER as provided in said paragraph 14.13

Agreement 00500-2

Article 6. INTEREST.

All money not paid when due as provided in Article 14 of the General Conditions shall bear interest at the maximum rate allowed by law at the place of the Project.

Article 7. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS.

In order to induce OWNER to enter into this Agreement CONTRACTOR makes the following representations:

- 7.1 CONTRACTOR has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents (including the Addenda listed in paragraph 8) and the other related data identified in the bidding Documents including "technical data."
- 7.2 CONTRACTOR has visited the site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local and site conditions that may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work.
- 7.3 CONTRACTOR is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state and local Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, performance and furnishing of the Work.
- 7.4 CONTRACTOR has carefully studied all reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at/or contiguous to the site and all drawings of physical conditions in/or relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at/or contiguous to the site (except Underground Facilities) which have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions as provided in Paragraph 4.2.1 of the General Conditions. CONTRACTOR accepts the determination of the extent of the "technical data" contained in such reports and drawing upon which CONTRACTOR is entitled to rely as provided in paragraph 4.2 of the General Conditions. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents and may not be complete for CONTRACTOR's purposes. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that OWNER and ENGINEER do not assume responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of information and data shown or indicated in the Contract Documents with respect to Underground Facilities at/or contiguous to the site. CONTRACTOR has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for having done so) all such additional supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and data concerning conditions (surface, subsurface and Underground Facilities) at/or contiguous to the site or otherwise which may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work or which relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques and procedures of construction to be employed by CONTRACTOR and safety precautions and programs incident thereto. CONTRACTOR does not consider that any additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies or data are necessary for the performance and furnishing of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Times and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.
- 7.5 CONTRACTOR is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by OWNER and others at the site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents.
- 7.6 CONTRACTOR has correlated the information known to CONTRACTOR, information and observations obtained from visits to the site, reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents and all additional examination, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and data with the Contract Documents.
- 7.7 CONTRACTOR has given ENGINEER written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities or discrepancies that CONTRACTOR has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof by ENGINEER is acceptable to CONTRACTOR, and the Contract

Agreement 00500-3

Documents are generally sufficient of indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.

Article 8. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

The Contract Documents which comprise the entire agreement between OWNER and CONTRACTOR concerning the Work consist of the following:

8.1	This Agreement (pages <u>1</u> to <u>5</u> , inclusive).
8.2	Exhibits to this Agreement (pages N/A to , inclusive).
8.3	Performance, Payment, and other Bonds.
8.4	Notice to Proceed.
8.5	General Conditions (pages 1 to 68, inclusive).
8.6	Supplementary Conditions (pages 1 to 15, inclusive).
8.7	Specifications bearing the title <u>City of Fruitland Park, Urick Street Force Main</u> <u>Extension</u> and consisting of <u>15</u> Divisions, as listed in table of contents thereof.
8.8	Drawings consisting of 17 sheets with each sheet bearing the following general title: City of Fruitland Park, Urick Street Force Main Extension
8.9	Addenda numbersto, inclusive.
8.10	CONTRACTOR's Bid (pages 00300, 1-8, inclusive)
8.11	Documentation submitted by CONTRACTOR prior to Notice of Award (pages N/A to
	inclusive).
8.12	The following which may be delivered or issued after the Effective Date of the Agreement and are not attached hereto: All Written Amendments and other documents amending, modifying or supplementing the Contract Documents pursuant to paragraphs 3.5 and 3.6 of

The documents listed in paragraphs 8.2 et seq. above area attached to this Agreement (Except as expressly noted otherwise above.

There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 13. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified or supplemented as provided in paragraphs 3.5 and 3.6 of the General Conditions.

Article 9. MISCELLANEOUS.

- 9.1 Terms used in this Agreement which are defined in Article 1 of the General Conditions will have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions.
- 9.2 No assignment by a party hereto of any rights in the Contract Documents will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written

Agreement 00500-4

the General Conditions.

- consent to an assignment will release or discharge the assignor form any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents.
- 9.3 OWNER and CONTRACTOR each binds itself, its partner, successors, assigns and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents.
- 9.4 Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon OWNER and CONTRACTOR, who agree that the Contract Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision.
- 9.5 OTHER PROVISIONS. All electronic files, audio and/or video recordings, and all papers Pertaining to any activity performed by the provider for or on behalf of the City shall be the property of the City and will be turned over to the City upon request. In accordance with Florida "Public Records" law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, each file and all papers pertaining to any activities performed for or on behalf of the City are public records available for inspection by any person even if the file or paper resides in the CONSULTANT'S office or facility.

IF THE CONTRACTOR (CONSULTANT) HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR'S (CONSULTANT'S) DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 352-360-6790, EMAIL TO ecoulson@fruitlandpark.org, 506 West Berckman Street, Fruitland Park, Florida 34731.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, OWNER and CONTRACTOR have signed this Agreement in quadruplicate One counterpart each has been delivered to OWNER, CONTRACTOR, OWNER'S ENGINEER and OWNER'S ATTORNEY. All portions of the Contract Documents have been signed, initialed or identified by OWNER and CONTRACTOR or identified by ENGINEER or their behalf.

This Agreement will be effective on		,(which is the Effective		
OWNER:	City of Fruitland Park	CONTRACTOR		
BY:Title:		BY: Title & Corporate Seal		
Attest:		Attest:		
Address for giving notices:		Address for giving notices:		
	and Park erckman Street rk, Florida 34731			

Agreement 00500-5

Performance Bond

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address):	SURETY (Name and Address of P of Business):	rincipal Place
OWNER (Name and Address):		
CONTRACT Date: Amount: Description (Name and Location):		
BOND Date (Not earlier than Contract Date): Amount: Modifications to this Bond Form:		
Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, each cause this Performance Bond to be duly executed on its		
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL Company: (Corp. Seal)	SURETY Company:	(Corp. Seal)
Signature:	Signature:	
Name and Title:	Name and Title: (Attach Power of Attorney)	
(Space is provided below for signatures of additional parties,	if required.)	
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL	SURETY	
Company: (Corp. Seal)	Company:	(Corp. Seal)
Signature: Name and Title:	Signature: Name and Title:	

EJCDC No. 1910-28-A (1996 Edition)
Originally prepared through the joint efforts of the Surety Association of America, Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee, the Associated General Contractors of America, and the American Institute of Architects.

- The CONTRACTOR and the Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns to the Owner for the performance of the Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.
- 2. If the CONTRACTOR performs the Contract, the Surety and the CONTRACTOR have no obligation under this Bond, except to participate in conferences as provided i
- 3. If there is no OWNER Default, the Surety's obligation under this Bond shall arise after:
 - 3.1. The OWNER has notified the CONTRACTOR and the Surety at the addresses described in paragraph 10 below, that the OWNER is considering declaring a CONTRACTOR Default and has requested and attempted to arrange a conference with the CONTRACTOR and the Surety to be held not later than fifteen days after receipt of such notice to discuss methods of performing the Contract. If the OWNER, the CONTRACTOR and the Surety agree, the CONTRACTOR shall be allowed a reasonable time to perform the Contract, but such an agreement shall not waive the OWNER's right, if any, subsequently to declare a CONTRACTOR Default; and
 - 3.2. The OWNER has declared a CONTRACTOR Default and formally terminated the CONTRACTOR's right to complete the Contract. Such CONTRACTOR Default shall not be declared earlier than twenty days after the CONTRACTOR and the Surety have received notice as provided in paragraph 3.1; and
 - 3.3. The OWNER has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Price to:
 - 3.3.1. The Surety in accordance with the terms of the Contract;
 - 3.3.2 Another contractor selected pursuant to paragraph 4.3 to perform the Contract.
- 4. When the OWNER has satisfied the conditions of paragraph 3, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's expense take one of the following actions:
 - 4.1. Arrange for the CONTRACTOR, with consent of the OWNER, to perform and complete the Contract; or
 - 4.2. Undertake to perform and complete the Contract itself, through its agents or through independent contractors; or
 - 4.3. Obtain bids or negotiated proposals from qualified contractors acceptable to the OWNER for a contract for performance and completion of the Contract, arrange for a contract to be prepared for execution by the OWNER and the contractor selected with the OWNER's concurrence, to be secured with performance and payment bonds executed by a qualified surety equivalent to the Bonds issued on the Contract, and pay to the OWNER the amount of damages as described in paragraph 6 in excess of the Balance of the Contract Price incurred by the OWNER resulting from the CONTRACTOR Default; or
 - 4.4. Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for completion, or obtain a new contractor and with reasonable promptness under the circumstances;
 - 4.4.1 After investigation, determine the amount for which it may be liable to the OWNER and, as soon as practicable after the amount is determined, tender payment therefor to the OWNER; or
 - 4.4.2 Deny liability in whole or in part and notify the OWNER citing reasons therefor.
- 5. If the Surety does not proceed as provided in paragraph 4 with reasonable promptness, the Surety shall be deemed to be in default on this Bond fifteen days after receipt of an additional written notice from the OWNER to the Surety demanding that the Surety perform its obligations under this Bond, and the OWNER shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to the OWNER. If the Surety proceeds as provided in paragraph 4.4, and the OWNER refuses the payment tendered or the Surety has denied pliability, in whole or in part, without further notice the OWNER shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to the OWNER.
- 6. After the OWNER has terminated the CONTRACTOR's right to complete the Contract, and if the Surety elects to act under paragraph 4.1, 4.2, or 4.3 above, then the responsibilities of the Surety to the OWNER shall not be greater than those of the CONTRACTOR under the Contract, and the responsibilities of the OWNER to the Surety shall not be greater than those of the OWNER under the Contract. To a limit of the amount of this Bond, but subject to commitment by the OWNER of the Balance of the Contract Price to mitigation of costs and damages on the Contract, the Surety is obligated without duplication for:
 - 6.1. The responsibilities of the CONTRACTOR for correction of defective Work and completion of the Contract;
 - 6.2. Additional legal, design professional and delay costs resulting from the CONTRACTOR's Default, and resulting from the actions or failure to act of the Surety under paragraph 4; and
 - 6.3. Liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are specified in the Contract, actual damages caused by delayed performance or non-performance of the CONTRACTOR.
- 7. The Surety shall not be liable to the OWNER or others for obligations of the CONTRACTOR that are unrelated to the Contract, and the Balance of the Contract Price shall not be reduced or set off on account of any such unrelated obligations. No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to any person or entity other than the OWNER or its heirs, executors, administrators, or successors.
- 8. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Contract or to related subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations.
- 9. Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond may be instituted in any court of competent jurisdiction in the location in which the Work or part of the Work is located and shall be instituted within two years after CONTRACTOR Default or within two years after the CONTRACTOR ceased working or within two years after the Surety refuses or fails to perform its obligations under this Bond, whichever occurs first. If the provisions of this paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.
- 10. Notice to the Surety, the OWNER or the CONTRACTOR shall be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the signature page.
- 11. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location where the Contract was be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement shall be deemed deleted here from and provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein. The intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.

12. Definitions.

- 12.1 Balance of the Contract Price: The total amount payable by the OWNER to the CONTRACTOR under the Contract after all proper adjustments have been made, including allowance to the CONTRACTOR of any amounts received or to be received by the OWNER in settlement of insurance or other Claims for damages to which the CONTRACTOR is entitled, reduced by all valid and proper payments made to or on behalf of the CONTRACTOR under the Contract.
- 12.2. Contract: The agreement between the OWNER and the CONTRACTOR identified on the signature page, including all Contract Documents and changes thereto.
- 12.3. CONTRACTOR Default: Failure of the CONTRACTOR, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to perform or otherwise to comply with the terms of the Contract.
- 12.4. OWNER Default: Failure of the OWNER, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to pay the CONTRACTOR as required by the Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other terms thereof.

(FOR INFORMATION ONLY--Name, Address and Telephone)
AGENT or BROKER: OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE (Engineer or other party):

Payment Bond

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address):		SURETY (Name and Address of of Business):	Principal Place
OWNER (Name and Address):			
CONTRACT Date: Amount: Description (Name and Location):			
BOND Date (Not earlier than Contract Date): Amount: Modifications to this Bond Form:			
Surety and Contractor, intending to be le Payment Bond to be duly executed on it			de hereof, do each cause this
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL		SURETY	
Company:	(Corp. Seal)	Company:	(Corp. Seal)
Signature:Name and Title:		Signature:Name and Title: (Attach Power of Attorney)	
(Space is provided below for signatures	of additional parties, if re	equired.)	
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL		CLIDETY	
CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL Company:	(Corp. Seal)	SURETY Company:	(Corp. Seal)
Signature:		Signature:	
Name and Title:		Name and Title:	

EJCDC No. 1910-28-B (1996 Edition)

Originally prepared through the joint efforts of the Surety Association of America, Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee, the Associated General Contractors of America, the American Institute of Architects, the American Subcontractors Association, and the Associated Specialty Contractors.

- 1. The CONTRACTOR and the Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns to the OWNER to pay for labor, materials and equipment furnished for use in the performance of the Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.
- 2. With respect to the OWNER, this obligation shall be null and void if the CONTRACTOR:
- 2.1. Promptly makes payment, directly or indirectly, for all sums due Claimants, and
- 2.2. Defends, indemnifies and holds harmless the OWNER from all claims, demands, liens or suits by any person or entity who furnished labor, materials or equipment for use in the performance of the Contract, provided the OWNER has promptly notified the CONTRACTOR and the Surety (at the addresses described in paragraph 12) of any claims, demands, liens or suits and tendered defense of such claims, demands, liens or suits to the CONTRACTOR and the Surety, and provided there is no OWNER Default.
- 3. With respect to Claimants, this obligation shall be null and void if the CONTRACTOR promptly makes payment, directly or indirectly, for all sums due.
- 4. The Surety shall have no obligation to Claimants under this Bond until:
- 4.1. Claimants who are employed by or have a direct contract with the CONTRACTOR have given notice to the Surety (at the addresses described in paragraph 12) and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to the OWNER, stating that a claim is being made under this Bond and, with substantial accuracy, the amount of the claim.
 - 4.2. Claimants who do not have a direct contract with the CONTRACTOR:
- 1. Have furnished written notice to the CONTRACTOR and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to the OWNER, within 90 days after having last performed labor or last furnished materials or equipment included in the claim stating, with substantial accuracy, the amount of the claim and the name of the party to whom the materials were furnished or supplied or for whom the labor was done or performed; and
- 2. Have either received a rejection in whole or in part from the CONTRACTOR, or not received within 30 days of furnishing the above notice any communication from the CONTRACTOR by which the CONTRACTOR had indicated the claim will be paid directly or indirectly; and
- 3. Not having been paid within the above 30 days, have sent a written notice to the Surety and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to the OWNER, stating that a claim is being made under this Bond and enclosing a copy of the previous written notice furnished to the CONTRACTOR.
- 5. If a notice required by paragraph 4 is given by the OWNER to the CONTRACTOR or to the Surety, that is sufficient compliance.
- 6. When the Claimant has satisfied the conditions of paragraph 4, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's expense take the following actions:
- 6.1. Send an answer to the Claimant, with a copy to the OWNER, within 45 days after receipt of the claim, stating the amounts that are undisputed and the basis for challenging any amounts that are disputed.
 - 6.2. Pay or arrange for payment of any undisputed amounts.
- 7. The Surety's total obligation shall not exceed the amount of this Bond, and the amount of this Bond shall be credited for any payments made in good faith by the Surety.

- 8. Amounts owed by the OWNER to the CONTRACTOR under the Contract shall be used for the performance of the Contract and to satisfy claims, if any, under any Performance Bond. By the CONTRACTOR furnishing and the OWNER accepting this Bond, they agree that all funds earned by the CONTRACTOR in the performance of the Contract are dedicated to satisfy obligations of the CONTRACTOR and the Surety under this Bond, subject to the OWNER's priority to use the funds for the completion of the Work.
- 9. The Surety shall not be liable to the OWNER, Claimants or others for obligations of the CONTRACTOR that are unrelated to the Contract. The OWNER shall not be liable for payment of any costs or expenses of any Claimant under this Bond, and shall have under this Bond no obligations to make payments to, give notices on behalf of, or otherwise have obligations to Claimants under this Bond.
- 10. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Contract or to related Subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations.
- 11. No suit or action shall be commenced by a Claimant under this Bond other than in a court of competent jurisdiction in the location in which the Work or part of the Work is located or after the expiration of one year from the date (1) on which the Claimant gave the notice required by paragraph 4.1 or paragraph 4.2.3, or (2) on which the last labor or service was performed by anyone or the last materials or equipment were furnished by anyone under the Construction Contract, whichever of (1) or (2) first occurs. If the provisions of this paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.
- 12. Notice to the Surety, the OWNER or the CONTRACTOR shall be mailed or delivered to the addresses shown on the signature page. Actual receipt of notice by Surety, the OWNER or the CONTRACTOR, however accomplished, shall be sufficient compliance as of the date received at the address shown on the signature page.
- 13. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location where the Contract was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement shall be deemed deleted here from and provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein. The intent is, that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory Bond and not as a common law bond.
- 14. Upon request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of this Bond, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly furnish a copy of this Bond or shall permit a copy to be made.

15. DEFINITIONS

- 15.1. Claimant: An individual or entity having a direct contract with the CONTRACTOR or with a Subcontractor of the CONTRACTOR to furnish labor, materials or equipment for use in the performance of the Contract. The intent of this Bond shall be to include without limitation in the terms "labor, materials or equipment" that part of water, gas, power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service or rental equipment used in the Contract, architectural and engineering services required for performance of the Work of the CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR's Subcontractors, and all other items for which a mechanic's lien may be asserted in the jurisdiction where the labor, materials or equipment were furnished.
- $15.2.\ Contract:$ The agreement between the OWNER and the CONTRACTOR identified on the signature page, including all Contract Documents and changes pthereto.
- 15.3. OWNER Default: Failure of the OWNER, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to pay the CONTRACTOR as required by the Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other terms thereof.

(FOR INFORMATION ONLY--Name, Address and Telephone)
AGENCY or BROKER: OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE (Engineer or other party):

This document has important legal consequences; consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect to its use or modification. This document should be adapted to the particular circumstances of the contemplated Project and the controlling Laws and Regulations.

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

Prepared by

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE

and

Issued and Published Jointly by





National Society of Professional Engineers
Professional Engineers in Private Practice

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS IN PRIVATE PRACTICE $\ A\ Practice\ Division\ of\ the$ NATIONAL SOCIETY OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS

These General Conditions have been prepared for use with the Suggested Forms of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor (EJCDC C-520 or C-525, 2007 Editions). Their provisions are interrelated and a change in one may necessitate a change in the other. Comments concerning their usage are contained in the Narrative Guide to the EJCDC Construction Documents (EJCDC C-001, 2007 Edition). For guidance **in** the preparation of Supplementary Conditions, see Guide to the Preparation of Supplementary Conditions (EJCDC C-800, 2007 Edition).

Copyright© 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers 1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2794 (703) 684-2882 www.nspe.org

> American Council of Engineering Companies 1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005 (202) 347-7474 www.acec.org

American Society of Civil Engineers 1801 Alexander BeH Drive, Reston, VA 20191-4400 (800) 548-2723 www.asce.org

Associated General Contractors of America 2300 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 400, Arlington, VA 22201-3308 (703) 548-3118 www.age.erg

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
Article 1 -	Definitions and Terminology	I
1.01		
1.02	Terminology	5
Article 2	Preliminary Matters,	6
2.01	Delivery of Bonds and Evidence oflnsurance	
2.01	•	
2.02	•	
2.03		
2.04		
	Preconstruction Conference; Designation of Authorized Representatives	
2.07		
2.07	initial Acceptance of Schedules	/
Article 3 -	Contract-Bocuments:-·Intent,Amending, Reuse	8
3.01	Intent	8
3.02	Reference Standards	8
3.03	Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies	9
3.04	Amending and Supplementing Contract Documents	9
3.05	Reuse of Documents	. 10
3.06	Electronic Data	. 10
Autiala 1	Availability of Londay Subayurface and Dhysical Conditions, Harandaya Environmental	
	Availability of Lands; Subsurface and Physical Conditions; Hazardous Environmental Conditions; Reference Points	1 1
4.01	Availability of Lands	
4.02 4.03	,	
4.03	·	
4.04		
4.03		
4.00	Hazardous Environmental Condition at Site	. 14
Article 5 -	Bonds and Insurance	. 16
5.01	Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds	. 16
5.02	Licensed Sureties and Insurers	. 16
5.03	Certificates oflnsurance	. 17
5.04	Contractor's Insurance	17
5.05	O\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\	19
5.06	Property Insurance	. 19
5.07	Waiver of Rights	20
5.08	Receipt and Application of Insurance Proceeds	. 21

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright© 2007 '.'lational Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights resen>ed.

Pagei

5.09	Acceptance of Bonds and Insurance; Option to Replace	21
5.10	Partial Utilization, Acknowledgment of Property Insurer	
	Contractor's Responsibilities	
6.01	Supervision and Superintendence	
6.02	Labor; Working Hours	
6.03	Services, Materials, ano Equipment	
6.04	Progress Schedule	
6.05	Substitutes and "Or-Equals"	
6.06	Concerning Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others	
6.07	Patent Fees and Royalties	
6.08	Permits	
6.09	Laws and Regulations	
6.10	Taxes	
6.11	Use of Site and Other Areas	
6.12	Record Documents	29
6.13	Safety and Protection	29
6.14	Safety Representative	
6.15	Hazard Communication Programs	30
6.16	Emergencies	30
6.17	Shop Drawings and Samples	31
6.18	Continuing the Work	32
6.19	Contractor's General Warranty and Guarantee	33
6.20	Indemnification	33
6.21	Delegation of Professional Design Services	34
A 4: 1 7	O.1. W. 1. (4) G.4	25
	Other Work at the Site	
7.01	Related Work at Site	
7.02	Coordination	
7.03	Legal Relationshlps	;
.Article 8 -	Owner's Responsibilities	36
8.01	Communications to Contractor	
8.02	Replacement of Engineer · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
8.03	Furnish Data	
8.04	Pay When Due	
8.05	Lands and Easements; Reports and Tests	
8.06	Insurance	
8.07	Change Orders	
8.08	Inspections, Tests, and Approvals	
8.09	Limitations on Owner's Responsibilities	
8.10	Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition	
8.11	Evidence of Financial Arrangements	
8.12	Compliance with Site Safety Program	
0.12	comprised that one outer, I regular	
Article 9 -	Engineer's Status During Construction	37
9.01	Owner's Representative	37

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright© 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

Page ii

9.02	Visits to Site	37
9.03	Project Representative	38
9.04	Authorized Variations in Work	38
9.05	Rejecting Defective Work	38
9.06	Shop Drawings, Change Orders and Payments	
9.07	Determinations for Unit Price Work	39
9.08	Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work	39
9.09	Limitations on Engineer's Authority and Responsibilities	39
9.10	Compliance with Site Safety Program	40
Article 10-0	Changes in the Work; Claims	40
10.01	Authorized Changes in the Work	40
10.02	Unauthorized Changes in the Work	41
10.03	Execution of Change Orders	41
10.04	Notification to Surety	41
10.05	Claims	41
Article 11 -	Cost of the Work; Allowances; Unit Price Work	42
11.01	Cost of the Work	42
11.02	Allowances	45
11.03	Unit Price Work	45
Article 12-	Change of Contract Price; Change of Contract Times	46
12.01	Change of Contract Price	46
12.02	Change of Contract Times	47
12.03	Delays	47
Article 13 -	Γests and Inspections; Correction, Removal or Acceptance of Defective Work	48
	Notice of Defects	
13.02	Access to Work	48
13.03	Tests and Inspections	49
	Uncovering Work	
	Owner May Stop the Work	
	Correction or Removal of Defective Work	
	Correction Period	
	Acceptance of Defective Work	
	Owner May Correct Defective Work	
Article 14 -	Payments to Contractor and Completion	52
14.01	Schedule of Values	52
14.02	Progress Payn1ents	52
14.03	Contractor's Warranty of Title	55
	Substantial Completion	
	Partial Utilization	
	Final Inspection	
	Final Payment	
	Final Completion Delayed	

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Cop ·right © 20071\ational Soriety of Prolessional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

Page iii

14.09	Waiver of Claims	58
Article 15 -	Suspension of Work and Termination	59
	Owner May Suspend Work	
	Owner May Terminate for Cause	
	Owner May Terminate For Convenience;;	
	Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate	
Article 1-6	Dispute Resolution · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	61
16.01	Methods and Procedures	61
Article 17 -	Miscellaneous	61
17.01	Giving Notice	61
	Computation of Times	
17.03	Cumulative Remedies	62
17.04	Survival of Obligations	62
17.05	Controlling Law	62
	Headings	

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS AND TERMINOLOGY

1.01 Defined Terms

- A Wherever used in the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents and printed with initial capital letters, the tenns listed below will have the meanings indicated which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof. In addition to terms specifically defined, terms with initial capital letters in the Contract Documents include references to identified articles and paragraphs, and the titles of other documents or forms.
 - A. *Addenda-Written* or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of Bids which clarify, correct, or change the Bidding Requirements or the proposed Contract Documents.
 - B. *Agreement*-The written instrument which is evidence of the agreement between Owner and Contractor covering the Work.
 - C. Application for Payment-The form acceptable to Engineer which is to be used by Contractor during the course of the Work in requesting progress or final payments and which is to be accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents.
 - D. Asbestos-Any material that contains more than one percent asbestos and is friable or is releasing asbestos fibers into the air above current action levels established by the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration.
 - E. *Bid-The* offer or proposal of a Bidder submitted on the prescribed form setting forth the prices for the W ork to be performed.
 - F. Bidder-The individual or entity who submits a Bid directly to Owner.
 - G. Bidding Documents-The Bidding Requirements and the proposed Contract Documents (including **all** Addenda).
 - H. *Bidding Requirements-The* advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, Bid security of acceptable form, if any, and the Bid Form with any supplements.
 - I. Change Order-A document recommended by Engineer which is signed by Contractor and Owner and authorizes an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times, issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement.
 - J. *Claim-A* demand or assertion by Owner or Contractor seeking an adjustment of Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, or other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract. A demand for money or services by a third party is not a Claim.
 - K. *Contract-The* entire and integrated written agreement between the Owner and Contractor concerning the Work. The Contract supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, whether written or oral.
 - L. Contract Documents-Those items so designated in the Agreement. Only printed or hard copies of the items listed in the Agreement are Contract Documents. Approved Shop

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Condilions of the Construction Contract. Copyright© 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

- Drawings, other Contractor submittals, and the reports and drawings of subsurface and physical conditions are not Contract Documents.
- M. Contract Price-The moneys payable by Owner to Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents as stated in the Agreement (subject to the provisions of Paragraph 11.03 in the case of Unit Price Work).
- N. Contract Times-The number of days or the dates stated in the Agreement to: (i) achieve Milestones, if any; (ii) achieve Substantial Completion; and (iii) complete the Work so that it is ready for final payment as evidenced by Engineer's written recommendation of final payment.
- O. Contractor-The individual or entity with whom Owner has entered into the Agreement.
- P. Cost of the Work-See Paragraph 11.01 for definition.
- Q. *Drawings-That* part of the Contract Documents prepared or approved by Engineer which graphically shows the scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed by Contractor. Shop Drawings and other Contractor submittals are not Drawings as so defined.
- R. Effective Date of the Agreement-The date indicated in the Agreement on which it becomes effective, but if no such date is indicated, it means the date on which the Agreement is signed and delivered by the last of the two parties to sign and deliver.
- S. Engineer-The individual or entity named as such in the Agreement.
- T. *Field Order-A* written order issued by Engineer which requires minor changes in the Work but which does not involve a change in the Contract Price or the Contract Times.
- U. General Requirements-Sections of Division 1 of the Specifications.
- V. *Hazardous Environmental Condition-The* presence at the Site of Asbestos, PCBs, Petroleum, Hazardous Waste, or Radioactive Material in such quantities or circumstances that may present a substantial danger to persons or property exposed thereto.
- W. *Hazardous Waste-The* term Hazardous Waste shall have the meaning provided in Section 1004 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 USC Section 6903) as amended from time to time.
- X. Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations-Any and all applicable laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes, and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities, and cowis having jurisdiction.
- Y. *Liens-Charges*, security interests, or encumbrances upon Project funds, real property, or personal property.
- Z. *Milestone-A* principal event specified in the Contract Documents relating to an intermediate completion date or time prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work.

- AA. *Notice of Award-The* written notice by Owner to the Successful Bidder stating that upon timely compliance by the Successful Bidder with the conditions precedent listed therein, Owner will sign and deliver the Agreement.
- BB. *Notice to Proceed--,-A* written notice given by Owner to Contractor fixing the date on which the Contract Times will commence to run and on which Contractor shall start to perform the Work under the Contract Documents.
- CC. *Owner-The* individual or entity with whom Contractor has entered into the Agreement and for whom the Work is to be performed.
- DD. PCBs-Polychlorinated biphenyls.
- EE. Petroleum-Petroleum, including crude oil or any fraction thereof which is liquid at standard conditions of temperature and pressure (60 degrees Fahrenheit and 14.7 pounds per square inch absolute), such as oil, petroleum, fuel oil, oil sludge, oil refuse, gasoline, kerosene, and oil mixed with other non-Hazardous Waste and crude oils.
- FF. *Progress Schedule-A* schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, describing the sequence and duration of the activities comprising the Contractor's plan to accomplish the Work within the Contract Times.
- GG. *Project-The* total construction of which the Work to be performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole, or a part.
- HH. *Project Manual-The* bound documentary information prepared for bidding and constructing the Work. A listing of the contents of the Project Manual, which may be bound in one or more volumes, is contained in the table(s) of contents.
- II. *Radioactive Material-Source*, special nuclear, or byproduct material as defined by the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 (42 USC Section 2011 et seq.) as amended from time to time.
- JJ. Resident Project Representative-The authorized representative of Engineer who may be assigned to the Site or any part thereof.
- KK. Samples-Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that are representative of some portion of the Work and which establish the standards by which such portion of the Work will be judged.
- LL. Schedule of Submittals-A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, of required submittals and the time requirements to support scheduled performance of related construction activities.

MM. Sche dule of Values-A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, allocating portions of the Contract Price to various portions of the Work and used as the basis for revi wing Contractor's Applications for Payment.

2

- NN. Shop Drawings-All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data or information which are specifically prepared or assembled by or for Contractor and submitted by Contractor to illustrate some portion of the Work.
- OO. Site-Lands or areas indicated in the Contract Docwnents as being furnished by Owner upon which the Work is to be performed, including rights-of-way and easements for access thereto, and such other lands furnished by Owner which are designated for the use of Contractor.
- PP. Specifications-That part of the Contract Docwnents consisting of written requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards and workmanship as applied to the Work, and certain administrative requirements and procedural matters applicable thereto.
- QQ. Subcontractor-An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor or with any other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work at the Site.
- RR. Substantial Completion-The time at which the Work (or a specified part thereof) has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of Engineer, the Work (or a specified part thereof) is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Docwnents, so that the Work (or a specified part thereof) can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. The terms "substantially complete" and "substantially completed" as applied to all or part of the Work refer to Substantial Completion thereof.
- SS. Successful Bidder-The Bidder submitting a responsive Bid to whom Owner makes an award.
- TT. Supplementary Conditions-That part of the Contract Docwnents which amends or supplements these General Conditions.
- UU. Supplier-A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman, or vendor having a direct contract with Contractor or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment to be incorporated in the Work by Contractor or Subcontractor.
- VV. *Underground Facilities-All* underground pipelines, conduits, ducts, cables, wires, manholes, vaults, tanks, tunnels, or other such facilities or attachments, and any encasements containing such facilities, including those that convey electricity, gases, steam, liquid petrolewn products, telephone or other communications, cable television, water, wastewater, storm water, other liquids or chemicals, or traffic or other control systems.
- WW. *Unit Price Work-Work* to be paid for on the basis of unit prices.
- XX. Work-The entire construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be provided under the Contract Docwnents. Work includes and is the result of performing or providing all labor, services, and documentation necessary to produce such construction, and furnishing, installing, and incorporating all materials and equipment into such construction, all as required by the Contract Documents.
- YY. Work Change Directive-A written statement to Contractor issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement and signed by Owner and recommended by Engineer ordering an

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

7/17/07 {MW000852:1) EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright© 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

Page 4 of 62

addition, deletion, or rev1s1on in the Work, or responding to differing or unforeseen subsurface or physical conditions under which the Work is to be performed or to emergencies. A Work Change Directive will not change the Contract Price or the Contract Times but is evidence that the parties expect that the change ordered or documented by a Work Change Directive will be incorporated in a subsequently issued Change Order following negotiations by the parties as to its effect, if any, on the Contract Price or Contract Times.

1.02 *Terminology*

- A. The words or terms discussed in Paragraph 1.02.B-F are not defined but, when used in the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents, have the indicated meaning.
- B. Intent of Certain Terms or Adjectives:
 - 1. The Contract Documents include the terms "as allowed," "as approved," "as ordered," "as directed" or terms of like effect or import to authorize an exercise of professional judgment by Engineer. In addition, the adjectives "reasonable," "suitable," "acceptable," "proper," "satisfactory," or adjectives of like effect or import are used to describe an action or determination of Engineer as to the Work. It is intended that such exercise of professional judgment, action, or determination will be solely to evaluate, in general, the Work for compliance with the information in the Contract Documents and with the design concept of the Project as a functioning whole as shown or indicated in the Contract Documents (unless there is a specific statement indicating otherwise). The use of any such term or adjective is not intended to and shall not be effective to assign to Engineer any duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work, or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of Paragraph 9.09 or any other provision of the Contract Documents.

C. Day:

1. The word "day" means a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight to the next michright.

D. Defective:

- 1. The word "defective," when modifying the word "Work," refers to Work that 1s unsatisfactory, faulty, or deficient in that it:
 - a. does not conform to the Contract Docunlents; or
 - b. does not meet the requirements of any applicable inspection, reference standard, test, or approval referred to in the Contract Documents; or
 - c. has been damaged prior to Engineer's recommendation of final payment (less responsibility for the protection thereof has been assumed by Owner at Substantial Completion in accordance with Paragraph 14.04 or 14.05).

E. Furnish, Install, Perform, Provide:

- 1. The word "furnish," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to supply and deliver said services, materials, or equipment to the Site (or some other specified location) ready for use or installation and in usable or operable condition.
- 2. The word "install," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to put into use or place in final position said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.
- 3. The words "perform" or "provide," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to furnish and install said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.
- 4. When "furnish," "install," "perform," or "provide" is not used in connection with services, materials, or equipment in a context clearly requiring an obligation of Contractor, "provide" is implied.
- F. Unless stated otherwise in the Contract Documents, words or phrases which have a well-known technical or construction industry or trade meaning are used in the Contract Documents m accordance with such recognized meaning.

ARTICLE 2-PRELIMINARY MATTERS

- 2.01 Delivery of Bonds and Evidence of Insurance
 - A. When Contractor delivers the executed counterparts of the Agreement to Owner, Contractor shall also deliver to Owner such bonds as Contractor may be required to furnish.
 - B. *Evidence of Insurance:* Before any Work at the Site is started, Contractor and Owner shall each deliver to the other, with copies to each additional insured identified in the Supplementary Conditions, certificates of insurance (and other evidence of insurance which either of them or any additional insured may reasonably request) which Contractor and Owner respectively are required to purchase and maintain in accordance with Article 5.

2.02 Copies of Documents

- A. Owner shall furnish to Contractor up to ten printed or hard copies of the Drawings and Project Manual. Additional copies will be furnished upon request at the cost of reproduction.
- 2.03 Commencement of Contract Times; Notice to Proceed
 - A. The Contract Times will commence to run on the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the Agreement or, if a Notice to Proceed is given, on the day indicated in the Notice to Proceed. A Notice to Proceed may be given at any time within 30 days after the Effective Date of the Agreement. In no event will the Contract Times commence to run later than the sixtieth day after the day of Bid opening or the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the Agreement, whichever date is earlier.

2.04 Starting the Work

A. Contractor shall start to perform the Work on the date when the Contract Times commence to run. No Work shall be done at the Site prior to the date on which the Contract Times commence to run.

2.05 Before Starting Construction

- A. *Preliminary Schedules:* Within 10 days after the Effective Date of the Agreement (unless otherwise specified in the General Requirements), Contractor shall submit to Engineer for timely review:
 - 1. a preliminary Progress Schedule indicating the times (numbers of days or dates) for starting and completing the various stages of the Work, including any Milestones specified in the Contract Documents;
 - 2. a preliminary Schedule of Submittals; and
 - 3. a preliminary Schedule of Values for all of the Work which includes quantities and prices of items which when added together equal the Contract Price and subdivides the Work into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during performance of the Work. Such prices will include an appropriate amount of overhead and profit applicable to each item of Work.

2.06 Preconstruction Conference; Designation of Authorized Representatives

- A. Before any Work at the Site is started, a conference attended by Owner, Contractor, Engineer, and others as appropriate will be held to establish a working understanding among the parties as to the Work and to discuss the schedules referred to in Paragraph 2.05.A, procedures for handling Shop Drawings and other submittals, processing Applications for Payment, and maintaining required records.
- B. At this conference Owner and Contractor each shall designate, in writing, a specific individual to act as its representative with respect to the services and responsibilities under the Contract. Such individuals shall have the authority to transmit instructions, receive information, render decisions relative to the Contract, and otherwise act on behalf of each respective party.

2.07 Initial Acceptance of Schedules

- A. At least 10 days before submission of the first Application for Payment a conference attended by Contractor, Engineer, and others as appropriate will be held to review for acceptability to Engineer as provided below the schedules submitted in accordance with Paragraph 2.05.A. Contractor shall have an additional 10 days to make conections and adjustments and to complete and resubmit the schedules. No progress payment shall be made to Contractor until acceptable schedules are submitted to Engineer.
 - 1. The Progress Schedule will be acceptable to Engineer if it provides an orderly progression of the Work to completion within the Contract Times. Such acceptance will not impose on

Engineer responsibility for the Progress Schedule, for sequencing, scheduling, or progress of the Work, nor interfere with or relieve Contractor from Contractor's full responsibility therefor.

- 2. Contractor's Schedule of Submittals will be acceptable to Engineer if it provides a workable arrangement for reviewing and processing the required submittals.
- 3. Contractor's Schedule of Values will be acceptable to Engineer as to form and substance if it provides a reasonable allocation of the Contract Price to component parts of the Work.

ARTICLE 3 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: INTENT, AMENDING, REUSE

3.01 Intent

- A. The Contract Documents are complementary; what is required by one is as binding as if required by all.
- B. It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete project (or part thereof) to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents. Any labor, documentation, services, materials, or equipment that reasonably may be inferred from the Contract Documents or from prevailing custom or trade usage as being required to produce the indicated result will be provided whether or not specifically called for, at no additional cost to Owner.
- C. Clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents shall be issued by Engineer as provided in Article 9.

3.02 Reference Standards

- A. Standards, Specifications, Codes, Laws, and Regulations
 - 1. Reference to standards, specifications, manuals, or codes of any technical society, organization, or association, or to Laws or Regulations, whether such reference be specific or by implication, shall mean the standard, specification, manual, code, or Laws or Regulations in effect at the time of opening of Bids (or on the Effective Date of the Agreement if there were no Bids), except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents.
 - 2. No provision of any such standard, specification, manual, or code, or any instruction of a Supplier, shall be effective to change the duties or responsibilities of Owner, Contractor, or Engineer, or any of their subcontractors, consultants, agents, or employees, from those set forth in the Contract Documents. No such provision or instruction shall be effective to assign to Owner, Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, any duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility inconsistent with the provisions of the Contract Documents.

A. Reporting Discrepancies:

- 1. Contractor's Review of Contract Documents Before Starting Work: Before undertaking each part of the Work, Contractor shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents and check and verify pertinent figures therein and all applicable field measurements. Contractor shall promptly report in writing to Engineer any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy which Contractor discovers, or has actual knowledge of, and shall obtain a written interpretation or clarification from Engineer before proceeding with any Work affected thereby.
- 2. Contractor's Review of Contract Documents During Performance of Work: If, during the performance of the Work, Contractor discovers any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy within the Contract Documents, or between the Contract Documents and (a) any applicable Law or Regulation, (b) any standard, specification, manual, or code, or (c) any instruction of any Supplier, then Contractor shall promptly report it to Engineer in writing. Contractor shall not proceed with the Work affected thereby (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 6.16.A) until an amendment or supplement to the Contract Documents has been issued by one of the methods indicated in Paragraph 3.04.
- 3. Contractor shall not be liable to Owner or Engineer for failure to report any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy in the Contract Documents unless Contractor had actual knowledge thereof.

B. Resolving Discrepancies:

- 1. Except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents, the provisions of the Contract Documents shall take precedence in resolving any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy between the provisions of the Contract Documents and:
 - a. the provisions of any standard, specification, manual, or code, or the instruction of any Supplier (whether or not specifically incorporated by reference in the Contract Documents); or
 - b. the provisions of any Laws or Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work (unless such an interpretation of the provisions of the Contract Documents would result in violation of such Law or Regulation).

3.04 Amending and Supplementing Contract Documents

- A. The Contract Documents may be amended to provide for additions, deletions, and revisions in the Work or to modify the terms and conditions thereof by either a Change Order or a Work Change Directive.
- B. The requirements of the Contract Documents may be supplemented, and minor variations and deviations in the Work may be authorized, by one or more of the following ways:

- 1. A Field Order;
- 2. Engineer's approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample (subject to the provisions of Paragraph 6.17.D.3); or
- 3. Engineer's written interpretation or clarification.

3.05 Reuse of Documents

- A. Contractor and any Subcontractor or Supplier shall not:
 - 1. have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the Drawings, Specifications, or other documents (or copies of any thereof) prepared by or bearing the seal of Engineer or its consultants, inchiding electronic media editions; or
 - 2. reuse any such Drawings, Specifications, other documents, or copies thereof on extensions of the Project or any other project without written consent of Owner and Engineer and specific written verification or adaptation by Engineer.
- B. The prohibitions of this Paragraph 3.05 will survive final payment, or termination of the Contract. Nothing herein shall preclude Contractor from retaining copies of the Contract Documents for record purposes.

3.06 Electronic Data

- A. Unless otherwise stated in the Supplementary Conditions, the data furnished by Owner or Engineer to Contractor, or by Contractor to Owner or Engineer, that may be relied upon are limited to the printed copies (also known as hard copies). Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or other types are furnished only for the convenience of the receiving party. Any conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the user's sole risk. If there is a discrepancy between the electronic files and the hard copies, the hard copies govern.
- B. Because data stored in electronic media format can deteriorate or be modified inadvertently or otherwise without authorization of the data's creator, the party receiving electronic files agrees that it will perform acceptance tests or procedures within 60 days, after which the receiving party shall be deemed to have accepted the data thus transferred. Any errors detected within the 60-day acceptance period will be corrected by the transferring party.
- C. When transferring documents in electronic media format, the transferring party makes no representations as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of documents resulting from the use of software application packages, operating systems, or computer hardware differing from those used by the data's creator.

ARTICLE 4-AVAILABILITY OF LANDS; SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS; HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS; REFERENCE POINTS

4.01 Availability of Lands

- A. Owner shall furnish the Site. Owner shall notify Contractor of any encumbrances or restrictions not of general application but specifically related to use of the Site with which Contractor must comply in performing the Work. Owner will obtain in a timely manner and pay for easements for permanent structures or permanent changes in existing facilities. If Contractor and Owner are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, as a result of any delay in Owner's furnishing the Site or a part thereof, Contractor may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.
- B. Upon reasonable written request, Owner shall furnish Contractor with a current statement of record legal title and legal description of the lands upon which the Work is to be performed and Owner's interest therein as necessary for giving notice of or filing a mechanic's or construction lien against such lands in accordance with applicable Laws and Regulations.
- C. Contractor shall provide for all additional lands and access thereto that may be required for temporary construction facilities or storage of materials and equipment.

4.02 Subsurface and Physical Conditions

- A. Reports and Drawings: The Supplementary Conditions identify:
 - 1. those reports known to Owner of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the Site; and
 - 2. those drawings known to Owner of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site (except Underground Facilities).
- B. Limited Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data Authorized: Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of the "technical data" contained in such reports and drawings, but such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents. Such "technical data" is identified in the Supplementary Conditions. Except for such reliance on such "technical data," Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors with respect to:
 - 1. the completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor's purposes, including, but not limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto; or
 - 2. other data, interpretations, opinions, and information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings; or
 - 3. any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any "technical data" or any such other data, interpretations, opinions, or information.

4.03 Differing Subsurface or Physical Conditions

- A. *Notice:* If Contractor believes that any subsurface or physical condition that is uncovered or revealed either:
 - 1. is of such a nature as to establish that any "technical data" on which Contractor is entitled to rely as provided in Paragraph 4.02 is materially inaccurate; or
 - 2. is of such a nature as to require a change in the Contract Documents; or
 - 3. differs materially from that shown or indicated in the Contract Documents; or
 - 4. is of an unusual nature, and differs materially from conditions ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in the Contract Documents;

then Contractor shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing the subsurface or physical conditions or performing any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 6.16.A), notify Owner and Engineer in writing about such condition. Contractor shall not further disturb such condition or perform any Work in connection therewith (except as aforesaid) until receipt of written order to do so.

- B. *Engineer's Review:* After receipt of written notice as required by Paragraph 4.03.A, Engineer will promptly review the pertinent condition, determine the necessity of Owner's obtaining additional exploration or tests with respect thereto, and advise Owner in writing (with a copy to Contractor) of Engineer's findings and conclusions.
- C. Possible Price and Times Adjustments:
 - 1. The Contract Price or the Contract Times, or both, will be equitably adjusted to the extent that the existence of such differing subsurface or physical condition causes an increase or decrease in Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of the Work; subject, however, to the following:
 - a. such condition must meet any one or more of the categories described in Paragraph 4.03.A; and
 - b. with respect to Work that is paid for on a Unit Price Basis, any adjustment in Contract Price will be subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 9.07 and 11.03.
 - 2. Contractor shall not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times if:
 - a. Contractor knew of the existence of such conditions at the time Contractor made a final commitment to Owner with respect to Contract Price and Contract Times by the submission of a Bid or becoming bound under a negotiated contract; or
 - b. the existence of such condition could reasonably have been discovered or revealed as a result of any examination, investigation, exploration, test, or study of the Site and

- contiguous areas required by the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents to be conducted by or for Contractor prior to Contractor's making such final commitment; or
- c. Contractor failed to give the written notice as required by Paragraph 4.03.A.
- 3. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, a Claim may be made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. However, neither Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors shall be liable to Contractor for any claims, costs, losses, or damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) sustained by Contractor on or in connection with any other project or anticipated project.

4.04 *Underground Facilities*

- A. Shown or Indicated: The information and data shown or indicated in the Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the Site is based on information and data furnished to Owner or Engineer by the owners of such Underground Facilities, including Owner, or by others. Unless it is otherwise expressly provided in the Supplementary Conditions:
 - 1. Owner and Engineer shall not be responsible for the accuracy or completeness of any such information or data provided by others; and
 - 2. the cost of all of the following will be included in the Contract Price, and Contractor shall have full responsibility for:
 - a. reviewing and checking all such information and data;
 - b. locating all Underground Facilities shown or indicated in the Contract Documents;
 - c. coordination of the Work with the owners of such Underground Facilities, including Owner, during construction; and
 - d. the safety and protection of all such Underground Facilities and repairing any damage thereto resulting from the Work.

B. Not Shown or Indicated:

1. If an Underground Facility is uncovered or revealed at or contiguous to the Site which was not shown or indicated, or not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing conditions affected thereby or performing any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 6.16.A), identify the owner of such Underground Facility and give written notice to that owner and to Owner and Engineer. Engineer will promptly review the Underground Facility and determine the extent, if any, to which a change is required in the Contract Documents to reflect and document the

- consequences of the existence or location of the Underground Facility. During such time, Contractor shall be responsible for the safety and protection of such Underground Facility.
- 2. If Engineer concludes that a change in the Contract Documents is required, a Work Change Directive or a Change Order will be issued to reflect and document such consequences. An equitable adjustment shall be made in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, to the extent that they are attributable to the existence or location of any Underground Facility that was not shown or indicated or not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy in the Contract Documents and that Contractor did not know of and could not reasonably have been expected to be aware of or to have anticipated. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any such adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, Owner or Contractor may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

4.05 Reference Points

A. Owner shall provide engineering surveys to establish reference points for construction which in Engineer's judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to proceed with the Work. Contractor shall be responsible for laying out the Work, shall protect and preserve the established reference points and property monuments, and shall make no changes or relocations without the prior written approval of Owner. Contractor shall report to Engineer whenever any reference point or property monument is lost or destroyed or requires relocation because of necessary changes in grades or locations, and shall be responsible for the accurate replacement or relocation of such reference points or property monuments by professionally qualified personnel.

4.06 Hazardous Environmental Condition at Site

- A. Reports and Drawings: The Supplementary Conditions identify those reports and drawings known to Owner relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions that have been identified at the Site.
- B. Limited Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data Authorized: Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of the "technical data" contained in such reports and drawings, but such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents. Such "technical data" is identified in the Supplementary Conditions. Except for such reliance on such "technical data," Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors with respect to:
 - 1. the completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor's purposes, including, but not limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor and safety precautions and programs incident thereto; or
 - 2. other data, interpretations, opinions and information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings; or
 - 3. any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any "technical data" or any such other data, interpretations, opinions or information.

- C. Contractor shall not be responsible for any Hazardous Environmental Condition W1covered or revealed at the Site which was not shown or indicated in Drawings or Specifications or identified in the Contract Documents to be within the scope of the Work. Contractor shall be responsible for a Hazardous Environmental Condition created with any materials brought to the Site by Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or anyone else for whom Contractor is responsible.
- D. ff Contractor encoWlters a Hazardous Environmental Condition or ifContractor or anyone for whom Contractor is responsible creates a Hazardous Environmental Condition, Contractor shall immediately: (i) secure or otherwise isolate such condition; (ii) stop all Work in connection with such condition and in any area affected thereby (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 6.16.A); and (iii) notify Owner and Engineer (and promptly thereafter confirm such notice in writing). Owner shall promptly consult with Engineer concerning the necessity for Owner to retain a qualified expert to evaluate such condition or take corrective action, if any. Promptly after consulting with Engineer, Owner shall take such actions as are necessary to permit Owner to timely obtain required permits and provide Contractor the written notice required by Paragraph 4.06.E.
- E. Contractor shall not be required to resume Work in connection with such condition or in any affected area Wltil after Owner has obtained any required permits related thereto and delivered written notice to Contractor: (i) specifying that such condition and any affected area is or has been rendered safe for the resumption of Work; or (ii) specifying any special conditions W1der which such Work may be resumed safely. If Owner and Contractor cannot agree as to entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, as a result of such Work stoppage or such special conditions under which Work is agreed to be resumed by Contractor, either party may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.
- F. If after receipt of such written notice Contractor does not agree to resume such Work based on a reasonable belief it is W1safe, or does not agree to resume such Work W1der such special conditions, then Owner may order the portion of the Work that is in the area affected by such condition to be deleted from the Work. If Owner and Contractor cannot agree as to entitlement to or on the amoW1t or extent, if any, of an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times as a result of deleting such portion of the Work, then either party may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. Owner may have such deleted portion of the Work performed by Owner's own forces or others in accordance with Article 7.
- G. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to a Hazardous Environmental Condition, provided that such Hazardous Environmental Condition: (i) was not shown or indicated in the Drawings or Specifications or identified in the Contract Documents to be included withip the scope of the Work, and (ii) was not created by Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor is responsible. Nothing in this Paragraph 4.06.G shall obligate Owner to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence.

- H. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to a Hazardous Environmental Condition created by Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor is responsible. Nothing in this Paragraph 4.06.H shall obligate Contractor to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence.
- I. The provisions of Paragraphs 4.02, 4.03, and 4.04 do not apply to a Hazardous Environmental Condition uncovered or revealed at the Site.

ARTICLE 5 - BONDS AND INSURANCE

- 5.01 Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds
 - A. Contractor shall furnish performance and payment bonds, each in an amount at least equal to the Contract Price as security for the faithful performance and payment of **all** of Contractor's obligations under the Contract Documents. These bonds shall remain in effect until one year after the date when final payment becomes due or until completion of the correction period specified in Paragraph 13.07, whichever is later, except as provided otherwise by Laws or Regulations or by the Contract Documents. Contractor shall also furnish such other bonds as are required by the Contract Documents.
 - B. All bonds shall be in the form prescribed by the Contract Documents except as provided otherwise by Laws or Regulations, and shall be executed by such sureties as are named in the list of "Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring Companies" as published in Circular 570 (amended) by the Financial Management Service, Surety Bond Branch, U.S. Department of the Treasury. All bonds signed by an agent or attorney-in-fact must be accompanied by a certified copy of that individual's authority to bind the surety. The evidence of authority shall show that it is effective on the date the agent or attorney-in-fact signed each bond.
 - C. If the surety on any bond furnished by Contractor is declared bankrupt or becomes insolvent or its right to do business is terminated in any state where any part of the Project is located or it ceases to meet the requirements of Paragraph 5.01.B, Contractor shall promptly notify Owner and Engineer and shall, within 20 days after the event giving rise to such notification, provide another bond and surety, both of which shall comply with the requirements of Paragraphs 5.01.B and 5.02.

5.02 Licensed Sureties and Insurers

A. All bonds and insurance required by the Contract Documents to be purchased and maintained by Owner or Contractor shall be obtained from surety or insurance companies that are duly licensed or authorized in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located to issue bonds or insurance policies for the limits and coverages so required. Such surety and insurance companies shall also

meet such additional requirements and qualifications as may be provided in the Supplementary Conditions.

5.03 *Certificates of Insurance*

- A. Contractor shall deliver to Owner, with copies to each additional insured and loss payee identified in the Supplementary Conditions, certificates of insurance (and other evidence of insurance requested by Owner or any oth r additional insured) which Contractor is required to purchase and maintain.
- B. Owner shall deliver to Contractor, with copies to each additional insured and loss payee identified in the Supplementary Conditions, certificates of insurance (and other evidence of insurance requested by Contractor or any other additional insured) which Owner is required to purchase and maintain.
- C. Failure of Owner to demand such certificates or other evidence of Contractor's full compliance with these insurance requirements or failure of Owner to identify a deficiency in compliance from the evidence provided shall not be construed as a waiver of Contractor's obligation to maintain such insurance.
- D. Owner does not represent that insurance coverage and limits established m this Contract necessarily will be adequate to protect Contractor.
- E. The insurance and insurance limits required herein shall not be deemed as a limitation on Contractor's liability under the indemnities granted to Owner in the Contract Documents.

5.04 Contractor's Insurance

- A. Contractor shall purchase and maintain such insurance as is appropriate for the Work being performed and as will provide protection from claims set forth below which may arise out of or result from Contractor's performance of the Work and Contractor's other obligations under the Contract Documents, whether it is to be performed by Contractor, any Subcontractor or Supplier, or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable:
 - 1. claims under workers' compensation, disability benefits, and other similar employee benefit acts;
 - 2. claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of Contractor's employees;
 - 3. claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than Contractor's employees;
 - 4. claims for damages insured by reasonably available personal injury liability coverage which

- a. by any person as a result of an offense directly or indirectly related to the employment of such person by Contractor, or
- b. by any other person for any other reason;
- 5. claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or destruction of tangible property wherever located, including loss of use resulting therefrom; and
- 6. claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of any motor vehicle.
- B. The policies of insurance required by this Paragraph 5.04 shall:
 - 1. with respect to insurance required by Paragraphs 5.04.A.3 through 5.04.A.6 inclusive, be written on an occurrence basis, include as additional insureds (subject to any customary exclusion regarding professional liability) Owner and Engineer, and any other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions, all of whom shall be listed as additional insureds, and include coverage for the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of all such additional insureds, and the insurance afforded to these additional insureds shall provide primary coverage for all claims covered thereby;
 - include at least the specific coverages and be written for not less than the limits of liability provided in the Supplementary Conditions or required by Laws or Regulations, whichever is greater;
 - 3. include contractual liability insurance covering Contractor's indemnity obligations under Paragraphs 6.11 and 6.20;
 - 4. contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled, materially changed or renewal refused until at least 30 days prior written notice has been given to Owner and Contractor and to each other additional insured identified in the Supplementary Conditions to whom a certificate of insurance has been issued (and the certificates of insurance furnished by the Contractor pursuant to Paragraph 5.03 will so provide);
 - 5. remain in effect at least until final payment and at all times thereafter when Contractor may be correcting, removing, or replacing defective Work in accordance with Paragraph 13.07; and
 - 6. include completed operations coverage:
 - a. Such insurance shall remain in effect for two years after final payment.
 - b. Contractor shall furnish Owner and each other additional insured identified in the Supplementary Conditions, to whom a certificate of insurance has been issued, evidence satisfactory to Owner and any such additional insured of continuation of such insurance at final payment and one year thereafter.

5.05 Owner's Liability Insurance

A. In addition to the insurance required to be provided by Contractor under Paragraph 5.04, Owner, at Owner's option, may purchase and maintain at Owner's expense Owner's own liability insurance as will protect Owner against claims which may arise from operations under the Contract Documents.

5.06 Owner's Property Insurance

- A. Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Owner shall purchase and maintain property insurance upon the Work at the Site in the amount of the full replacement cost thereof (subject to such deductible amounts as may be provided in the Supplementary Conditions or required by Laws and Regulations). This insurance shall:
 - 1. include the interests of Owner, Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and any other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, each of whom is deemed to have an insurable interest and shall be listed as a loss payee;
 - 2. be written on a Builder's Risk "all-risk" policy form that shall at least include insurance for physical loss or damage to the Work, temporary buildings, falsework, and materials and equipment in transit, and shall insure against at least the following perils or causes of loss: fire, lightning, extended coverage, theft, vandalism and malicious mischief, earthquake, collapse, debris removal, demolition occasioned by enforcement of Laws and Regulations, water damage (other than that caused by flood), and such other perils or causes of loss as may be specifically required by the Supplementary Conditions.
 - 3. include expenses incurred in the repair or replacement of any insured property (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers and architects);
 - 4. cover materials and equipment stored at the Site or at another location that was agreed to in writing by Owner prior to being incorporated in the Work, provided that such materials and equipment have been included in an Application for Payment recommended by Engineer;
 - 5. allow for partial utilization of the Work by Owner;
 - 6. include testing and startup; and
 - 7. be maintained in effect until final payment is made unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Owner, Contractor, and Engineer with 30 days written notice to each other loss payee to whom a certificate of insurance has been issued.
- B. Owner shall purchase and maintain such equipment breakdown insurance or additional property insurance as may be required by the Supplementary Conditions or Laws and Regulations hich will include the interests of Owner, Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and any other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions, and the officers, directors,

members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them, each of whom is deemed to have an insurable interest and shall be listed as a loss payee.

- C. All the policies of insurance (and the certificates or other evidence thereof) required to be purchased and maintained in accordance with this Paragraph 5.06 will contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled or materially changed or renewal refused until at least 30'days prior written notice has been given to Owner and Contractor and to each other loss payee to whom a certificate of insurance has been issued and will contain waiver provisions in accordance with Paragraph 5.07.
- D. Owner shall not be responsible for purchasing and maintaining any property insurance specified in this Paragraph 5.06 to protect the interests of Contractor, Subcontractors, or others in the Work to the extent of any deductible amounts that are identified in the Supplementary Conditions. The risk of loss within such identified deductible amount will be borne by Contractor, Subcontractors, or others suffering any such loss, and if any of them wishes property insurance coverage within the limits of such amounts, each may purchase and maintain it at the purchaser's own expense.
- E. If Contractor requests in writing that other special insurance be included in the property insurance policies provided under this Paragraph 5.06, Owner shall, if possible, include such insurance, and the cost thereof will be charged to Contractor by appropriate Change Order. Prior to commencement of the Work at the Site, Owner shall in writing advise Contractor whether or not such other insurance has been procured by Owner.

5.07 Waiver of Rights

- A. Owner and Contractor intend that all policies purchased in accordance with Paragraph 5.06 will protect Owner, Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and all other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions as loss payees (and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them) in such policies and will provide primary coverage for all losses and damages caused by the perils or causes of loss covered thereby. All such policies shall contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurers will have no rights of recovery against any of the insureds or loss payees thereunder. Owner and Contractor waive all rights against each other and their respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of or resulting from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by such policies and any other property insurance applicable to the Work; and, in addition, waive all such rights against Subcontractors and Engineer, and all other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions as loss payees (and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them) under such policies for losses and damages so caused. None of the above waivers shall extend to the rights that any party making such waiver may have to the proceeds of insurance held by Owner as trustee or otherwise payable under any policy so issued.
- B. Owner waives all rights against Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them for:

- 1. loss due to business interruption, loss of use, or other consequential loss extending beyond direct physical loss or damage to Owner's property or the Work caused by, arising out of, or resulting from fire or other perils whether or not insured by Owner; and
- 2. loss or damage to the completed Project or part thereof caused by, arising out of, or resulting from fire or other insured peril or cause of loss covered by any property insurance maintained on the completed Project or part thereof by Owner during partial utilization pursuant to Paragraph 14.05, after Substantial Completion pursuant to Paragraph 14.04, or after final payment pursuant to Paragraph 14.07.
- C. Any insurance policy maintained by Owner covering any loss, damage or consequential loss referred to in Paragraph 5.07.B shall contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any such loss, damage, or consequential loss, the insurers will have no rights of recovery against Contractor, Subcontractors, or Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them.

5.08 Receipt and Application of Insurance Proceeds

- A. Any insured loss under the policies of insurance required by Paragraph 5.06 will be adjusted with Owner and made payable to Owner as fiduciary for the loss payees, as their interests may appear, subject to the requirements of any applicable mortgage clause and of Paragraph 5.08.B. Owner shall deposit in a separate account any money so received and shall distribute it in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may reach. If no other special agreement is reached, the damaged Work shall be repaired or replaced, the moneys so received applied on account thereof, and the Work and the cost thereof covered by an appropriate Change Order.
- B. Owner as fiduciary shall have power to adjust and settle any loss with the insurers unless one of the parties in interest shall object in writing within 15 days after the occurrence of loss to Owner's exercise of this power. If such objection be made, Owner as fiduciary shall make settlement with the insurers in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may reach. If no such agreement among the parties in interest is reached, Owner as fiduciary shall adjust and settle the loss with the insurers and, if required in writing by any party in interest, Owner as fiduciary shall give bond for the proper performance of such duties.

5.09 Acceptance of Bonds and Insurance; Option to Replace

A. If either Owner or Contractor has any objection to the coverage afforded by or other provisions of the bonds or insurance required to be purchased and maintained by the other party in accordance with Article 5 on the basis of non-conformance with the Contract Documents, the objecting party shall so notify the other party in writing within 10 days after receipt of the certificates (or other evidence requested) required by Paragraph 2.01.B. Owner and Contractor shall each provide to the other such additional information in respect of insurance provided as the other may reasonably request. If either party does not purchase or maintain all of the bonds and insurance required of such party by the Contract Documents, such party shall notify the other party in writing of such failure to purchase prior to the start of the Work, or of such failure to maintain prior to any change in the required coverage. Without prejudice to any other right or remedy, the other party may elect to obtain equivalent bonds or insurance to protect such other party's

interests at the expense of the party who was required to provide such coverage, and a Change Order shall be issued to adjust the Contract Price accordingly.

5.10 Partial Utilization, Acknowledgment of Property Insurer

A. If Owner finds it necessary to occupy or use a portion or portions of the Work prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work as provided in Paragraph 14.05, no such use or occupancy shall commence before the insurers providing the property insurance pursuant to Paragraph 5.06 have acknowledged notice thereof and in writing effected any changes in coverage necessitated thereby. The insurers providing the property insurance shall consent by endorsement on the policy or policies, but the property insurance shall not be canceled or permitted to lapse on account of any such partial use or occupancy.

ARTICLE 6 - CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

6.01 Supervision and Superintendence

- A. Contractor shall supervise, inspect, and direct the Work competently and efficiently, devoting such attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction. Contractor shall not be responsible for the negligence of Owner or Engineer in the design or specification of a specific means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction which is shown or indicated in and expressly required by the Contract Documents.
- B. At all times during the progress of the Work, Contractor shall assign a competent resident superintendent who shall not be replaced without written notice to Owner and Engineer except under extraordinary circumstances.

6.02 Labor; Working Hours

- A. Contractor shall provide competent, suitably qualified personnel to survey and lay out the Work and perform construction as required by the Contract Documents. Contractor shall at all times maintain good discipline and order at the Site.
- B. Except as otherwise required for the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, and except as otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, all Work at the Site shall be performed during regular working hours. Contractor will not permit the performance of Work on a Saturday, Sunday, or any legal holiday without Owner's written consent (which will not be unreasonably withheld) given after prior written notice to Engineer.

6.03 Services, Materials, and Equipment

A. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall provide and assume full responsibility for all services, materials, equipment, labor, transportation, construction equipment and machinery, tools, appliances, fuel, power, light, heat, telephone, water, sanitary facilities, temporary facilities, and all other facilities and incidentals necessary for the performance, testing, start-up, and completion of the Work.

- B. All materials and equipment incorporated into the Work shall be as specified or, if not specified, shall be of good quality and new, except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. All special warranties and guarantees required by the Specifications shall expressly run to the benefit of Owner. If required by Engineer, Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence (including reports of required tests) as to the source, kind, and quality of materials and equipment.
- C. All materials and equipment shall be stored, applied, installed, connected, erected, protected, used, cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with instructions of the applicable Supplier, except as otherwise may be provided in the Contract Documents.

6.04 Progress Schedule

- A. Contractor shall adhere to the Progress Schedule established in accordance with Paragraph 2.07 as it may be adjusted from time to time as provided below.
 - L Contractor shall submit to Engineer for acceptance (to the extent indicated in Paragraph 2.07) proposed adjustments in the Progress Schedule that will not result in changing the Contract Times. Such adjustments will comply with any provisions of the General Requirements applicable thereto.
 - 2. Proposed adjustments in the Progress Schedule that will change the Contract Times shall be submitted in accordance with the requirements of Article 12. Adjustments in Contract Times may only be made by a Change Order.

6.05 Substitutes and "Or-Equals"

- A. Whenever an item of material or equipment is specified or described in the Contract Documents by using the name of a proprietary item or the name of a particular Supplier, the specification or description is intended to establish the type, function, appearance, and quality required. Unless the specification or description contains or is followed by words reading that no like, equivalent, or "or-equal" item or no substitution is permitted, other items of material or equipment or material or equipment of other Suppliers may be submitted to Engineer for review under the circumstances described below.
 - 1. "Or-Equal" Items: If in Engineer's sole discretion an item of material or equipment proposed by Contractor is functionally equal to that named and sufficiently similar so that no change in related Work will be required, it may be considered by Engineer as an "or-equal" item, in which case review and approval of the proposed item may, in Engineer's sole discretion, be accomplished without compliance with some or all of the requirements for approval of proposed substitute items. For the purposes of this Paragraph 6.05.A.1, a proposed item of material or equipment will be considered functionally equal to an item so named if:
 - a. in the exercise of reasonable judgment Engineer determines that:
 - 1) it is at least equal in materials of construction, quality, durability, appea {ance, strength, and design characteristics;

- 2) it will reliably perform at least equally well the function and achieve the results imposed by the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole; and
- 3) it has a proven record of performance and availability of responsive service.
- b. Contractor certifies that, if approved and incorporated into the Work:
 - 1) there will be no increase in cost to the Owner or increase in Contract Times; and
 - 2) it will conform substantially to the detailed requirements of the item named in the Contract Documents.

2. Substitute Items:

- a. If in Engineer's sole discretion an item of material or equipment proposed by Contractor does not qualify as an "or-equal" item under Paragraph 6.05.A.l, it will be considered a proposed substitute item.
- b. Contractor shall submit sufficient information as provided below to allow Engineer to determine if the item of material or equipment proposed is essentially equivalent to that named and an acceptable substitute therefor. Requests for review of proposed substitute items of material or equipment will not be accepted by Engineer from anyone other than Contractor.
- c. The requirements for review by Engineer will be as set forth in Paragraph 6.05.A.2.d, as supplemented by the General Requirements, and as Engineer may decide is appropriate under the circumstances.
- d. Contractor shall make written application to Engineer for review of a proposed substitute item of material or equipment that Contractor seeks to furnish or use. The application:
 - 1) shall certify that the proposed substitute item will:
 - a) perform adequately the functions and achieve the results called for by the general design,
 - b) be similar in substance to that specified, and
 - c) be suited to the same use as that specified;
 - 2) will state:
 - a) the extent, if any, to which the use of the proposed substitute item will prejudice Contractor's achievement of Substantial Completion on time,
 - b) whether use of the proposed substitute item in the Work will require a change in any of the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with Owner for other work on the Project) to adapt the design to the proposed substitute item, and

- c) whether incorporation or use of the proposed substitute item in connection with the Work is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty;
- 3) will identify:
 - a) all variations of the proposed substitute item from that specified, and
 - b) available engineering, sales, maintenance, repair, and replacement services; and
- 4) shall contain an itemized estimate of all costs or credits that will result directly or indirectly from use of such substitute item, including costs of redesign and claims of other contractors affected by any resulting change.
- B. Substitute Construction Methods or Procedures: If a specific means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction is expressly required by the Contract Documents, Contractor may furnish or utilize a substitute means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction approved by Engineer. Contractor shall submit sufficient information to allow Engineer, in Engineer's sole discretion, to determine that the substitute proposed is equivalent to that expressly called for by the Contract Documents. The requirements for review by Engineer will be similar to those provided in Paragraph 6.05.A.2.
- C. Engineer's Evaluation: Engineer will be allowed a reasonable time within which to evaluate each proposal or submittal made pursuant to Paragraphs 6.05.A and 6.05.B. Engineer may require Contractor to furnish additional data about the proposed substitute item. Engineer will be the sole judge of acceptability. No "or equal" or substitute will be ordered, installed or utilized until Engineer's review is complete, which will be evidenced by a Change Order in the case of a substitute and an approved Shop Drawing for an "or equal." Engineer will advise Contractor in writing of any negative determination.
- D. Special Guarantee: Owner may require Contractor to furnish at Contractor's expense a special performance guarantee or other surety with respect to any substitute.
- E. Engineer's Cost Reimbursement: Engineer will record Engineer's costs in evaluating a substitute proposed or submitted by Contractor pursuant to Paragraphs 6.05.A.2 and 6.05.B. Whether or not Engineer approves a substitute so proposed or submitted by Contractor, Contractor shall reimburse Owner for the reasonable charges of Engineer for evaluating each such proposed substitute. Contractor shall also reimburse Owner for the reasonable charges of Engineer for making changes in the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with Owner) resulting from the acceptance of each proposed substitute.
- F. *Contractor's Expense:* Contractor shall provide all data in support of any proposed substitute or "or-equal" at Contractor's expense.
- 6.06 Concerning Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others
 - A. Contractor shall not employ any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity (including those acceptable to Owner as indicated in Paragraph 6.06.B), whether initially or as a replacement, against whom Owner may have reasonable objection. Contractor shall not be

- required to employ any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity to furnish or perform any of the Work against whom Contractor has reasonable objection.
- B. If the Supplementary Conditions require the identity of certain Subcontractors, Suppliers, or other individuals or entities to be submitted to Owner in advance for acceptance by Owner by a specified date prior to the Effective Date of the Agreement, and if Contractor has submitted a list thereof in accordance with the Supplementary Conditions, Owner's acceptance (either in writing or by failing to make written objection thereto by the date indicated for acceptance or objection in the Bidding Documents or the Contract Documents) of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity so identified may be revoked on the basis of reasonable objection after due investigation. Contractor shall submit an acceptable replacement for the rejected Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, and the Contract Price will be adjusted by the difference in the cost occasioned by such replacement, and an appropriate Change Order will be issued. No acceptance by Owner of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, whether initially or as a replacement, shall constitute a waiver of any right of Owner or Engineer to reject defective Work.
- C. Contractor shall be fully responsible to Owner and Engineer for all acts and omissions of the Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work just as Contractor is responsible for Contractor's own acts and omissions. Nothing in the Contract Documents:
 - 1. shall create for the benefit of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity any contractual relationship between Owner or Engineer and any such Subcontractor, Supplier or other individual or entity; nor
 - 2. shall create any obligation on the part of Owner or Engineer to pay or to see to the payment of any moneys due any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity except as may otherwise be required by Laws and Regulations.
- D. Contractor shall be solely responsible for scheduling and coordinating the Work of Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other individuals or entities performing or :furnishing any of the Work under a direct or indirect contract with Contractor.
- E. Contractor shall require all Subcontractors, Suppliers, and such other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work to communicate with Engineer through Contractor.
- F. The divisions and sections of the Specifications and the identifications of any Drawings shall not control Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or Suppliers or delineating the Work to be performed by any specific trade.
- G. All Work performed for Contractor by a Subcontractor or Supplier will be pursuant to an appropriate agreement between Contractor and the Subcontractor or Supplier which specifically binds the Subcontractor or Supplier to the applicable terms and conditions of the Contract Documents for the benefit of Owner and Engineer. Whenever any such agreement is with a Subcontractor or Supplier who is listed as a loss payee on the property insurance provided in Paragraph 5.06, the agreement between the Contractor and the Subcontractor or Supplier will contain provisions whereby the Subcontractor or Supplier waives all rights against Owner,

Contractor, Engineer, and all other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions to be listed as insureds or loss payees (and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them) for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of, relating to, or resulting from any of the perils or causes ofloss covered by such policies and any other property insurance applicable to the Work If the insurers on any such policies require separate waiver forms to be signed by any Subcontractor or Supplier, Contractor will obtain the same.

6.07 Patent Fees and Royalties

- A. Contractor shall pay all license fees and royalties and assume all costs incident to the use in the performance of the Work or the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device which is the subject of patent rights or copyrights held by others. If a particular invention, design, process, product, or device is specified in the Contract Documents for use in the performance of the Work and if, to the actual knowledge of Owner or Engineer, its use is subject to patent rights or copyrights calling for the payment of any license fee or royalty to others, the existence of such rights shall be disclosed by Owner in the Contract Documents.
- B. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor, and its officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors from and against **all** claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any infringement of patent rights or copyrights incident to the use in the performance of the Work or resulting from the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device specified in the Contract Documents, but not identified as being subject to payment of any license fee or royalty to others required by patent rights or copyrights.
- C. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any infringement of patent rights or copyrights incident to the use in the performance of the Work or resulting from the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device not specified in the Contract Documents.

6.08 Permits

A. Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Contractor shall obtain and pay for all construction permits and licenses. Owner shall assist Contractor, when necessary, in obtaining such permits and licenses. Contractor shall pay all governmental charges and inspection fees necessary for the prosecution of the Work which are applicable at the time of opening of Bids, or, if there are no Bids, on the Effective Date of the Agreement. Owner shall pay all charges of utility owners for connections for providing permanent service to the Work.

6.09 Laws and Regulations

- A. Contractor shall give all notices required by and shall comply with all Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Except where otherwise expressly required by applicable Laws and Regulations, neither Owner nor Engineer shall be responsible for monitoring Contractor's compliance with any Laws or Regulations.
- B. If Contractor performs any Work knowing or having reason to know that it is contrary to Laws or Regulations, Contractor shall bear all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such Work. However, it shall not be Contractor's responsibility to make certain that the Specifications and Drawings are in accordance with Laws and Regulations, but this shall not relieve Contractor of Contractor's obligations under Paragraph 3.03.
- C. Changes in Laws or Regulations not known at the time of opening of Bids (or, on the Effective Date of the Agreement if there were no Bids) having an effect on the cost or time of performance of the Work shall be the subject of an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any such adjustment, a Claim may be made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

6.10 *Taxes*

A. Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes required to be paid by Contractor in accordance with the Laws and Regulations of the place of the Project which are applicable during the performance of the Work.

6.11 Use of Site and Other Areas

A. Limitation on Use of Site and Other Areas:

- 1. Contractor shall confine construction equipment, the storage of materials and equipment, and the operations of workers to the **Site** and other areas permitted by Laws and Regulations, and shall not unreasonably encumber the Site and other areas with construction equipment or other materials or equipment. Contractor shall assume full responsibility for any damage to any such land or area, or to the owner or occupant thereof, or of any adjacent land or areas resulting from the performance of the Work.
- 2. Should any claim be made by any such owner or occupant because of the performance of the Work, Contractor shall promptly settle with such other party by negotiation or otherwise resolve the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding or at law.
- 3. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any claim or action, legal or equitable, brought

by any such owner or occupant against Owner, Engineer, or any other party indemnified hereunder to the extent caused by or based upon Contractor's performance of the Work.

- B. Removal of Debris During Performance of the Work: During the progress of the Work Contractor shall keep the Site and other areas free from accumulations of waste materials, rubbish, and other debris. Removal and disposal of such waste materials, rubbish, and other debris shall conform to applicable Laws and Regulations.
- C. Cleaning: Prior to Substantial Completion of the Work Contractor shall clean the Site and the Work and make it ready for utilization by Owner. At the completion of the Work Contractor shall remove from the Site all tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery, and surplus materials and shall restore to original condition all property not designated for alteration by the Contract Documents.
- D. *Loading Structures:* Contractor shall not load nor permit any part of any structure to be loaded in any manner that will endanger the structure, nor shall Contractor subject any part of the Work or adjacent property to stresses or pressures that will endanger it.

6.12 Record Documents

A. Contractor shall maintain in a safe place at the Site one record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, Field Orders, and written interpretations and clarifications in good order and annotated to show changes made during construction. These record documents together with all approved Samples and a counterpart of all approved Shop Drawings will be available to Engineer for reference. Upon completion of the Work, these record documents, Samples, and Shop Drawings will be delivered to Engineer for Owner.

6.13 Safety and Protection

- A. Contractor shall be solely responsible for initiating, maintaining and superv1smg all safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work. Such responsibility does not relieve Subcontractors of their responsibility for the safety of persons or property in the performance of their work, nor for compliance with applicable safety Laws and Regulations. Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:
 - 1. all persons on the Site or who may be affected by the Work;
 - 2. all the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the Site; and
 - 3. other property at the Site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, utilities, and Underground Facilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of construction.
- B. Contractor shall comply with all applicable Laws and Regulations relating to the safety of persons or property, or to the protection of persons or property from damage, injury, or loss; and

shall erect and maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection. Contractor shall notify owners of adjacent property and of Underground Facilities and other utility owners when prosecution of the Work may affect them, and shall cooperate with them in the protection, removal, relocation, and replacement of their property.

- C. Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements of Owner's safety programs, if any. The Supplementary Conditions identify any Owner's safety programs that are applicable to the Work.
- D. Contractor shall inform Owner and Engineer of the specific requirements of Contractor's safety program with which Owner's and Engineer's employees and representatives must comply while at the Site.
- E. All damage, injury, or loss to any property referred to in Paragraph 6.13.A.2 or 6.13.A.3 caused, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by Contractor, any Subcontractor, Supplier, or any other individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, shall be remedied by Contractor (except damage or loss attributable to the fault of Drawings or Specifications or to the acts or omissions of Owner or Engineer or anyone employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, and not attributable, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to the fault or negligence of Contractor or any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them).
- F. Contractor's duties and responsibilities for safety and for protection of the Work shall continue until such time as all the Work is completed and Engineer has issued a notice to Owner and Contractor in accordance with Paragraph 14.07.B that the Work is acceptable (except as otherwise expressly provided in connection with Substantial Completion).

6.14 *Safety Representative*

A. Contractor shall designate a qualified and experienced safety representative at the Site whose duties and responsibilities shall be the prevention of accidents and the maintaining and supervising of safety precautions and programs.

6.15 *Hazard Communication Programs*

A. Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating any exchange of material safety data sheets or other hazard communication information required to be made available to or exchanged between or among employers at the Site in accordance with Laws or Regulations.

6.16 *Emergencies*

A. In emergencies affecting the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, Contractor is obligated to act to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. Contractor shall give Engineer prompt written notice if Contractor believes that any significant changes in the Work or variations from the Contract Documents have been caused thereby or are required as a result thereof. If Engineer determines that a change in the Contract Documents is

required because of the action taken by Contractor in response to such an emergency, a Work Change Directive or Change Order will be issued.

6.17 Shop Drawings and Samples

A. Contractor shall submit Shop Drawings and Samples to Engineer for review and approval in accordance with the accepted Schedule of Submittals (as required by Paragraph 2.07). Each submittal will be identified as Engineer may require.

1. Shop Drawings:

- a. Submit number of copies specified in the General Requirements.
- b. Data shown on the Shop Drawings will be complete with respect to quantities, dimensions, specified performance and design criteria, materials, and similar data to show Engineer the services, materials, and equipment Contractor proposes to provide and to enable Engineer to review the information for the limited purposes required by Paragraph 6.17.D.

2. Samples:

- a. Submit number of Samples specified in the Specifications.
- b. Clearly identify each Sample as to material, Supplier, pertinent data such as catalog numbers, the use for which intended and other data as Engineer may require to enable Engineer to review the submittal for the limited purposes required by Paragraph 6.17.D.
- B. Where a Shop Drawing or Sample is required by the Contract Documents or the Schedule of Submittals, any related Work performed prior to Engineer's review and approval of the pertinent submittal will be at the sole expense and responsibility of Contractor.

C. Submittal Procedures:

- 1. Before submitting each Shop Drawing or Sample, Contractor shall have:
 - a. reviewed and coordinated each Shop Drawing or Sample with other Shop Drawings and Samples and with the requirements of the Work and the Contract Documents;
 - b. determined and verified all field measurements, quantities, dimensions, specified performance and design criteria, installation requirements, materials, catalog numbers, and similar information with respect thereto;
 - c. determined and verified the suitability of all materials offered with respect to the indicated application, fabrication, shipping, handling, storage, assembly, and installation pertaining to the performance of the Work; and
 - d. determined and verified all information relative to Contractor's responsibilities for means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto.

- 2. Each submittal shall bear a stamp or specific written certification that Contractor has satisfied Contractor's obligations under the Contract Documents with respect to Contractor's review and approval of that submittal.
- 3. With each submittal, Contractor shall give Engineer specific written notice of any variations that the Shop Drawing or Sample may have from the requirements of the Contract Documents. 1bis 11otice shall be both a written communication separate from the Shop Drawings or Sample submittal; and, in addition, by a specific notation made on each Shop Drawing or Sample submitted to Engineer for review and approval of each such variation.

D. Engineer's Review:

- Engineer will provide timely review of Shop Drawings and Samples in accordance with the Schedule of Submittals acceptable to Engineer. Engineer's review and approval will be only to determine if the items covered by the submittals will, after installation or incorporation in the Work, conform to the information given in the Contract Documents and be compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents.
- 2. Engineer's review and approval will not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction (except where a particular means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction is specifically and expressly called for by the Contract Documents) or to safety precautions or programs incident thereto. The review and approval of a separate item as such will not indicate approval of the assembly in which the item functions.
- 3. Engineer's review and approval shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for any variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents unless Contractor has complied with the requirements of Paragraph 6.17.C.3 and Engineer has given written approval of each such variation by specific written notation thereof incorporated in or accompanying the Shop Drawing or Sample. Engineer's review and approval shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for complying with the requirements of Paragraph 6.17.C.l.

E. Resubmittal Procedures:

I . Contractor shall make corrections required by Engineer and shall return the required number of corrected copies of Shop Drawings and submit, as required, new Samples for review and approval. Contractor shall direct specific attention in writing to revisions other than the corrections called for by Engineer on previous submittals.

6.18 Continuing the Work

A. Contractor shall carry on the Work and adhere to the Progress Schedule during all disputes or disagreements with Owner. No Work shall be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes or disagreements, except as permitted by Paragraph 15.04 or as Owner and Contractor may otherwise agree in writing.

6.19 Contractor's General Warranty and Guarantee

- A. Contractor warrants and guarantees to Owner that all Work will be in accordance with the Contract Documents and will not be defective. Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors shall be entitled to rely on representation of Contractor's warranty and guarantee.
- B. Contractor's warranty and guarantee hereunder excludes defects or damage caused by:
 - 1. abuse, modification, or improper maintenance or operation by persons other than Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or any other individual or entity for whom Contractor is responsible; or
 - 2. normal wear and tear under normal usage.
- C. Contractor's obligation to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents shall be absolute. None of the following will constitute an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the Contract Documents or a release of Contractor's obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents:
 - 1. observations by Engineer;
 - 2. recommendation by Engineer or payment by Owner of any progress or final payment;
 - 3. the issuance of a certificate of Substantial Completion by Engineer or any payment related thereto by Owner;
 - 4. use or occupancy of the Work or any part thereof by Owner;
 - 5. any review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample submittal or the issuance of a notice of acceptability by Engineer;
 - 6. any inspection, test, or approval by others; or
 - 7. any correction of defective Work by Owner.

6.20 Indemnification

A. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to the performance of the Work, provided that any such claim, cost, loss, or damage is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use resulting therefrom but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.

- B. In any and all claims against Owner or Engineer or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors by any employee (or the survivor or personal representative of such employee) of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under Paragraph 6.20.A shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Contractor or any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.
- C. The indemnification obligations of Contractor under Paragraph 6.20.A shall not extend to the liability of Engineer and Engineer's officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors arising out of:
 - 1. the preparation or approval of, or the failure to prepare or approve maps, Drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, Change Orders, designs, or Specifications; or
 - 2. giving directions or instructions, or failing to give them, if that is the primary cause of the injury or damage.

6.21 Delegation of Professional Design Services

- A. Contractor will not be required to provide professional design services unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of the Work or unless such services are required to carry out Contractor's responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures. Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services in violation of applicable law.
- B. If professional design services or certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials or equipment are specifically required of Contractor by the Contract Documents, Owner and Engineer will specify all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by a properly licensed professional, whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings and other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear such professional's written approval when submitted to Engineer.
- C. Owner and Engineer shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications or approvals performed by such design professionals, provided Owner and Engineer have specified to Contractor all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy.
- D. Pursuant to this Paragraph 6.21, Engineer's review and approval of design calculations and design drawings will be only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with performance and design criteria given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. Engineer's review and approval of Shop Drawings and other submittals (except design calculations and design drawings) will be only for the purpose stated in Paragraph 6.17.D.l.

E. Contractor shall not be responsible for the adequacy of the performance or design criteria required by the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 7 - OTHER WORK AT THE SITE

7.01 Related Work at Site

- A. Owner may perform other work related to the Project at the Site with Owner's employees, or through other direct contracts therefor, or have other work performed by utility owners. If such other work is not noted in the Contract Documents, then:
 - 1. written notice thereof will be given to Contractor prior to starting any such other work; and
 - 2. if Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times that should be allowed as a result of such other work, a Claim may be made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.
- B. Contractor shall afford each other contractor who is a party to such a direct contract, each utility owner, and Owner, if Owner is performing other work with Owner's employees, proper and safe access to the Site, provide a reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of materials and equipment and the execution of such other work, and properly coordinate the Work with theirs. Contractor shall do all cutting, fitting, and patching of the Work that may be required to properly connect or otherwise make its several parts come together and properly integrate with such other work. Contractor shall not endanger any work of others by cutting, excavating, or otherwise altering their work and will only cut or alter their work with the written consent of Engineer and the others whose work will be affected. The duties and responsibilities of Contractor under this Paragraph are for the benefit of such utility owners and other contractors to the extent that there are comparable provisions for the benefit of Contractor in said direct contracts between Owner and such utility owners and other contractors.
- C. If the proper execution or results of any part of Contractor's Work depends upon work performed by others under this Article 7, Contractor shall inspect such other work and promptly report to Engineer in writing any delays, defects, or deficiencies in such other work that render it unavailable or unsuitable for the proper execution and results of Contractor's Work. Contractor's failure to so report will constitute an acceptance of such other work as fit and proper for integration with Contractor's Work except for latent defects and deficiencies in such other work.

7.02 Coordination

- A. If Owner intends to contract with others for the performance of other work on the Project at the Site, the following will be set forth in Supplementary Conditions:
 - 1. the individual or entity who will have authority and responsibility for coordination of the activities among the various contractors will be identified;
 - 2. the specific matters to be covered by such authority and responsibility will be itemized; d
 - 3. the extent of such authority and responsibilities will be provided.

B. Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Owner shall have sole authority and responsibility for such coordination.

7.03 Legal Relationships

- A Paragraphs 7.01.A and 7.02 are not applicable for utilities not under the control of Owner.
- B. Each other direct contract of Owner under Paragraph 7.01.A shall provide that the other contractor is liable to Owner and Contractor for the reasonable direct delay and disruption costs incurred by Contractor as a result of the other contractor's wrongful actions or inactions.
- C. Contractor shall be liable to Owner and any other contractor under direct contract to Owner for the reasonable direct delay and disruption costs incurred by such other contractor as a result of Contractor's wrongful action or inactions.

ARTICLE 8 - OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

- 8.01 *Communications to Contractor*
 - A Except as otherwise provided in these General Conditions, Owner shall issue all communications to Contractor through Engineer.
- 8.02 Replacement of Engineer
 - A In case of termination of the employment of Engineer, Owner shall appoint an engineer to whom Contractor makes no reasonable objection, whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the former Engineer.
- 8.03 Furnish Data
 - A Owner shall promptly furnish the data required of Owner under the Contract Documents.
- 8.04 Pay When Due
 - A Owner shall make payments to Contractor when they are due as provided in Paragraphs 14.02.C and 14.07.C.
- 8.05 Lands and Easements; Reports and Tests
 - A Owner's duties with respect to providing lands and easements and providing engineering surveys to establish reference points are set forth in Paragraphs 4.01 and 4.05. Paragraph 4.02 refers to Owner's identifying and making available to Contractor copies of reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions and drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site.
- 8.06 Insurance
 - A Owner's responsibilities, if any, with respect to purchasing and maintaining liability and property insurance are set forth in Article 5.

8.07 *Change Orders*

- A. Owner is obligated to execute Change Orders as indicated in Paragraph 10.03.
- 8.08 Inspections, Tests, and Approvals
 - A. Owner's responsibility with respect to certain inspections, tests, and approvals is set forth in Paragraph 13.03.B.
- 8.09 Limitations on Owner's Responsibilities
 - A. The Owner shall not supervise, direct, or have control or authority over, nor be responsible for, Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Owner will not be responsible for Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 8.10 Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition
 - A. Owner's responsibility in respect to an undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition is set forth in Paragraph 4.06.
- 8.11 Evidence of Financial Arrangements
 - A. Upon request of Contractor, Owner shall furnish Contractor reasonable evidence that financial arrangements have been made to satisfy Owner's obligations W1der the Contract Documents.
- 8.12 Compliance with Safety Program
 - A. While at the Site, Owner's employees and representatives shall comply with the specific applicable requirements of Contractor's safety programs of which Owner has been informed pursuant to Paragraph 6.13.D.

ARTICLE 9 - ENGINEER'S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION

- 9.01 Owner's Representative
 - A. Engineer will be Owner's representative during the construction period. The duties and responsibilities and the limitations of authority of Engineer as Owner's representative during construction are set forth in the Contract Documents.
- 9.02 Visits to Site
 - A. Engineer will make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction as Engineer deems necessary in order to observe as an experienced and qualified design professional the progress that has been made and the quality of the various aspects of Contractor's executed Work. Based on information obtained during such visits and observations, Engineer, for the benefit of Owner, will determine, in general, if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. Engineer will not be required to make exhaustive or

continuous inspections on the Site to check the quality or quantity of the Work. Engineer's efforts will be directed toward providing for Owner a greater degree of confidence that the completed Work will conform generally to the Contract Documents. On the basis of such visits and observations, Engineer will keep Owner informed of the progress of the Work and will endeavor to guard Owner against defective Work.

B. Engineer's visits and ooservations are subject to all the limitations on Engineer's authority and responsibility set forth in Paragraph 9.09. Particularly, but without limitation, during or as a result of Engineer's visits or observations of Contractor's Work, Engineer will not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work:

9.03 Project Representative

A. If Owner and Engineer agree, Engineer will furnish a Resident Project Representative to assist Engineer in providing more extensive observation of the Work. The authority and responsibilities of any such Resident Project Representative and assistants will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions, and limitations on the responsibilities thereof will be as provided in Paragraph 9.09. If Owner designates another representative or agent to represent Owner at the Site who is not Engineer's consultant, agent or employee, the responsibilities and authority and limitations thereon of such other individual or entity will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions.

9.04 Authorized Variations in Work

A. Engineer may authorize minor variations in the Work from the requirements of the Contract Documents which do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times and are compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents. These may be accomplished by a Field Order and will be binding on Owner and also on Contractor, who shall perform the Work involved promptly. If Owner or Contractor believes that a Field Order justifies an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, and the parties are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any such adjustment, a Claim may be made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

9.05 Rejecting Defective Work

A. Engineer will have authority to reject Work which Engineer believes to be defective, or that Engineer believes will not produce a completed Project that conforms to the Contract Documents or that will prejudice the integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents. Engineer will also have authority to require special inspection or testing of the Work as provided in Paragraph 13.04, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or completed.

- 9.06 Shop Drawings, Change Orders and Payments
 - A. In connection with Engineer's authority, and limitations thereof, as to Shop Drawings and Samples, see Paragraph 6.17.
 - B. In connection with Engineer's authority, and limitations thereof, as to design calculations and design drawings submitted in response to a delegation of professional design services, if any, see Paragraph 6.21.
 - C. In connection with Engineer's authority as to Change Orders, see Articles 10, 11, and 12.
 - D. In connection with Engineer's authority as to Applications for Payment, see Article 14.
- 9.07 Determinations for Unit Price Work
 - A. Engineer will determine the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor. Engineer will review with Contractor the Engineer's preliminary determinations on such matters before rendering a written decision thereon (by recommendation of an Application for Payment or otherwise). Engineer's written decision thereon will be final and binding (except as modified by Engineer to reflect changed factual conditions or more accurate data) upon Owner and Contractor, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 10.05.
- 9.08 Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work
 - A. Engineer will be the initial interpreter of the requirements of the Contract Documents and judge of the acceptability of the Work thereunder. All matters in question and other matters between Owner and Contractor arising prior to the date final payment is due relating to the acceptability of the Work, and the interpretation of the requirements of the Contract Documents pertaining to the performance of the Work, will be referred initially to Engineer in writing within 30 days of the event giving rise to the question.
 - B. Engineer will, with reasonable promptness, render a written decision on the issue referred. If Owner or Contractor believes that any such decision entitles them to an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times or both, a Claim may be made under Paragraph 10.05. The date of Engineer's decision shall be the date of the event giving rise to the issues referenced for the purposes of Paragraph 10.05.B.
 - C. Engineer's written decision on the issue referred will be final and binding on Owner and Contractor, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 10.05.
 - D. When functioning as interpreter and judge under this Paragraph 9.08, Engineer will not show partiality to Owner or Contractor and will not be liable in connection with any interpretation or decision rendered in good faith in such capacity.
- 9.09 Limitations on Engineer's Authority and Responsibilities
 - A. Neither Engineer's authority or responsibility under this Article 9 or under any other provision of the Contract Documents nor any decision made by Engineer in good faith either to exercise or not

- exercise such authority or responsibility or the undertaking, exercise, or performance of any authority or responsibility by Engineer shall create, impose, or give rise to any duty in contract, tort, or otherwise owed by Engineer to Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other individual or entity, or to any surety for or employee or agent of any of them.
- B. Engineer will not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Engineer will not be responsible for Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- C. Engineer will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of Contractor or of any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or of any other individual or entity performing any of the Work.
- D. Engineer's review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation and all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates of inspection, tests and approvals, and other documentation required to be delivered by Paragraph 14.07.A will only be to determine generally that their content complies with the requirements of, and in the case of certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals that the results certified indicate compliance with, the Contract Documents.
- E. The limitations upon authority and responsibility set forth in this Paragraph 9.09 shall also apply to the Resident Project Representative, if any, and assistants, if any.
- 9.10 Compliance with Safety Program
 - A. While at the Site, Engineer's employees and representatives shall comply with the specific applicable requirements of Contractor's safety programs of which Engineer has been informed pursuant to Paragraph 6.13.D.

ARTICLE 10 - CHANGES IN THE WORK; CLAIMS

- 10.01 Authorized Changes in the Work
 - A. Without invalidating the Contract and without notice to any surety, Owner may, at any time or from time to time, order additions, deletions, or revisions in the Work by a Change Order, or a Work Change Directive. Upon receipt of any such document, Contractor shall promptly proceed with the Work involved which will be performed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Docwnents (except as otherwise specifically provided).
 - B. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to, or on the amount or extent, if any, of an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, that should be allowed as a result of a Work Change Directive, a Claim may be made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

10.02 Unauthorized Changes in the Work

A. Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times with respect to any work performed that is not required by the Contract Documents as amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in Paragraph 3.04, except in the case of an emergency as provided in Paragraph 6.16 or in the case of uncovering Work as provided in Paragraph 13.04.D.

10.03 Execution of Change Orders

- A. Owner and Contractor shall execute appropriate Change Orders recommended by Engineer covenng:
 - 1. changes in the Work which are: (i) ordered by Owner pursuant to Paragraph IO.OLA, (ii) required because of acceptance of defective Work under Paragraph 13.08.A or Owner's correction of defective Work under Paragraph 13.09, or (iii) agreed to by the parties;
 - 2. changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times which are agreed to by the parties, including any undisputed sum or amount of time for Work actually performed in accordance with a Work Change Directive; and
 - 3. changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times which embody the substance of any written decision rendered by Engineer pursuant to Paragraph 10.05; provided that, in lieu of executing any such Change Order, an appeal may be taken from any such decision in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents and applicable Laws and Regulations, but during any such appeal, Contractor shall carry on the Work and adhere to the Progress Schedule as provided in Paragraph 6.18.A.

10.04 Notification to Surety

A. If the provisions of any bond require notice to be given to a surety of any change affecting the general scope of the Work or the provisions of the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, Contract Price or Contract Times), the giving of any such notice will be Contractor's responsibility. The amount of each applicable bond will be adjusted to reflect the effect of any such change.

10.05 Claims

- A. *Engineer's Decision Required:* All Claims, except those waived pursuant to Paragraph 14.09, shall be referred to the Engineer for decision. A decision by Engineer shall be required as a condition precedent to any exercise by Owner or Contractor of any rights or remedies either may otherwise have under the Contract Documents or by Laws and Regulations in respect of such Claims.
- B. *Notice:* Written notice stating the general nature of each Claim shall be delivered by the claimant to Engineer and the other party to the Contract promptly (but in no event later than 30 days)' after the start of the event giving rise thereto. The responsibility to substantiate a Claim shall rest with the party making the Claim. Notice of the amount or extent of the Claim, with supporting data

shall be delivered to the Engineer and the other party to the Contract within 60 days after the start of such event (unless Engineer allows additional time for claimant to submit additional or more accurate data in support of such Claim). A Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price shall be prepared in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 12.01.B. A Claim for an adjustment in Contract Times shall be prepared in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 12.02.B. Each Claim shall be accompanied by claimant's written statement that the adjustment claimed is the entire adjustment to which the claimant believes it is entitled as a result of said event. The opposing party shall submit any response to Engineer and the claimant within 30 days after receipt of the claimant's last submittal (unless Engineer allows additional time).

- C. *Engineer's Action:* Engineer will review each Claim and, within 30 days after receipt of the last submittal of the claimant or the last submittal of the opposing party, if any, take one of the following actions in writing:
 - 1. deny the Claim in whole or in part;
 - 2. approve the Claim; or
 - 3. notify the parties that the Engineer is unable to resolve the Claim if, in the Engineer's sole discretion, it would be inappropriate for the Engineer to do so. For purposes of further resolution of the Claim, such notice shall be deemed a denial.
- D. In the event that Engineer does not take action on a Claim within said 30 days, 'the Claim shall be deemed denied.
- E. Engineer's written action under Paragraph 10.05.C or denial pursuant to Paragraphs 10.05.C.3 or 10.05.D will be final and binding upon Owner and Contractor, unless Owner or Contractor invoke the dispute resolution procedure set forth in Article 16 within 30 days of such action or denial.
- F. No Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times will be valid if not submitted in accordance with this Paragraph 10.05.

ARTICLE 11 - COST OF THE WORK; ALLOWANCES; UNIT PRICE WORK

11.01 Costofthe Work

A. Costs Included: The term Cost of the Work means the sum of all costs, except those excluded in Paragraph 11.01.B, necessarily incurred and paid by Contractor in the proper performance of the Work. When the value of any Work covered by a Change Order or when a Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price is determined on the basis of Cost of the Work, the costs to be reimbursed to Contractor will be only those additional or incremental costs required because of the change in the Work or because of the event giving rise to the Claim. Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by Owner, such costs shall be in amounts no higher than those prevailing in the locality of the Project, and shall not include any of the costs itemized in Paragraph 11.01.B, and shall include only the following items:

- 1. Payroll costs for employees in the direct employ of Contractor in the performance of the Work under schedules of job classifications agreed upon by Owner and Contractor. Such employees shall include, without limitation, superintendents, foremen, and other personnel employed full time on the Work. Payroll costs for employees not employed full time on the Work shall be apportioned on the basis of their time spent on the Work. Payroll costs shall include, but not be limited to, salaries and wages plus the cost of fringe benefits, which shall include social security contributions, unemployment, excise, and payroll taxes, workers' compensation, health and retirement benefits, bonuses, sick leave, vacation and holiday pay applicable thereto. The expenses of performing Work outside of regular working hours, on Saturday, Sunday, or legal holidays, shall be included in the above to the extent authorized by Owner.
- 2. Cost of all materials and equipment furnished and incorporated in the Work, including costs of transportation and storage thereof, and Suppliers' field services required in connection therewith. All cash discounts shall accrue to Contractor unless Owner deposits funds with Contractor with which to make payments, in which case the cash discounts shall accrue to Owner. All trade discounts, rebates and refunds and returns from sale of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to Owner, and Contractor shall make provisions so that they may be obtained.
- 3. Payments made by Contractor to Subcontractors for Work performed by Subcontractors. If required by Owner, Contractor shall obtain competitive bids from subcontractors acceptable to Owner and Contractor and shall deliver such bids to Owner, who will then determine, with the advice of Engineer, which bids, if any, will be acceptable. If any subcontract provides that the. Subcontractor is to be paid on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee, the Subcontractor's Cost of the Work and fee shall be determined in the same manner as Contractor's Cost of the Work and fee as provided in this Paragraph 11.01.
- 4. Costs of special consultants (including but not limited to engineers, architects, testing laboratories, surveyors, attorneys, and accountants) employed for services specifically related to the Work.
- 5. Supplemental costs including the following:
 - a. The proportion of necessary transportation, travel, and subsistence expenses of Contractor's employees incurred in discharge of duties connected with the Work.
 - b. Cost, including transportation and maintenance, of all materials, supplies, equipment, machinery, appliances, office, and temporary facilities at the Site, and hand tools not owned by the workers, which are consumed in the performance of the Work, and cost, less market value, of such items used but not consumed which remain the property of Contractor.
 - c. Rentals of all construction equipment and machinery, and the parts thereof whether rented from Contractor or others in accordance with rental agreements approved by Owner with the advice of Engineer, and the costs of transportation, loading, unloading, assembly, dismantling, and removal thereof. All such costs shall be in accordance with the terms of

- said rental agreements. The rental of any such equipment, machinery, or parts shall cease when the use thereof is no longer necessary for the Work.
- d. Sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes related to the Work, and for which Contractor is liable, as imposed by Laws and Regulations.
- e. Deposits lost fbr causes other than negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, and royalty payments and fees for permits and licenses.
- f. Losses and damages (and related expenses) caused by damage to the Work, not compensated by insurance or otherwise, sustained by Contractor in connection with the performance of the Work (except losses and damages within the deductible amounts of property insurance established in accordance with Paragraph 5.06.D), provided such losses and damages have resulted from causes other than the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable. Such losses shall include settlements made with the written consent and approval of Owner. No such losses, damages, and expenses shall be included in the Cost of the Work for the purpose of determining Contractor's fee.
- g. The cost of utilities, fuel, and sanitary facilities at the Site.
- h. Minor expenses such as telegrams, long distance telephone calls, telephone service at the Site, express and courier services, and similar petty cash items in connection with the Work.
- 1. The costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance Contractor is required by the Contract Documents to purchase and maintain.
- B. Costs Excluded: The term Cost of the Work shall not include any of the following items:
 - 1. Payroll costs and other compensation of Contractor's officers, executives, principals (of partnerships and sole proprietorships), general managers, safety managers, engineers, architects, estimators, attorneys, auditors, accountants, purchasing and contracting agents, expediters, timekeepers, clerks, and other personnel employed by Contractor, whether at the Site or in Contractor's principal or branch office for general administration of the Work and not specifically included in the agreed upon schedule of job classifications referred to in Paragraph 11.01.A.1 or specifically covered by Paragraph 11.01.A.4, all of which are to be considered administrative costs covered by the Contractor's fee.
 - 2. Expenses of Contractor's principal and branch offices other than Contractor's office at the Site.
 - 3. Any part of Contractor's capital expenses, including interest on Contractor's capital employed for the Work and charges against Contractor for delinquent payments.
 - 4. Costs due to the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, including but not

limited to, the correction of defective Work, disposal of materials or equipment wrongly supplied, and making good any damage to property.

- 5. Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind and the costs of any item not specifically and expressly included in Paragraphs 11.01.A.
- C. Contractor's Fee: When all the Work is performed on the basis of cost-plus, Contractor's fee shall be determined as set forth in the Agreement. When the value of any Work covered by a Change Order or when a Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price is determined on the basis of Cost of the Work, Contractor's fee shall be determined as set forth in Paragraph 12.01.C.
- D. *Documentation:* Whenever the Cost of the Work for any purpose is to be determined pursuant to Paragraphs 11.0 I.A and 1LO1.B, Contractor will establish and maintain records thereof in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and submit in a form acceptable to Engineer an itemized cost breakdown together with supporting data.

11.02 Allowances

A. It is understood that Contractor has included in the Contract Price all allowances so named in the Contract Documents and shall cause the Work so covered to be performed for such sums and by such persons or entities as may be acceptable to Owner and Engineer.

B. Cash Allowances:

- 1. Contractor agrees that:
 - a. the cash allowances include the cost to Contractor (less any applicable trade discounts) of materials and equipment required by the allowances to be delivered at the Site, and all applicable taxes; and
 - b. Contractor's costs for unloading and handling on the Site, labor, installation, overhead, profit, and other expenses contemplated for the cash allowances have been included in the Contract Price and not in the allowances, and no demand for additional payment on account of any of the foregoing will be valid.

C. Contingency Allowance:

- 1. Contractor agrees that a contingency allowance, if any, is for the sole use of Owner to cover unanticipated costs.
- D. Prior to final payment, an appropriate Change Order will be issued as recommended by Engineer to reflect actual amounts due Contractor on account of Work covered by allowances, and the Contract Price shall be correspondingly adjusted.

11.03 Unit Price Work

A. Where the Contract Documents provide that all or part of the Work is to be Unit Price Work, initially the Contract Price will be deemed to include for all Unit Price Work an amount equal to

- the sum of the unit price for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of each item as indicated in the Agreement.
- B. The estimated quantities of items of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids and determining an initial Contract Price. Determinations of the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor will be made by Engineer subject to the provisions of Paragraph 9.07.
- C. Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount considered by Contractor to be adequate to cover Contractor's overhead and profit for each separately identified item.
- D. Owner or Contractor may make a Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Price in accordance with Paragraph 10.05 if:
 - 1. the quantity of any item of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor differs materially and significantly from the estimated quantity of such item indicated in the Agreement; and
 - 2. there is no corresponding adjustment with respect to any other item of Work; and
 - 3. Contractor believes that Contractor is entitled to an increase in Contract Price as a result of having incurred additional expense or Owner believes that Owner is entitled to a decrease in Contract Price and the parties are unable to agree as to the amount of any such increase or decrease.

ARTICLE 12 - CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE; CHANGE OF CONTRACT TIMES

12.01 Change of Contract Price

- A. The Contract Price may only be changed by a Change Order. Any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Price shall be based on written notice submitted by the party making the Claim to the Engineer and the other party to the Contract in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 10.05.
- B. The value of any Work covered by a Change Order or of any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Price will be determined as follows:
 - 1. where the Work involved is covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, by application of such unit prices to the quantities of the items involved (subject to the provisions of Paragraph 11.03); or
 - 2. where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, by a mutually agreed lump sum (which may include an allowance for overhead and profit not necessarily in accordance with Paragraph 12.01.C.2); or
 - 3. where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents and agreement to a lump sum is not reached under Paragraph 12.01.B.2, on the basis of the Cost of the Work (determined as provided in Paragraph 11.01) plus a Contractor's fee for overhead and profit (determined as provided in Paragraph 12.01.C).

- C. Contractor's Fee: The Contractor's fee for overhead and profit shall be determined as follows:
 - 1. a mutually acceptable fixed fee; or
 - 2. if a fixed fee is not agreed upon, then a fee based on the following percentages of the various portions of the Cost of the Work:
 - a. for costs incurred under Paragraphs 11.01.A.l and 11.01.A.2, the Contractor's fee shall be 15 percent;
 - b. for costs incurred under Paragraph 11.01.A.3, the Contractor's fee shall be five percent;
 - c. where one or more tiers of subcontracts are on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee and no fixed fee is agreed upon, the intent of Paragraphs 12.01.C.2.a and 12.01.C.2.b is that the Subcontractor who actually performs the Work, at whatever tier, will be paid a fee of 15 percent of the costs incurred by such Subcontractor under Paragraphs 11.01.A.1 and 11.01.A.2 and that any higher tier Subcontractor and Contractor will each be paid a fee of five percent of the amount paid to the next lower tier Subcontractor;
 - d. no fee shall be payable on the basis of costs itemized under Paragraphs 11.01.A.4, 11.01.A.5, and 11.01.B;
 - e. the amount of credit to be allowed by Contractor to Owner for any change which results in a net decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease in cost plus a deduction in Contractor's fee by an amount equal to five percent of such net decrease; and
 - f. when both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the adjustment in Contractor's fee shall be computed on the basis of the net change in accordance with Paragraphs 12.01.C.2.a through 12.01.C.2.e, inclusive.

12.02 Change of Contract Times

- A. The Contract Times may only be changed by a Change Order. Any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Times shall be based on written notice submitted by the party making the Claim to the Engineer and the other party to the Contract in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 10.05.
- B. Any adjustment of the Contract Times covered by a Change Order or any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Times will be determined in accordance with the provisions of this Article 12.

12.03 Delays

A. Where Contractor is prevented from completing any part of the Work within the Contract 1:'imes due to delay beyond the control of Contractor, the Contract Times will be extended in an amount equal to the time lost due to such delay if a Claim is made therefor as provided in Paragraph 12.02.A. Delays beyond the control of Contractor shall include, but not be limited to, acts or

- neglect by Owner, acts or neglect of utility owners or other contractors performing other work as contemplated by Article 7, fires, floods, epidemics, abnormal weather conditions, or acts of God.
- B. If Owner, Engineer, or other contractors or utility owners performing other work for Owner as contemplated by Article 7, or anyone for whom Owner is responsible, delays, disrupts, or interferes with the performance or progress of the Work, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times, or both. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is conditioned on such adjustment being essential to Contractor's ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times.
- C. If Contractor is delayed in the performance or progress of the Work by fire, flood, epidemic, abnormal weather conditions, acts of God, acts or failures to act of utility owners not under the control of Owner, or other causes not the fault of and beyond control of Owner and Contractor, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Times, if such adjustment is essential to Contractor's ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times. Such an adjustment shall be Contractor's sole and exclusive remedy for the delays described in this Paragraph 12.03.C.
- D. Owner, Engineer, and their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors shall not be liable to Contractor for any claims, costs, losses, or damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) sustained by Contractor on or in connection with any other project or anticipated project.
- E. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times for delays within the control of Contractor. Delays attributable to and within the control of a Subcontractor or Supplier shall be deemed to be delays within the control of Contractor.

ARTICLE 13 -TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL OR ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE WORK

13.01 *Notice of Defects*

A. Prompt notice of all defective Work of which Owner or Engineer has actual knowledge will be given to Contractor. Defective Work may be rejected, corrected, or accepted as provided in this Article 13.

13.02 Access to Work

A. Owner, Engineer, their consultants and other representatives and personnel of Owner, independent testing laboratories, and governmental agencies with jurisdictional interests will have access to the Site and the Work at reasonable times for their observation, inspection, and testing. Contractor shall provide them proper and safe conditions for such access and advise them of Contractor's safety procedures and programs so that they may comply therewith as applicable.

13.03 Tests and Inspections

- A. Contractor shall give Engineer timely notice of re<;1diness of the Work for all required inspections, tests, or approvals and shall cooperate with inspection and testing personnel to facilitate required inspections or tests.
- B. Owner shall employ and pay for the services of an independent testing laboratory to perform all inspections, tests, or approvals required by the Contract Documents except:
 - 1. for inspections, tests, or approvals covered by Paragraphs 13.03.C and 13.03.D below;
 - 2. that costs incurred in connection with tests or inspections conducted pursuant to Paragraph 13.04.B shall be paid as provided in Paragraph 13.04.C; and
 - 3. as otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents.
- C. If Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction require any Work (or part thereof) specifically to be inspected, tested, or approved by an employee or other representative of such public body, Contractor shall assume full responsibility for arranging and obtaining such inspections, tests, or approvals, pay all costs in connection therewith, and furnish Engineer the required certificates of inspection or approval.
- D. Contractor shall be responsible for arranging and obtaining and shall pay all costs in connection with any inspections, tests, or approvals required for Owner's and Engineer's acceptance of materials or equipment to be incorporated in the Work; or acceptance of materials, mix designs, or equipment submitted for approval prior to Contractor's purchase thereof for incorporation in the Work. Such inspections, tests, or approvals shall be performed by organizations acceptable to Owner and Engineer.
- E. If any Work (or the work of others) that is to be inspected, tested, or approved is covered by Contractor without written concurrence of Engineer, Contractor shall, if requested by Engineer, uncover such Work for observation.
- F. Uncovering Work as provided in Paragraph 13.03.E shall be at Contractor's expense unless Contractor has given Engineer timely notice of Contractor's intention to cover the same and Engineer has not acted with reasonable promptness in response to such notice.

13.04 Uncovering Work

- A. If any Work is covered contrary to the written request of Engineer, it must, if requested by Engineer, be uncovered for Engineer's observation and replaced at Contractor's expense.
- B. If Engineer considers it necessary or advisable that covered Work be observed by Engineer or inspected or tested by others, Contractor, at Engineer's request, shall uncover, expose, or otherwise make available for observation, inspection, or testing as Engineer may require, that portion of the Work in question, furnishing all necessary labor, material, and equipment.

- C. If it is found that the uncovered Work is defective, Contractor shall pay **all** claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, and testing, and of satisfactory replacement or reconstruction (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others); and O er shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount thereof, Owner may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.
- D. If, the uncovered Work is not found to be defective, Contractor shall be allowed an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times, or both, directly attributable to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing, replacement, and reconstruction. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount or extent thereof, Contractor may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

13.05 Owner May Stop the Work

A. If the Work is defective, or Contractor fails to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment, or fails to perform the Work in such a way that the completed Work will conform to the Contract Documents, Owner may order Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right of Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other individual or entity, or any surety for, or employee or agent of any of them.

13.06 Correction or Removal of Defective Work

- A. Promptly after receipt of written notice, Contractor shall correct all defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed, or completed, or, if the Work has been rejected by Engineer, remove it from the Project and replace it with Work that is not defective. Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such correction or removal (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others).
- B. When correcting defective Work under the terms of this Paragraph 13.06 or Paragraph 13.07, Contractor shall take no action that would void or otherwise impair Owner's special warranty and guarantee, if any, on said Work.

13.07 Correction Period

A. If within one year after the date of Substantial Completion (or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the Contract Documents) or by any specific provision of the Contract Documents, any Work is found to be defective, or if the repair of any damages to the land or areas made available for Contractor's use by Owner or permitted by Laws and Regulations as contemplated in Paragraph 6.11.A is found to be defective, Contractor shall promptly, without cost to Owner and in accordance with Owner's written instructions:

- 1. repair such defective land or areas; or
- 2. correct such defective Work; or
- 3. if the defective Work has been rejected by Owner, remove it from the Project and replace it with Work that is not defective, and
- 4. satisfactorily correct or repair or remove and replace any damage to other Work, to the work of others or other land or areas resulting therefrom.
- B. If Contractor does not promptly comply with the terms of Owner's written instructions, or in an emergency where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage, Owner may have the defective Work corrected or repaired or may have the rejected Work removed and replaced. All claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such correction or repair or such removal and replacement (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others) will be paid by Contractor.
- C. In special circumstances where a particular item of equipment is placed in continuous service before Substantial Completion of all the Work, the correction period for that item may start to run from an earlier date if so provided in the Specifications.
- D. Where defective Work (and damage to other Work resulting therefrom) has been corrected or removed and replaced under this Paragraph 13.07, the correction period hereunder with respect to such Work will be extended for an additional period of one year after such correction or removal and replacement has been satisfactorily completed.
- E. Contractor's obligations under this Paragraph 13.07 are in addition to any other obligation or warranty. The provisions of this Paragraph 13.07 shall not be construed as a substitute for or a waiver of the provisions of any applicable statute of limitation or repose.

13.08 Acceptance of Defective Work

A. If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of defective Work, Owner (and, prior to Engineer's recommendation of final payment, Engineer) prefers to accept it, Owner may do so. Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) attributable to Owner's evaluation of and determination to accept such defective Work (such costs to be approved by Engineer as to reasonableness) and for the diminished value of the Work to the extent not otherwise paid by Contractor pursuant to this sentence. If any such acceptance occurs prior to Engineer's recommendation of final payment, a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work, and Owner shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price, reflecting the diminished value of Work so accepted. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount thereof, Owner may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. If the acceptance occurs after such recommendation, an appropriate amount will be paid by Contractor to Owner.

- A. If Contractor fails within a reasonable time after written notice from Engineer to correct defective Work, or to remove and replace rejected Work as required by Engineer in accordance with Paragraph 13.06.A, or if Contractor fails to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or if Contractor fails to comply with any other provision of the Contract Documents, Owner may, after seven'days written notice to Contractor, correct, or remedy any such deficiency.
- B. In exercising the rights and remedies under this Paragraph 13.09, Owner shall proceed expeditiously. In connection with such corrective or remedial action, Owner may exclude Contractor from all or part of the Site, take possession of all or part of the Work and suspend Contractor's services related thereto, take possession of Contractor's tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery at the Site, and incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which Owner has paid Contractor but which are stored elsewhere. Contractor shall allow Owner, Owner's representatives, agents and employees, Owner's other contractors, and Engineer and Engineer's consultants access to the **Site** to enable Owner to exercise the rights and remedies under this Paragraph.
- C. All claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to **all** fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) incurred or sustained by Owner in exercising the rights and remedies under this Paragraph 13.09 will be charged against Contractor, and a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work; and Owner shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount of the adjustment, Owner may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. Such claims, costs, losses and damages will include but not be limited to all costs of repair, or replacement of work of others destroyed or damaged by correction, removal, or replacement of Contractor's defective Work.
- D. Contractor shall not be allowed an extension of the Contract Times because of any delay in the performance of the Work attributable to the exercise by Owner of Owner's rights and remedies under this Paragraph 13.09.

ARTICLE 14-PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR AND COMPLETION

14.01 Schedule of Values

A. The Schedule of Values established as provided in Paragraph 2.07.A will serve as the basis for progress payments and will be incorporated into a form of Application for Payment acceptable to Engineer. Progress payments on account of Unit Price Work will be based on the number of units completed.

14.02 Progress Payments

A. Applications for Payments:

1. At least 20 days before the date established in the Agreement for each progress payment (but not more often than once a month), Contractor shall submit to Engineer for review an

Application for Payment filled out and signed by Contractor covering the Work completed as of the date of the Application and accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents. If payment is requested on the basis of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored at the Site or at another location agreed to in writing, the Application for Payment shall also be accompanied by a bill of sale, invoice, or other documentation warranting that Owner has received the materials and equipment free and clear of all Liens and evidence that the materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance or other arrangements to protect Owner's interest therein, all of which must be satisfactory to Owner.

- 2. Beginning with the second Application for Payment, each Application shall include an affidavit of Contractor stating that all previous progress payments received on account of the Work have been applied on account to discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations associated with prior Applications for Payment.
- 3. The amount of retainage with respect to progress payments will be as stipulated in the Agreement.

B. Review of Applications:

- 1. Engineer will, within 10 days after receipt of each Application for Payment, either indicate in writing a recommendation of payment and present the Application to Owner or return the Application to Contractor indicating in writing Engineer's reasons for refusing to recommend payment. In the latter case, Contractor may make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application.
- 2. Engineer's recommendation of any payment requested in an Application for Paymentwill constitute a representation by Engineer to Owner, based on Engineer's observations of the executed Work as an experienced and qualified design professional, and on Engineer's review of the Application for Payment and the accompanying data and schedules, that to the best of Engineer's knowledge, information and belief:
 - a. the Work has progressed to the point indicated;
 - b. the quality of the Work is generally in accordance with the Contract Documents (subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon Substantial Completion, the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Contract Documents, a final determination of quantities and classifications for Unit Price Work under Paragraph 9.07, and any other qualifications stated in the recommendation); and
 - c. the conditions precedent to Contractor's being entitled to such payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it is Engineer's responsibility to observe the Work.
- 3. By recommending any such payment Engineer will not thereby be deemed to have represented that:
 - a. inspections made to check the quality or the quantity of the Work as it has been performed have been exhaustive, extended to every aspect of the Work in progress, or

- involved detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer in the Contract Documents; or
- b. there may not be other matters or issues between the parties that might entitle Contractor to be paid additionally by Owner or entitle Owner to withhold payment to Contractor.
- 4. Neither Engineer's teview of Contractor's Work for the purposes of recommending payments nor Engineer's recommendation of any payment, including final payment, will impose responsibility on Engineer:
 - a. to supervise, direct, or control the Work, or
 - b. for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or
 - c. for Contractor's failure to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor's performance of the Work, or
 - d. to make any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes Contractor has used the moneys paid on account of the Contract Price, or
 - e. to determine that title to any of the Work, materials, or equipment has passed to Owner free and clear of any Liens.
- 5. Engineer may refuse to recommend the whole or any part of any payment if, in Engineer's opinion, it would be incorrect to make the representations to Owner stated in Paragraph 14.02.B.2. Engineer may also refuse to recommend any such payment or, because of subsequently discovered evidence or the results of subsequent inspections or tests, revise or revoke any such payment recommendation previously made, to such extent as may be necessary in Engineer's opinion to protect Owner from loss because:
 - a. the Work is defective, or completed Work has been damaged, requiring correction or replacement;
 - b. the Contract Price has been reduced by Change Orders;
 - c. Owner has been required to correct defective Work or complete Work in accordance with Paragraph 13.09; or
 - d. Engineer has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events enumerated in Paragraph 15.02.A.

C. Payment Becomes Due:

1. Ten days after presentation of the Application for Payment to Owner with Engineer's recommendation, the amount recommended will (subject to the provisions of Paragraph 14.02.D) become due, and when due will be paid by Owner to Contractor.

D. Reduction in Payment:

- 1. Owner may refuse to make payment of the full amount recommended by Engineer because:
 - a. claims have been made against Owner on account of Contractor's performance or furnishing of the Work;
 - b. Liens have been filed in connection with the Work, except where Contractor has delivered a specific bond satisfactory to Owner to secure the satisfaction and discharge of such Liens;
 - c. there are other items entitling Owner to a set-off against the amount recommended; or
 - d. Owner has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events enumerated in Paragraphs 14.02.B.5.a through 14.02.B.5.c or Paragraph 15.02.A.
- 2. If Owner refuses to make payment of the full amount recommended by Engineer, Owner will give Contractor immediate written notice (with a copy to Engineer) stating the reasons for such action and promptly pay Contractor any amount remaining after deduction of the amount so withheld. Owner shall promptly pay Contractor the amount so withheld, or any adjustment thereto agreed to by Owner and Contractor, when Contractor remedies the reasons for such action.
- 3. Upon a subsequent determination that Owner's refusal of payment was not justified, the amount wrongfully withheld shall be treated as an amount due as determined by Paragraph 14.02.C.l and subject to interest as provided in the Agreement.

14.03 Contractor's Warranty of Title

A Contractor warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials, and equipment covered by any Application for Payment, whether incorporated in the Project or not, will pass to Owner no later than the time of payment free and clear of all Liens.

14.04 Substantial Completion

- A. When Contractor considers the entire Work ready for its intended use Contractor shall notify Owner and Engineer in writing that the entire Work is substantially complete (except for items specifically listed by Contractor as incomplete) and request that Engineer issue a certificate of Substantial Completion.
- B. Promptly after Contractor's notification, Owner, Contractor, and Engineer shall make an inspection of the Work to determine the status of completion. If Engineer does not consider the Work substantially complete, Engineer will notify Contractor in writing giving the reasons therefor.
- C. If Engineer considers the Work substantially complete, Engineer will deliver to Owner a tentative certificate of Substantial Completion which shall fix the date of Substantial Completion. There shall be attached to the certificate a tentative list of items to be completed or corrected before final payment. Owner shall have seven days after receipt of the tentative certificate during which to make written objection to Engineer as to any provisions of the certificate or attached list. If,

after considering such objections, Engineer concludes that the Work is not substantially complete, Engineer will within 14 days after submission of the tentative certificate to Owner notify Contractor in writing, stating the reasons therefor. If, after consideration of Owner's objections, Engineer considers the Work substantially complete, Engineer will, within said 14 days, execute and deliver to Owner and Contractor a definitive certificate of Substantial Completion (with a revised tentative list of items to be completed or corrected) reflecting such changes from the tentative certificate as Engineer believes justified after consideration of any objections from Owner.

- D. At the time of delivery of the tentative certificate of Substantial Completion, Engineer will deliver to Owner and Contractor a written recommendation as to division of responsibilities pending final payment between Owner and Contractor with respect to security, operation, safety, and protection of the Work, maintenance, heat, utilities, insurance, and warranties and guarantees. Unless Owner and Contractor agree otherwise in writing and so inform Engineer in writing prior to Engineer's issuing the definitive certificate of Substantial Completion, Engineer's aforesaid recommendation will be binding on Owner and Contractor until final payment.
- E. Owner shall have the right to exclude Contractor from the Site after the date of Substantial Completion subject to allowing Contractor reasonable access to remove its property and complete or correct items on the tentative list.

14.05 Partial Utilization

- A. Prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work, Owner may use or occupy any substantially completed part of the Work which has specifically been identified in the Contract Documents, or which Owner, Engineer, and Contractor agree constitutes a separately functioning and usable part of the Work that can be used by Owner for its intended purpose without significant interference with Contractor's performance of the remainder of the Work, subject to the following conditions:
 - 1. Owner at any time may request Contractor in writing to permit Owner to use or occupy any such part of the Work which Owner believes to be ready for its intended use and substantially complete. If and when Contractor agrees that such part of the Work is substantially complete, Contractor, Owner, and Engineer will follow the procedures of Paragraph 14.04.A-D for that part of the Work.
 - 2. Contractor at any time may notify Owner and Engineer in writing that Contractor considers any such part of the Work ready for its intended use and substantially complete and request Engineer to issue a certificate of Substantial Completion for that part of the Work.
 - 3. Within a reasonable time after either such request, Owner, Contractor, and Engineer shall make an inspection of that part of the Work to determine its status of completion. If Engineer does not consider that part of the Work to be substantially complete, Engineer will notify Owner and Contractor in writing giving the reasons therefor. If Engineer considers that part of the Work to be substantially complete, the provisions of Paragraph 14.04 will apply with respect to certification of Substantial Completion of that part of the Work and the division of responsibility in respect thereof and access thereto.

4. No use or occupancy or separate operation of part of the Work may occur prior to compliance with the requirements of Paragraph 5.10 regarding property insurance.

14.06 Final Inspection

A. Upon written notice from Contractor that the entire Work or an agreed portion thereof is complete, Engineer will promptly make a final inspection with Owner and Contractor and will notify Contractor in writing of all particulars in which this inspection reveals that the Work is incomplete or defective. Contractor shall immediately take such measures as are necessary to complete such Work or remedy such deficiencies.

14.07 Final Payment

A. Application for Payment:

- 1. After Contractor has, in the opinion of Engineer, satisfactorily completed all corrections identified during the final inspection and has delivered, in accordance with the Contract Documents, all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates or other evidence of insurance, certificates of inspection, marked-up record documents (as provided in Paragraph 6.12), and other documents, Contractor may make application for final payment following the procedure for progress payments.
- 2. The final Application for Payment shall be accompanied (except as previously delivered) by:
 - a. all documentation called for in the Contract Documents, including but not limited to the evidence of insurance required by Paragraph 5.04.B.6;
 - b. consent of the surety, if any, to final payment;
 - c. a list of all Claims against Owner that Contractor believes are unsettled; and
 - d. complete and legally effective releases or waivers (satisfactory to Owner) of all Lien rights arising out of or Liens filed in connection with the Work.
- 3. In lieu of the releases or waivers of Liens specified in Paragraph 14.07.A.2 and as approved by Owner, Contractor may furnish receipts or releases in full and an affidavit of Contractor that: (i) the releases and receipts include all labor, services, material, and equipment for which a Lien could be filed; and (ii) all payrolls, material and equipment bills, and other indebtedness connected with the Work for which Owner or Owner's property might in any way be responsible have been paid or otherwise satisfied. If any Subcontractor or Supplier fails to furnish such a release or receipt in full, Contractor may furnish a bond or other collateral satisfactory to Owner to indemnify Owner against any Lien.

B. Engineer's Review of Application and Acceptance:

1. If, on the basis of Engineer's observation of the Work during construction and; final inspection, and Engineer's review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation as required by the Contract Documents, Engineer is satisfied that the Work

has been completed and Contractor's other obligations under the Contract Documents have been fulfilled, Engineer will, within ten days after receipt of the final Application for Payment, indicate in writing Engineer's recommendation of payment and present the Application for Payment to Owner for payment. At the same time Engineer will also give written notice to Owner and Contractor that the Work is acceptable subject to the provisions of Paragraph 14.09. Otherwise, Engineer will return the Application for Payment to Contractor, indicating in writing the reasons for refusing to recommend final payment, in which case Contractor shall make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application for Payment.

C. Payment Becomes Due:

1. Thirty days after the presentation to Owner of the Application for Payment and accompanying documentation, the amount recommended by Engineer, less any sum Owner is entitled to set off against Engineer's recommendation, including but not limited to liquidated damages, will become due and will be paid by Owner to Contractor.

14.08 Final Completion Delayed

A. If, through no fault of Contractor, final completion of the Work is significantly delayed, and if Engineer so confirms, Owner shall, upon receipt of Contractor's final Application for Payment (for Work fully completed and accepted) and recommendation of Engineer, and without terminating the Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining balance to be held by Owner for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than the retainage stipulated in the Agreement, and if bonds have been furnished as required in Paragraph 5.01, the written consent of the surety to the payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by Contractor to Engineer with the Application for such payment. Such payment shall be made under the terms and conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of Claims.

14.09 Waiver of Claims

- A. The making and acceptance of final payment will constitute:
 - I. a waiver of all Claims by Owner against Contractor, except Claims arising from unsettled Liens, from defective Work appearing after final inspection pursuant to Paragraph 14.06., from failure to comply with the Contract Documents or the terms of any special guarantees specified therein, or from Contractor's continuing obligations under the Contract Documents; and
 - a waiver of all Claims by Contractor against Owner other than those previously made in accordance with the requirements herein and expressly acknowledged by Owner in writing as still unsettled.

ARTICLE 15 - SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION

15.01 Owner May Suspend Work

A. At any time and without cause, Owner may suspend the Work or any portion thereof for a period of not more than 90 consecutive days by notice in writing to Contractor and Engineer which will fix the date on which Work will be resumed. Contractor shall reswne the Work on the date so fixed. Contractor shall be granted an adjustment in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times, or both, directly attributable to any such suspension if Contractor makes a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

15.02 Owner May Terminate for Cause

- A. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events will justify termination for cause:
 - L Contractor's persistent failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, failure to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment or failure to adhere to the Progress Schedule established under Paragraph 2.07 as adjusted from time to time pursuant to Paragraph 6.04);
 - 2. Contractor's disregard of Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction;
 - 3. Contractor's repeated disregard of the authority of Engineer; or
 - 4. Contractor's violation in any substantial way of any provisions of the Contract Documents.
- B. If one or more of the events identified in Paragraph 15.02.A occur, Owner may, after giving Contractor (and surety) seven days written notice of its intent to terminate the services of Contractor:
 - I. exclude Contractor from the Site, and take possession of the Work and of all Contractor's tools, appliances, construction equipment, and machinery at the Site, and use the same to the **full** extent they could be used by Contractor (without liability to Contractor for trespass or conversion);
 - 2. incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which Owner has paid Contractor but which are stored elsewhere; and
 - 3. complete the Work as Owner may deem expedient.
- C. If Owner proceeds as provided in Paragraph 15.02.B, Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the Work is completed. If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price exceeds all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) sustained by Owner arising out of or relating to completing the Work, such excess will be paid to Contractor. If such claims, costs, losses, and damages exceed; such unpaid balance, Contractor shall pay the difference to Owner. Such claims, costs, losses, and damages incurred by Owner will be reviewed by Engineer as to their reasonableness and, when

so approved by Engineer, incorporated in a Change Order. When exercising any rights or remedies under this Paragraph, Owner shall not be required to obtain the lowest price for the Work performed.

- D. Notwithstanding Paragraphs 15.02.B and 15.02.C, Contractor's services will not be terminated if Contractor begins within seven days of receipt of notice of intent to terminate to correct its failure to perform and proceeds diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt of said notice.
- E. Where Contractor's services have been so terminated by Owner, the termination will not affect any rights or remedies of Owner against Contractor then existing or which may thereafter accrue. Any retention or payment of moneys due Contractor by Owner will not release Contractor from liability.
- F. If and to the extent that Contractor has provided a performance bond under the provisions of Paragraph 5.01.A, the termination procedures of that bond shall supersede the provisions of Paragraphs 15.02.B and 15.02.C.

15.03 Owner May Terminate For Convenience

- A. Upon seven days written notice to Contractor and Engineer, Owner may, without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of Owner, terminate the Contract. In such case, Contractor shall be paid for (without duplication of any items):
 - 1. completed and acceptable Work executed in accordance with the Contract Documents prior to the effective date of termination, including fair and reasonable sums **for** overhead and profit on such Work;
 - 2. expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing services and furnishing labor, materials, or equipment as required by the Contract Documents in connection with uncompleted Work, plus fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such expenses;
 - 3. all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolutio costs) incurred in settlement of terminated contracts with Subcontractors, Suppliers, and others; and
 - 4. reasonable expenses directly attributable to termination.
- B. Contractor shall not be paid on account of loss of anticipated profits or revenue or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from such termination.

15.04 Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate

A. If, through no act or fault of Contractor, (i) the Work is suspended for more than 90 consecutive days by Owner or under an order of court or other public authority, or (ii) Engineer fails to act on any Application for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted, or (iii) Owner fails for 30 days

to pay Contractor any sum finally determined to be due, then Contractor may, upon seven days written notice to Owner and Engineer, and provided Owner or Engineer do not remedy such suspension or failure within that time, terminate the Contract and recover from Owner payment on the same terms as provided in Paragraph 15.03.

B. In lieu of terminating the Contract and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, if Engineer has failed to act on an Application for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted, or Owner has failed for 30 days to pay Contractor any sum finally determined to be due, Contractor may, seven days after written notice to Owner and Engineer, stop the Work until payment is made of all such amounts due Contractor, including interest thereon. The provisions of this Paragraph 15.04 are not intended to preclude Contractor from making a Claim under Paragraph 10.05 for an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times or otherwise for expenses or damage directly attributable to Contractor's stopping the Work as permitted by this Paragraph.

ARTICLE 16- DISPUTE RESOLUTION

16.01 *Methods and Procedures*

- A. Either Owner or Contractor may request mediation of any Claim submitted to Engineer for a decision under Paragraph I0.05 before such decision becomes final and binding. The mediation will be governed by the Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association in effect as of the Effective Date of the Agreement. The request for mediation shall be submitted in writing to the American Arbitration Association and the other party to the Contract. Timely submission of the request shall stay the effect of Paragraph 10.05.E.
- B. Owner and Contractor shall participate in the mediation process in good faith. The process shall be concluded within 60 days of filing of the request. The date of termination of the mediation shall be determined by application of the mediation rules referenced above.
- C. If the Claim is not resolved by mediation, Engineer's action under Paragraph 10.05.C or a denial pursuant to Paragraphs 10.05.C.3 or 10.05.D shall become final and binding 30 days after termination of the mediation unless, within that time period, Owner or Contractor:
 - 1. elects in writing to invoke any dispute resolution process provided for in the Supplementary Conditions; or
 - 2. agrees with the other party to submit the Claim to another dispute resolution process; or
 - 3. gives written notice to the other party of the intent to submit the Claim to a court of competent jurisdiction.

ARTICLE 17 - MISCELLANEOUS

17.01 Giving Notice

A. Whenever any provision of the Contract Documents requires the giving of written notice, i't will be deemed to have been validly given if:

- 1. delivered in person to the individual or to a member of the firm or to an officer of the corporation for whom it is intended; or
- 2. delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the last business address known to the giver of the notice.

17.02 Computation of Times

A. When any period of time is referred to in the Contract Documents by days, it will be computed to exclude the first and include the last day of such period. If the last day of any such period falls on a Saturday or Sunday or on a day made a legal holiday by the law of the applicable jurisdiction, such day will be omitted from the computation.

17.03 Cumulative Remedies

A. The duties and obligations imposed by these General Conditions and the rights and remedies available hereunder to the parties hereto are in addition to, and are not to be construed in any way as a limitation of, any rights and remedies available to any or all of them which are otherwise imposed or available by Laws or Regulations, by special warranty or guarantee, or by other provisions of the Contract Documents. The provisions of this Paragraph will be as effective as if repeated specifically in the Contract Documents in connection with each particular duty, obligation, right, and remedy to which they apply.

17.04 Survival of Obligations

A. All representations, indemnifications, warranties, and guarantees made in, required by, or given in accordance with the Contract Documents, as well as all continuing obligations indicated in the Contract Documents, will survive final payment, completion, and acceptance of the Work or termination or completion of the Contract or termination of the services of Contractor.

17.05 Controlling Law

A. This Contract is to be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is located.

17.06 Headings

A. Article and paragraph headings are inserted for convenience only and do not constitute parts of these General Conditions.

SUPPLEMENTARY GENERAL CONDITIONS TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article Number	Title	Page
1	APPLICABILITY	2
2	PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED INSERTED	2
3	CONTRACTOR'S UNDERSTANDING	2
4	CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE WORK	2
5	STAKING	2
6	TESTING	3
7	PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY, RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE	3
8	PARTIAL PAYMENT	3
9	FINAL PAYMENT	4
10	FAILURE TO COMPLETE WORK ON TIME	5
11	TIME OF COMPLETION	5
12	LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	5
13	INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	7
14	COORDINATION OF UTILITY SERVICE	8
15	INDEMNIFICATION	10
16	AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF INSPECTOR	10
17	SALVAGED EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS	11
18	SAFETY REGULATIONS	11
19	PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONVENIENCE	12
20	RECORD DATA AND AS-BUILTS	12
21	BARRICADES, WARNING AND DETOUR SIGNS	12
22	WORK WITHIN ROAD RIGHTS-OF-WAY	12
23	RIGHT TO WORK AND TERMINATION DUE TO WORK STOPPAGE	13
24	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	13
25	PRECONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE	13
26	STORAGE OF PETROLEUM PRODUCTS OR HAZARDOUS SUBSTANC	CES14
27	SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS	14
28	SHOP DRAWINGS AND MATERIAL SUBMITTALS	14
29	CLEAN-UP AND COMPLETION	14
30	WARRANTY	15

SUPPLEMENTARY GENERAL CONDITIONS

1. APPLICABILITY

1.1 The Supplementary General Conditions are intended to be complimentary to the General Conditions. They are intended to outline additional details and further explain the General Conditions. Should a conflict or discrepancy arise between the General Conditions and the Supplementary General Conditions, the Supplementary General Conditions shall govern.

2. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED INSERTED

2.1 Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be inserted in this Contract shall be deemed to be inserted herein and the Contract shall be read and enforced as though it were included herein, and if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon the application of either party the Contract shall forthwith be physically amended to make such insertion or correction.

3. **CONTRACTOR'S UNDERSTANDING**

3.1 If the CONTRACTOR, in the course of the work, finds any discrepancy between the drawings and the physical conditions of the locality, or any error or omissions in the drawings or in the layout as given by points and instructions, or discovers unforeseen underground or aboveground conditions or any other unexpected conditions requiring additional work by the CONTRACTOR, it shall be his duty to immediately inform the ENGINEER, in writing, and the ENGINEER shall promptly check the accuracy of the information. Any work done after such discovery, until any necessary changes are authorized, will be done at the CONTRACTOR'S risk.

4. CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE WORK

- 4.1 Prior to the completion of the work by the CONTRACTOR and the acceptance thereof by the OWNER, the work shall remain at the risk of the CONTRACTOR and said CONTRACTOR shall be required to repair, replace, renew, and make good at his own expense all damages caused by force or violence of the elements or any cause whatsoever, provided however, that in such cases the CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to a reasonable extension of time within which to complete said work. If the cause of the delay shall be due to the negligence, fault, or omission of the CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to the extension of time mentioned in the said paragraph.
- 4.2 Anything mentioned in the specifications and not shown in the drawings, or shown in the drawings and not mentioned in the specifications, shall be of like effect as if shown or mentioned in both.

5. STAKING/SURVEY REQUIREMENTS

- 5.1 The **CONTRACTOR** shall provide all construction staking required to construct the project.
- 5.2 All survey work for the project shall be under the direct and active supervision of a Professional Surveyor and Mapper licensed pursuant to Chapter 472, F.S.

5.3 AS-BUILTS

Per Paragraph 20 of these Supplemental Conditions.

6. TESTING

- 6.1 Construction testing shall be performed by an independent laboratory and shall be in accordance with the Construction Specifications included herein.
- 6.2 The selection of the testing laboratory and the costs of the testing shall be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. Any tests which fail to meet the minimum values specified shall be paid for by the CONTRACTOR. Any additional tests required by the ENGINEER, other than those specified as a minimum, shall be paid for by the OWNER.
- 6.3 The scheduling of the tests with the testing laboratory shall be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. Each unit of work shall be tested and approved by the ENGINEER prior to starting another unit of work. No work shall be done nor materials used without suitable supervision or inspection by the ENGINEER.

7. PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY, RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE

- 7.1 The CONTRACTOR shall preserve from damage all property along the line of work, or which is in the vicinity of or is in anyway affected by the work, the removal or destruction of which is not called for by the plans. This applies to private property, public utilities, trees, shrubs, crops, signs, monuments, fences, pipe and underground structures, public highways (except natural wear and tear of highways resulting from legitimate use thereof by the CONTRACTOR), etc., and whenever such property is damaged due to the activities of the CONTRACTOR, it shall be immediately restored to a condition similar or equal to that existing before such damage or injury was done by the CONTRACTOR and at his own expense, or it shall be charged against any moneys due.
- 7.2 CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for maintenance of the project during construction and shall bear all risk of loss for damage to the project by any cause whatsoever during the term of construction.
- 7.3 In case of failure on the part of the CONTRACTOR to restore such property, road or street, or make good such damage or injury, the ENGINEER may, upon 48 hours notice, proceed to repair, rebuild or otherwise restore such property, road or street as may be deemed necessary, and the cost thereof will be deducted from any moneys due or which may become due the CONTRACTOR under the contract.

8. PARTIAL PAYMENT

- 8.1 The CONTRACTOR will receive partial payments on monthly estimates based on the amount of work done and accepted by the ENGINEER. The partial payments shall be approximate only, and all partial estimates and payments shall be subject to correction in the final estimate and payment.
- 8.2 The CONTRACTOR shall prepare and submit to the ENGINEER for approval an estimate covering the total quantities under each item of work that has been completed from the start of the job up to and including the last day of the payment period, and the value of the work so completed determined in accordance with the schedule of unit prices for such items, together with supporting evidence as may be required by the

OWNER and/or ENGINEER. This estimate shall also include an allowance for the cost of such materials and equipment required in the permanent work as has been delivered to the site and suitably protected but not as yet incorporated in the work. This allowance shall be a maximum of 50% of supplier's invoice.

- 8.3 All requests for partial payment shall be submitted to the ENGINEER by the last normal work day of each month. Requests received after this date shall be deferred to the following month. Payment shall be made to the CONTRACTOR within 30 days of receipt of a complete and valid request for partial payment.
- 8.4 The amount of such payments shall be the total value of the work done to the date of the estimate, based on the quantities and the contract unit prices, less an amount retained and less payments previously made. The amount retained shall be 10% of the amount due until final acceptance.
- 8.5 The OWNER shall require, as a condition precedent to making any payment, that the CONTRACTOR provide a Contractor's Affidavit and partial or complete Release of Lien, on forms approved by the OWNER. The Contractor's Affidavit shall state that all indebtedness incurred by the CONTRACTOR for labor, equipment, materials and services has been paid by the CONTRACTOR, and for all payments subsequent to the first payment hereunder, as evidence of such payment, CONTRACTOR may be required by OWNER to provide the OWNER with Mechanic's Lien Release or Waivers of Lien from all subcontractors, suppliers of materialmen.

9. FINAL PAYMENT

- 9.1 When final acceptance has been made by the OWNER, the ENGINEER will then review the amount of final request for payment and certify the amount of this approval. All prior estimates and payments shall be subject to correction in the final estimate and payment. The amount of this estimate, less any sums that may have been deducted or retained under provisions of the contract, will be paid to the CONTRACTOR within 30 days after the final estimate has been approved by the ENGINEER, provided that the following requirements have been met:
 - 9.1.1 The CONTRACTOR has agreed in writing to accept the balance due, as determined by the ENGINEER, as full settlement of his account under the contract, and of all claims in connection therewith.
 - 9.1.2 The CONTRACTOR has furnished affidavits to the effect that all bills are paid and no suits are pending in connection with work done under the contract, and the CONTRACTOR has otherwise fully complied with the provisions of the Florida Lien Law.
 - 9.1.3 All test results, etc., have been received by the ENGINEER.
 - 9.1.4 Any inspections, etc., required by the local governmental entities having jurisdiction have been made.
- 9.2 The Contract will be considered complete when all work has been finished, the final inspection certified by the ENGINEER, and the project finally accepted in writing by the OWNER. The CONTRACTOR'S responsibility shall then terminate except as otherwise required and set out in these Contract Documents.

10. FAILURE TO COMPLETE WORK ON TIME

- 10.1 Time is of the essence in this Contract but it will be difficult or impossible to ascertain the exact amount of loss which the OWNER will suffer by reason of delays in the completion of the work. It is, therefore, agreed that for each calendar day that any part of the work remains uncompleted after the expiration of the time stipulated for completion of the entire work, or for a portion of the work for which a time of completion is stipulated, with such extensions of time, if any, as may have been recommended by the ENGINEER and approved by the OWNER, the amount or amounts of money stated in these Supplementary General Conditions shall be deducted as liquidated damages from any money due the CONTRACTOR, or if no money is due the CONTRACTOR, the OWNER shall have the right to recover said amount or amounts from the CONTRACTOR, from the Surety, or from both. This deduction is not a penalty but constitutes liquidated damages for the loss to the OWNER because of the increase in expenses for administration, engineering, supervision and inspection, and loss of revenue resulting from the delay.
- 10.2 The CONTRACTOR shall take into account all contingent work which has to be done by other parties, arising from any cause whatsoever, and shall not plead his want of knowledge of said contingent work as an excuse for delay in this work, or for its non-performance.
- 10.3 Nothing in this Article shall be construed as limiting the right of the OWNER to annul the Contract, to take over the work, or to claim damages for the failure of the CONTRACTOR to abide by each and every one of the terms of this Contract as set forth and provided for in the Contract Documents.

11. TIME OF COMPLETION

11.1 All work shall be completed as outlined in the Agreement.

12. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES:

- 12.1 The amount of liquidated damages to be assessed shall be Two Hundred, Fifty dollars (\$250.00) per calendar day for failure to complete the contract as outlined in the Contract Documents.
- 12.2 It is hereby understood and mutually agreed, by and between the CONTRACTOR and the OWNER, that the date of beginning and the time for completion as specified in the Contract of the work to be done here under are ESSENTIAL CONDITIONS of this Contract; and it is further mutually understood and agreed that the work embraced in this Contract shall be commenced on a date to be specified in the Notice to Proceed.
- 12.3 The CONTRACTOR agrees that said work shall be prosecuted regularly, diligently, and uninterruptedly at such rate of progress as will insure full completion thereof within the time set forth in the Proposal. It is expressly understood and agreed, by and between the CONTRACTOR and the OWNER, that the time for the completion of the work described herein is a reasonable time for the completion of the same, taking into consideration the average climatic range and usual industrial conditions prevailing in this locality.
- 12.4 If the CONTRACTOR shall neglect, fail or refuse to complete the work within the time herein specified, or any proper extension thereof granted by the OWNER, then the CONTRACTOR does hereby agree, as a part consideration for the awarding of this Contract, to pay to the OWNER the amount specified in the Contract not as a penalty but as liquidated damages for such breach of Contract as hereinafter set forth, for each

- and every calendar day including Sundays and Holidays that the CONTRACTOR shall be in default after the time stipulated in the Contract for completing the work.
- 12.5 The said amount is fixed and agreed upon by and between the CONTRACTOR and OWNER because of the impracticability and extreme difficulty of fixing and ascertaining the actual damages the OWNER would in such event sustain, and said amount is agreed to be the amount of damages which the OWNER would sustain and said amount shall be retained from time to time by the OWNER from current periodical estimates or in the final Change Order.
- 12.6 It is further agreed that time is of the essence of each and every portion of this Contract and of the Specifications wherein a definite and certain length of time is fixed for the performance of any act whatsoever; and where under the Contract an additional time is allowed for the completion of any work, the new time limit fixed by such extension shall be of the essence of this Contract. Provided, that the CONTRACTOR shall not be charged with liquidated damages or any excess cost when the delay in completion of the work is due:
 - 12.6.1 To any preference, priority or allocation order duly issued by the Government.
 - 12.6.2 To unforeseeable cause beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the CONTRACTOR, including, but not restricted to, acts of God, or of the public enemy, acts of the OWNER, acts of another contractor in the performance of a contract with the OWNER, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, and unusually severe weather, and;
 - 12.6.3 To any delays of Subcontractor or suppliers occasioned by any of the causes specified in subsection (1) and (2) of this article: Provided, further, that the CONTRACTOR shall, notify the OWNER, in writing, of the causes of the delay. The OWNER shall ascertain the facts and extent of the delay and notify the CONTRACTOR within a reasonable time of its decision in the matter.
- 12.7 If the CONTRACTOR finds that he will be unable to complete the work under this Contract within the time period set forth in the Proposal plus any time extensions allowed due to the above causes, he may submit a formal written request to the OWNER through the ENGINEER for a time extension for causes other than those specified heretofore. Such formal request must be submitted by Friday 12:00 (noon) for any cause that has occurred within the previous seven (7) calendar days, and be accompanied by an up-to-date report of construction status, a revised, detailed construction schedule and any further documentation which the OWNER may require or which the CONTRACTOR may consider pertinent and favorable to his request. The OWNER will consider said request and will either allow or reject same, in writing within a reasonable period of time. Should a time extension be allowed, a change order will be prepared by the ENGINEER amending the terms of the Contract accordingly. If rejected, no further action will be taken and the Contract will remain unchanged.
- 12.8 In addition to such liquidated damages, the CONTRACTOR and/or his Surety shall be liable for the amount thereof, from Contract completion date until actual final completion, for all expenses for resident supervision and also for engineering supervision furnished by the OWNER and/or the ENGINEER plus 50 per cent thereof for overhead. These expenses shall be deducted by the OWNER from money due the CONTRACTOR.
- 12.9 The date upon which the assessment of liquidated damages as provided herein shall cease shall be the date of Substantial Completion which shall be as certified by the

ENGINEER. For purposes of determining the amount of the expenses described above, the date of actual final completion of the Contract shall be determined by the ENGINEER and shall be the date after which no additional work on the project would be necessary to produce a project completely in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents and completely acceptable to the ENGINEER.

13. **INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS**

5.1 PERFORMANCE AND OTHER BONDS: (Delete in its entirety and substitute the following:

CONTRACTOR shall furnish performance and payment bonds, each in an amount equal to one-hundred ten (110%) percent of the Contract Price as security for the faithful performance and payment of all CONTRACTOR'S obligations under the Contract Documents. These Bonds shall remain in effect at least until one year after the date when final payment becomes due. Except as otherwise provided by Law or Regulation or by the Contract Documents CONTRACTOR shall also furnish such other Bonds as are required by the Supplementary Conditions. All Bonds signed by an agent must be accompanied by a certified copy of the authority to act.

- 5.4 CONTRACTOR'S LIABILITY INSURANCE (Add the following)
 - 5.4.14 The limits of liability for the insurance required by Paragraph 5.4 of the General Conditions shall provide coverage for not less than the following amounts or greater where required by laws and regulations.:

5.4.1 and 5.4.2 Worker's Compensation, etc. under Paragraphs 5.4.1 and 5.4.2 of the General Conditions:

(1)	State	Statutory
(2)	Applicable Federal	Statutory
(3)	Employer's Liability	\$100,000 Each
` ,		Occurrence

Comprehensive General Liability (under Paragraphs 5.4.3. , 5.4.4. and 5.4.5. 5.4.3 through 5.4.5 of the General Conditions):

> (1) **Bodily Injury (Including)** completed operations and product liability):

\$1,000,000 Each

Occurrence \$1,000,000 Annual Aggregate

Property Damage:

\$1,000,000 Each Occurrence

\$1,000.000 Annual Aggregate

or a combined single limit of \$2,000,000

(2) Property Damage Liability Combined

> Single Limit each

insurance including Explosion, Collapse, and

occurrence & in Annual

Underground coverages

where applicable Aggregate \$1,000,000

(3) Personal Injury, with employment exclusion deleted \$1,000,000

Combined Single Limit each occurrence & Annual Aggregate

Comprehensive Automobile Liability:

Bodily Injury:

\$100,000 Each Person \$300,000 Each Occurrence

Property Damage:

\$100,000 Each Occurrence

or combined single limit of \$300,000

- 5.6 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain until final payment property insurance upon the work at the site to the full insurable value thereof (subject to such deductible amounts as may be provided in these Supplementary Conditions or required by laws and regulations). This insurance shall include the interests of the Owner, the Contractor, Subcontractors, the Engineer, and the Engineer's consultants in the work (all of whom shall be listed as insured of additional insured parties), shall insure against the perils of fire and extended coverage, shall include "all risk" insurance for physical loss and damage including theft, vandalism and malicious mischief, collapse and water damage, and such other perils as may be provided in these Supplementary Conditions, and shall include damages, losses and expenses arising out of or resulting from any insured loss or incurred in the repair or replacement of any insured property (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals). If not covered under the "all risk" insurance, the Contract shall purchase and maintain similar property insurance on portions of the work that are to be included in an application for payment. The policies of insurance required to be purchased and maintained by the Contractor in accordance with this paragraph 5.6 shall comply with the requirements of paragraph 5.8 of the General Conditions.
- 5.7 The Contractor shall provide to the Owner within thirty (30) days after the effective date of the agreement, copies of all insurance policies entered into by the Contractor to achieve compliance with the insurance requirements of these contract documents. Should any policy expire with the contract time, or any extension thereof, the Contractor shall provide to the Owner not later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration date of such policy, a copy of an acceptable replacement policy providing the types and limits of coverage not less than that provided by the expiring policy.
- 5.8 TO BE DELETED from the General Conditions
- 5.10 TO BE DELETED from the General Conditions

14. COORDINATION OF UTILITY SERVICE

14.1 Representation of underground utilities is shown from information received from the various utility owners. The locations or elevations of utilities are not represented to be exact and are shown for the convenience of the CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR

shall contact the utility owner concerned for any available additional information and coordinate his construction activities accordingly. Any cost incurred for the protection of and/or damages to existing underground utilities will be considered as part of the applicable Contract price for stage excavation and backfill and no additional compensation will be paid to the CONTRACTOR. If, in the judgement of the ENGINEER, it is impossible to construct a given improvement in the location shown on the drawings, as a result of underground utility or utilities, either the utility owner will move the existing underground utility or an appropriate Change Order will be executed for the moving by the CONTRACTOR.

- 14.1.1 City of Fruitland Park 506 W. Berckman Street Fruitland Park, Florida 34731 (352) 360-6727
- 14.1.2 City of Leesburg 201 W. Meadow Street Leesburg, Florida 34748 (352) 728-9786
- 14.1.3 Comcast Cablevision 8130 CR 44 Leg A Leesburg, Florida 34788 (352)728-8757
- 14.1.5 SECO 330 South US Hwy 301 Sumterville, Florida 33585 (352) 793-3801
- 14.1.6 TECO Peoples Gas 1724 Kurt Street Eustis, Florida 32726 (352) 483-7237
- 14.1.7 CenturyLink 33N. Main Street Winter Garden, Florida 34787 (800) 261-1691
- 14.2 Prior to initiating any construction work on this project, the CONTRACTOR shall arrange a meeting with representatives of public and private utilities to coordinate and schedule the provision of temporary utility service required during construction and the permanent installation and connection of utilities for the completed construction project.
- 14.3 The CONTRACTOR shall at all times conduct his operation so as to interfere as little as possible with the existing facilities. The CONTRACTOR shall develop a program in cooperation with the ENGINEER and interested utility officials which shall provide for the construction of, and putting into service the new works in the most orderly manner possible. This program shall be adhered to except as deviations therefrom are expressly permitted. All work of connecting with, cutting into, and reconstructing existing facilities shall be planned so as not to interfere with the existing facility.
- 14.4 The CONTRACTOR shall maintain uninterrupted service at all service connections. The manner in which this is accomplished shall be left to the discretion of the CONTRACTOR, subject to the approval of the ENGINEER.

- 14.5 The public and private utilities including water, gas, storm drain and sewer lines, electrical conduit, power lines, cables and appurtenant plant and facilities, are and must be kept in continuous operation, and all work hereunder must be so conducted as to avoid interference with or interruption in the operation of same, and shall be started and completed in the shortest practicable time, in order that these additional contemplated facilities may be available for use without delay. All work hereunder must be so conducted so as to avoid unreasonable interference or interruption in travel of streets, alleys, or individual access ways. In order to secure these results, the order of procedure and methods of conducting work shall at all times be subject to the approval of the ENGINEER without in any way relieving the CONTRACTOR of responsibility for same.
- 14.6 It is to be particularly understood that continuity of utility services, noninterference with operation or other construction, and minimum interference with normal travel, and safety of all utility plants and equipment personnel, as well as the safety and well-being of the general public, shall be given prime consideration, and that the decisions of the ENGINEER shall be followed in all matters relating thereto. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain uninterrupted service at all service connections. Should the CONTRACTOR fail to observe such requirements or to provide the necessary and proper safeguards against accidents or damage, the OWNER shall, upon the advice of the ENGINEER and without further notice, have the right to provide same or repair the damage and deduct the cost of same from the Contract, or to suspend work under this contract until such deficiencies are satisfactorily remedied, or to cancel Contract and complete same with his own forces as he may deem advisable, at the CONTRACTOR'S expense.

15. INDEMNIFICATION

- 15.1 CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless OWNER and ENGINEER and their agents and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorney's fees arising out of or resulting from the performance of the work, provided that any such claim, damage, loss or expense (a) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the work itself) including the loss of the use resulting therefrom and (b) is caused in whole or in part by any negligent act or omission of CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not it is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. For ten dollars (\$10.00) acknowledged to be included and paid for in the Contract Price and other good and valuable consideration, the CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the OWNER, the ENGINEER, and their agents, and employees in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph.
- 15.2 In any and all claims against OWNER or ENGINEER or any of their agents or employees by any employee of CONTRACTOR, and Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under paragraph 15.1 shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for CONTRACTOR or any Subcontractor under Workmen's Compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

16. AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF INSPECTOR

- 16.1 The ENGINEER shall appoint such Inspectors as are necessary to pass upon the amount, quality and character of the materials to be supplied and to supervise the execution of the work contemplated under this Contract.
- 16.2 Inspectors employed by the OWNER shall also be authorized to inspect all work done and all materials furnished. Such inspection may extend to any or all parts of the work and to

- the preparation, fabrication or manufacture of the materials to be used.
- 16.3 An Inspector is not authorized to revoke, alter or waive any requirements of the Specifications. He shall have the authority to reject materials or suspend the work until any questions at issue can be referred to and decided by the ENGINEER.
- 16.4 If the CONTRACTOR refuses to suspend operations on verbal order, the Inspector shall issue a written order giving the reason for shutting down the work. After placing the order in the hands of the man in charge, the Inspector shall immediately leave the job. Work done during the absence of the Inspector shall not be accepted nor paid for.
- 16.5 The Inspector shall in no case act as foreman or perform other duties for the CONTRACTOR, nor interfere with the management of the work by the latter. Any advice which the Inspector may give the CONTRACTOR in no wise shall be construed as binding to the ENGINEER in any way, or releasing the CONTRACTOR from fulfilling all the terms of the Contract.
- The payment of any compensation, whatever may be its character or form, or the giving of any gratuity, or the granting of any valuable favor by the CONTRACTOR to any Inspector, directly or indirectly, is strictly prohibited and any such act on the part of the CONTRACTOR shall constitute a violation of this Contract.

17. SALVAGED EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS

17.1 All salvaged materials and equipment are the property of the OWNER and shall be stored by the CONTRACTOR at his expense as directed by the ENGINEER except as otherwise provided in these specifications. The CONTRACTOR shall remove and clean all reusable items of materials and/or equipment removed from existing structures that are to be demolished or abandoned in the course of the work.

18. SAFETY REGULATIONS

- In addition to the requirements of the General Conditions section of these specifications, the CONTRACTOR'S attention is specifically directed to the published regulations of the Florida Department of Commerce on the "Use of Cranes, Draglines and similar Equipment Near Power Lines", "Excavations and Trenching Operations", and "Construction and Use of Scaffolds", and similar regulations of that Department.
- 18.2 The CONTRACTOR shall designate a responsible member of his organization at the site whose duty shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the CONTRACTOR'S Superintendent unless otherwise designated in writing by the CONTRACTOR to the OWNER and the ENGINEER.
- 18.3 The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all OSHA (Occupational Safety and Health Administration) requirements.
- 18.4 The CONTRACTOR is required to be familiar with all Federal and State safety rules and regulations. It shall be the sole responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to adhere to and enforce all such safety rules and regulations. The OWNER shall be held harmless to any citations, fines, or suits of law, that may result as a breach of safety rules and regulations by the CONTRACTOR or any and all Subcontractors of the CONTRACTOR.

19. PUBLIC SAFETY AND CONVENIENCE

19.1 The CONTRACTOR shall at all times so conduct his work as to insure the least possible obstruction to traffic and inconvenience to the general public and the residents in the vicinity of the work, and to insure the protection of persons and property, in a manner satisfactory to the ENGINEER. No road or street shall be closed to the public, except with the permission of the ENGINEER and proper governmental authority. Fire hydrants on or adjacent to the work shall be kept accessible to fire-fighting equipment at all times. Temporary provisions shall be made by the CONTRACTOR to insure the use of sidewalks and the proper functioning of all gutters, sewer inlets, drainage ditches, and irrigation ditches.

20. RECORD DATA AND AS-BUILTS

20.1 The CONTRACTOR shall maintain during the progress of the project, accurate records of the location, length and elevation of all buildings, structures, equipment, pipe lines and piping installed. In areas where the Contractor is responsible for construction staking and as-builts, the contractor shall promptly, after completion of that portion of the work deliver to the ENGINEER or OWNER record drawings with accurate notations recorded thereon. Final Project As-Built Drawings shall be signed and sealed by a Professional Surveyor & Mapper registered in the State of Florida. The CONTRACTOR will be held responsible for accuracy of such data and shall bear any cost incurred in finding utilities as a result of incorrect data furnished on the as-built drawings supplied by the Contractor. As-Built Drawings are considered an integral part of the work. Therefore, delivery of three (3) sets of final signed and sealed As-Built Drawings, as well as a DVD containing electronic copies shall be required prior to final playment.

21. BARRICADES, WARNING AND DETOUR SIGNS

- 21.1 The CONTRACTOR shall, in accordance with the requirements of the Florida Department of Transportation's Manual on Traffic Control & Safe Practices, provide, erect and maintain all necessary barricades, suitable and sufficient red lights, danger signals and signs, provide a sufficient number of flagmen and watchmen, and take all necessary precautions for the protection of the work and the safety of the public. Streets or highways closed to traffic shall be protected by effective barricades on which shall be placed acceptable warning signs. The CONTRACTOR shall provide and maintain acceptable warning and detour signs at all closures, intersections and along the detour routes, directing the traffic around the closed portion or portions of the work so that the temporary detour route or routes shall be indicated clearly throughout its or their entire length. All barricades and obstructions shall be illuminated at night and all lights shall be kept burning from sunset until sunrise. Barricades shall be well built and so designed as not to be blown over by the wind.
- 21.2 Roadways, parkways and other existing work, including sodded or grassed areas, damaged by the CONTRACTOR'S operations shall be repaired at the CONTRACTOR'S expense and left in condition as good as existed before the work was commenced.

22. WORK WITHIN ROAD RIGHTS-OF-WAY

- 22.1 The CONTRACTOR shall notify the Department of Transportation (D.O.T.), City government or County government, as applicable, at least 24 hours prior to commencing work within the road right-of-way.
- 22.2 Permits for all work within the right-of-way will be obtained by the OWNER. The CONTRACTOR shall, however, verify the existence of the permit before commencing

work within this area.

- 22.3 All work related to highway crossings and within highway right-of-way shall be in full compliance with the terms of the permit and in accordance with the requirements of the governing authority.
- 22.4 In event of conflict between the requirements of these Specifications and details and those of the governing authority, the requirements of said governing authority shall govern. This precedence shall be applicable only when right-of-way belonging to the State of Florida, City or County, is involved. In all other cases the more stringent requirements shall govern.
- 22.5 The costs of any and all items of work required by the governing authority, payment for which is not specifically provided by bid items in the Proposal, shall be included in the prices of bid items to which said items of work are related, incidental, or appurtenant. No additional compensation shall be allowed therefor.

23. RIGHT TO WORK AND TERMINATION DUE TO WORK STOPPAGE

23.1 The Owner strongly believes in the "right to work" and expressly reserves the right to terminate the Agreement or suspend the work upon 24 hours notice upon the occurrence of any work stoppage or "picketing" of the job resulting from the action of any organized labor group. This stipulation shall be contained in any and all subcontracts entered into for any portions of the work. No additional compensation shall be a allowed if so terminated or suspended.

24. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- 24.1 The venue for the enforcement, construction or interpretation of this agreement shall be the court system of the Fifth Judicial Circuit, depending on the jurisdictional limits, and all parties do hereby specifically waive any "venue privilege" and/or "diversity of citizenship privilege" which it has now, or may have in the future, in connection with this agreement, or its duties, obligations, or responsibilities or rights hereunder.
- 24.2 The prevailing party in any litigation arising out of the enforcement, construction or interpretation of this agreement shall be entitled to recover from the losing party all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees, both at the trial and at the appellate level."

25. PRECONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE

- 25.1 The ENGINEER shall set the date and time for the preconstruction conference and shall determine attendance requirements. At a minimum, representatives of the CONTRACTOR and all major SUBCONTRACTORS shall be present, along with representatives of the City and the City's Engineer.
- 25.2 At least 24 hours in advance of the preconstruction conference the CONTRACTOR shall submit the following:
 - 25.2.1 A preliminary construction schedule listing beginning and ending dates or number of days for the completion of each item or work. A bar graph is preferable.
 - 25.2.2 A list of phone numbers for all key personnel and project superintendents or foremen. This list shall include office, mobile, beeper and home phone numbers.

25.2.3 A Preliminary Pay Schedule with estimated dates and amounts of progress payments.

26. STORAGE OF PETROLEUM PRODUCTS OR HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES

26.1 No fuels, oils or any type of petroleum product nor any hazardous substance shall be stored on the project or any other lands owned by the developer or OWNER.

27. SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS

27.1 Contractor shall complete and submit with his bid the list of subcontractors and suppliers attached as part of the contract documents. Owner reserves the right to approve all subcontractors at their discretion.

28. SHOP DRAWINGS AND MATERIAL SUBMITTALS

- 28.1 Contractor shall submit six (6) copies of all shop drawings and material submittals. Four copies shall be returned to the Contractor upon approval.
- 28.2 Review of the first submission and one resubmission of Shop Drawings will be performed by Owner and Owner's Consultants, as appropriate, at no cost to CONTRACTOR. Subsequent additional resubmissions of the Shop Drawing will be reviewed by Owner and Owner's Consultants, however Owner will document work hours and other expenses required to perform such additional review(s) and Contractor shall reimburse Owner for these costs.

29. CLEAN-UP AND COMPLETION

- 29.1 This section of the Specifications is intended to cover the furnishing of all labor, materials, equipment and/or incidentals necessary to the completion of all the requirements of the drawings, notes, schedules and these Specifications relating to clean-up.
- 29.2 Throughout the construction period, the CONTRACTOR is to maintain the project in a standard of cleanliness as described in this Section. In addition to the standards described in this Section, the CONTRACTOR will comply with all the requirements for cleaning up in various other sections of these Specifications. The CONTRACTOR will conduct daily inspections, and more if necessary, to verify that requirements of cleanliness are met. In addition to the standards described in this Section, the CONTRACTOR will comply with all pertinent requirements of governmental agencies having jurisdiction, provide all required personnel, equipment and materials needed to maintain the necessary standards of cleanliness, and use only the cleaning materials and equipment which are compatible with the surface being cleaned as recommended by the Manufacturer of the material or as approved by the Representative.
- 29.3 The CONTRACTOR will retain all stored items in an orderly arrangement allowing maximum access, not impending drainage or traffic, and providing the required protection of materials. The CONTRACTOR is not to allow the accumulation of scrap, debris, waste material and other items not required for the construction of work.
- 29.4 At least twice a month, and more often if necessary, the CONTRACTOR will completely remove all scrap, debris and waste material from the job site and dispose of it off-site in accordance with all Local, State and Federal regulations. Weekly, and more often if necessary, the CONTRACTOR will inspect all arrangements of materials stored on the

- site, restack, tidy or otherwise service all requirements of this Section. Daily, and more often if necessary, the CONTRACTOR will inspect the site and pick up all scrap, debris and waste material and remove all such items to the place designated for their storage.
- 29.5 The CONTRACTOR is to provide adequate storage for all items awaiting removal from the job site, observing all requirements for fire protection and protection of the ecology, including the Wildlife Habitat Management Plan.
- 29.6 The CONTRACTOR will maintain the site in a neat, orderly condition at all times, to the approval of the OWNER'S representative. In case of failure on the part of the CONTRACTOR to comply with all conditions of this section the OWNER may, upon 24 hour notice, proceed to clean the site as may be deemed necessary by the OWNER. All costs encountered by the OWNER, including dump fees, shall be deducted from the next payment due the CONTRACTOR, which payment shall include a 15% management fee applied to all OWNER expenses.

30. WARRANTY

30.1 The CONTRACTOR warrants the subject premises for a period of one year subsequent to acceptance of the improvements. The CONTRACTOR will provide the OWNER with all warranties pursuant to the terms of the General Conditions. In the event that the CONTRACTOR must return to perform warranty work, the CONTRACTOR must thereafter provide for an extended warranty period of at least six (6) months for parts, materials or workmanship replaced or the equivalent of a new replacement part warranty, which ever is greater.

END OF DOCUMENT

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS (CONSTRUCTION)

Florida Department of Environmental Protection

State Revolving Fund Program

Supplementary Conditions

for

Formally Advertised

Construction Procurement

TABLE OF CONTENTS FOR THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

Article Number	Article Title	Page
1	DEFINITIONS	FDEP-1
2	PRIVITY OF AGREEMENT/CONTRACT	FDEP-2
3	PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS	FDEP-2
4	RESOLUTION OF PROTESTS AND CLAIMS/DISPUTES	FDEP-2
5	CHANGES TO THE BIDDING AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS	FDEP-3
6	BONDS AND INSURANCE	FDEP-3
7	AWARD OF AGREEMENT/CONTRACT	FDEP-4
8	ITEMIZED CONSTRUCTION COST BREAKDOWN; CONSTRUCTION AND PAYMENT SCHEDULES	FDEP-4
9	FDEP/USEPA ACCESS TO RECORDS AND PROJECT SITE	FDEP-4
10	DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES	FDEP-4
11	DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDER 12549)	FDEP-5
12	EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246)	FDEP-6
13	IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT OF 1986 STATE OF FLORIDA EXECUTIVE ORDER 11-116)	FDEP-12
14	ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE	FDEP-12
15	FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISION	FDEP-12
16	AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL PROVISION	FDEP-12
17	PROHIBITED LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONSTRUCTION PREFERENCES	FDEP-12
Append	lix Title	Page
A	CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS	FDEP-13
В	GOALS AND TIMETABLES FOR MINORITIES AND FEMALES	FDEP-14
C	FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISION	FDEP-15
D	AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL PROVISION	FDEP-23

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

The intent of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) Supplementary Conditions is to complement and supplement other provisions of the Bidding Documents. However, if there is any conflict between the FDEP Supplementary Conditions and other provisions of the Bidding Documents, the FDEP Supplementary Conditions shall take precedence over the other provisions except when the other provisions are similar to, but more stringent than, the FDEP Supplementary Conditions. When other provisions of the Bidding Documents are similar to, but more stringent than, the FDEP Supplementary Conditions, the more stringent provisions shall apply.

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS

Wherever used in these Supplementary Conditions (except in the appendices to these Supplementary Conditions), the following terms have the meanings indicated, which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof.

- 1.1 Addendum -A written or graphic instrument that is issued prior to the opening of bids and that clarifies, corrects, or changes the Bidding Documents.
- 1.2 Agreement or Contract The written agreement between the Owner and the Contractor covering the Work to be performed and furnished; these Supplementary Conditions and other Contract Documents are attached to the Agreement/Contract and made a part thereof as provided therein.
- 1.3 Bid The offer or proposal of a bidder submitted on the prescribed form and setting forth the price(s) for the Work to be performed and furnished.
- 1.4 Bidder Any person, firm, or corporation that submits a bid directly to the Owner.
- 1.5 Bidding Documents The Advertisement for Bids or the Invitation to Bid, the Instructions to Bidders or the Information for Bidders, the Bid Form, the proposed Contract Documents, and all addenda.
- 1.6 Bond An instrument of security.
- 1.7 Change Order A document that is recommended by the Engineer and signed by the Contractor and the Owner; that authorizes an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Time; and that is issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement/Contract.
- 1.8 Contract Documents The Agreement/Contract; the Contractor's Bid when attached as an exhibit to the Agreement/Contract; the Performance and Payment Bond(s); the General Conditions; the Supplementary Conditions (including these Supplementary Conditions); the Specifications (written technical descriptions of material, equipment, construction systems, standards, and workmanship as applied to the Work and certain administrative details applicable thereto); the Drawings (drawings that show the character and scope of the Work to be performed and furnished); all addenda that pertain to the Contract Documents; and all change orders.
- 1.9 Contract Time The number of days or the date stated in the Contract Documents for completion of the Work.
- 1.10 Contractor The person, firm, or corporation with whom or which the Owner enters into the Agreement/Contract.
- 1.11 Effective Date of the Agreement/Contract The date indicated in the Agreement/Contract on which the Agreement/Contract becomes effective, or if no such date is indicated in the Agreement/Contract, the date on which the Agreement/Contract is signed and delivered by the last of the two parties to sign and deliver the Agreement/Contract.
- 1.12 Engineer The person, firm, or corporation named as such in the Contract Documents.
- 1.13 Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) A historically Black college or university or a business that is (a) certified as socially and economically disadvantaged by the Small Business Administration, (b) certified as an MBE by a state or federal agency, or (c) an independent business concern which is at least 51-percent owned and controlled by minority group members. (A minority group member is an individual who is a citizen of the United States and one of the following: [i] Black American; [ii] Hispanic American [with origins from Puerto Rico, Mexico, Cuba, or South or Central America]; [iii] Native American [American Indian, Eskimo, Aleut, or native Hawaiian]; or [iv] Asian-Pacific American

[with origins from Japan, China, the Philippines, Vietnam, Korea, Samoa, Guam, the U.S. Trust Territories of the Pacific, Northern Marianas, Laos, Cambodia, Taiwan, or the Indian Subcontinent].)

- 1.14 Notice to Proceed -The written notice given by the Owner to the Contractor fixing the date on which the Contract Time will commence to run and on which the Contractor shall start to perform its obligations under the Contract Documents.
- 1.15 Owner The local government (municipality, county, district, or authority; or any agency thereof; or a combination of two or more of the foregoing acting jointly) with which the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) may execute, or has executed, a State Revolving Fund loan agreement and for which the Work is to be provided.
- 1.16 Project The total construction or facilities described in a State Revolving Fund loan agreement between the FDEP and the Owner, of which the Work to be provided under the Contract Documents may be the whole or a part.
- 1.17 Sponsor The recipient of the State Revolving Fund loan agreement that provides funds for the project.
- 1.18 Subcontract A direct contract between a subcontractor and the Contractor, or any other subcontractor at any tier, for the furnishing of goods (material and equipment) or the performance of services (including construction) necessary to complete the Work.
- 1.19 Subcontractor A person, firm, or corporation having a direct contract with the Contractor, or any other subcontractor at any tier, for the furnishing of goods (material and equipment) or the performance of services (including construction) necessary to complete the Work.
- 1.20 Successful Bidder The lowest responsive, responsible bidder to whom or which the Owner intends to award the Agreement/Contract.
- 1.21 Women's Business Enterprise (WBE) A business that is (a) certified as a WBE by a state or federal agency or (b) an independent business concern which is at least 51-percent owned and controlled/operated by women. (Determination of whether a business is at least 51-percent owned by women shall be made without regard to community property laws [e.g., an otherwise qualified WBE that is 51-percent owned by a married woman in a community property state will not be disqualified because the married woman's husband has a 50-percent interest in the married woman's share of the business; similarly, a business that is 51-percent owned by a married man and 49-percent owned by women will not become a qualified WBE by virtue of the married man's wife having a 50-percent interest in the married man's share of the business].)
- 1.22 Work The entire completed construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be performed and furnished under the Contract Documents; Work is the result of performing services, furnishing labor, furnishing material and equipment, and incorporating material and equipment into the construction as required by the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 2 - PRIVITY OF AGREEMENT/CONTRACT

2.1. The Owner expects to finance this Agreement/Contract with assistance from the FDEP, which administers a State Revolving Fund loan program supported in part with funds directly made available by grants from the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). Neither the State of Florida nor the United States (nor any of their departments, agencies, or employees) will be a party to this Agreement/Contract or any lower-tier subcontract.

ARTICLE 3 - PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS

3.1. This Agreement/Contract and the Owner's solicitation and award of this Agreement/Contract are subject to requirements contained in Chapter 62-503 (Revolving Loan Program) and/or Chapter 62-552, Florida Administrative Code as applicable.

ARTICLE 4 - RESOLUTION OF PROTESTS AND CLAIMS/DISPUTES

Resolution of Protests Concerning the Owner's Solicitation and/or Award of this Agreement/Contract:

- 4.1. Protests concerning the Owner's solicitation and/or award of this Agreement/Contract must be filed in writing with the Owner to be considered.
- 4.2. All timely written protests concerning the Owner's solicitation and/or award of this Agreement/Contract are to be resolved in accordance with the Owner's dispute resolution process. A copy of the ordinance(s), resolution(s), or written policy (policies) that set forth the Owner's dispute resolution process is included elsewhere in the Bidding Documents or is to be made available by the Owner upon request.
- 4.3. Neither the (FDEP) nor the USEPA will become a party to, or have any role in resolving, protests concerning the Owner's solicitation and/or award of this Agreement/Contract. Protest decisions made by the Owner cannot be appealed to the FDEP or the USEPA.

Resolution of Claims and Disputes Between the Owner and the Contractor:

- 4.4. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, all claims and disputes between the Owner and the Contractor arising out of, or relating to, the Contract Documents or the breach thereof are to be decided by arbitration (if the Owner and the Contractor mutually agree) or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the State of Florida.
- 4.5. Neither the FDEP nor the USEPA will become a party to, or have any role in resolving, claims and disputes between the Owner and the Contractor.

ARTICLE 5 - CHANGES TO THE BIDDING AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

5.1. All changes to the Bidding Documents made subsequent to the FDEP's acceptance of the Bidding Documents and prior to the opening of bids are to be documented via addendum (addenda) to the Bidding Documents; all changes to the Contract Documents made after the opening of bids are to be documented by change order(s) to the Contract Documents. The Owner shall submit all addenda and change orders to the FDEP.

ARTICLE 6 - BONDS AND INSURANCE

Bid Guarantees:

6.1. Each bidder's bid is to be accompanied by a bid guarantee made payable to the Owner in an amount at least equal to five percent of the bidder's maximum bid price and in the form of a certified check or bid bond.

Performance and Payment Bond(s):

6.2. The Contractor shall furnish a combined performance and payment bond in an amount at least equal to 100 percent of the Contract Price (or, if required elsewhere in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall furnish separate performance and payment bonds, each in an amount at least equal to 100 percent of the Contract Price) as security for the faithful performance and payment of all the Contractor's obligations under the Contract Documents. This(these) bond(s) are to be delivered to the Owner by the Contractor along with the executed Agreement/Contract. The Owner shall forward a copy of this (these) bond(s) to the FDEP.

Insurance:

6.3. The Owner and/or the Contractor (as required elsewhere in the Contract Documents) shall purchase and maintain, during the period of construction, such liability insurance as is appropriate for the Work being performed and furnished and as will provide protection from claims that may arise out of, or result from, the Contractor's performance and furnishing of the Work (whether the Work is to be performed or furnished by the Contractor or any subcontractor at the Work site) and the Contractor's other obligations under the Contract Documents. This insurance is to include workers' compensation insurance, comprehensive general liability insurance, comprehensive automobile liability insurance, and contractual liability insurance applicable to the Contractor's indemnification obligations and is to be written for not less than the limits of liability and coverages determined by the Owner or required by law, whichever is greater.

- 6.4. The Owner and/or the Contractor (as required elsewhere in the Contract Documents) shall purchase and maintain, during the period of construction, property insurance upon the Work at the Work site in an amount equal to the full replacement cost of the Work or the full insurable value of the Work. This insurance is to include the interests of the Owner, the Contractor, and all subcontractors at the Work site (all of whom are to be listed as insured or additional insured parties); is to insure against the perils of fire and extended coverage; and is to include "all-risk" insurance for physical loss or damage due to theft, vandalism and malicious mischief, collapse, water damage, and/or all other risks against which coverage is obtainable.
- 6.5. Before any Work at the Work site is started, the Contractor shall deliver to the Owner certificates of insurance that the Contractor is required to purchase and maintain in accordance with Paragraphs 6.3 and 6.4 of this Article and other provisions of the Contract Documents, and the Owner shall deliver to the Contractor certificates of insurance that the Owner is required to purchase and maintain in accordance with Paragraphs 6.3 and 6.4 of this Article and other provisions of the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 7 - AWARD OF AGREEMENT/CONTRACT

7.1. If this Agreement/Contract is awarded, it is to be awarded to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder. A fixed price (lump sum or unit price or both) agreement/contract is to be used. A clear explanation of the method of evaluating bids and the basis for awarding this Agreement/Contract are included elsewhere in the Bidding Documents. All bids may be rejected when in the best interest of the Owner. After the contract has been awarded, the Owner shall give the Contractor a notice to proceed fixing the date on which the Contract Time will commence to run. The Owner shall forward a copy of this notice to proceed to the FDEP.

ARTICLE 8 - ITEMIZED CONSTRUCTION COST BREAKDOWN; CONSTRUCTION AND PAYMENT SCHEDULES

- 8.1. The Contractor shall submit to the Owner, within ten calendar days after the Effective Date of this Agreement/Contract, an itemized construction cost breakdown and construction and payment schedules.
 - 8.1.1. The itemized construction cost breakdown, or schedule of values, is to include quantities and prices of items aggregating the Contract Price and is to subdivide the Work into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during construction. Such prices are to include an appropriate amount of overhead and profit applicable to each item of Work.
 - 8.1.2. The construction, or progress, schedule is to indicate the Contractor's estimated starting and completion dates for the various stages of the Work and is to show both the projected cost of Work completed and the projected percentage of Work completed versus Contract Time.
 - 8.1.3. The payment schedule is to show the Contractor's projected payments cumulatively by month.

ARTICLE 9 - FDEP/USEPA ACCESS TO RECORDS AND PROJECT SITE

9.1. Authorized representatives of the Owner, the FDEP, and the USEPA shall have access to, for the purpose of inspection, the Work site(s), any books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor that are pertinent to this Agreement/Contract at any reasonable time. The Contractor shall retain all books, documents, papers, and records pertinent to this Agreement/Contract for a period of five years after receiving and accepting final payment under this Agreement/Contract.

NOTE: ARTICLE 10 ONLY APPLIES TO FEDERAL CAP GRANT PROJECTS

ARTICLE 10 - DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES

10.1 A goal of five percent of the Contract Price is established for Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) participation in the Work, and a goal of five percent of the Contract Price is established for Women's Business Enterprise (WBE) participation in the Work. If bidders or prospective contractors (including the Contractor) intend to let any lower-tier goods

or services (including construction) subcontracts for any portion of the Work, they shall physically include these percentage goals for MBE and WBE participation in all solicitations for subcontracts and shall take good faith efforts to assure that MBEs and WBEs are utilized, when possible, as sources of goods and services. Good faith efforts are to include the following:

- 10.1.1. Require Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) are made aware of contracting opportunities to the fullest extent practicable through outreach and recruitment activities. For Indian Tribal, State and Local and Government recipients, this will include placing DBEs on solicitation lists and soliciting them whenever they are potential sources.
- 10.1.2. Make information on forthcoming opportunities available to DBEs and arrange time frames for contracts and establish delivery schedules, where the requirements permit, in a way that encourages and facilitates participation by DBEs in the competitive process. This includes, whenever possible, posting solicitations for bids or proposals for a minimum of 30 calendar days before the bid or proposal closing date.
- 10.1.3. Consider in the contracting process whether firms competing for large contracts could subcontract with DBEs. For Indian Tribal, State and local Government recipients, this will include dividing total requirements when economically feasible into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by DBEs in the competitive process.
- 10.1.4. Encourage contracting with a consortium of DBEs when a contract is too large for one of these firms to handle individually.
- 10.1.5. Use the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.
- 10.1.6. If the prime contractor awards subcontracts, require the prime contractor to take the steps in paragraphs 10.1.1 through 10.1.5 of this section.
- 10.2. Within ten calendar days after being notified of being the apparent Successful Bidder, the apparent Successful Bidder shall submit to the Owner documentation of the affirmative steps it has taken to utilize Minority and Women's Business Enterprises (MBEs and WBEs) in the Work and documentation of its intended use of MBEs and WBEs in the Work. The Owner shall keep this documentation on file and shall forward to the FDEP a copy of the apparent Successful Bidder's documentation concerning its intended use of MBEs and WBEs in the Work.

ARTICLE 11 - DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDER 12549)

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

- 11.1. The bidder certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither the bidder nor its principals, nor the bidder's subcontractors nor their principals, are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
- 11.2. Where the bidder is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.
- 11.3. The bidder also certifies that it and its principals and the bidder's subcontractors and their principals:
 - 11.3.1. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or state anti-trust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;
 - 11.3.2. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 11.3.1 of this certification; and
 - 11.3.3. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal had one or more public transactions (federal, state or local) terminated for cause or default. Where the bidder is unable to certify to any of the above, such owner shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

- 11.3.4. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
- 11.3.5. The bidder shall incorporate the foregoing requirements 11.1 through 11.3 in all subcontracts.

ARTICLE 12 - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246)

- 12.1. Notice of Requirement for Affirmative Action to Ensure Equal Employment Opportunity (Executive Order 11246). (Applicable to contracts/subcontracts exceeding \$10,000)
 - 12.1.1. The Offeror's or Bidder's attention is called to the "Equal Opportunity Clause" and the "Standard Federal Equal Employment Specifications" set forth herein.
 - 12.1.2. The goals and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage terms for the Contractor's aggregate workforce in each trade on all construction work in Florida, are as follows:

Goal for female participation: 6.9 percent statewide

Goal for minority participation: (See Appendix B at FDEP-20 for goals for each county)

These goals are applicable to all the Contractor's construction work (whether or not it is federal or federally assisted) performed in the covered area. If the contractor performs construction work in a geographical area located outside of the covered area, it shall apply the goals established for such geographical area where the work is actually performed. With regard to this second area, the contractor also is subject to the goals for both its federally involved and non-federally involved construction.

The Contractor's compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4 shall be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3(a), and its efforts to meet the goals. The hours of minority and female employment and training must be substantially uniform throughout the length of the contract, and in each trade, and the contractor shall make a good faith effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects. The transfer of minority or female employees or trainees from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for the sole purpose of meeting the Contractor's goals shall be a violation of the contract, the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4. Compliance with the goals will be measured against the total work hours performed.

- 12.1.3. The Contractor shall provide written notification to the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs within 10 working days of award of any construction subcontract in excess of \$10,000 at any tier for construction work under the contract resulting from this solicitation. The notification shall list the name, address and telephone number of the subcontractor; employer identification number of the subcontractor; estimated dollar amount of the subcontract; estimated starting and completion dates of the subcontract; and the geographical area in which the subcontract is to be performed.
- 12.1.4. As used in this Notice, and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the "covered area" is the State of Florida.
- 12.1.5. Contractors shall incorporate the foregoing requirements in all subcontracts.

12.2. Equal Opportunity Clause (Applicable to contracts/subcontracts exceeding \$10,000)

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

12.2.1. The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants for employment are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.

- 12.2.2. The Contractor shall post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. The notice can be obtained online at http://www.eeoc.gov/employers/upload/eeoc_self_print_poster.pdf. The Contractor shall state that all qualified applicants be considered without regard to race, color, religion, sex or national origin.
- 12.2.3. The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- 12.2.4. The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- 12.2.5. The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- 12.2.6. The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- 12.2.7. In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- 12.2.8. The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs 12.2.1 through 12.2.8 in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

12.3. The Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications (Executive Order 11246)

- 12.3.1. As used in these specifications:
 - a. "Covered area" means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which this contract resulted;
 - b. "Director" means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, United States Department of Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates authority;
 - c. "Employer identification number" means the Federal Social Security number used on the Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941.
 - d. "Minority" includes:
 - (i) Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not of Hispanic origin);
 - (ii) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South American or other Spanish Culture or origin, regardless of race);
 - (iii) Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and

- (iv) American Indian or Alaskan Native (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and participation or community identification).
- 12.3.2. Whenever the Contractor, or any Subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work involving any construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract in excess of \$10,000 the provisions of these specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and female participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted.
- 12.3.3. If the Contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved by the U.S. Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an association, its affirmative action obligations on all work in the Plan area (including goals and timetables) shall be in accordance with that Plan for those trades which have unions participating in the Plan. Contractors must be able to demonstrate their participation in and compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan. Each Contractor or Subcontractor participating in an approved Plan is individually required to comply with its obligations under the EEO clause, and to make a good faith effort to achieve each goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees. The overall good faith performance by other Contractors or Subcontractors toward a goal in an approved Plan does not excuse any covered Contractor's or Subcontractor's failure to take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and timetables.
- 12.3.4. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in paragraphs 7a through p of these specifications. The goals set forth in the solicitation from which this contract resulted are expressed as percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and female utilization the Contractor should reasonably be able to achieve in each construction trade in which it has employees in the covered area. Covered construction Contractors performing construction work in geographical areas where they do not have a federal or federally assisted construction contract shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographical area where the work is being performed. Goals are published periodically in the FEDERAL REGISTER in notice form, and such notices may be obtained from any Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs office or from federal procurement contracting officers. The Contractor is expected to make substantially uniform progress in meeting its goals in each craft during the period specified.
- 12.3.5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the failure by a union with whom the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement, to refer either minorities or women shall excuse the Contractor's obligations under these specifications, Executive Order 11246, or the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.
- 12.3.6. In order for the nonworking training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in meeting the goals, such apprentices and trainees must be employed by the Contractor during the training period, and the Contractor must have made a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to the availability of employment opportunities. Trainees must be trained pursuant to training programs approved by the U.S. Department of Labor.
- 12.3.7. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity. The evaluation of the Contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions. The Contractor shall document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as extensive as the following:
 - a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the Contractor's employees are assigned to work. The Contractor, where possible, will assign two or more women to each construction project. The Contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the Contractor's obligation to maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.
 - b. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the Contractor or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organizations' responses.

- c. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of each minority and female off-the-street applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source or community organization and of what action was taken with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent to the union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred, not employed by the Contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason therefore, along with whatever additional actions the Contractor may have taken.
- d. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the Contractor a minority person or woman sent by the Contractor, or when the Contractor has other information that the union referral process has impeded the Contractor's efforts to meet its obligations.
- e. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the Contractor's employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor. The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled under 12.3.7b above.
- f. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where construction work is performed.
- g. Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination or other employment decisions including specific review of these items with onsite supervisory personnel such as Superintendents, General Foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition of the subject matter.
- h. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification to and discussing the Contractor's EEO policy with other Contractors and Subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates doing business.
- i. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and community organizations, to schools with minority and female students and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving the Contractor's recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than one month prior to the date for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment source, the Contractor shall send written notification to organizations such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection process.
- j. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and, where reasonable, provide after school, summer and vacation employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a Contractor's work force.
- k. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under 41 CFR Part 60-3.
- l. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and female personnel for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities.
- m. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other personnel practices, do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the Contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out.

- n. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are nonsegregated except that separate or single-user toilet and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes.
- o. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from minority and female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business associations.
- p. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisors' adherence to and performance under the Contractor's EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.
- 12.3.8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which assist in fulfilling one or more of their affirmative action obligations (12.3.7a through 12.3.7p). The efforts of a contractor association, joint contractor-union, contractor-community, or other similar group of which the contractor is a member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more of its obligations under 7a through p of these specifications provided that the contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on the employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected in the Contractor's minority and female workforce participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals and timetables, and can provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on behalf of the Contractor. The obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor's and failure of such a group to fulfill an obligation shall not be a defense for the Contractor's noncompliance.
- 12.3.9. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established. The Contractor, however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority. Consequently, the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example, even though the Contractor has achieved its goals for women generally, the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is underutilized).
- 12.3.10. The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- 12.3.11. The Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract with any person or firm debarred from Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246.
- 12.3.12. The Contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these specifications and of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination and cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and its implementing regulations, by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs. Any Contractor who fails to carry out such sanctions and penalties shall be in violation of these specifications and Executive Order 11246, as amended.
- 12.3.13. The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligation under these specifications, shall implement specific affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in paragraph 7 of these specifications, so as to achieve maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment opportunity. If the Contractor fails to comply with the requirements of the Executive Order, the implementing regulations, or these specifications, the Director shall proceed in accordance with 41 CFR 60-4.8.
- 12.3.14. The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is being carried out, to submit reports relating to the provisions hereof as may be required by the Government and to keep records. Records shall at least include for each employee the name, address, telephone numbers, construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, social security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed. Records shall be maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing records satisfy this requirement, contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records.

- 12.3.15. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws which establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for the hiring of local or other area residents (e.g., those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant Program).
- 12.4. Pursuant to 41 CFR 60-1.7, if the price of this bid exceeds \$10,000, the bidder, by signing and submitting this proposal, certifies the following:
 - 12.4.1. Affirmative action programs pursuant to 41 CFR 60-2 have been developed and are on file;
 - 12.4.2. Documentation of a previous contract or subcontract subject to the equal opportunity clause is available;
 - 12.4.3. All reports due under the applicable filing requirements have been filed with the Joint Reporting Committee, the Deputy Assistant Secretary or the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission; and
 - 12.4.4. Each prospective <u>construction</u> subcontractor that may be awarded a lower-tier <u>construction</u> subcontract with a price exceeding \$10,000 shall meet the above requirements 12.4.1 through 12.4.3.
- 12.5. Pursuant to 41 CFR 60-1.8, if the price of this bid exceeds \$10,000, the bidder, by signing and submitting this proposal, certifies the following:
 - 12.5.1. That he/she does not maintain or provide for his/her employees any segregated facility at any of his/her establishments;
 - 12.5.2. That he/she does not permit employees to perform their services at any location, under his/her control, where segregated facilities are maintained;
 - 12.5.3. That he/she will not maintain or provide for employees any segregated facilities at any of his/her establishments:
 - 12.5.4. That he/she will not permit employees to perform their services at any location under his/her control where segregated facilities are maintained;
 - 12.5.5. That a breach of this certification is violation of the Equal Opportunity Clause of this contract; and
 - 12.5.6. That he/she will obtain identical certifications from proposed Subcontractors prior to the award of Subcontracts exceeding \$10,000 which are not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportunity clause, and that he will retain such certifications in his/her files.

As used in this certification, the term "segregated facilities" means any waiting rooms, work eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms, and other storage or dressing areas, transportation and housing facilities provided for employees which are in fact segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, or otherwise.

- 12.6. If the price of this Agreement/Contract exceeds \$10,000, the Owner shall give written notice to the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs within ten working days of award of this Agreement/Contract. The notice is to include the name, address, and telephone number of the Contractor; the employer identification number of the Contractor; the dollar amount of this Agreement/Contract; the estimated starting and completion dates of this Agreement/Contract; the number of this Agreement/Contract; and the geographical area in which the Work is to be performed.
- 12.7. If the price of this Agreement/Contract equals or exceeds \$50,000 and if the Contractor has 50 or more employees, the Contractor shall electronically file Standard Form 100 (EEO-1) online at https://egov.eeoc.gov/eeo1/eeo1.jsp within 30 calendar days after the award of this Agreement/Contract, unless the Contractor has submitted such a report within 12 months preceding the date of award of this Agreement/Contract. In addition, the Contractor shall ensure that each construction subcontract with a price equaling or exceeding \$50,000 also electronically files this form within 30 calendar days after the award to it of the lower-tier construction subcontract, unless the construction subcontract, unless the construction subcontract within 12 months preceding the date of award of the lower-tier construction subcontract.

ARTICLE 13 - IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT OF 1986 (STATE OF FLORIDA EXECUTIVE ORDER 11-116)

The Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 prohibits employers from knowingly hiring illegal workers. The Contractor shall only employ individuals who may legally work in the United States – either U.S. citizens or foreign citizens who are authorized to work in the U.S. The Contractor shall use the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify Employment Eligibility Verification system (http://www.uscis.gov/portal/site/uscis) to verify the employment eligibility of:

- all new employees, during the term of this Agreement, to perform employment duties within Florida; and,
- all new employees (including subcontractors and subrecipients) assigned by the Contractor to perform work
 pursuant to this Agreement.

The Contractor shall include this provision in all subcontracts/subgrants it enters into for the performance of work under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 14 - ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

The Contractor, and all subcontractors at any tier, shall comply with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857[h]), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368), Executive Order 11738 (Administration of the Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act with Respect to Federal Contracts, Grants, or Loans).

ARTICLE 15 – FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISION

Contracts being constructed with assistance from the State Revolving Fund Program are currently required to comply with the Federal Labor Standards Provisions as provided in Appendix C. Signing Appendix A certifies compliance with these provisions.

ARTICLE 16 – AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL PROVISION

Contracts being constructed with assistance from the State Revolving Fund Program are currently required to comply with The American Iron and Steel Provision as provided in Appendix D. Signing Appendix A certifies compliance with these provisions.

ARTICLE 17 - PROHIBITED LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONSTRUCTION PREFERENCES

- A. Pursuant to Section 255.0991, F.S., for a competitive solicitation for construction services in which 50 percent or more of the cost will be paid from state-appropriated funds which have been appropriated at the time of the competitive solicitation, a state, college, county, municipality, school district, or other political subdivision of the state may not use a local ordinance or regulation that provides a preference based upon:
 - 1. The contractor's maintaining an office or place of business within a particular local jurisdiction;
 - 2. The contractor's hiring employees or subcontractors from within a particular local jurisdiction; or
 - 3. The contractor's prior payment of local taxes, assessments, or duties within a particular local jurisdiction.
- B. For any competitive solicitation that meets the criteria in Paragraph A., a state college, county, municipality, school district, or other political subdivision of the state shall disclose in the solicitation document that any applicable local ordinance or regulation does not include any preference that is prohibited by Paragraph A.

APPENDIX A TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

This certification relates to a construction contract proposed by, (insert the name of the Owner)				
(insert the name of the Owner) which expects to finance the proposed construction contract with assistance from the Florida Department of Environmenta Protection (which administers a State Revolving Fund loan program supported in part with funds directly made available ligrants from the United States Environmental Protection Agency). I am the undersigned prospective construction contractor subcontractor.				
certify that I have read the Florida Department of Environmental Supplementary Conditions and agree to incorporate the ollowing articles into the bid and/or contract:				
ARTICLE 11 DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDER 12549) ARTICLE 12 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246) ARTICLE 13 IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT OF (STATE OF FLORIDA EXECUTIVE ORDER 11-116) ARTICLE 14 ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE ARTICLE 15 FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISION ARTICLE 16 AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL PROVISION				
agree that I will obtain identical certifications from prospective lower-tier <u>construction</u> subcontractors prior to the award of ny lower-tier <u>construction</u> subcontracts with a price exceeding \$2,000. I also agree that I will retain such certifications in ny files.				
(Signature of Authorized Official) (Date)				
(Name and Title of Authorized Official [Print or Type])				
(Name of Prospective Construction Contractor or Subcontractor [Print or Type])				
Address and Telephone Number of Prospective Construction Contractor or Subcontractor [Print or Type])				
(Employer Identification Number of Prospective Construction Contractor or Subcontractor)				

APPENDIX B TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

GOALS AND TIMETABLES FOR MINORITIES AND FEMALES

[Note: These goals and timetables are the goals and timetables referred to in Paragraph 2 of the "Notice of Requirement for Affirmative Action to Ensure Equal Employment Opportunity (Executive Order 11246)"; these goals and timetables are to be included in all FDEP assisted <u>construction</u> contracts and subcontracts with a price exceeding \$10,000 and in all solicitations for such contracts and subcontracts.]

The following goals and timetables for female utilization shall be included in all federal and federally assisted construction contracts and subcontracts in excess of \$10,000. The goals are applicable to the contractor's aggregate on-site construction workforce whether or not part of that workforce is performing work on a federal or federally assisted construction contract or subcontract.

Goals and Timetables

Timetable Goals (percent)

Indefinite 6.9

Area covered: Goals for Women apply nationwide.

Goals for minority utilization can be found in the Department of Labor's Technical Assistance Guide for Federal Construction Contractors (May 2009), available on the internet at http://www.civilrightsusa.gov/pdf/TAG%20-%20Construction.pdf. These goals shall be included for each craft and trade in all federal or federally assisted construction contracts and subcontracts in excess of \$10,000 to be performed in the respective geographical areas. The goals are applicable to each nonexempt contractor's total onsite construction workforce, regardless of whether or not part of that workforce is performing work on a federal, federally assisted or non-federally related project, contract or subcontract.

Construction contractors which are participating in an approved Hometown Plan (see 41 CFR 60-4.5) are required to comply with the goals of the Hometown Plan with regard to construction work they perform in the area covered by the Hometown Plan. With regard to all their other covered construction work, such contractors are required to comply with the applicable SMSA or EA goal contained in this Appendix.

APPENDIX C TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

Davis-Bacon Requirements

FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS

(Davis-Bacon Act, Copeland Act, and Contract Works Hours & Safety Standards Act)

The Project to which the construction work covered by this contract pertains is being assisted by the United States of America and the following Federal Labor Standards Provisions are included in this Contract pursuant to the provisions applicable to such federal assistance.

1 Minimum Wages.

(i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act, 29 CFR Part 3, the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under Section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs, which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period.

Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein; provided, that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

- (ii) (a) The sponsor, on behalf of EPA, shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The FDEP shall approve a request for an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits; therefore, only when the following criteria have been met:
 - (1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
 - (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
 - (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (b) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the sponsor(s) agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the sponsor to the FDEP. The FDEP will transmit the request to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, employment Standards Administration, U. S. Department of Labor. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional

classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the FDEP or will notify FEDP within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB control number 1215-0140.)

- (c) In the event that the Contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the Classification or their representatives, and the sponsor do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designed for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the FDEP shall refer the request and the local wage determination, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of FDEP, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt of the request and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)
- (d) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (1)(b) or (c) of this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- (iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program. Provided, that the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account, assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)

2. Withholding.

The sponsor shall, upon written request of the EPA or an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees and helpers employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), all or part of the wages required by the contract, EPA may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owners, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

3. Payrolls and Basic Records.

(i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in Section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in Section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Numbers 1215-0140 and 1215-0017).

- (ii) (a) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed, a copy of all payrolls to the sponsor. Such documentation shall be available upon request by FDEP. As to each payroll copy received, the sponsor shall provide a certification that the project is in compliance with the requirements of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) with each disbursement request. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(3)(I), except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on the weekly payrolls. Instead, the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site http://www.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current addresses of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to the sponsor for transmission to the FDEP or EPA if requested by EPA, the FDEP, the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to the sponsor. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0149).
- (b) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a Statement of Compliance, signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:
- (1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR Part 5.5 (a)(3)(I), and that such information is correct and complete;
- (2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR Part 3;
- (3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- (c) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Option Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the Statement of Compliance required by paragraph A. 3(ii)(b) of this section.
- (d) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the United States Code.
- (iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph A.3(I) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the FDEP or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the FDEP may, after written notice to the contractor, or sponsor, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR Part 5.12.

4. Apprentices and Trainees.

(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U. S. Department of Labor, the Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio

of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with the determination. In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

- (ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U. S. Department of Labor, the Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program the contract will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.
- (iii) Equal Employment Opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.

5. Compliance with Copeland Act Requirements.

The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 which are incorporated by reference in this contract.

6. Subcontracts.

The contractor or subcontractor will insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as EPA determines may be appropriate, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR Part 5.5.

7. Contract Termination, Debarment.

A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements.

All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3 and 5 are herein incorporated by referenced in this contract.

9. Disputes Concerning Labor Standards.

Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6 and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the sponsor, FDEP, EPA, the U. S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

10. Certification of Eligibility.

- (i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded government contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded EPA contracts or participate in EPA programs pursuant to Executive Order 12549.
- (ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a government contract by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded EPA contracts or participate in EPA programs pursuant to Executive Order 12549.
- (iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U. S. Criminal Code, 18 U. S. C. 1001. Additionally, U. S. Criminal Code, Section 1010, Title 18, U. S. C., Federal Housing Administration transactions, provides in part "Whoever, for the purpose of . . . influencing in any way the action of such Administration . . . makes, utters or publishes any statement, knowing the same to be false . . . shall be fined not more than \$5,000 or imprisoned not more than two years, or both".

11. Complaints, Proceedings, or Testimony by Employees.

- **A.** No laborer or mechanic to whom the wage, salary, or other labor standards provisions of this contract are applicable shall be discharged or in any other manner discriminated against by the contractor or any subcontractor because such employee has filed any complaint or instituted or caused to be instituted any proceeding or has testified or is about to testify in any proceeding under or relating to the labor standards applicable under this contract to his employer.
- **B.** Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. The sponsor shall insert the following clauses set forth in paragraphs B.(1), (2), (3), and (4) of this section in full in any contract in an amount in excess of \$100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. These clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses required by item 3 above or 29 CFR 4.6. As used in the paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics include watchmen and guards.
- (1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
- (2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph.
- (3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The sponsor, upon written request of the FDEP or an authorized representative of the Department of Labor, may withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on

account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other federal contract with the same prime contract, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in subparagraph (2) of this paragraph.

(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in subparagraph (1) through (4) of this paragraph and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in subparagraphs (1) through (4) of this paragraph.

C. Health and Safety

- (1) No laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his health and safety as determined under construction safety and health standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor by regulation.
- (2) The contractor shall comply with all regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Title 29 Part 1926 (formerly part 1518) and failure to comply may result in imposition of sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (Public Law 91-54.83 State 96).
- (3) The contractor shall include the provisions of this Article in every subcontract so that such provisions will be binding on each subcontractor. The contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract as the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such provisions.

12. Guidance to Contractor for Compliance with Labor Standards Provisions

a) Contracts with Two Wage Decisions

If the contract includes two wage decisions, the contractor, and each subcontractor who works on the site, must submit either two separate payrolls (one for each wage decision) or one payroll which identifies each worker twice and the hours worked under each wage decision. One single payroll, reflecting each worker once, may be submitted provided the Contractor uses the higher rate in the wage decisions for each identical job classification. However, where a job classification is not listed in a wage decision and is needed for that portion of the work, the classification **must** be added to the wage decision. A worker may not be paid at the rate for a classification using the hourly rate for that same classification in another wage decision. After the additional classification is approved, the contractor may pay the higher of the two rates and submit one payroll, if desired.

b) Complying with Minimum Hourly Amounts

- 1) The minimum hourly amount due to a worker in each classification is the total of the amounts in the Rates and Fringe Benefits (if any) columns of the applicable wage decision.
- 2) The contractor may satisfy this minimum hourly amount by any combination of cash and bona fide fringe benefits, regardless of the individual amounts reflected in the Rates and Fringe Benefits columns.
- 3) A contractor payment for a worker which is required by law is not a fringe benefit in meeting the minimum hourly amount due under the applicable wage decision. For example, contractor payments for FICA or unemployment insurance are not a fringe benefit; however, contractor payments for health insurance or retirement are a fringe benefit. Generally, a fringe benefit is bona fide if (a) it is available to most workers and (b) involves payments to a third party.
- 4) The hourly value of the fringe benefit is calculated by dividing the contractor's annual cost (excluding any amount contributed by the worker) for the fringe benefit by 2080. Therefore, for workers with overtime, an additional payment may be required to meet the minimum hourly wages since generally fringe benefits have no value for any time worked over 40 hours weekly. (If a worker is paid more than the minimum rates required by the wage decision, this should not be a problem. As long as the total wages received by a worker for straight time equals the hours worked times the minimum hourly rate in the wage decision, the requirement of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts has been satisfied.)

c) Overtime

For any project work over 40 hours weekly, a worker generally must be paid 150% of the actual hourly cash rate received, not the minimum required by the wage decision. (The Davis-Bacon and Related Acts only establishes minimum rates and does not address overtime. The Contract Work Hours Act contains the overtime requirement and uses basic rate of pay as the base for calculation, not the minimum rates established by the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts.)

d) Deductions

Workers who have deductions, not required by law, from their pay must authorize these deductions in writing. The authorization must identify the purpose of each deduction and the amount, which may be a specific dollar amount or a percentage. A copy of the authorization must be submitted with the first payroll containing the deduction. If deducted amounts increase, another authorization must be submitted. If deducted amounts decrease, no revision to the original authorization is needed. Court-ordered deductions, such as child support, may be identified by the responsible payroll person in a separate document. This document should identify the worker, the amount deducted and the purpose. A copy of the court order should be submitted.

e) Classifications Not Included in the Wage Decision

If a classification not in the wage decision is required, please advise the owner's representative in writing and identify the job classification(s) required. In some instances, the state agency may allow the use of a similar classification in the wage decision.

Otherwise, the contractor and affected workers must agree on a minimum rate, which cannot be lower than the lowest rate for any trade in the wage decision. Laborers (including any subcategory of the laborer classification) and truck drivers are not considered a trade for this purpose. If the classification involves a power equipment operator, the minimum cannot be lower than the lowest rate for any power equipment operator in the wage decision. The owner will provide forms to document agreement on the minimum rate by the affected workers and contractor.

The U.S. Department of Labor (USDOL) must approve the proposed classification and rate. The contractor may pay the proposed rate until the USDOL makes a determination. Should the USDOL require a higher rate, the contractor must make wage restitution to the affected worker(s) for all hours worked under the proposed rate.

f) Supervisory Personnel

Foremen and other supervisory personnel who spend at least 80% of their time supervising workers are not covered by the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts. Therefore, a wage decision will not include such supervisory classifications and their wages are not subject to any minimums under the Davis-Bacon and Related Act or overtime payments under the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. However, foremen and other supervisory personnel who spend less than 80% of their time engaged in supervisory activities are considered workers/mechanics for the time spent engaged in manual labor and must be paid at least the minimum in the wage decision for the appropriate classification(s) based on the work performed.

g) Sole Proprietorships / Independent Contractors / Leased Workers

The nature of the relationship between a prime contractor and a worker does not affect the requirement to comply with the labor standards provisions of this contract. The applicability of the labor standards provisions is based on the nature of the work performed.

If the work performed is primarily manual in nature, the worker is subject to the labor standards provisions in this contract. For example, if John Smith is the owner of ABC Plumbing and performs all plumbing work himself, then Mr. Smith is subject to the labor standards provisions, including minimum wages and overtime. His status as owner is irrelevant for labor standards purposes.

If a worker meets the IRS standards for being an independent contractor, and is employed as such, this means that the worker must submit a separate payroll as a subcontractor rather than be included on some other payroll. The worker is still subject to the labor standards provisions in this contract, including minimum wages and overtime.

If a contractor or subcontractor leases its workers, they are subject to the labor standards provisions in this contract, including minimum wages and overtime. The leasing firm must submit payrolls and these payrolls must reflect information required to determine compliance with the labor standards provisions of this contract, including a classification for each worker based on the nature of the work performed, number of regular hours worked, and number of overtime hours worked.

h) Apprentices / Helpers

A worker may be classified as an apprentice **only if participating in a federal or state program**. Documentation of participation must be submitted. Generally, the apprentice program specifies that the apprentice will be compensated at a percentage of journeyman rate. For Davis-Bacon Act purposes, the hourly rate cannot be lower than the percentage of the hourly rate for the classification in the applicable wage decision.

If the worker does not participate in a federal or state apprentice program, then the worker must be classified according to duties performed. This procedure may require classification in the trade depending on tools used, or as a laborer if specialized tools of the trade are not used. The contractor may want to consult with the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of Labor located in most large cities regarding the appropriate classification.

Presently, no worker may be classified as a helper. As with apprentices not participating in a formal apprentice program, the worker must be classified according to duties performed and tools used.

APPENDIX D TO THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

American Iron and Steel Requirement

The Contractor acknowledges to and for the benefit of the	("Owner") and the State of Florida (the
"State") that it understands that iron and steel products to be installed as a	part of this contract must be in compliance with
the requirements in H.R. 3547, "Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2014,"	(Appropriations Act). H.R. 3547 includes the
following language in Division G, Title IV, Sec. 436, under the heading, "	Use of American Iron and Steel,":

- (a) (1) None of the funds made available by a State water pollution control revolving fund as authorized by title VI of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1381 et seq.) or made available by a drinking water treatment revolving loan fund as authorized by section 1452 of the Safe Drinking Water Act (42 U.S.C. 300j-12) shall be used for a project for the construction, alteration, maintenance, or repair of a public water system or treatment works unless all of the iron and steel products used in the project are produced in the United States.
- (2) In this section, the term "iron and steel products" means the following products made primarily of iron or steel: lined or unlined pipes and fittings, manhole covers and other municipal castings, hydrants, tanks, flanges, pipe clamps and restraints, valves, structural steel, reinforced precast concrete, and construction materials.
- (b) Subsection (a) shall not apply in any case or category of cases in which the Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency (in this section referred to as the "Administrator") finds that--
 - (1) applying subsection (a) would be inconsistent with the public interest;
- (2) iron and steel products are not produced in the United States in sufficient and reasonably available quantities and of a satisfactory quality; or
- (3) inclusion of iron and steel products produced in the United States will increase the cost of the overall project by more than 25 percent.
- (c) If the Administrator receives a request for a waiver under this section, the Administrator shall make available to the public on an informal basis a copy of the request and information available to the Administrator concerning the request, and shall allow for informal public input on the request for at least 15 days prior to making a finding based on the request. The Administrator shall make the request and accompanying information available by electronic means, including on the official public Internet Web site of the Environmental Protection Agency.
 - (d) This section shall be applied in a manner consistent with United States obligations under international agreements.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, any failure to comply with this paragraph by the Contractor shall permit the Purchaser or State to recover as damages against the Contractor any loss, expense, or cost (including without limitation attorney's fees) incurred by the Purchaser or State resulting from any such failure (including without limitation any impairment or loss of funding, whether in whole or in part, from the State or any damages owed to the State by the Purchaser). While the Contractor has no direct contractual privity with the State, as a lender to the Purchaser for the funding of its project, the Purchaser and the Contractor agree that the State is a third-party beneficiary and neither this paragraph (nor any other provision of this Agreement necessary to give this paragraph force or effect) shall be amended or waived without the prior written consent of the State.

For waivers to these requirements based on (2)(b) above, contact Sheryl Parsons at USEPA Region IV. She can be reached by phone at (404) 562-9337.

Step Certification for Compliance with American Iron and Steel Requirement

(To be completed by the Manufacturer on company letterhead)
Date:
Company Name:
Company Address:
City, State, Zip:
Subject: American Iron and Steel Step Certification for Project (
I, (company representative), certify that the (melting, bending, coating, galvanizing, cutting, etc.) process for (manufacturing or fabricating) the following products and/or materials shipped or provided for the subject project is in full compliance with the American Iron and Steel requirement as mandated in EPA's State Revolving Fund Programs.
Item, Products and/or Materials:
1. 2. 3.
Such process took place at the following location:
If any of the above compliance statements change while providing material to this project we will immediately notify the prime contractor and the engineer.
Signed by company representative

"General Decision Number: FL20210119 02/12/2021

Superseded General Decision Number: FL20200119

State: Florida

Construction Type: Heavy

County: Lake County in Florida.

HEAVY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (Including Sewer and Water Lines)
(EXCLUDING CAPE CANAVERAL AIR FORCE STATION, PATRICK AIR FORCE
BASE, KENNEDY SPACE FLIGHT CENTER AND MALABAR RADAR SITE)

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage of \$10.95 for calendar year 2021 applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage determination at least \$10.95 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract in calendar year 2021. If this contract is covered by the EO and a classification considered necessary for performance of work on the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the contractor must pay workers in that classification at least the wage rate determined through the conformance process set forth in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) (or the EO minimum wage rate, if it is higher than the conformed wage rate). The EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Please note that this EO applies to the above-mentioned types of contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but it does not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(2)-(60). Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number Publication Date

0 01/01/2021 1 02/12/2021

ENGI0925-009 06/01/2013

Rates Fringes

POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATOR:

Drill.....\$29.61 11.50 Oiler.....\$22.91 11.50

IRON0808-008 02/03/2020

11111500
IRONWORKER, STRUCTURAL AND REINFORCING\$ 28.28 14.70
* LABO0517-002 05/01/2020
Rates Fringes
LABORER: Grade Checker\$ 20.51 9.39
PAIN1010-011 08/01/2020
Rates Fringes
Painter - Brush, Roller & Spray\$ 24.71 14.05
SUFL2009-158 06/24/2009
Rates Fringes
CARPENTER, Includes Form Work\$ 13.37 1.78
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER\$ 13.44 0.00
ELECTRICIAN\$ 16.71 3.51
ELECTRICIAN
LABORER: Common or General\$ 10.00 0.00
LABORER: Common or General\$ 10.00 0.00 LABORER: Landscape\$ 7.25 0.00
LABORER: Common or General\$ 10.00 0.00 LABORER: Landscape\$ 7.25 0.00 LABORER: Pipelayer\$ 11.25 1.84 LABORER: Power Tool Operator (Hand Held Drills/Saws, Jackhammer and Power Saws
LABORER: Common or General\$ 10.00 0.00 LABORER: Landscape\$ 7.25 0.00 LABORER: Pipelayer\$ 11.25 1.84 LABORER: Power Tool Operator (Hand Held Drills/Saws, Jackhammer and Power Saws Only)\$ 10.63 2.20
LABORER: Common or General\$ 10.00 0.00 LABORER: Landscape\$ 7.25 0.00 LABORER: Pipelayer\$ 11.25 1.84 LABORER: Power Tool Operator (Hand Held Drills/Saws, Jackhammer and Power Saws Only)\$ 10.63 2.20 OPERATOR: Asphalt Paver\$ 11.88 0.00 OPERATOR: Backhoe Loader
LABORER: Common or General\$ 10.00 0.00 LABORER: Landscape\$ 7.25 0.00 LABORER: Pipelayer\$ 11.25 1.84 LABORER: Power Tool Operator (Hand Held Drills/Saws, Jackhammer and Power Saws Only)\$ 10.63 2.20 OPERATOR: Asphalt Paver\$ 11.88 0.00 OPERATOR: Backhoe Loader Combo\$ 16.10 2.44
LABORER: Common or General\$ 10.00 0.00 LABORER: Landscape\$ 7.25 0.00 LABORER: Pipelayer\$ 11.25 1.84 LABORER: Power Tool Operator (Hand Held Drills/Saws, Jackhammer and Power Saws Only)\$ 10.63 2.20 OPERATOR: Asphalt Paver\$ 11.88 0.00 OPERATOR: Backhoe Loader Combo\$ 16.10 2.44 OPERATOR: Backhoe/Excavator\$ 13.21 2.88
LABORER: Common or General\$ 10.00 0.00 LABORER: Landscape\$ 7.25 0.00 LABORER: Pipelayer\$ 11.25 1.84 LABORER: Power Tool Operator (Hand Held Drills/Saws, Jackhammer and Power Saws Only)\$ 10.63 2.20 OPERATOR: Asphalt Paver\$ 11.88 0.00 OPERATOR: Backhoe Loader Combo\$ 16.10 2.44 OPERATOR: Backhoe/Excavator\$ 13.21 2.88 OPERATOR: Bulldozer\$ 12.88 2.92

Rates

Fringes

OPERATOR: Mechanic\$ 13.83	2.19	
OPERATOR: Roller\$ 10.67	1.87	
OPERATOR: Scraper \$ 11.00	1.74	
OPERATOR: Trackhoe\$ 20.92	5.50	
OPERATOR: Tractor\$ 10.00	0.00	
TRUCK DRIVER, Includes Dump Truck\$ 11.22 1.70		
TRUCK DRIVER: Lowboy Truck\$ 11.00		0.00
TRUCK DRIVER: Off the Road Truck\$ 12.21 1.97		

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)).

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of ""identifiers"" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than ""SU"" or ""UAVG"" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the ""SU"" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union

average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
- * an existing published wage determination
- * a survey underlying a wage determination
- * a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
- * a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

> Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the

interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION"

SECTION 00841 NOTICE OF AWARD FORM

		Date:	
Project:	CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK Urick Street Force Main Extensi	on	
	ed that your bid dated_ nd the OWNER, expects to award yo	, 20for the above Contract has ou a contract.	s been
The Contract	Price of your contract is Dollars <u>(\$</u>	<u>_</u>	

Six (6) copies of each of the following proposed Contract Documents (except Project Manual and Drawings) accompany this Notice of Award:

- Agreement between Owner and Contractor
- Performance Bond
- Payment Bond
- Notice of Award
- Certificates of Insurance and Endorsement

You must comply with the following conditions precedent to the award of the contract within ten (10) days of the date of the Notice of Award, that is by________, 20_____.

- 1. You must deliver to the OWNER six (6) fully executed counterparts of the Agreement.
- 2. You must deliver with the executed Agreement six (6) completed original documents with original signatures on the Payment and Performance Bond in the form specified in the Bidding Documents, in an amount equal to 110% of the contract price.
- 3. You must provide in writing the correct name and address of the surety which is providing the Payment and Performance Bonds and the correct name and address of the surety's resident agent for service of process in Florida.
- 4. You must deliver with the executed Agreement six (6) completed, with original signatures, Certificates and Endorsements of Insurance in the form specified in the Bidding Documents.

Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle the OWNER to consider your Bid abandoned, to annul this Notice of Award, and to declare your Bid Security forfeited.

Within ten (10) days after you comply with these conditions, the OWNER will return to you one (1) fully signed counterpart of the Agreement with the Contract Documents attached.

OWNER: ACCEPTANCE OF AWARD:	
City of Fruitland Park	(Contractor)
	(Contractor)
(Authorized Signature)	(Address)
(Name & Title)	(Authorized Signature Acknowledge Receipt of Notice)
	(Name & Title)
Copy to BESH Halff, Inc. (Use Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested)	(Date)

SECTION 00842 NOTICE TO PROCEED

(Contractor)	Date:
RE:	
Notice to Proceed on Project: Urick S	Street Force Main Extension
BID N	10. 2021-04
	Time under the above contract will commence to run on On that date you are to start performing the Work and your
other obligations under the Contract	Documents. Based on the Contract Time stated in the Agreement,
we calculate that the dates of Subs	tantial Completion and Final Completion are,
20, and, 20	, respectively.
Work at the site must be started by	, 20as indicated in the Contract
Documents.	
Enclosed is one set of Drawings and	one copy of the Project Manual containing:
Instruction to Bidders Bid Form Bid Bond Executed Agreement Payment Bond Performance Bond Forms Certificates of Insurance General Conditions Supplementary Conditions Notice to Award Specifications Addenda Numbersthroug General Requirements	h

OWNER:	BY:
	Acknowledge Receipt of Notice
Copy to BESH Halff, Inc. (Use Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested)	

SECTION 00843 CHANGE ORDER FORM

PROJECT: City of Fruitland Park - Urick Street Force Main Extension CHANGE ORDER NO. DATE OF ISSUANCE: CONTRACTOR: EFFECTIVE DATE: ENGINEER: BESH Halff, Inc. The following changes are hereby made to the Contract Documents: CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE: CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES: **Original Contract Price Original Contract Times** Substantial Completion:_____ Ready for final payment: days or dates Net changes from previous Change Orders Net change from previous Change Orders days Contract Price prior to this Change Order Contract Times prior to this Change Order

Substantial Completion: ______Ready for final payment:

Net Increase (decrease) of this Change

days

Contract Times with all approved Change

days or dates

Order

Orders

Net Increase (decrease) of this Change

Contract Price with all approved Change

Order

Orders

\cap \vdash	ΙΔΝ	NGES		ERE	η.
\Box	IMI'	いいこい	URD		IJ.

Specifications and all parts of the Project Manual listed in Article 1, Definitions, of the General Conditions apply to and govern all work under this change order. Change Order No. REQUIRED CHANGES: III. JUSTIFICATION: IV. PAYMENT: _____

GENERAL This change order is necessary to cover changes in the work to be performed under this Contract. The General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions,

V. APPROVAL AND CHANGE AUTHORI	ZATION:	
Acknowledgments:		
The aforementioned change, and work a contract not specifically changed by this C		rovisions of the origina
It is expressly understood and agreed to no effect on the original contract other that		
Change Order Request by:		
Change(s) Ordered by:		
RECOMMENDED BY:	ACCEPTED BY:	
BESH Halff, Inc.		
(Engineer)	(Contractor)
By:(Authorized Signature) (Date)		
(Authorized Signature) (Date)	(Authorized Signature)	(Date)
(Title)	(Title)	
APPROVED BY:		
City of Fruitland Park (Owner)		
(Owner) Bv:		
City of Fruitland Park (Owner) By: Name & Title	(Date)	
(Owner) Bv:	(Date)	

SECTION 00844 APPLICATION AND CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT FORM

Application N	lo	Progress	Final
Engineer's Project No.: 043866.050			
Project: City	of Fruitland Park -	Urick Street Force Main Exte	nsion
Contractor:_		Cor	ntract Date:
Contract for:			
Application D	ate:	For	Period Ending
Change Orde	er Summary		
previous moi	ers approved in onths by OWNER TOTAL	ADDITIONS	DEDUCTIONS
Approved thi			
Number	Date Approved		
	TOTALS		
Net Change	by Change Orders		
1. ORIGINAL CONTRACT SUM \$_ 2. Net Change by Change Order \$_ 3. CONTRACT SUM TO DATE (Line 1 and 2) \$_ 4. TOTAL COMPLETED AND STORED TO DATE \$_		\$_ \$_ \$_ \$_	
5. RETAINAGE: (Column I & N, Forms 00845 and 00846) a% of Completed Work b% of Stored Material Total Retainage (Line 5a and 5b)		\$ <u>.</u> \$. \$ <u>.</u>	
6. TOTAL EARNED LESS RETAINAGE (Line 4 less Line 5 Total) 7. LESS PREVIOUS CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT		\$ <u>.</u>	
(Line 6 from prior Certificate) 8. AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION 9. BALANCE TO FINISH, PLUS RETAINAGE (Line 3 less Line 6)		\$_ \$_ \$_	

Contractor's Certification

The undersigned Contractor hereby swears under penalty of perjury that (1) all previous progress payments received from the Owner on account of Work performed under the contract referred to above have been applied by the undersigned to discharge in full all obligations of the undersigned incurred in connection with Work covered by prior Applications for Payment numbered 1 through inclusive; and (2) all materials and equipment incorporated in said Project or otherwise listed in or covered by this Application for Payment are free and clear of all liens, claims, security interest and encumbrances; (3) all Work covered by this Application for Payment is in accordance with the Contract Documents and not defective as that term is defined in the Contract Documents.

Dated, 20	
	(Contractor)
By:	
By:(Name & Title)	
COUNTY OF	STATE OF
Sworn to and subscribed befo	re me by means of physical presence or online
notarization thisday	of, 20, personally appeared
, kı	nown to me, who being duly sworn, deposes and says that (s)he is
the	of the Contractor above mentioned; that(s) he executed the
above Application for Payment a	nd statement on behalf of said Contractor; and that all of the
statements contained therein are tru	ie, correct and complete.
Engineerie Decemberdation	Notary Public Commission Expiration
Engineer's Recommendation Payment of the above AMOUNT DU	JE THIS APPLICATION is recommended.
BESH Halff, Inc.	
By:(Authorized Signature)	Date:
Owner's Approval	
Ву:	(Title)
Acct. No.	Date:

SECTION 00845 SCHEDULE OF VALUES

Pay Estimate No.	Project:		
For Period Ending	: Prepared by:	Page	_of

Item	Description	Bid Quantity	Units	Unit Price	Bid Amount	Thr	nplete ough Period %	Thr	nplete ough Period %	Value of Items Completed

SECTION 00846 MATERIALS STORED ON SITE

Pay E	stimate No				Pr	oject:				Date F	repare	ed	
For P	eriod Ending:					_ Prepa	ared by:					Page	of
ITEM	DESCRIPTION	VA	ALUE LAST I		VAL		INSTALLED	VAL			7	VALUE THIS PI	
		QTY.	UNIT PRICE	INVOICE AMOUNT	OTY	UNIT PRICE	INVOICE AMOUNT	QTY.	UNIT PRICE		QTY.	UNIT PRICE	INVOICE AMOUNT
		(<u> </u>			(111			(

SECTION 00847 SHOP DRAWING SUBMITTAL FORM

Owner				Specification No Project: 	City of Fruitla Urick Street Extension		
Contra				DATE DEC			
BESH Project		866.050		_			
Owner Project			<u> </u>	Contractor's Submittal No.:			
Contra Project				Resubmittal	Yes	_ No	
ITEM NO	SPEC. SECTION	NO. COPIES	VENDOR	DESCRIPTION	ON		ENGINEER'S ACTION
AC A AN AR R	APPF APPF AMEI	AS defined in t ROVED ROVED AS N ND AND RES ECTED		•	BMITTED BY: DATE:	C	Contractor
ENGIN	NEER'S COM	MENTS:					
Distribu Con Owr	tractor		opies opies	Discipline Review	:		
• BES	SH Office SH Subconsul SH Field	Co tantCo	ppies pies ppies	Reviewed By Discipline Review	r:		Date
				Reviewed By			Date
				Project Manager			Date

SECTION 00848 CERTIFICATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

	ENGINEER'S Project No.:	043866.050					
City of Fruitland Park -Urick Street Force Main Extension							
BID NO. 2021-0	4						
CONTRACTOR							
Contract For	Contract Date _	_					
following specified parts thereof To	Completion applies to all Work under						
following specified parts thereof							

A tentative list of items to be completed or corrected is attached hereto. This list may not be all-inclusive, and the failure to include an item in its does not alter the responsibility of CONTRACTOR to complete all the Work in accordance with the Contract documents. When this Certification applies to a specified part of the Work the items in the tentative list shall be completed or corrected by CONTRACTOR within days of the above date of Substantial Completion.

The date of Substantia as follows:	al Completion is the date upon which all guarantees and warranties begin,	except
	between OWNER and CONTRACTOR for security, operation, ilities and insurance shall be as follows:	safety,
RESPONSIBILITIES:		
OWNER_		
-		
CONTRACTOR_		
The following docume	ents are attached to and made a part of this Certificate:	
Executed by ENGINE	ER on	
BESH Halff, Inc. (Engineer)	By	
The CONTRACTOR a	accepts this Certificate of Substantial Completion on:	
	, 20	
(Contractor)	By	

SECTION 00849 PARTIAL RELEASE OF LIEN

PROJECT:	
MATERIAL SUPPLIER/SUBCONTRACTOR:	
THE SUM OF \$ RECEIPT WIND VALUABLE CONSIDERATIONS AND BENEFITS TO TRELEASE AND QUIT CLAIM ALL LIENS, LIEN F	UNDERSIGNED IN CONSIDERATION OF PAYMENT IN HEREOF IS HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGED, AND OTHER THE UNDERSIGNED ACCRUING, DO HEREBY WAIVE, RIGHTS, CLAIMS OR DEMANDS OF EVERY KIND HAS, OR MAY HEREAFTER HAVE, AGAINST THAT THEREON, LEGALLY DESCRIBED AS:
<u>Project:</u> City of Fruitlan	d Park - Urick Street Force Main Extension
	AND/OR MATERIALS FURNISHED IN, TO , OR ABOUT INGS SITUATED THEREON, OR IN IMPROVING SAID REOF.
LIEN WHICH THE UNDERSIGNED HAS AGAINST TEXTENT OF THE PAYMENTS SPECIFIED AND ONLY UNTILTHE UNDERSIGNED OR CLAIMS, NOR THE RIGHT TO PERFECT A LIEN UNDERSIGNED HAS THE RIGHT TO EXECUTE THIS EMPLOYED BY THE UNDERSIGNED, AND ALL BILL OTHERS TO THE UNDERSIGNED IN CONNECTION	GIGNED THAT THIS IS A WAIVER AND RELEASE OF THE PREMISES DESCRIBED HEREIN, ONLY TO THE Y FOR MATERIALS FURNISHED OR WORK DONE UP WARRANTS THAT NO ASSIGNMENT OF SAID LIENS A AGAINST SAID REAL ESTATE, BY VIRTUE OF THE WAIVER AND RELEASE, AND THAT ALL LABORERS AS FOR MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES FURNISHED BY WITH THE CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS AND THE PAYMENT HEREIN REFERRED TO, HAVE INSTRUMENT UNDER SEAL THISDAY OF
·	
	COMPANY BY:
(SEAL)	SIGNATURE
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF	PRINT NAME AND TITLE
SWORN TO (OR AFFIRMED) AND SUBSCRIBED BEF	ORE ME BY MEANS OF PHYISCAL PRESENCE OR BYHE/SHE IS PERSONALLY KNOWN TO ME OR
OFPROVIDEDOATH.	HE/SHE IS PERSONALLY KNOWN TO ME OR AS IDENTIFICATION AND DID NOT TAKE AN
SIGNATURE OF NOTARY	SERIAL/COMMISSION NUMBER
PRINTED NAME OF NOTARY	EXPIRATION DATE

SECTION 00849 FINAL RELEASE OF LIEN

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS	, that
for and in consideration of the sum of	
(\$)	paid to
	, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, do(es) hereb
release and quit claim to the	, the Owner, its successors or assigns
all liens, lien rights, claims or demands of	any kind whatsoever which
<u>Project:</u> City	of Fruitland Park - Urick Street Force Main Extension
thereon or in otherwise improving said pro	perty situated as above described.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF	have (has) hereunto sethand
and seal thisday of	, 20
WITNESS:	
	(Seal)
SWORN AND SUBSCRIBED TO BEFORE ONLINE NOTARIZATION THISday	
	Notary Public State of Florida-at-Large
	My Commission Expires:

SECTION 00850 FIELD ORDER

[] EN [] AR [] CO	VNER: IGINEER: CHITECT:_ ONTRACTOR 'HER:	BESH Halff	No. No. No. No. No. Copies	Copies Copies Copies Copies	FIELD ORDER NO[]	
NAM LOC	CATION:	Jrick Street Force Ma	in Extension I	CONTRACT NUMBER: DATE: DRAWING SPECIFICA	NOTION SECTION:	
TO: ((Contractor)					
or order If you itemized is found Change	rs minor char consider that d proposal to d to be satist e Order.	nges in the Work with at a change in Contro the Engineer immed	out change in Con ract Sum or Cont diately and before order, this Field (ract Sum o ract Time i proceeding Order will in	s required, please submi with this Work. If your pro that event by superseded	t your oposal
Attachn 1. 2. 3. 4. 5.	Contractor	of attached documen	on No.:			
BESH I	Halff, Inc.		I	Project No.:		
By:			[Date:	_	

SECTION 00851 CONTRACTOR REQUEST FOR INFORMATION (RFI)

[] ARCHITECT:_ [] CONTRACTO	No. BESH Halff	Copies Copies Copies Copies pies	CONTRACTOR REQUEST FOR INFORMATION NO. []	
PROJECT DATA	CONTRACT DATA			
LOCATION: OWNER:	reet Force Main Extension	NUMBER: DATE: DRAWING NO SPECIFICAT	O:	
QUESTION:				
REPLY:				
BY:		DATE:		

SECTION 00852 CONSTRUCTION ACCIDENT REPORT

[] OWNER: [] ENGINEER: [] ARCHITECT: [] CONTRACTOR: [] OTHER:	No. Copies	CONSTRUCTION ACCIDENT REPORT NO
PROJECT DATA	CONTRACT DATA	
NAME: Urick Street Force Main Exter	nsion NUMBER:	
LOCATION:	OWNER:	
LOCATION:OWNER: SUBCONTRACTOR:	CONTRACTOR: DATE:	
ACCIDENT INFORMATION		
Accident Date:	Time:	
Name(s) of Injured or Deceased:		
Describe what occurred:		
NOTE: Use other side or attach addit	ional sheets as required.	
Names & Address of Witnesses:		
Fuer level of News O. Address .		
Employer's Name & Address:		
Name and Place of where treatment	was provided:	
SKETCH	Send original to Project M	
	charge of Construction im	imediatery.
	Signed	

SECTION 00853 PRESSURE TEST

OWNER: Selection of the contraction of the contract	No. Copies PRESSURE No. Copies NO No. Copies NO No. Copies No. Copies				
PROJECT DATA	CONTRACT DATA				
NAME: Urick Street Force Main Extension LOCATION: OWNER: CONTRACTOR: SUBCONTRACTOR:	NUMBER:OWNER:CONTRACTOR:DATE:				
LOCATION OF TEST:					
COMPUTATION FOR MEASURED LEAKAGE:					
Time-End of Test: Pressure-End of Test (psi): Time-Start of Test: Pressure-Start of Test (psi): Test Time (Minutes): Average Test Pressure (psi):					
Quantity of Water Required to Return to Original	l Pressure (gals.)				
Computation for Allowable Leakage:					
$L = SD(P^{1/2})(T)/133,200$					
in which: L = Allowable Leakage During Test Period (gallons) S = Length of Pipe Tested (feet) D = Diameter of the Pipe (inches) P = Specified Test Pressure (psig) T = Specified Time (hours)					
REMARKS:					
THE ABOVE TEST (DOES) (DOES NOT) MEET	T THE SPECIFICATIONS				
TEST WITNESS					
by Contractor by Subcontra	actor by RPR				

SECTION 00861 WORK DIRECTIVE FORM

OWNER: Selection of the	No. Copies WORK No. Copies DIRECTIVE No. Copies NO. [] No. Copies No. Copies				
PROJECT DATA	CONTRACT DATA				
NAME: Urick Street Force Main Extension LOCATION: OWNER: OTHER:	NUMBER: DATE: DRAWING No: SPECIFICATION SECTION:				
TO: (CONTRACTOR)					
You are directed to proceed promptly with the fo	ollowing change(s):				
Description:					
	ave affected Contract Price or Contract Time, any claim one of the following methods of determining the effect o				
Method of determining change in Contract Price:	Method of determining change in Contract Time:				
[] Time and Materials [] Unit Prices [] Cost Plus Fixed Fee [] Other	[] Contractor's Records [] Engineer's Records [] Other				
RECOMMENDED:	AUTHORIZED:				
By Engineer	By Owner				
Attachments (listing of attached documents	s that support description):				
Contractor Request for Information N	0.:				
2. Request for Proposed Change (RFP)	No.:				
Other Supporting documents					

SECTION 00862 DAILY CONSTRUCTION REPORT

0 0 0 0	ARC CON FIE	GINEER: CHITECT: ITRACTOR: ELD: HER:		lalff	No. Copie No. No. No. No. Copie	Copies Copies Copies	REPO DAYS NOTI	STRUCTI ORT S FROM CE TO CEED	
PR	OJE	CT DATA							
	LOCATION: OWNER: CONTRACTOR:					IBR: NER:			
1.	WE	ATHER							
	[]	Sunny Cloudy	[] []	Overcast Windy	Α	emp. Range M°F M°F	T	Precipitati Type: Ouration:_	
2.	GROUND CONDITIONS								
	[] []	Saturated Frozen	[] []						_
3.	RECORD OF LABOR								
	<u>Co</u>	ntractor	Туре			actor	•••		
4		LUDMENT							
4.		UIPMENT	Type	Model		Hrs.		Use	
			.,,,,						

	Received By	Type	Quantity	Supplier	Use	
B. DESCRIPTION OF WORK PERFORMED						

5. MATERIAL RECEIVED

SECTION 00863 CHANGE PROPOSAL SUMMARY FORM

[] OWNER [] ENGINEER: BESH Halff [] ARCHITECT: [] CONTRACTOR: [] FIELD: [] OTHER:		No. Co No. Co No. No. No.	pies Copies Copies Copies Copies	CHANGE PROPOSAL SUMMARY NO.	
PROJECT DATA		CONTI	RACT DATA		
NAME: <u>Urick Street Force Main E</u> LOCATION:OWNER:OTHER:			ING NO:		
REFERENCE: Work Directive No Field Order No.)		RFP No Other		
PRICING INFORMATION					
1. DIRECT LABOR	Skill/Tra	<u>de</u>	<u>Manhours</u>	<u>Rate</u>	Cost
1.A Production Labor					<u>—</u>
1.B Supervision				·	
[] Foreman [] Superintendent					
1.C. Field Engineering					
1.D. Expenses					
				Subtota	I(1)

2. MATERIALS & EQUIPMENT

Description		Quantity	Unit <u>Price</u>	Cost
2.A Incorporated in Work				
2.B Consumed in Performance				
Z.B Consumed in Performanc	e 			
2.C Equipment				
2.D Direct Costs				
Z.D Direct Costs				
2.E Bonds, Insurance				
			Subtot	al(2)

SECTION 00864 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL CHANGE FORM

ii OTHED.	ff 	No. Copies	CHANGE PROPOSAL SUMMARY NO	
PROJECT DATA	!	CONTRACT DATA		
OWNER:	ain Extension	NUMBER: _ DATE: _ DRAWING NO: _ SPECIFICATION SECTION: _		
TO: (Contractor)				
Please provide the undersigned (21) calendar days after receipt of the proposed change in work trade), subcontract and overhe similarly supported.	of this request. c providing an ite	The written proposal mized estimate of tin	must clearly delineate the and all material and l	ne scope labor (by
Description of change in work:				
Change Order Type: Constraints of Change:	(Deletion)	(Addition)	(Revision)	
Initiated By:				
Proposal Must Be Received By:	(22 D	ays From Date Below)	
Attachments (Listing of attachments	ched documents	that support description	on):	
 Contractor Request for Infor 3. 4. 5. 				
BESH Halff, INC.		PROJECT	NO.:	
Issued By:		Date:		

SECTION 00865 CHECK OUT FORM

	OWNER ENGINEER: ARCHITECT: CONTRACTOR: FIELD: OTHER:	BESH Halff	No. Copies	CHECK-OUT MEMO NO
PR	OJECT DATA		CONTRACT DATA	<u>4</u>
	NAME: <u>Urick Stre</u> LOCATION: OWNER: OTHER:	et Force Main Extension	NUMBER: DATE: DRAWING NO: SPECIFICATION:	
Na	me of equipment	checked:		
Na	me of manufactur	er of equipment:		
1.		furnished by us has been erformance verification info		b by us. We have reviewed, where o us by the Contractor.
2.	The equipment i	s properly installed, except	for items noted belo	ow.*
3.	The equipment i	s operating satisfactorily, e	xcept for items note	d below.*
4.	Contractor, and		in detail. Five (5) co	oplicable, has been presented to the opies of all applicable operating and him.
Ch	ecked By:			
Na	me of Manufactur	er's Rep.	Name of Genera	l Contractor
Ad	dress and Phone	# of Rep.	Authorized Sig./1	Title/Date
Sig	g./Title/Pers. Makir	ng Chk.	Name of Subcon	tractor
Da	te Checked		Authorized Sig./1	

Manufacturer's Representative Notations: Exceptions noted at time of check were:	
	-
	-
	-
Manufacturer's Representative to note adequacy of related equipment that directly affects of performance or function of equipment checked. (No comment presented herein will indicate of related systems or equipment):	
	-
	-
	-
	-

SECTION 00866 CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETED DEMONSTRATION FORM

0 0 0 0 0	OWNER ENGINEER: ARCHITECT: CONTRACTOR: FIELD: OTHER:	BESH Halff	No. Copies No. Copies No. Copies No. Copies No. Copies No. Copies		CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETED DEMONSTRATION MEMO NO.
<u>PF</u>	ROJECT DATA		CONTRACT I	<u>DATA</u>	
	NAME: <u>Urick Stre</u> LOCATION: OWNER: OTHER:	et Force Main Extension	NUMBER: DATE: DRAWING SPECIFICA SECTION:		
			==0	_	

NOTE TO CONTRACTOR:

Submit five (5) copies of all information listed below for checking at least one (1) week before scheduled demonstration of the Work. After all information has been approved by the Engineer, give the Owner a Demonstration of Completed Systems as specified and have the Owner sign five (5) copies of this form. After this has been done, a written request for a final inspection of the system shall be made.

MEMORANDUM:

This memo is for the information of all concerned that the Owner has been given a Demonstration of Completed Systems on the work covered under this Specification Section. This conference consisted of the system operation, a tour on which all major items of equipment were explained and demonstrated, and the following items were given to the Owner:

- (a) Owner's copy of Operation and Maintenance Manual for equipment or systems specified under this Section containing approved submittal sheets on all items, including the following:
 - (1) Maintenance information published by manufacturer on equipment items.
 - (2) Printed warranties by manufacturers of equipment items.
 - (3) Performance verification information as recorded by the Contractor.
 - (4) Check-Out Memo on equipment by manufacturer's representative.
 - (5) Written operating instructions on any specialized items.
 - (6) Explanation of guarantees and warranties on the system.
- (b) Prints showing actual "As-Built" conditions.
- (c) A demonstration of the system in operation and of the maintenance procedures which will be required.

	(Name of General Contractor)	
Ву:	(Authorized Signature, Title and Dat	ie
	(Name of Subcontractor)	
Ву:	(Authorized Signature, Title and Dat	re
Operation Received:	and Maintenance Manuals, Instructi	on Prints, Demonstration and Instruction in Operation
		(Name of Owner)
	Ву:	(Authorized Signature/Title/Date

SECTION 01000 PROJECT REQUIREMENTS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work:

1. The Work to be done consists of the furnishing of all labor, materials, and equipment, and the performance of all Work included in this Contract.

Work Included:

- a. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, superintendence, materials, plant power, light, heat, fuel, water, tools, appliances, equipment, supplies, and means of construction necessary for proper performance and completion of the Work. The Contractor shall obtain and pay for all necessary local building permits. The Contractor shall perform and complete the Work in the manner best calculated to promote rapid construction consistent with safety of life and property and to the satisfaction of the Engineer, and in strict accordance with the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall clean up the Work and maintain it during and after construction, until accepted, and shall do all Work and pay all costs incidental thereto. He shall repair or restore all structures and property that may be damaged or disturbed during performance of the Work.
- b. The cost of incidental work described in these Project Requirements, for which there are no specific Contract Items, shall be considered as part of the general cost of doing the Work and shall be included in the prices for the various Contract Items. No additional payment will be made therefore.
- c. The Contractor shall provide and maintain such modern plant, tools, and equipment as may be necessary, in the opinion of the Engineer, to perform in a satisfactory and acceptable manner all the Work required by this Contract. Only equipment of established reputation and proven efficiency shall be used. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the adequacy of his workmanship, materials, and equipment, prior approval of the Engineer notwithstanding.

3. Public Utility Installations and Structures:

a. Public utility installations and structures shall be understood to include all poles, tracks, pipes, wires, conduits, vaults, manholes, and all other appurtenances and facilities pertaining thereto whether owned or controlled by the Owner, other governmental bodies, or privately owned by individuals, firms, or corporations, used to serve the public with transportation, traffic control, gas, electricity, telephone, sewerage, drainage, water, or other public or private property which may be affected by the Work shall be deemed included hereunder.

b.	The Contract Documents contain data relative to existing public utility installations and structures above and below the ground surface. These

data are not guaranteed as to their completeness or accuracy and it is the responsibility of the Contractor to make his own investigations to inform himself fully of the character, condition, and extent of all such installations and structures as may be encountered and as may affect the construction operations.

- c. The Contractor shall protect all public utility installations and structures from damage during the Work. Access across any buried public utility installation or structure shall be made to avoid any damage to these facilities. All required protective devices and construction shall be provided by the Contractor at his expense. All existing public utilities damaged by the Contractor shall be repaired by the Contractor, at his expense. No separate payment shall be made for such protection or repairs to public utility installations or structures.
- d. Public utility installations or structures owned or controlled by the Owner or other governmental body which are shown on the Drawings to be removed, relocated, replaced, or rebuilt by the Contractor shall be considered as a part of the general cost of doing the Work and shall be included in the prices bid for the various Contract Items. No separate payment shall be made therefor.
- e. Where public utility installations of structures owned or controlled by the Owner or other governmental body are encountered during the course of the Work, and are not indicated on the Drawings or in the Specifications, and when, in the opinion of the Engineer, removal, relocation, replacement, or rebuilding is necessary to complete the Work under this Contract, such Work shall be accomplished by the utility having jurisdiction, or such Work may be ordered, in writing by the Engineer, for the Contractor to accomplish. If such work is accomplished by the utility having jurisdiction it will be carried out expeditiously, and the Contractor shall give full cooperation to permit the utility to complete the removal, relocation, replacement, or rebuilding as required. If such work is accomplished by the Contractor, it will be paid for as extra work as provided in the Agreement.
- f. The Contractor shall, at all times in performance of the Work, employ acceptable methods and exercise reasonable care and skill so as to avoid unnecessary delay, injury, damage, or destruction of public utility installations and structures; and shall, at all times in the performance of the Work, avoid unnecessary interference with, or interruption of, public utility services, and shall cooperate fully with the owners thereof to that end.
- g. The Contractor shall give written notice to Owner and other governmental utility departments and other owners of public utilities of the location of his proposed construction operations, at least 48-hours in advance of breaking ground in any area or on any unit of the Work.
- h. The maintenance, repair, removal, relocation, or rebuilding of public utility installations and structures, when accomplished by the Contractor as herein provided, shall be done by methods approved by the owners of such utilities.

1.02 DRAWINGS AND PROJECT MANUAL

A. Drawings: When obtaining data and information from the Drawings, figures shall be used in preference to scaled dimensions, and large-scale drawings in preference to small-scale drawings.

B. Supplementary Drawings:

- 1. When, in the opinion of the Engineer, it becomes necessary to explain more fully the Work to be done or to illustrate the Work further or to show any changes which may be required, drawings known as Supplementary Drawings, with specifications pertaining thereto, will be prepared by the Engineer, and the Contractor will be furnished one (1) complete set of reproducible black-line bond copies (24 inches by 36 inches) and one (1) reproducible copy of the Project Manual.
- 2. The Supplementary Drawings shall be binding upon the Contractor with the same force as the Contract Drawings. Where such Supplementary Drawings require either less or more than the estimated quantities of Work, credit to the Owner or compensation therefor to the Contractor shall be subject to the terms of the Agreement.

C. Contractor to Check Drawings and Data:

- The Contractor shall verify all dimensions, quantities, and details shown on the Drawings, Supplementary Drawings, schedules, Specifications, or other data received from the Engineer, and shall notify him of all errors, omissions, conflicts, and discrepancies found therein. Failure to discover or correct errors, conflicts, or discrepancies shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility for unsatisfactory work, faulty construction, or improper operation resulting therefrom, nor from rectifying such conditions at his own expense. He will not be allowed to take advantage of any errors or omissions, as full instructions will be furnished by the Engineer, should such errors or omissions be discovered.
- 2. All schedules are given for the convenience of the Engineer and the Contractor and are not guaranteed to be complete. The Contractor shall assume all responsibility or the making of estimates of the size, kind, and quality of materials and equipment included in work to be done under the Contract.
- D. Specifications: The Technical Specifications consist of three (3) parts: General, Products, and Execution. The General part of a Specification contains General Requirements which govern the Work. The Products and Execution parts modify and supplement the General Requirements by detailed requirements for the Work and shall always govern whenever there appears to be a conflict.

E. Intent:

1. All Work called for in the Specifications applicable to this Contract, but not shown on the Drawings in their present form, or vice versa, shall be of like effect as if shown or mentioned in both. Work not specified in either the Drawings or in the Specifications, but involved in carrying out their intent or in the complete and proper execution of the Work, is required and shall be performed by the Contractor as though it were specifically delineated or described.

2. The apparent silence of the Specifications as to any detail, or the apparent omission from them of a detailed description concerning any work to be done and materials to be furnished, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best general practice is to prevail and that only material and workmanship of the best quality is to be used, the interpretation of these Specifications shall be made upon that basis.

1.03 MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

A. Manufacturer:

- All transactions with the manufacturers or subcontractors shall be through the Contractor, unless the Contractor shall request and at the Engineer's option, that the manufacturer or subcontractor deal directly with the Engineer. Any such transactions shall not in any way release the Contractor from his full responsibility under this Contract.
- 2. Any two (2) or more pieces of material or equipment of the same kind, type, or classification, and being used for identical types of service, shall be made by the same manufacturer.

B. Delivery:

- 1. The Contractor shall deliver materials in ample quantities to ensure the most speedy and uninterrupted progress of the Work so as to complete the Work within the allotted time.
- 2. The Contractor shall also coordinate deliveries in order to avoid delay in, or impediment of, the progress of the work of any related Contractor.

C. Tools and Accessories:

- 1. The Contractor shall, unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, furnish with each type, kind, or size of equipment, one (1) complete set of suitably marked high grade special tools and appliances which may be needed to adjust, operate, maintain, or repair the equipment. Such tools and appliances shall be furnished in approved painted steel cases, properly labeled and equipped with good grade cylinder locks and duplicate keys.
- 2. Spare parts shall be furnished as specified herein and as recommended by the manufacturer necessary for the operation of the equipment, not including materials required for routine maintenance.
- 3. Each piece of equipment shall be provided with a substantial nameplate, securely fastened in place and clearly inscribed with the manufacturer's name, year of manufacture, serial number, weight, and principal rate data.

D. Service of Manufacturer's Engineer:

1. The Contract Prices for equipment shall include the cost of furnishing a competent and experienced engineer or superintendent who shall represent the manufacturer and shall assist the Contractor, when required, to install, adjust,

test, and place in operation, the equipment in conformity with the Contract Documents.

2. After the equipment is placed in permanent operation by the Owner, such engineer or superintendent shall make all adjustments and tests required by the Engineer to prove that such equipment is in proper and satisfactory operating condition, and shall instruct such personnel as may be designated by the Owner in the proper operation and maintenance of such equipment.

1.04 INSPECTION AND TESTING

A. General:

- 1. For tests specified to be made by the Contractor, the testing personnel shall make the necessary inspections and tests, and the reports thereof shall be in such form as will facilitate checking to determine compliance with the Contract Documents. Five (5) copies of the reports shall be submitted, and authoritative certification thereof must be furnished to the Engineer as a prerequisite for the acceptance of any material or equipment.
- 2. If, in the making of any test of any material or equipment, it is ascertained by the Engineer that the material or equipment does not comply with the Contract Documents, the Contractor will be notified thereof, and he will be directed to refrain from delivering said material or equipment, or to remove it promptly from the site or from the Work and replace it with acceptable material, without cost to the Owner.
- 3. Tests of electrical and mechanical equipment and appliances shall be conducted in accordance with the recognized test codes of the ANSI, ASME, or the IEEE, except as may otherwise be stated herein.
- 4. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for the proper operation of equipment during testing and instruction periods and shall neither have nor make any claim for damage which may occur to equipment prior to the time when the Owner formally takes over the operation thereof.

B. Costs:

- 1. All inspection and testing of materials furnished under this Contract will be provided by the Contractor, unless otherwise expressly specified.
- 2. The cost of shop and field tests of equipment and of certain other tests specifically called for in the Contract Documents shall be borne by the Contractor, and such costs shall be deemed to be included in the Contract Price.
- Materials and equipment submitted by the Contractor as the equivalent to those specifically named in the Contract may be tested by the Owner for compliance. The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for the expenditures incurred in making such tests of materials and equipment which are rejected for noncompliance.

C. Certificate of Manufacture:

- 1. Contractor shall furnish to Engineer authoritative evidence in the form of a certificate of manufacture that the materials to be used in the Work have been manufactured and tested in conformity with the Contract Documents.
- 2. These certificates shall be notarized and shall include copies of the results of physical tests and chemical analyses, where necessary, that have been made directly on the product or on similar products of the manufacturer.

D. Shop Tests:

- 1. Each piece of equipment for which pressure, duty, capacity, rating, efficiency, performance, function, or special requirements are specified shall be tested in the shop of the maker in a manner which shall conclusively prove that its characteristics comply fully with the requirements of the Contract Documents.
- 2. Five (5) copies of the manufacturer's actual test data and interpreted results thereof, accompanied by a certificate of authenticity sworn to by a responsible official of the manufacturing company and/or independent laboratory, shall be submitted to the Engineer for approval.
- 3. The cost of shop tests and of furnishing manufacturer's preliminary and shop test data of operating equipment shall be borne by the Contractor.

E. Start-up Tests:

- 1. As soon as conditions permit, the Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, and instruments and shall make start-up tests of equipment.
- 2. If the start-up tests disclose any equipment furnished under this Contract which does not comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall, prior to demonstration tests, make all changes, adjustments, and replacements required. The furnishing Contractor shall assist in the start-up tests as applicable.

F. Demonstration Tests:

- 1. Prior to Contractor's request for a Substantial Completion inspection, all equipment and piping installed under this Contract shall be subjected to demonstration tests as specified or required to prove compliance with the Contract Documents.
- 2. The Contractor shall furnish labor, fuel, energy, water, chemicals, and all other materials, equipment, and instruments necessary for all demonstration tests, at no additional cost to the Owner. Contractor shall assist in the demonstration tests as applicable.

1.05 LINES AND GRADES

A. Grade:

1. All work under this Contract shall be constructed in accordance with the lines and grades shown on the Drawings, or as given by the Engineer. The full responsibility for keeping alignment and grade shall rest upon the Contractor.

- 2. Adjustments of grades shown on Drawings may be necessary to conform to actual field conditions or to maintain cover under proposed future grades. Such adjustments shall be considered part of the job conditions and no extra compensation will be allowed for such changes, except where specifically otherwise noted in the Drawings or Specifications. Such adjustments must be approved by the Engineer prior to being made.
- 3. The Engineer will establish bench marks and baseline controlling points. Reference marks for lines and grades as the Work progresses will be located by the Contractor to cause as little inconvenience to the prosecution of the Work as possible. The Contractor shall so place excavation and other materials as to cause no inconvenience in the use of the reference marks provided. He shall remove any obstructions placed by him contrary to this provision.

B. Surveys:

- 1. The Contractor shall furnish and maintain, at his own expense, stakes and other such materials.
- 2. The Contractor shall check such reference marks by such means as he may deem necessary and, before using them, shall call the Engineer's attention to any inaccuracies.
- 3. The Contractor shall, at his own expense, establish all working or construction lines and grades as required from the reference marks set by the Engineer, and shall be solely responsible for the accuracy thereof. He shall, however, be subject to the check and review by the Engineer.

C. Safeguarding Marks:

- 1. The Contractor shall safeguard all points, stakes, grade marks, monuments, and bench marks made or established on the Work, bear the cost of re-establishing them if disturbed, and bear the entire expense of rectifying work improperly installed due to not maintaining or protecting or to removing without authorization such established points, stakes, and marks.
- 2. The Contractor shall safeguard all existing and known property corners, monuments, and marks adjacent to but not related to the Work and shall bear the cost of re-establishing them if disturbed or destroyed.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01025 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

1.01 GENERAL

- A. The Contractor shall receive and accept the compensation provided in the Proposal and the Contract as full payment for furnishing all materials, labor, tools and equipment, for performing all operations necessary to complete the work under the Contract, and also in full payment for all loss or damages arising from the nature of the work, or from any discrepancy between the actual quantities of work and quantities herein estimated by the Engineer, or from the action of the elements or from any unforeseen difficulties which may be encountered during the prosecution of the work until the final acceptance by the Owner.
- B. The prices stated in the proposal include all costs and expenses for taxes, labor, equipment, materials, commissions, transportation charges and expenses, patent fees and royalties, labor for handling materials during inspection, together with any and all other costs and expenses for performing and completing the work as shown on the Drawings and specified herein. The basis of payment for an item at the unit price shown in the proposal shall be in accordance with the description of that item in this Section.
- C. The Contractor's attention is again called to the fact that the quotations for the various items of work are intended to establish a total price for completing the work in its entirety. Should the Contractor feel that the cost for any item of work has not been established by the Bid Form or Payment Items, he shall include the cost for that work in some other applicable bid item, so that his proposal for the project does reflect his total price for completing the work in its entirety.

1.02 MEASUREMENT

A. The quantities for payment under this Contract shall be determined by actual measurement of the completed items, in place, ready for service and accepted by the Owner, in accordance with the applicable method of measurement therefore contained herein. Project is a Lump Sum Project.

1.03 PAYMENT ITEMS

A. Items are as enumerated on the bid form. Project is a Lump Sum Project.

SECTION 01027 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Scope of Work: Submit Applications for Payment to the Engineer in accordance with schedule established by Conditions of the Contract and Agreement between Owner and Contractor.
- B. Related Requirements Described Elsewhere:
 - 1. Construction Progress Schedules: Section 01310.
 - 2. Schedule of Values: Section 01370.
 - 3. Construction Photographs: Section 01380.
 - 4. Contract Closeout: Section 01700.
 - 5. Project Record Documents: Section 01720.

1.02 FORMAT REQUIRED

- A. Submit applications for payment on the Application and Certificate for Payment Form which will be provided by the Engineer. The application shall consist of itemized data typed on 8-1/2 inch x 11 inch or 8-1/2 inch x 14 inch white paper continuation sheets.
- B. Provide itemized data on continuation sheets of format, schedules, line items, and values specified on the Application and Certificate for Payment Form. The Contractor shall use the item descriptions and contract values included in schedule of values, approved and accepted by the Engineer as a basis for preparation of the Application for Payment Form.

1.03 PREPARATION OF APPLICATION FOR EACH PROGRESS PAYMENT

- A. Application Form:
 - 1. Fill in required information, including that for Change Orders executed prior to date of submittal of application.
 - 2. Fill in percent complete for each activity and dollar values to agree with respective percents.
 - 3. Execute certification with signature of a responsible officer of Contractor.
- B. Continuation Sheets:
 - 1. Fill in total list of all scheduled component items of the Work, with item number and scheduled dollar value for each item.

- 2. Fill in dollar value in each column for each scheduled line item when Work has been performed or products stored. Round off values to nearest dollar, or as specified for Schedule of Values.
- 3. List each Change Order executed prior to date of submission, at the end of the continuation sheets. List by Change Order Number, and description, as for an original component item of the Work.
- 4. To receive approval for payment on component material stored on site, submit copies of the original paid invoices or releases of lien with the Application and Certificate for Payment.
- 5. As provided for in the Application and Certificate for Payment Form, the Contractor shall certify, for each current pay request, that all previous progress payments received from the Owner, under this Contract, have been applied by the Contractor to discharge in full, all obligations of the Contractor in connection with Work covered by prior Applications for Payment, and all materials and equipment incorporated into the Work are free and clear of all liens, claims, security interest, and encumbrances. Contractor shall attach to each Application and Certificate for Payment like affidavits by all Subcontractors.

1.04 SUBSTANTIATING DATA FOR PROGRESS PAYMENTS

- A. Contractor shall submit suitable information, with a cover letter identifying:
 - 1. Project.
 - 2. Application number and date.
 - Detailed list of enclosures.
 - 4. For stored products:
 - a. Item number and identification as shown on application.
 - b. Description of specific material and manifest.
- B. Submit one (1) copy of data and cover letter for each copy of application.
- C. The Contractor is to maintain an updated set of drawings to be used as record drawings in accordance with Section 01720: Project Record Documents. As a prerequisite for monthly progress payments, the Contractor is to exhibit the updated record drawings for review by the Owner and the Engineer.
- D. Each monthly application for payment shall incorporate the corresponding "monthly progress status report" and updated construction schedule, prepared in accordance with the requirements of Section 01310: Construction Progress Schedules.
- E. As a prerequisite for payment, Contractor shall submit a duly executed letter from surety consenting to payment due and progress to date. The Contractor shall also submit partial releases of lien from all subcontractors and suppliers.
- F. Provide construction photographs in accordance with Section 01380: Construction Photographs.

.

1.05 PREPARATION OF APPLICATION FOR FINAL PAYMENT

- A. Fill in application form as specified for progress payments. Provide information as required by the General Conditions and Section 01700: Contract Closeout.
- B. Furnish evidence of completed operations and insurance in accordance with the General Conditions.

1.06 SUBMITTAL PROCEDURE

- A. Submit Applications for Payment to the Engineer at the time stipulated in the Agreement, or as agreed to at the pre-construction meeting. Review the percents complete with the Engineer and resolve any conflicts or discrepancies.
- B. Number of copies for each Application for Payment: Five (5) copies plus additional copies for Contractor's needs.
- C. When the Engineer finds the Application and Certificate for Payment Form is properly completed and correct, he will execute the Certificate for Payment and transmit the forms to the Owner, with a copy to the Contractor.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01050 FIELD ENGINEERING

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Scope of Work: Provide and pay for field engineering service for Project.
 - 1. Survey work required in execution of Work.
 - 2. Civil, structural, or other professional engineering services specified or required to execute Contractor's construction methods.
 - 3. The method of field staking for the construction of the Work shall be at the option of the Contractor.
 - 4. The accuracy of any method of staking shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. All engineering for vertical and horizontal control shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.
 - 5. The Contractor shall be held responsible for the preservation of all stakes and marks. If any stakes or marks are carelessly or willfully disturbed by the Contractor, the Contractor shall not proceed with any work until he has established such points, marks, lines, and elevations as may be necessary for the prosecution of the Work.
 - 6. The Contractor shall retain the services of a registered land surveyor licensed in the State of Florida to identify existing control points and maintain a survey during construction.
- B. Related Requirements Described Elsewhere:
 - Conditions of the Contract.
 - 2. Project Record Documents: Section 01720.

1.02 QUALIFICATIONS OF SURVEYOR OR ENGINEER

- A. Qualified engineer or registered land surveyor, acceptable to the Owner and the Engineer.
- B. Registered professional engineer of the discipline required for the specific service on the Project, currently licensed in the State of Florida.

1.03 SURVEY REFERENCE POINTS

- A. Locate and protect control points prior to starting site work, and preserve all permanent reference points during construction.
 - 1. Make no changes or relocations without prior written notice to the Engineer.
 - 2. Report to the Engineer when any reference point is lost or destroyed, or requires relocation because of necessary changes in grades or locations.

3. Require surveyor to replace Project control points which may be lost or destroyed at no additional cost to the Owner. Establish replacement based on original survey control.

1.04 PROJECT SURVEY REQUIREMENTS

- A. Establish a minimum of two (2) permanent bench marks on site, referenced to data established by survey control points.
 - 1. Record locations, with horizontal and vertical data, on Project Record Documents.
- B. Establish lines and levels, locate and lay out, by instrumentation and similar appropriate means:
 - 1. Site improvements:
 - a. Stakes for grading, fill, and topsoil replacement.
 - b. Utility slopes and invert elevations.
 - Batter boards for structure.
 - 3. Building foundation, column locations, and floor levels.
 - 4. Controlling lines and levels required for mechanical and electrical trades.
- C. From time to time, verify layouts by same methods.

1.05 RECORDS

- A. Maintain a complete, accurate log of all control and survey work as it progresses.
- B. At the end of the project, submit a certified site survey at 1 inch equals 20 feet scale on reproducible tracing sheets 24 inches by 36 inches, indicating the building corners and location of all new structures and elevations of stormwater facilities, pavement areas, sidewalks, finished floors, vaults, and above grade piping.
- C. At the end of the project, submit a certified survey at the same scale as the Engineer's line drawings indicating elevations and stationing at 100-foot pipe increments and at all valve and fitting locations.

1.06 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit name and address of surveyor and professional engineer to the Engineer.
- B. On request of the Engineer, submit documentation to verify accuracy of field engineering work.
- C. Submit certificate signed by a registered engineer or surveyor certifying that elevations and locations of improvements are in conformance with the Contract Documents, or if not in conformance, certify as to variances from the Contract Documents.

D. Submit drawings showing locations of all structures constructed. This drawing shall be included with the Project Record Documents.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01065 PERMITS AND FEES

PART 1 - GENERAL

- A. The Contractor shall obtain <u>all</u> permits and licenses related to his work, including but not limited to, the necessary construction permits except as otherwise provided herein. The Contractor shall also, if in effect and applicable at the date of bid opening, pay any governmental agency charges and inspection fees required for the prosecution of the work. If the Contractor desires connection of utility services (telephone or electricity) to a field office, he will be responsible for securing the necessary permits and any connection or disconnection charges involved.
- B. Permits by Owner: The Owner has applied for, or will apply for, permits from the following agencies:
 - 1. Florida Department of Environmental Protection Domestic Wastewater Collection/Transmission System Construction Permit.
 - 2. Lake County Right-of-Way Permit.
- C. The Contractor shall adhere to all permit requirements as contained in permits obtained by the Owner.
- D. The Contractor shall obtain all permits required for construction that are not listed above.

SECTION 01070 ABBREVIATIONS AND SYMBOLS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 STANDARDS AND ABBREVIATIONS

A. Referenced Standards: Any reference to published specifications or standards of any organization or association shall comply with the requirements of the specification or standard which is current on the date of Advertisement for Bids. In case of a conflict between the referenced specifications or standards, the one having the more stringent requirements shall govern.

In case of conflict between the referenced specifications or standards and the Contract Documents, the Contract Documents shall govern.

B. Abbreviations:

AA Aluminum Association

AAA American Arbitration Association
AABC Associated Air Balance Council

AAMA Architectural Aluminum Manufacturers Association
AASHO The American Association of State Highway Officials

ABA American Bar Association

ABMA American Boiler Manufacturers Association
ABPA Acoustical and Board Products Association

ACI American Concrete Institute

ACPA American Concrete Pipe Association

AEIC Association of Edison Illuminating Companies
AFBMA Anti-Friction Bearing Manufacturers Association

AGA American Gas Association

AGC Associated General Contractors of America AGMA American Gear Manufacturers Association

AHA American Hardboard Association

Al The Asphalt Institute

AIA American Institute of Architects
AIA American Insurance Association

AIEE American Institute of Electrical Engineers (Now IEEE)

AIMA Acoustical and Insulating Materials Association

AISC American Institute of Steel Construction

AISI American Iron and Steel Institute

AITC American Institute of Timber Construction
AMCA Air Moving and Conditioning Association
ANSI American National Standard Institute

APA American Plywood Association
API American Petroleum Institute
APWA American Public Works Association

AREA American Railway Engineering Association

ARI American Refrigeration Institute

ASA American Standards Association (Now ANSI)

ASAHC American Society of Architectural Hardware Consultants

ASCE American Society of Civil Engineers

ASHRAE American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air Conditioning

Engineers

ASME American Society of Mechanical Engineers

ASSCBC American Standard Safety Code for Building Construction
ASSHTO American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials

ASTM American Society for Testing and Materials

AWG American Wire Gauge

AWI Architectural Woodwork Institute
AWPA American Wood Preservers Association
AWPB American Wood Preservers Bureau
AWPI American Wood Preservers Institute

AWS American Welding Society

AWWA American Water Works Association

BHMA Builders Hardware Manufacturers Association
BIA Brick Institute of America (formerly SCPI)

CDA Copper Development Association

CFS Cubic Feet Per Second

CMAA Crane Manufacturers Association of America

CRSI Concrete Reinforcing Steel Institute

CS Commercial Standard
DHI Door and Hardware Institute

DIPRA Ductile Iron Pipe Research Association

DOT Spec Standard Specification for Road and Bridge Construction Florida

Department of Transportation

E/A Engineer and/or Architect

EDA Economic Development Association

EEI Edison Electric Institute

EPA Environmental Protection Agency

FCI Fluid Control Institute

FDEP Florida Department of Environmental Protection

FDOT Florida Department of Transportation

Fed Spec Federal Specification
FPS Feet Per Second
FS Federal Standards
GPM Gallons Per Minute

HMI Hoist Manufacturers Institute

HP Horsepower

HSBII Hartford Steam Boiler Inspection and Insurance Co.

ID Inside Diameter

IEEE Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers

IFI Industrial Fasteners Institute

IPCEA Insulated Power Cable Engineers Association

IPS Iron Pipe Size

MGD Million Gallons Per Day
MHI Materials Handling Institute

MMA Monorail Manufacturers Association
NBFU National Board of Fire Underwriters
NBHA National Builders' Hardware Association

NBS National Bureau of Standards

NCSA National Crushed Stone Association

NCSPA National Corrugated Steel Pipe Association

NEC National Electrical Code

NECA National Electrical Contractors' Association

NEMA National Electrical Manufacturers' Association

NFPA National Fire Protection Association

NLA National Lime Association
NPC National Plumbing Code
NPT National Pipe Threads
NSC National Safety Council

NSF National Sanitation Foundation

OD Outside Diameter

OSHA U.S. Department of Labor, Occupational Safety and Health Act

PCA Portland Cement Association
PCI Prestressed Concrete Institute
PS United States Products Standards

PSI Pounds per Square Inch

PSIA Pounds per Square Inch Absolute
PSIG Pounds per Square Inch Gauge

RPM Revolutions Per Minute

SAE Society of Automotive Engineers

SDI Steel Decks Institute SJI Steel Joists Institute

SMACNA Sheet Metal and Air Conditioning Contractors' National Association

SSI Scaffolding and Shoring Institute SSPC Steel Structures Painting Council SSPC Structural Steel Painting Council

STA Station (100 feet)
TDH Total Dynamic Head

TH Total Head

UBC Uniform Building Code

UL Underwriter's Laboratories, Inc.

USASI United States of America Standards Institute

C. Additional abbreviations and symbols are shown on the Drawings.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01100 SPECIAL PROJECT PROCEDURES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 PIPE LOCATIONS

A. All pipes shall be located substantially as indicated on the Drawings, but the Engineer reserves the right to make such modifications in locations as may be found desirable to avoid interference with existing structures or for other reasons. Where fittings are noted on the Drawings, such notation is for the Contractor's convenience and does not relieve him from laying and jointing different or additional items where required.

1.02 OPEN EXCAVATIONS

A. All open excavations shall be adequately safeguarded by providing temporary barricades, caution signs, lights and other means to prevent accidents to persons, and damage to property. The Contractor shall, at his own expense, provide suitable and safe bridges and other crossings for accommodating travel by workmen.

1.03 TEST PITS

A. Test pits for the purpose of locating underground pipeline or structures in advance of the construction shall be excavated and backfilled by the Contractor. Test pits shall be backfilled immediately after their purpose has been satisfied and maintained in a manner satisfactory to the Engineer. The costs for such test pits shall be borne by the Contractor.

1.04 JURISDICTIONAL DISPUTES

A. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to pay all costs that may be required to perform any of the Work shown on the Drawings or specified herein in order to avoid any work stoppages due to jurisdictional disputes.

1.05 INCLEMENT WEATHER

A. In the event of inclement weather, the Contractor shall, and shall cause subcontractors to protect carefully the Work and materials against damage or injury from the weather. If, in the opinion of the Engineer, any portion of work or materials have been damaged or injured by reason of failure on the part of the Contractor or any subcontractors to so protect the Work, such Work and materials shall be removed and replaced at the expense of the Contractor.

1.06 COORDINATION OF WORK

A. The Contractor shall cooperate fully so as to eliminate or minimize the creation of conflicts. Adjustments from time to time may be required in the Contractor's work location and/or schedule provided a reasonable notice is given by the Owner or Engineer.

1.07 USE OF PUBLIC STREETS

A. The use of public streets and roads shall be such as to provide a minimum of an inconvenience to the public and to other traffic. Any earth or other excavated materials

spilled from trucks shall be removed by the Contractor and the streets and roads cleaned to the satisfaction of the Owner.

1.08 TRAFFIC

A. All safety precautions shall be taken and all traffic controls be furnished satisfactorily to the City, County, Florida Department of Transportation, and/or other government agencies having jurisdiction, where partial or complete obstruction of highways, roadways, streets, drives or sidewalks is required in the performance of the Work.

1.09 CHEMICALS

A. All chemicals used during project construction, or furnished for project operations, whether herbicide, pesticide, disinfectant, polymer, reactant or of other classification, must show approval of the State Department of Health, Florida Department of Environmental Protection and if required, also the EPA or USDA. Use of all such chemicals and disposal of residues shall be in strict conformance with the manufacturer's instructions or recommended use procedures.

1.10 SAFETY AND HEALTH REGULATIONS

- A. The Contractor shall comply with the Department of Labor Safety & Health Regulations for construction promulgated under the Occupational Safety & Health Act of 1970, (PL 91-596) and under Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours & Safety Standards Act (PL 91-54).
- B. All equipment furnished and installed under this Contract shall comply to Part 1910, Occupational Safety & Health Standards & Amendments thereto.
- C. The Contractor shall comply with the Florida Trench Safety Act (90-96, Florida Law).
- D. All materials, equipment, and components that come in contact with drinking water or drinking water chemicals shall be in conformance with ANSI/NSF Standard 61.

1.11 STATE AND FEDERAL PERMITS

A. Construction in Florida Department of Transportation rights-of-way, wetlands and navigable water bodies will be governed by applicable State and Federal permits. All conditions set forth on the permits shall be a part of the Contract and they shall be attached by addendum.

1.12 INSPECTION

A. The authorized representatives and agents of the Environmental Protection Agency and Controlling State and Local Pollution Control Agencies shall be permitted to inspect all work, material, payrolls, personnel records, invoices of materials and any other relevant data and records. The Owner and Engineer shall be permitted access to any work area for the inspection of work and materials. The Owner may, at the Contractor's expense, order the uncovering or removal of any finished work if circumstances indicate faulty work or materials were used in the original installation. The Owner and Engineer shall also be permitted to inspect material invoices, payrolls or any other relevant data or records as may be necessary or required to satisfy the requirements of the Contract.

1.13 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

A. General:

- 1. Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State and Local laws and regulations controlling pollution of the environment. Contractor shall take necessary precautions to prevent pollution of streams, lakes, ponds, and reservoirs with fuels, oils, bitumens, chemicals, or other harmful materials and to prevent pollution of the atmosphere from particulate and gaseous matter. In the event of conflict between such laws and regulations and the requirements of the Specifications, the more restrictive requirements shall apply. Environmental protection requirements specified in other Sections shall be considered as supplementing the requirements of this Section.
- 2. Failure of the Contractor to fulfill any of the requirements of this Section may result in the Owner ordering the stopping of construction operations.
- 3. Failure on the part of the Contractor to perform the necessary measures to control erosion, siltation, and pollution will result in the Owner notifying the Contractor to take such measures. In the event that the Contractor fails to perform such measures within 24 hours after receipt of such notice, the Owner may stop the Work as provided above, or may proceed to have such measures performed by others. The cost of such work performed by others plus related fees by the Engineer will be deducted from monies due the Contractor on his Contract.
- 4. All erosion and pollution control features installed by the Contractor shall be acceptably maintained by the Contractor during the time that construction work is being done.
- 5. Repair or replace damaged or inoperative erosion and pollution control devices as directed by the Engineer or the Owner's Representative.
- 6. Where there is a high potential for erosion and possible water pollution, the Contractor shall not expose, by his construction methods or procedures, an area of erosive land at any one time larger than the minimum amount required for the proper and efficient construction operation. If the exposure of any incomplete work corresponding to the exposure period required for erosion is anticipated, temporary protective measures shall be taken to prevent the erosion or collapse of land in that immediate construction area.
- B. Erosion and Pollution Control Schedule: At or prior to the preconstruction conference, the Contractor shall submit to the Owner for his information, three (3) copies of his erosion and pollution control work schedule. This schedule shall show the time relationship between phases of the Work which must be coordinated to reduce erosion and pollution, and shall describe construction practices and temporary control measures which will be used to minimize erosion and pollution. The schedule shall also show the Contractor's proposed method of erosion control on haul roads and borrow and material pits, and his plan for disposal of waste materials or other sources of pollution. Maps or other documents may also be required to show the proposed final surface gradient of proposed borrow pits, soil type base course pits, and waste areas. No work shall be started until the erosion and pollution control schedules and methods of operations have been submitted to the Owner for his information.

C. Air Pollution Controls:

- 1. Contractor shall control dust caused by his operations in the construction of the Project, including but not specifically limited to the following:
 - a. Clearing, grubbing, and stripping.
 - b. Excavation and placement of embankment.
 - c. Cement and aggregate handling.
 - d. Limerock stabilization.
 - e. Use of haul roads.
 - f. Sandblasting or grinding.
- 2. Contractor shall control air pollution from the following causes in constructing the project:
 - a. Volatiles escaping from asphalt and cutback materials.
 - b. Use of herbicides or fertilizers.
- 3. Control of dust and other air pollutants by the Contractor shall include:
 - a. Exposing the minimum area of land.
 - b. Applying temporary mulch with or without seeding.
 - c. Use of water sprinkler trucks.
 - d. Use of covered haul trucks.
 - e. Use of stabilizing agents in solution.
 - f. Use dust palliatives and penetration asphalt on temporary roads.
 - g. Use of wood chips in traffic and work areas.
 - h. Use of vacuum-equipped sandblasting systems.
 - i. Use of plastic sheet coverings.
 - j. Restricting the application rate of herbicides to recommended dosage. Materials shall be covered and protected from the elements. Application equipment and empty containers shall not be rinsed and discharged so as to pollute a stream, river, lake, pond, water impoundment, or the ground water.
 - k. Relay of operations until climate or wind conditions dissipate or inhibit the potential pollutants.

- D. Open Burning of Combustible Wastes: No open burning of combustible waste materials or vegetation shall be permitted. All waste materials shall be removed from the site or within public rights-of-way and disposed in a legal manner.
- E. Permanent and Temporary Water Pollution Control (Soil Erosion):
 - Sufficient precautions shall be taken during construction to minimize the run-off of polluting substances such as silt, clay, fuels, oils, bitumens, calcium chloride, or other polluting materials harmful to humans, fish, or other life, into the supplies and surface waters of the State. Control measures must be adequate to assure that turbidity in the receiving water will not be increased more than allowed by the State or controlling agency. Such measures may consist of construction of berms, dikes, dams, drains and sediment basins, or use of fiber mats, woven plastic filter cloths, gravel, mulches, quick growing grasses, sod, bituminous spray and other erosion control devices or methods approved by the State or controlling agency.
 - 2. The Contractor shall not be permitted frequent fording of live streams with construction equipment; therefore, temporary bridges or other structures shall be used wherever such crossings adversely affect sediment levels and an appreciable number of stream crossings are necessary.
 - 3. The Contractor shall promptly clear all waterways and drainage patterns of false work, piling, debris, or other obstructions placed during construction work and not a part of the finished work.
 - 4. The Contractor shall remove and dispose of silt accumulations as directed by the Engineer or the Owner's Representative.
 - 5. If new and additional erosion control structures are to be installed, under this project, to prevent possible future erosion as a result of work under this contract, they shall be constructed concurrently with the other work, as early as possible, and as conditions permit.
- F. Noise Control: The Contractor shall provide adequate protection against objectionable noise levels caused by the operation of construction equipment in order to comply with all current City ordinances and these Specifications. Sound levels shall be measured at the exterior of the nearest exterior wall of the nearest residence or building. Levels at construction equipment shall not exceed 85 dBA at any time. Sound levels in excess of allowable values are sufficient cause to have the work halted until equipment can be quieted to these levels. Work stoppage by the Engineer or Owner for excessive noise shall <u>not</u> relieve the Contractor of the other portions of this Specification including, but not limited to completion dates and bid amounts.

1.14 TREE AND SHRUB PROTECTION AND TRIMMING

- A. Contractor shall exercise care to protect all trees and shrubs designated to remain. Trees and shrubs outside construction limits shall remain and shall be protected and where damaged, restored to original condition. Contractor shall obtain approval from the Owner prior to removing any trees. Trees damaged within construction limits due to negligence shall be restored to original condition.
- B. Tree limbs which interfere with construction operations and are approved for pruning shall be neatly cut with sharp pruning instruments; do not break or chop. All cut faces

shall be coated with an approved tree pruning compound which is waterproof, antiseptic, elastic and free of kerosene, coal tar, creosote and other substances harmful to plants. Pruning operations shall be extended to restore the natural shape of the entire tree or shrub. Do not allow fires under or adjacent to trees or other plants which are to remain.

- C. Contractor shall protect tree and shrub root systems. Do not store construction materials, debris or excavated materials beyond construction limits. Do not permit vehicles or construction equipment beyond the limits of utility line construction. Restrict foot traffic to prevent excessive compaction of soil over root system. Excavated material shall be stockpiled away from tree drip lines as approved by the Engineer. Protect tree and shrub root systems from damage due to noxious materials in solution caused by run-off or spillage during construction operations, or drainage from stored materials. Protect root systems from flooding, erosion or excessive wetting resulting from dewatering operations. Excavate within the drip line of trees only when approved by the Engineer. Where trees are designated to remain within the limits of construction and trenching for utilities is required within tree drip lines, cut roots with sharp pruning instruments; do not break or chop. Paint roots over 2" caliper with approved tree pruning compound.
- D. Trees damaged by construction operations shall be repaired promptly after damage occurs to prevent progressive deterioration of damaged trees. Removed trees, branches, roots and other excess materials shall be removed from the construction site to an approved landfill at the expense of the Contractor.

1.15 SITE CLEANUP AND RESTORATION

- A. The Contractor shall keep the working area free at all times of tools, materials and equipment not essential to the progress of the Work. Debris, waste materials, and rubbish shall be properly disposed of and not allowed to accumulate. If the Contractor should fail to do this, the Owner will make the necessary arrangements to affect the cleanup by others and will back charge the cost to the Contractor. If such action becomes necessary on the part of and in the opinion of the Owner, the Owner will not be responsible for the inadvertent removal of material which the Contractor would not have disposed of had he affected the required cleanup.
- B. Where material or debris has washed or flowed into or been placed in watercourses, ditches, gutters, drains, catch basins, or elsewhere as result of the Contractor's operations, such material or debris shall be entirely removed and satisfactorily disposed of during progress of the Work, and the ditches, channels, drains etc., kept in a clean and neat condition.
- C. On or before the completion of the Work, the Contractor shall, unless otherwise especially directed or permitted in writing, tear down and remove all temporary buildings and structures built by him; shall remove all temporary works, tools, and machinery or other construction equipment furnished by him; shall remove, acceptably disinfect, and cover all organic matter and material containing organic matter in, under, and around privies, houses, and other buildings used by him; shall remove all rubbish from any grounds he has occupied; and shall leave the roads and all parts of the premises and adjacent property affected by his operations, in a neat and satisfactory condition.
- D. The Contractor shall restore the entire project site to its original or better condition, with the exception of any area(s) designated for alteration by the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall restore or replace; when and as directed, any public or private property damaged by his work, equipment, or employees to a condition at least equal to that

- existing immediately prior to the beginning of operations. To this end the Contractor shall do as required all necessary highway or driveway, walk, and landscaping work. Suitable materials, equipment, and methods shall be used for such restoration.
- E. The Contractor shall thoroughly clean all materials and equipment installed by him and his subcontractors and on completion of the Work shall deliver it undamaged and in fresh and new appearing condition.

1.16 LAWS AND REGULATIONS

A. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to give all notices and comply with all the laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, etc., that may be applicable at the time the Work is started on the project. Should the Contractor discover the Drawings or Specifications are contradictory to, or in variance with the above, he shall notify the Engineer immediately, in writing, in order that any required changes or modifications can be made. It is not the Contractor's responsibility to make certain that the Drawings or Specifications are in non-compliance with any of the above; however, should he be aware of any existing discrepancy, or have reason to believe such may exist and performs work without proper notice to the Engineer, the Contractor shall be responsible for any cost involved in making the necessary alterations or corrections.

1.17 CONTRACTOR'S USE OF PREMISES

- A. All project construction work will be accomplished on the Owner's property, public rights-of-way or within temporary construction easements and the Contractor shall confine his activity to those designated areas. The Contractor shall not enter upon private property for any reason without securing prior permission from the property owner. Such permission, including any stipulations, shall be in writing and a copy shall be delivered to the Engineer prior to the Contractor's entry or occupation of the subject property. This requirement will be rigidly enforced, particularly with regard to the utilization of vacant areas adjacent to the work site for the storage of materials or parking equipment.
- B. The Contractor shall perform his work in such manner that he will not damage adjacent public or private property. Any damage to existing physical structures or utility services shall be repaired or restored promptly at no expense to the Owner.
- C. The Contractor shall avoid damage to and preserve all existing vegetation (grass, shrubs, trees, etc.) on or near the work area which do not, within reason, interfere with construction. The Contractor will be responsible for and required to replace or restore all such vegetation damaged or destroyed at no cost to the Owner. The Contractor will also be responsible for any unauthorized cutting or damage to trees, shrubs, etc., and also damage caused by careless operation of equipment, storage of materials and rutting or tracking of grass by equipment.
- D. The Contractor shall conduct access, hauling, filling, and storage operations as specified herein and as shown on the Contract Drawings.
 - 1. On-site borrow areas are designated as follows: Suitable material, as approved by Engineer, from excavations for project structures. Any additional borrow material required shall be provided by the Contractor from off-site.
 - 2. On-site spoil areas will become property of the Contractor and are to be disposed off-site.

- E. Construct all fill areas so runoff will not flood improved areas.
- F. All connections to existing piping systems shall be made as shown or indicated on the Drawings after consultation, cooperation, and coordination with the Owner. Some such connections may have to be made during off-peak hours (late night or early morning hours). The Contractor shall give a minimum of 72 hours notice to the Owner when tieins with the existing plant utilities are required.
- G. For major utility pipeline tie-ins and relocations, the Contractor shall submit a detailed Plan of Action for review and approval by the Owner and the Engineer. No major utility relocation or tie-ins shall proceed until the Plan of Action for that Work is approved.

1.18 HAZARDOUS LOCATIONS

A. The Contractor shall be responsible for identification of hazardous locations, appropriate construction methods, and all other safety issues.

1.19 ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS

A. The Contractor shall provide at his own cost all necessary temporary facilities for access to, and for protection of, all existing structures. The Contractor is responsible for all damage to existing structures, equipment, and facilities caused by his construction operations, and must repair all such damage when and as ordered by the Engineer.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01200 PROJECT MEETINGS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work:

- The Contractor shall cooperate and coordinate with the Engineer to schedule and administer the preconstruction meeting, monthly progress meetings, and specifically called meetings throughout the progress of the Work. The Contractor shall:
 - a. Prepare agenda for meetings.
 - b. Make physical arrangements for meetings.
- 2. Representatives of Contractor, subcontractors, and suppliers attending meetings shall be qualified and authorized to act on behalf of the entity each represents.
- 3. The Owner will attend meetings to ascertain that the Work is expedited consistent with Contract Documents and construction schedules.
- 4. The Contractor shall record the preconstruction meeting and each progress meeting in its entirety, and shall provide the Engineer with a regular cassette or CD copy of such recording, having good quality and clarity, and a typed transcript of the minutes of the meeting.
- B. Related Requirements Described Elsewhere:
 - 1. Construction Progress Schedules: Section 01310.
 - 2. Shop Drawings, Working Drawings, and Samples: Section 01340.
 - 3. Project Record Documents: Section 01720.

1.02 PRECONSTRUCTION MEETING

- A. Engineer will schedule a preconstruction meeting no later than twenty (20) days after date of Notice to Proceed. The meeting shall be scheduled at the convenience of all parties.
- B. Location: A local site, convenient for all parties, designated by the Engineer.
- C. Attendance:
 - 1. Owner's representative.
 - 2. Engineer and his professional consultants.
 - 3. Resident project representative.
 - 4. Contractor and his superintendent.

- 5. Major subcontractors.
- 6. Representatives of major suppliers and manufacturers as appropriate.
- 7. Governmental and Utilities representatives as appropriate.
- 8. Others as requested by the Contractor, Owner, and Engineer.
- D. The Engineer shall preside at the preconstruction meeting. Contractor shall provide for keeping minutes and distribution of minutes. The purpose of the preconstruction meeting is to designate responsible personnel and establish a working relationship. Matters requiring coordination will be discussed and procedures for handling such matters established.
- E. The suggested agenda for the preconstruction meeting will include but not be limited to the following:
 - 1. Distribution and discussion of:
 - a. List of major subcontractors and suppliers.
 - b. Projected schedules.
 - c. Schedule of Values.
 - 2. Critical work sequencing: Relationships and coordination with other contracts and/or work and continuing water treatment plant operation.
 - 3. Major equipment deliveries and priorities.
 - 4. Project coordination: Designation and responsible personnel.
 - 5. Procedures and processing of:
 - a. Field decisions.
 - b. Proposal requests.
 - c. Request for Information.
 - d. Submittals.
 - d. Change Orders.
 - f. Applications for Payment.
 - 6. Submittal of Shop Drawings, project data and samples.
 - 7. Adequacy of distribution of Contract Documents.
 - 8. Procedures for maintaining Record Documents

- 9. Use of premises:
 - a. Office, work, and storage areas.
 - b. Owner's requirements.
 - c. Access and traffic control.
- 10. Construction facilities, controls, and construction aids.
- 11. Temporary utilities.
- 12. Safety and first aid procedures.
- 13. Check of required Bond and Insurance certifications.
- 14. Completion time for contract and liquidated damages.
- 15. Request for extension of Contract Time.
- 16. Procedures for periodic monthly (or whatever interval is deemed appropriate or necessary, however, a minimum of monthly meetings will be required) progress meetings, for all involved.
- 17. Security procedures.
- 18. Procedures for making partial payments.
- 19. Guarantees on completed work.
- 20. Equipment to be used.
- 21. Project layout and staking of work.
- 22. Project inspection.
- 23. Labor requirements.
- 24. Laboratory testing of material requirements.
- 25. Provisions for material stored on site and monthly inventory of materials stored.
- 26. Requirements of other organizations such as utilities, railroads, highway departments, building departments.
- 27. Rights-of-way and easements.
- 28. Housekeeping procedures.
- 29. Posting of signs and installation of Project Sign.
- 30. Pay request submittal dates.
- 31. Equal opportunity requirements.

1.03 PROGRESS MEETINGS

- A. The Engineer shall schedule regular periodic meetings. The progress meetings will be held a minimum of once every thirty (30) days and at other times as required by the progress of the Work. The first meeting shall be held within thirty (30) days after the preconstruction meeting or thirty (30) days or less after the date of Notice to Proceed.
- B. Hold called meetings as required by progress of the Work.
- C. Location of the meetings: As designated by the Owner.
- D. Attendance:
 - 1. Engineer and his professional Subconsultants as needed.
 - 2. Resident Project Representative.
 - 3. Contractor and his Superintendent.
 - 4. Owner's representatives.
 - 5. Subcontractors (active on the site, as appropriate to the agenda).
 - 6. Others as appropriate to the agenda (suppliers, manufacturers, other subcontractors, etc.).
- E. The Engineer shall preside at the meetings. Contractor shall provide for keeping minutes and distribution of the minutes. The purpose of the meetings will be to review the progress of the Work.
- F. The suggested agenda for the progress meetings will include but not be limited to the following:
 - 1. Review approval of minutes of previous meeting.
 - 2. Review of Work progress since previous meeting and Work scheduled (3-week look ahead schedule).
 - 3. Field observations, problems, conflicts.
 - 4. Problems which impede construction schedule.
 - 5. Review of off-site fabrication, delivery schedules.
 - 6. Corrective measures and procedures to regain projected schedule.
 - 7. Status of Construction Schedule and revisions to the Construction Schedule as appropriate.
 - 8. Progress schedule during succeeding work period.
 - 9. Coordination of schedules.

- 10. Review status of submittals and submittal schedule, expedite as required.
- 11. Maintenance of quality standards.
- 12. Pending changes and substitutions.
- 13. Shop drawing problems.
- 14. Review proposed changes for:
 - a. Effect on Construction Schedule and on completion date.
 - b. Effect on other contracts of the Project.
- 15. Critical/long lead items.
- 16. Other business.
- G. The Contractor is to attend progress meetings and is to study previous meeting minutes and current agenda items, and be prepared to discuss pertinent topics and provide specific information including but not limited to:
 - 1. Status of all submittals and what specifically is being done to expedite them.
 - 2. Status of all activities behind schedule and what specifically will be done to regain the schedule.
 - 3. Status of all material deliveries, latest contact with equipment manufacturers, and specific actions taken to expedite materials.
 - 4. Status of open deficiencies and what is being done to correct the same.
- H. The Contractor is to provide a current submittal log at each progress meeting in accordance with Section 01340: Shop Drawings, Working Drawings, and Samples.

PART 2- PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01310 PROGRESS SCHEDULES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work:

- 1. Prepare and submit to the Engineer in accordance with these Specifications, the estimated construction progress schedules demonstrating complete fulfillment of all contract requirements.
- 2. Submit revised progress schedules on a monthly basis. No partial payments shall be approved until there is an approved construction progress schedule.

1.02 FORM OF SCHEDULES

- A. Prepare schedules in the form of a horizontal bar chart.
 - 1. Provide separate horizontal bar for each trade or operation within each structure or item.
 - 2. Horizontal time scale:
 - a. Show starting and completion dates for each activity in terms of the number of days after Notice to Proceed. All completion dates shown shall be within the period specified for contract completion. The first Schedule developed for approval shall be for the full length of the contract time. Subsequent schedules developed during construction can be modified based upon actual product deliveries and schedule of work.
 - b. Identify the first work day of each month.
 - 3. Scale and Spacing: To allow space for notations and future revisions.
 - 4. Maximum Sheet Size: 24 inches by 36 inches.
- B. Format of Listings: The chronological order of the start of each item of work for each structure.
- C. Identification of Listings: By major specification section numbers as applicable and structure.

1.03 CONTENT OF SCHEDULES

- A. Construction Progress Schedule:
 - 1. Show the complete sequence of construction by activity.
 - 2. Show the dates for the beginning of, and completion of, each major element of construction in no more than a one (1) week increment scale.

- 3. Show projected percentage of completion for each item, as of the first day of each month.
- 4. Show projected dollar cash flow requirements for each month of construction and for each activity as indicated by the approved Schedule of Values.
- B. Submittals schedule for Shop Drawings and Samples shall be in accordance with Section 01340: Shop Drawings, Working Drawings, and Samples. Indicate on the Schedule the following:
 - 1. The dates for Contractor's submittals.
 - 2. The dates submittals will be required for Owner-furnished products, if applicable.
- C. A typewritten list of all long lead items (equipment, materials, etc.).
- D. To the extent that the progress schedule or any revised progress schedule shows anything not jointly agreed upon or fails to show anything jointly agree upon, it shall not be deemed to have been approved by the Engineer. Failure to include any element of work required for the performance of this Contract shall not excuse the Contractor from completing all work required within any applicable completion date, notwithstanding the Engineer's approval of the progress schedule.

1.04 PROGRESS REVISIONS

- A. Indicate progress of each activity to date of submission.
- B. Show changes occurring since previous submission of schedule:
 - 1. Major changes in scope.
 - 2. Activities modified since previous submission.
 - 3. Revised projections of progress and completion.
 - 4. Other identifiable changes.
- C. Provide a narrative report as needed to define:
 - 1. Problem areas, anticipated delays, and the impact on the schedule.
 - 2. Corrective action recommended, and its effect.
 - 3. The effect of changes on schedules of other prime contractors.

1.05 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submittal Requirements.
 - 1. Logic network and/or time phased bar chart.
 - 2. Narrative description of the logic and reasoning of the schedule.

B. Time of Submittals.

Within fifteen (15) working days after Notice to Proceed, Contractor shall submit a network diagram describing the activities to be accomplished in the project and their dependency relationships, (predecessor/successor) as well as a tabulated schedule as herein defined. The schedule produced and submitted shall indicate a project completion date on or before the contract completion date.

- C. Within ten (10) working days after the conclusion of the Engineer's review period, Contractor shall revise the network diagram as required and resubmit the network diagram and a tabulated schedule produced therefrom. The revised network diagram and tabulated schedule shall be reviewed and accepted or rejected by the Engineer within fifteen (15) working days after receipt. The network diagram and tabulated schedule when accepted by the Engineer shall constitute the project work schedule unless a revised schedule is required due to substantial changes in the work scope, a change in contract time or a recovery schedule is required and requested.
- D. Acceptance. The finalized schedule will be acceptable to the Engineer, when in the opinion of the Engineer, it demonstrates an orderly progression of the Work to completion in accordance with the contract requirements. Such acceptance will neither impose on the Engineer responsibility for the progress or scheduling of the Work nor relieve Contractor from full responsibility therefore. The finalized schedule of shop drawing submittals will be acceptable to the Engineer, when in the opinion of the Engineer, it demonstrates a workable arrangement for processing the submittals in accordance with the requirements. The finalized Schedule of Values will be acceptable to the Engineer as to form and content, when in the opinion of the Engineer, it demonstrates a substantial basis for equitably distributing the contract sum. When the network diagram and tabulated schedule have been accepted, The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer five (5) copies of the time-scaled network diagram.
- E. Revised Work Schedules. Contractor, if requested by the Engineer, shall provide a revised work schedule if, at any time, the Engineer considers the completion date to be in jeopardy because of "activities behind schedule." The revised work schedule shall include a new diagram and tabulated schedule conforming to the requirements of this section, designed to show how Contractor intends to accomplish the work to meet the completion date. The form and method employed by Contractor shall be the same as for the original work schedule. No payment will be made if activities fall more than two (2) weeks behind schedule and a revised work schedule is not furnished.
- F. Schedule Revisions. The Engineer may require Contractor to modify any portions of the work schedule that become infeasible because of "activities behind schedule" or for any other valid reason. An activity that cannot be completed by its original latest completion date shall be deemed to be behind schedule. No change may be made to the sequence, duration or relationships of any activity without approval of the Engineer.

1.06 DISTRIBUTION

- A. Distribute copies of the reviewed schedules to:
 - 1. Engineer.
 - Subcontractors.
 - 3. Other concerned parties.

- 4. Owner (two copies).
- B. Instruct recipients to report promptly to the Contractor, in writing, any problems anticipated by the projections shown in the schedules.

1.07 CHANGE ORDERS

A. Upon approval of a change order, the approved changes shall be reflected in the next scheduled revision or update submittal by Contractor.

1.08 SCHEDULE MONITORING

- A. At not less than monthly intervals or when specifically requested by Engineer, Contractor shall submit to the Engineer of an updated schedule for those activities that remain to be completed.
- B. The updated schedule shall be submitted in the form, sequence, and number of copies requested for the initial schedule.

1.09 PROGRESS MEETINGS

For the bi-weekly progress meeting, Contractor shall submit a three (3) week look-ahead schedule showing all activities in progress, uncompleted or scheduled to be worked during the three weeks. The three (3) weeks include the current week plus the next two (2) weeks. All activities shall be from the approved schedule and must be as shown on the schedule unless behind or ahead of schedule.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01340 SHOP DRAWINGS, WORKING DRAWINGS, AND SAMPLES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work:

- 1. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer for review and approval, such Shop Drawings, Test Reports, and Product Data on materials and equipment (hereinafter in this Section called Data), and material samples (hereinafter in this Section called Samples) as are required for the proper control of work, including but not limited to those Shop Drawings, Data, and Samples for materials and equipment specified elsewhere in the Specifications and in the Drawings.
- Within fourteen (14) calendar days after the Effective Date of the Agreement, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer a complete list of preliminary data on items for which Shop Drawings are to be submitted. Included in this list shall be the names of all proposed manufacturers furnishing specified items. Review of this list by the Engineer shall in no way expressed or implied relieve the Contractor from submitting complete Shop Drawings and providing materials, equipment, etc., fully in accordance with the Contract Documents. This procedure is required in order to expedite final review of Shop Drawings.
- 3. The Contractor is to maintain an accurate updated submittal log and will bring this log to each scheduled progress meeting with the Owner and the Engineer. This log should include the following items:
 - a. Submittal description and number assigned.
 - b. Date to Engineer.
 - c. Date returned to Contractor (from Engineer).
 - d. Status of submittal (Approved, Approved as Noted, Amend and Resubmit, and Rejected).
 - e. Date of resubmittal and return (as applicable).
 - f. Date material release (for fabrication).
 - g. Projected date of fabrication.
 - h. Projected date of delivery to site.
 - i. Status of O&M manuals submittal.
 - j. Specification Section.
 - k. Drawings sheet number.
- B. Related Requirements Described Elsewhere:

- 1. Construction Progress Schedules: Section 01310.
- 2. Project Record Documents: Section 01720.
- 3. Operating and Maintenance Data: Section 01730.

1.02 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

- A. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to check all drawings, data and samples prepared before submitting them to the Engineer for review. Each and every copy of the Drawings and data shall bear the Contractor's stamp showing that they have been so checked. Shop drawings submitted to the Engineer without the Contractor's stamp will be returned to the Contractor for conformance with this requirement. Shop drawings shall indicate any deviations in the submittal from requirements of the Contract Documents. If the Contractor takes exception to the specifications, the Contractor shall note the exception in the letter of transmittal to the Engineer.
- B. Determine and verify:
 - 1. Field measurements.
 - 2. Field construction criteria
 - 3. Catalog numbers and similar data.
 - 4. Conformance with Specifications.
- C. The Contractor shall furnish the Engineer a schedule of Shop Drawing submittals fixing the respective dates for the submission of shop and working drawings, the beginning and ending of manufacture, testing, and installation of materials, supplies, and equipment. This schedule shall indicate those that are critical to the progress schedule.
- D. The Contractor shall not begin any of the work covered by a Shop Drawing, Data, or a Sample returned for correction until a revision or correction thereof has been reviewed and returned to him, by the Engineer, with approval.
- E. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer all drawings and schedules sufficiently in advance of construction requirements to provide no less than thirty (30) calendar days for checking and appropriate action from the time the Engineer receives them.
- F. All submittals shall be accompanied with a transmittal letter prepared in duplicate containing the following information:
 - 1. Date.
 - 2. Project Title and Number.
 - 3. Contractor's name and address.
 - 4. The number of each Shop Drawings, Project Data, and Sample submitted.
 - 5. Notification of Deviations from Contract Documents.

- a. The Contractor shall indicate in **bold type** at the top of the cover sheet of submittal of shop drawing if there is a deviation from the Drawings, Specifications, or referenced specifications or codes.
- b. The Contractor shall also list any deviations from the Drawings, Specifications, or referenced specifications or codes and identify in green ink prominently on the applicable Shop Drawings.
- 6. Submittal Log Number conforming to Specification Section Number.
- G. The Contractor shall submit six (6) copies of descriptive or product data information and Shop Drawings to the Engineer plus the number of copies which the Contractor requires returned. All blueprint Shop Drawings shall be submitted with one (1) set of mylar reproducibles and the same number of prints as Shop Drawings, plus the number of copies which the Contractor requires returned. The Engineer will review the blueprints and return to the Contractor the set of marked-up mylar reproducibles with appropriate review comments.
- H. The Contractor shall be responsible for and bear all costs of damages which may result from the ordering of any material or from proceeding with any part of Work prior to the completion of the review by the Engineer of the necessary Shop Drawings.
- I. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for observing the need for and making any changes in the arrangement of piping, connections, wiring, manner of installation, etc., which may be required by the materials/equipment he proposes to supply both as pertains to his own work and any work affected under other parts, headings, or divisions of the Drawings and Specifications.
- J. The Contractor shall not use Shop Drawings as a means of proposing alternate items to demonstrate compliance with the Drawings and Specifications.
- K. Each submittal will bear a stamp indicating that Contractor has satisfied Contractor's obligations under the Contract Documents with respect to Contractor's review and approval of that submittal. The Contractor stamp shall be similar to the sample given below

OWNER'S NAME) (PROJECT NAME) (PROJECT NUMBER)
SHOP DRAWING NO.:DRAWING NO
WITH RESPECT TO THIS SHOP DRAWING OR SAMPLE, I HAVE DETERMINED AND VERIFIED ALL QUANTITIES, DIMENSIONS, SPECIFIED PERFORMANCE CRITERIA, INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS, MATERIALS, CATALOG NUMBER, AND SIMILAR DATA WITH RESPECT THERETO AND REVIEWED OR COORDINATED THIS SHOP DRAWING OR SAMPLE WITH OTHER SHOP DRAWINGS AND SAMPLES AND WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE WORK AND THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.
NO VARIATION FROM CONTRACT DOCUMENTS VARIATION FROM CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AS SHOWN
(CONTRACTOR'S NAME) (CONTRACTOR'S ADDRESS)
BY: DATE:
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

NOTE: NOT TO SCALE

L. Drawings and schedules shall be checked and coordinated with the work of all trades and sub-contractors involved, before they are submitted for review by the Engineer and shall bear the Contractor's stamp of approval as evidence of such checking and coordination. Drawings or schedules submitted without this stamp of approval shall be returned to the Contractor for resubmission.

1.03 ENGINEER'S REVIEW OF SHOP DRAWINGS

- A. The Engineer's review of Shop Drawings, Data, and Samples as submitted by the Contractor will be to determine if the items(s) generally conforms to the information in the Contract Documents and is compatible with the design concept. The Engineer's review and exceptions, if any, will not constitute an approval of dimensions, connections, quantities, and details of the material, equipment, device, or item shown.
- B. The review of drawings and schedules will be general, and shall not be construed:
 - 1. As permitting any departure from the Contract Documents.
 - 2. As relieving the Contractor of responsibility for any errors, including details, dimensions, and materials.
 - 3. As approving departures from details furnished by the Engineer, except as otherwise provided herein.
- C. If the drawings or schedules as submitted describe variations and show a departure from the Contract Documents which the Engineer finds to be in the interest of the Owner and to be so minor as not to involve a change in Contract Price or contract time, the Engineer may return the reviewed drawings without noting an exception.
- D. "Approved As Noted" Contractor shall incorporate Engineer's comments into the submittal before release to manufacturer. The Contractor shall send a letter to the Engineer acknowledging the comments and their incorporation into the Shop Drawing.
- E. "Amend And Resubmit" Contractor shall resubmit the Shop Drawing to the Engineer. The resubmittal shall incorporate the Engineer's comments highlighted on the Shop Drawing.
- F. "Rejected" Contractor shall correct, revise and resubmit Shop Drawing for review by Engineer.
- G. Resubmittals will be handled in the same manner as first submittals. On resubmittals the Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, to revisions other than the corrections requested by the Engineer on previous submissions. The Contractor shall make any corrections required by the Engineer.
- H. If the Contractor considers any correction indicated on the drawings to constitute a change to the Drawings or Specifications, the Contractor shall give written notice thereof to the Engineer.
- I. When the Shop Drawings have been completed to the satisfaction of the Engineer, the Contractor shall carry out the construction in accordance therewith and shall make no further changes therein except upon written instructions from the Engineer.

- J. No partial submittals will be reviewed. Submittals not deemed complete will be stamped "Rejected" and returned to the Contractor for resubmittal. Unless otherwise specifically permitted by the Engineer, make all submittals in groups containing all associated items for:
 - 1. Systems.
 - 2. Processes.
 - 3. As indicated in specific Specifications Sections.

All drawings, schematics, manufacturer's product data, certifications, and other Shop Drawing submittals required by a system specification shall be submitted at one time as a package to facilitate interface checking.

- K. Only the Engineer shall utilize the color "red" in marking Shop Drawing submittals.
- L. Shop drawing and submittal data shall be reviewed by the Engineer for each original submittal and first resubmittal; thereafter review time for subsequent resubmittals shall be charged to the Contractor and the Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for services rendered by the Engineer as specified in the Supplementary Conditions.

1.04 SHOP DRAWINGS

- A. When used in the Contract Documents, the term "Shop Drawing" shall be considered to mean Contractor's plans for materials and equipment which become an integral part of the Project. Shop Drawings shall be complete and detailed and shall consist of fabrication, erection, setting and schedule drawings, manufacturer's scale drawings, and wiring and control diagrams. Catalogs cuts, catalogs, pamphlets, descriptive literature, and performance and test data shall be considered only as supportive information to required Shop Drawings as defined above. As used herein, the term "manufactured" applies to standard units usually mass-produced; and "fabricated" means items specifically assembled or made out of selected materials to meet individual design requirements.
- B. Manufacturer's catalog sheets, brochures, diagrams, illustrations, and other standard descriptive data shall be clearly marked to identify pertinent materials, products, or models. Delete information which is not applicable to the Work by striking or cross-hatching.
- C. Each Shop Drawing shall be submitted with an 8-1/2" by 11" cover sheet which shall include a title block for the submittal. Each Shop Drawing cover sheet shall have a blank area 3-1/2 inches high by 4-1/2 inches wide, located adjacent to the title block. The title block/cover sheet shall display the following:
 - 1. Project Title and Number.
 - 2. Name of project building or structure.
 - 3. Number and title of the Shop Drawing.
 - 4. Date of Shop Drawing or revision.
 - 5. Name of Contractor and subcontractor submitting drawing.

- 6. Supplier/manufacturer.
- 7. Separate detailer when pertinent.
- 8. Specification title and Section number.
- 9. Applicable Drawing number.
- D. Data on materials and equipment shall include, without limitation, materials and equipment lists, catalog data sheets, catalog cuts, performance curves, diagrams, verification of conformance with applicable standards or codes, materials of construction, and similar descriptive material. Materials and equipment lists shall give, for each item thereon, the name and location of the supplier or manufacturer, trade name, catalog reference, size, finish, and all other pertinent Data.
- E. For all mechanical and electrical equipment furnished, the Contractor shall provide a list including the equipment name, and address, and telephone number of the manufacturer's representative and service company so that service and/or spare parts can be readily obtained.
- F. If drawings show variations from Contract requirements because of standard shop practice or for other reasons, the Contractor shall describe such variations in his letter of transmittal. If acceptable, proper adjustment in the Contract shall be implemented where appropriate. If the Contractor fails to describe such variations, he shall not be relieved of the responsibility for executing the Work in accordance with the Contract, even though such drawings have been reviewed.
- G. All manufacturers or equipment suppliers who propose to furnish equipment or products shall submit an installation list to the Engineer along with the required shop drawings. The installation list shall include at least five (5) installations where identical equipment has been installed and has been in operation for a period of at least two (2) years unless specified otherwise in the Specification Section applicable.

1.05 WORKING DRAWINGS

- A. When used in the Contract Documents, the term "Working Drawings" shall be considered to mean the Contractor's plan for temporary structures such as temporary bulkheads, support of open cut excavation, support of utilities, ground water control systems, forming and falsework for underpinning, and for such other work as may be required for construction but does not become an integral part of the Project.
- B. Copies of working drawings as noted in paragraph 1.05 A. above, shall be submitted to the Engineer where required by the Contract Documents or requested by the Engineer, and shall be submitted at least thirty (30) calendar days (unless otherwise specified by the Engineer) in advance of their being required for the Work.
- C. Working Drawings shall be signed by a registered Professional Engineer, currently licensed to practice in the State of Florida, and shall convey, or be accompanied by, calculations or other sufficient information to completely explain the structure, machine, or system described and its intended manner of use. Prior to commencing such work, working drawings must have been reviewed without specific exceptions by the Engineer, which review will be for general conformance and will not relieve the Contractor in any way from his responsibility with regard to the fulfillment of the terms of the Contract. All

risks to new or existing work are assumed by the Contractor; the Owner and Engineer shall have no responsibility therefor.

1.06 SAMPLES

- A. The Contractor shall furnish, for the approval of the Engineer, samples required by the Contract Documents or requested by the Engineer. Samples shall be delivered to the Engineer as specified or directed. The Contractor shall prepay all shipping charges on samples. Materials or equipment for which samples are required shall not be used in the Work until approved by the Engineer.
- B. Samples shall be of sufficient size and quantity to clearly illustrate:
 - 1. Functional characteristics of the product, with integrally related parts and attachment devices.
 - 2. Full range of color, texture, and pattern.
 - 3. A minimum of three (3) samples of each item shall be submitted.
- C. Each sample shall have a label indicating:
 - 1. Name of Project.
 - 2. Name of Contractor and subcontractor.
 - 3. Material or equipment represented.
 - 4. Place of origin.
 - 5. Name of producer/supplier and brand (if any).
 - 6. Location in Project.
 - 7. Submittal and specification numbers.

(Samples of finished materials shall have additional marking that will identify them under the finished schedules.)

- D. The Contractor shall prepare a transmittal letter and a description sheet for each shipment of samples. The description sheet shall contain the information required in Paragraphs 1.06B and C above. He shall enclose a copy of the letter and description sheet with the shipment and send a copy of the letter and description sheet to the Engineer. Approval of a sample shall be only for the characteristics or use named in such approval and shall not be construed to change or modify any Contract requirements.
- E. Approved samples not destroyed in testing shall be sent to the Engineer or stored at the site of the Work. Approved Samples of the hardware in good condition will be marked for identification and may be used in the Work. Materials and equipment incorporated in the Work shall match the approved Samples. Samples which failed testing or were not approved will be returned to the Contractor at his expense, if so requested at time of submission.

PART 2 -	PRODUCTS	(NOT USED)
----------	-----------------	------------

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01370 SCHEDULE OF VALUES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work:

- 1. Submit to the Engineer a Schedule of Values allocated to the various lump sum portions of the Work, at the Pre-Construction Conference, and as otherwise specified or requested to be submitted earlier as evidence of the Apparent Low Bidder's qualifications.
- 2. Upon request of the Engineer support the values with data which will substantiate their correctness. The data shall include, but not be limited to quantity of materials, all sub-elements of the activity, and their units of measure.
- 3. The Schedule of Values shall establish the actual value for each activity of the Work to be completed taken from the Construction Schedule, and shall be used as the basis for the Contractor's Applications for Payment.
- B. Related Requirements Described Elsewhere:
 - 1. Conditions of the Construction Contract.

1.02 FORM AND CONTENT OF SCHEDULE OF VALUES

- A. Type schedule on 8-1/2 inch x 11 inch white paper. Contractor's standard forms and computer printouts may be considered for approval by the Engineer upon Contractor's request. Identify schedule with:
 - 1. Title of project and location.
 - 2. Owner and purchase order number.
 - 3. Engineer and project number.
 - 4. Name and address of Contractor.
 - 5. Contract designation.
 - Date of submission.
- B. Schedule shall list the installed value of the component parts of the Work in sufficient detail to serve as a basis for computing item prices for progress payments during construction.
- C. Identify each line item with the number and the title of the respective section of the Specifications.
- D. For each major item of the Work, list sub-values of major products or operations under the major item.

- E. For the various portions of the Work:
 - 1. The amount for each item shall reflect a total installed cost including a directly proportional amount of the Contractor's overhead and profit.
 - 2. For items on which progress payments will be requested for stored materials, break down the value into:
 - a. The cost of the materials, delivered and unloaded, with taxes paid. Paid invoices are required for materials. Payment for materials shall be limited to the invoiced amount only.
 - b. The total installed value.
- F. Round off figures to nearest dollar amount.
- G. The sum of the costs of all items listed in the schedule shall equal the total Contract Price.
- H. For each item which has an installed value of more than \$15,000, provide a breakdown of costs to list major products or operations under each item.

1.03 SUBSCHEDULE OF UNIT MATERIAL VALUES

- A. Submit a separate schedule of unit prices for materials to be stored on site and for those materials incorporated into the Work for which progress payments will be requested.
- B. The unit values for the materials shall be broken down into:
 - 1. Cost of the material, delivered and unloaded at the site, with taxes paid.
 - 2. Copies of paid invoices for component material shall be included with the payment request in which the material first appears.
- C. Only materials unique to the project may be billed when stored on site. Materials of standard use such as conduit, wire, small-diameter pipe, steel, etc., shall not be accepted for payment.
- D. The installed unit value multiplied by the quantity listed shall equal the cost of that item in the Schedule of Values.

1.04 REVIEW AND RESUBMITTAL

- A. After review by Engineer, revise and resubmit Schedule of Values and Schedule of Unit Material Values as required.
- B. Resubmit revised schedules in same manner.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01380 CONSTRUCTION PHOTOGRAPHY & VIDEOS

PART 1 GENERAL

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the production of pre-construction, construction progress and post-construction photographs as provided herein. Owner's Representative may also designate additional subjects for photographs in addition to the general guidelines identified below.

PART 2 QUALITY

All photographs must be produced by a competent photographer and shall be digital (10 Mega-Pixel minimum) date-stamped color photography of commercial quality. All CONTRACTOR-generated photographs must be stored in a .jpeg file format Each photograph shall be submitted in duplicate as two 3x5 prints with no more than 3 photos per page of professional quality enclosed in clear plastic sleeve within 3 tab folders. The prints shall be accompanied by digital date-stamped photographs in CD format or other format acceptable to the City. Each print shall be marked with the name and city project number for the Contract, name of CONTRACTOR, description and location of view and identity of photographer.

Each photograph submittal must include a Photo Log that includes the name and city project number of Contract, name of CONTRACTOR, the name of the photographer and company, photograph number, the date of the photograph and the filename that the camera assigns to the photo (e.g. MVC-001.jpg). In addition, appropriate descriptive information to properly identify the location of view must be entered into the Photo Log that includes a project drawing or sketch to assist in maintaining a concise project record (e.g. location of MH 5 - Line A or Sta. 2+00 - Line A or location of Sedimentation Basin 5, valve, etc.).

PART 3 VIEWS AND QUANTITIES

A. PRE-CONSTRUCTION VIDEO

STREET, RIGHTS-OF-WAY OR WATER/WASTEWATER/STORMWATER PROJECTS

CONTRACTOR shall document by video, within the limits of construction, all pre-existing site conditions/elements as listed for the Pre-construction Photographs below. The video documentation shall provide a clear and continuous view of the project alignment showing all visible utilities and features within the limits of construction. The pre-construction video shall be in a format acceptable to the City and shall be shot prior to the occurrence of any site disturbance after Notice to Proceed. Three (3) copies of the pre-construction video on DVD shall be submitted within ten (10) calendar days of the Notice to Proceed.

B. PRE-CONSTRUCTION PHOTOGRAPHS

STREET. RIGHTS-OF-WAY OR WATER/WASTEWATER/STORMWATER PROJECTS

All pre-construction photographs must be submitted within ten (10) calendar days of the Notice to Proceed. Pre-construction photographs must be taken at sufficient intervals to be able to carefully document the pre-construction conditions of the Work, but in no case less than 100 foot intervals along the street, right-of-way, drainage easement or water/wastewater line route before commencement of Work. Each photograph location shall be taken from a minimum of two (2) views (one forward station view and one backward station view along the street, drainage, easement or pipeline route) within the limits of construction. Particular attention must be devoted to pre-existing damage to structures; landscape features, streets, curbs, sidewalks, driveways, signs, mailboxes, retaining walls, MSE walls, etc. shall be documented. An identifier such as houses or businesses address/ signs, property numbers, mail boxes, landscaping, etc. shall be included in each view for ease of later identification. At a minimum, Pre-construction photographs must be taken of the following views:

- The entire street ROW
- The entire easement width and length (both permanent and temporary)
- All curb lines (both sides of street) all pre-existing curb damage not called for replacement within the Work and shall include major cracks
- All driveways, steps, and curbs and curb ramps (both sides of street)
- Fence and gate conditions
- Trees, ornamental shrubs, plantings/planter boxes and evidence of irrigation features
- Other privately or publically owned features or facilities that might be disturbed by the construction
- Prominent utility features, such as: guy wires, poles, signs, valves, fire hydrants, meters, pull boxes, etc.
- Streams and stream banks within the limits of construction
- Other significant or prominent features in order to protect the OWNER and CONTRACTOR following construction (e.g. close up photographs of pre-existing broken curbs, cracked/failed pavement, damaged adjacent retaining walls, etc.)
- Views of structures, both inside and adjacent to the ROW/easement in areas where CONTRACTOR will be working within five (5) feet of said structure
- Other views as requested by the OWNER
- the OWNER

C. CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS PHOTOGRAPHS

STREET, RIGHTS-OF-WAY OR WATER/WASTEWATER/STORMWATER PROJECTS

Construction Progress photos must be taken at least weekly showing the progress of the work for the week. Construction photographs of the same views taken during preconstruction photography must be taken during the progress of the Work and shall be submitted monthly with the Contractor's monthly progress payment application.

D. POST CONSTRUCTION PHOTOGRAPHS

Post-construction photographs must be taken of the same views taken during preconstruction photography to fully document the completed project. Post-construction photographs must be taken after cleanup and site restoration, and must be submitted with the final payment.

SECTION 01410 TESTING AND TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work:

- 1. The Contractor shall employ and pay for services of an independent testing laboratory to perform soils and concrete testing. The testing laboratory will be selected by the Engineer and shall complete various testing activities as directed by the Engineer; however, the Contractor shall pay for the testing services from an allowance established in Section 00300.
- 2. Contractor shall cooperate with the laboratory to facilitate the execution of its required services.

B. Related Requirements Described Elsewhere:

- 1. Conditions of the Contract.
- 2. Respective section of the Specifications: Certification of products.
- 3. Each Specification section listed: Laboratory tests required, and standards for testing.
- 4. Testing laboratory inspection, sampling and testing is required for, but not limited to the following:
 - a. Excavating, Backfilling, and Compaction.
 - b. Stabilized Sub-Base.
 - c. Limerock Base.
 - d. Asphaltic Concrete Pavement.
 - e. Cast-in-Place Concrete.
 - f. Shotcrete.
- C. The following schedule defines the responsibilities of various tests.

Test	Notes	Paid for By
Soil Compaction	Pipe Work: every 100 ft. at each lift of compaction minimum.	Contractor
	Beneath Structures: each 500 SF each lift of compaction minimum.	
Settlement Monitoring	As required by testing laboratory	Contractor

Pressure As specified in Division 15. Contractor

Bacteriological As required by local and State agencies. Contractor

LBR Each 600 SF of pavement minimum. Contractor

Asphaltic Concrete Pavement Per FDOT Specifications Contractor

Concrete Slump test each delivery and compression test Contractor

five cylinders every 50 C.Y. minimum.

Shotcrete Per Section 13205 Contractor

D. Additional Tests: The Contractor shall pay for first tests as specified herein. In the event that first test samples do not meet the applicable material specifications, the Contractor shall take measures to conform the material and equipment to the Specifications. All subsequent tests after the first test required to show compliance with the Specifications shall be paid for by the Contractor. The costs for retesting shall not be deducted from the allowance.

1.02 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. Cooperate with Owner's personnel and laboratory personnel. Provide access to Work and manufacturer's operations.
- B. Provide to the laboratory the preliminary design mix proposed to be used for concrete, and other materials mixes which require control by the testing laboratory.
- C. Materials and equipment used in the performance of work under this Contract are subject to inspection and testing at the point of manufacturer or fabrication. Standard specifications for quality and workmanship are indicated in the Contract Documents. The Engineer may require the Contractor to provide statements or certificates from the manufacturers and fabricators that the materials and equipment provided by them are manufactured or fabricated in full accordance with the standard specifications for quality and workmanship indicated in the Contract Documents. All costs of providing statements and certificates shall be a subsidiary obligation of the Contractor, and no extra charge to the Owner shall be allowed on account of such testing and certification.
- D. Furnish incidental labor and facilities:
 - 1. To provide access to Work to be tested.
 - 2. To facilitate inspections and tests.
- E. Notify Owner a minimum of three (3) working days in advance of operations to allow for laboratory assignment of personnel and scheduling of tests.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01500 TEMPORARY FACILITIES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Scope of Work: Provide temporary facilities required which shall include but are not necessarily limited to the following:
 - 1. By Contractor:
 - a. Telephone.
 - b. Storage sheds.
 - c. Temporary water service.
 - d. Temporary sanitary facilities.
 - e. Temporary electrical service.
 - f. Contractor's field office.
 - 2. By Owner:
 - a. None.

1.02 TEMPORARY WATER

- A. Furnish and install temporary water service for use throughout construction period.
 - 1. Water for construction purposes.
 - 2. Water for other purposes.
 - a. Testing.
 - b. Temporary sanitary facilities.
 - c. Cleaning.
 - d. Potable water source (separate).
- B. Maintain adequate volume of water for all purposes.
- C. Water Source:
 - 1. Supplier: City of Fruitland Park
 - 2. Potable water used shall be separately metered and protected with approved back flow prevention devices. Potable water used will be billed to the Contractor

at current utility rates.

- D. Maintain strict supervision of use of temporary services.
 - 1. Enforce conformance with applicable codes and standards.
 - 2. Enforce sanitary practices.
 - 3. Prevent waste of water.
 - 4. Prevent abuse of services.
- E. Costs of Installation and Operation: Pay costs for water used by all trades, including costs of installation, maintenance, and removal of pipe, meters, and equipment.
- F. Requirements of Regulatory Agencies:
 - 1. Pay for permits, fees, and deposits required by governing authorities.
 - 2. Comply with Federal, State and local codes.

1.03 TEMPORARY ELECTRICITY

- A. Furnish and install temporary electric power service for construction needs throughout construction period.
 - 1. Power centers for miscellaneous tools and equipment used in construction work.
 - 2. Power for construction equipment.
 - 3. Power for testing and checking equipment.
 - 4. Power for welding units and for other equipment having special power requirements.
 - 5. Power for Contractors, Subcontractors and Owner/Engineer's field offices.

B. Capacity:

- 1. Adequate electrical service for construction use by all trades during construction period.
- 2. Notify power company if unusually heavy loads such as welding, and other special power requirements, will be connected.
 - a. Provide special circuits for heavy load requirements.
 - b. Do not overload any circuit.
- C. Maintain strict supervision of use of temporary services:
 - 1. Enforce conformance with applicable standards.
 - 2. Enforce safe practices.

- 3. Prevent abuse of services.
- D. Costs of Installation and Operation: Pay costs for temporary electrical power used, including costs of installation, meter, maintenance, and removal of temporary services from point of connection.
- E. Requirements of Regulatory Agencies:
 - 1. Obtain and pay for permits as required by governing authorities.
 - 2. Comply with applicable codes.
 - National Electrical Code.
 - b. National Electrical Safety Code.
 - c. National Fire Protection Association.
 - d. Federal, State and local codes and utility company regulations.

1.04 TEMPORARY SANITARY FACILITIES

- A. Furnish and install temporary sanitary facilities for use throughout construction period.
- B. Maintain strict supervision of use of facilities:
 - 1. Enforce conformance with applicable standards.
 - 2. Maintain, service and clean facilities.
 - 3. Enforce proper use of sanitary facilities.
- C. Cost of Installation and Operation:
 - 1. Pay costs for temporary sanitary facilities, including costs of installation, maintenance and removal.
 - 2. Costs of Water: As specified in Paragraph 1.02C.2.
 - 3. Pay service charges for use of portable sanitary units.
- D. Facility Locations:
 - 1. Within the project site.
 - 2. Drinking Water: Convenient to work stations.
 - 3. Toilet and washing facilities.
 - a. Secluded from public observation.
 - b. Convenient for use of personnel in relation to work stations.

- 4. Obtain acceptance of Engineer and Owner.
- E. Requirements of Regulatory Agencies:
 - 1. Obtain and pay for permits as required by governing authorities.
 - 2. Comply with Federal, State, and local codes.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. General:
 - 1. Materials may be new or used, but must be adequate for purpose required.
 - 2. At Contractor's option, patented specialty products may be used, in compliance with applicable codes.

2.02 CONTRACTOR'S FIELD OFFICE AND FACILITIES

- A. Provide either a separate building or a trailer of adequate floor space for Contractor's use.
- B. The trailer shall be weather-tight, have a tight level floor at least 8 inches off the ground, and shall be insulated, have suitable screened ventilation, and a solid door.
- C. The Contractor shall locate all temporary construction offices and storage trailers where approved by the Owner and the Engineer.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 GENERAL

- A. Install work in a neat and orderly manner.
- B. Make structurally sound throughout.
- C. Maintain to provide continuous service.
- D. Modify and extend service as work progress requires.

3.02 TEMPORARY WATER

- A. Locate piping and outlets.
 - 1. Provide service convenient to work stations.
 - 2. Avoid interference with:
 - a. Traffic and work areas.

- b. Materials handling equipment.
- c. Storage areas.
- B. Do not run piping on floor or on ground.
- C. When necessary to maintain pressure, provide temporary pumps, tanks, and compressors.

3.03 TEMPORARY ELECTRICITY

- A. Service and distribution may be overhead or underground.
- B. Locate to avoid interference with:
 - 1. Traffic and work areas.
 - 2. Cranes.
 - 3. Material handling equipment.
 - 4. Storage areas.
- C. Do not run branch circuits on floor or on ground.
- D. Wire all safety devices specified for final operation of equipment.
- E. Check operation of safety devices.

3.04 TEMPORARY SANITARY FACILITIES

- A. Portable Toilets:
 - 1. Erect securely, and anchor to prevent dislocation or tipping over.
 - 2. Service as often as necessary to prevent accumulation of wastes, and creation of unsanitary conditions.
- B. Washing Facilities: Provide faucets, drains and other washing facilities suitable for the type of work requiring washing.

3.05 REMOVAL

- A. Completely remove temporary materials and equipment upon completion of construction.
- B. Clean, and repair damage caused by installation and restore to specified, or original condition.

SECTION 01505 MOBILIZATION

PART I - GENERAL

1.01 DEFINITION AND SCOPE

- A. Mobilization shall include the obtaining of all permits, insurance, and bonds; moving onto the site of all plant and equipment; furnishing and erecting plants, temporary buildings, and other construction facilities; all as required for the proper performance and completion of the Work. Mobilization shall include, but not be limited to, the following principal items.
 - 1. Move onto the site all Contractor's materials and equipment required for first month operations.
 - 2. Provide a temporary field office for the Contractor's use.
 - 3. Provide a temporary field office for the Engineer's use.
 - 4. Install temporary construction power, wiring, and lighting facilities.
 - 5. Establish fire protection plan and safety program.
 - 6. Secure construction water supply.
 - 7. Provide on-site sanitary facilities and potable water facilities as required by agencies having jurisdiction.
 - 8. Arrange for and erect Contractor's work and storage yard and employee's parking facilities.
 - 9. Submit all required insurance certificates and bonds.
 - 10. Obtain all required permits.
 - 11. Post all OSHA, EPA, Department of Labor, and all other required notices.
 - 12. Submit a detailed construction schedule acceptable to the Engineer as specified.
 - 13. Submit a schedule of values of the Work.
 - 14. Submit a schedule of submittals.

1.02 DEMOBILIZATION

A. Demobilization is the timely and proper removal of all Contractor owned material, equipment or plant, from the job site and the proper restoration or completion of work necessary to bring the site into full compliance with the Contract Documents.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (Not Used)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (Not Used)

SECTION 01568 TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work:

- 1. The Work specified in this Section consists of designing, providing, maintaining and removing temporary erosion and sedimentation controls as required by applicable rules and regulations and permit conditions.
- 2. Temporary erosion controls include, but are not limited to, grassing, mulching, netting, and providing interceptor ditches at ends of berms and at those locations which will ensure that erosion during construction will be either eliminated or maintained within acceptable limits.
- 3. Temporary sedimentation controls include, but are not limited to, silt dams, traps, barriers, and appurtenances at the foot of sloped surfaces which will ensure that sedimentation pollution will be either eliminated or maintained within acceptable limits.
- 4. Contractor is responsible for providing effective temporary erosion and sediment control measures during construction or until final controls become effective.

B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:

- 1. Excavation, Backfilling and Grading: Section 02220.
- 2. Solid Sodding: Section 02822

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 EROSION CONTROL

- A. Sodding is specified in Section 02822.
- B. Netting shall be fabricated of material acceptable to the Owner.

2.02 SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

- A. Bales shall be clean, seed-free cereal hay type.
- B. Netting shall be fabricated of material acceptable to the Owner.
- C. Filter stone shall be crushed stone which conforms to Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Specifications.
- D. Concrete block shall be hollow, non-load bearing type.
- E. Concrete shall be exterior grade not less than 1-inch thick.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 EROSION CONTROL

- A. Minimum procedures for grassing are:
 - 1. Scarify slopes to a depth of not less than 6 inches and remove large clods, rock, stumps, roots larger than 1/2 inch in diameter and debris.
 - 2. Sow seed within 24 hours after the ground is scarified with either mechanical seed drills or rotary hand seeders.
 - 3. Apply mulch loosely and to a thickness of between 3/4 inch and 1-1/2 inches.
 - 4. Apply netting over mulched areas on sloped surfaces.
 - 5. Roll and water seeded areas in a manner which will encourage sprouting of seeds and growing of grass. Reseed areas which exhibit unsatisfactory growth. Backfill and seed eroded areas.

3.02 SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

A. Install and maintain silt dams, traps, barriers, and appurtenances as shown on the approved descriptions and working drawings. Hay bales which deteriorate and filter stone which is dislodged shall be replaced.

3.03 PERFORMANCE

A. Should any of the temporary erosion and sediment control measures employed by the Contractor fail to produce results which comply with the requirements of the State of Florida, the Owner or Engineer, the Contractor shall immediately take whatever steps are necessary to correct the deficiency at his own expense.

SECTION 01580 PROJECT IDENTIFICATION AND SIGNS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Scope of Work:
 - 1. Furnish, install and maintain project signs.
 - 2. Remove signs on completion of construction.
 - 3. Allow no other signs to be displayed

1.02 PROJECT SIGNS

- A. One (1) painted sign, approximately 4-feet by 8-feet.
- B. Erect on the project site, as directed by the Engineer and the Owner, at one (1) location.
- C. Information:
 - 1. Project Sign:
 - a. Owner title and logo.
 - b. Project name.
 - c. City Council
 - d. City Manager.
 - e. Public Works Director
 - f. Contractor.
 - g. Engineer and logo.

1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Sign Painter: Professional experience in type of work required.
- B. Finishes, Painting: Adequate to resist weathering and fading for scheduled construction period.

1.04 SUBMITTALS

A. An 11 inch by 17 inch sketch of the project sign shall be submitted to the Engineer and Owner for approval prior to final preparation of the project sign.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 SIGN MATERIALS

- A. Structure and Framing: Shall be new pressure treated wood, or metal, in sound condition, structurally adequate and suitable for specified finish.
- B. Sign Surfaces: Exterior pressure treated plywood with medium density overlay, standard large sizes to minimize joints.
 - 1. Thickness: As required by standards to span framing members, to provide even, smooth surface without waves or buckles, with a minimum thickness of 3/4".
- C. Rough Hardware: Galvanized.
- D. Paint: Exterior quality

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 PROJECT IDENTIFICATION SIGNS

- A. Paint exposed surface of supports, framing and surface material; one (1) coat of primer and one (1) coat of exterior paint.
- B. Paint graphics in styles, sizes, and colors selected and approved by Engineer and Owner.

3.02 MAINTENANCE

A. Maintain sign and supports in a neat, clean condition for the duration of the project; repair damages to structures, framing or signs.

3.03 REMOVAL

A. Remove sign, framing, supports and foundations promptly at completion of project.

SECTION 01700 CONTRACT CLOSEOUT

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Scope of Work: Comply with requirements stated in Conditions of the Contract and in Specifications for administrative procedures in closing out the Work.
- B. Related Requirements Described Elsewhere:
 - 1. Cleaning: Section 01710.
 - 2. Project Record Documents: Section 01720.
 - 3. Operating and Maintenance Data: Section 01730.
 - 4. Warranties and Bonds: Section 01740.

1.02 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

- A. The Work will not be substantially complete, and Contractor may not request substantial completion inspection unless the following submittals and work is completed:
 - 1. All Operation and Maintenance manuals have been submitted and approved to the requirements of Section 01730.
 - 2. All equipment has been checked-out by the equipment manufacturer and Certificates of Manufacturer's Check-Out have been submitted as required.
 - 3. Project Record Documents are complete and have been submitted and reviewed to the requirements of Section 01720.
 - 4. All training of Owner's personnel completed.
 - 5. All areas to be used and occupied are safe, operable in automatic and complete.
 - 6. All building occupancy certificates have been issued by the appropriate building permitting agency.
 - 7. All painting, finishes, fencing, cleanup, final grading, grassing, planting, sidewalk construction, and paving shall have been completed and are ready for inspection.
 - 8. All deficiencies noted on inspection reports or nonconformances are corrected or the correction plan approved.

- B. When the conditions of paragraph 1.02 A. are met the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer:
 - 1. A written notice that he considers the Work, or portion thereof, is substantially complete, and request an inspection.
 - 2. A punchlist of items to be corrected. (Uncompleted work which is not related to the safe, effective, efficient use of the Project may be allowed on the punchlist with the Engineer's approval.)
- C. Within a reasonable time after receipt of such notice, the Engineer will make an inspection to determine the status of completion.
- D. Should the Engineer determine that the Work is not substantially complete:
 - 1. The Engineer will promptly notify the Contractor in writing, giving the reasons therefor.
 - 2. Contractor shall remedy the deficiencies in the Work and send another written notice of substantial completion to the Engineer.
 - 3. The Engineer will within reasonable time, reinspect the Work. The Contractor will be liable for reinspection fees as described in Paragraph 1.04, herein.
- E. When the Engineer finds that the Work is substantially complete, he will:
 - 1. Schedule a walk-through of the facility to include the Owner. Engineer shall determine the completeness of the punchlist and readiness of the facility for occupancy by the Owner.
 - 2. Prepare and deliver to Owner a tentative Certificate of Substantial Completion with the tentative punch list of items to be completed or corrected before final inspection.
 - 3. After consideration of any objections made by the Owner as provided in Conditions of the Contract, and when the Engineer considers the Work substantially complete, he will execute and deliver to the Owner and the Contractor a definite Certificate of Substantial Completion with a revised tentative list of items to be completed or corrected. Any incomplete work allowed on a punch list must be reinspected upon completion and any deficiencies found will be added to the punch list.

1.03 FINAL INSPECTION

- A. Prior to Contractor's request for a final inspection the following submittals and work must be complete:
 - 1. Project Record Documents must be approved.
 - 2. All spare parts and maintenance materials must be suitably delivered to the Owner per the requirements of the Technical Sections of the Specifications.
 - 3. Contractor to submit evidence of compliance with requirements of governing authorities.

- B. After satisfying the requirements of Paragraph 1.03 A. and when Contractor considers the Work complete, he shall submit written certification that:
 - 1. Contract Document requirements have been met.
 - 2. Work has been inspected for compliance with Contract Documents.
 - 3. Work has been completed in accordance with Contract Documents.
 - 4. Equipment and systems have been tested in the presence of the Owner's representative and are operational.
 - 5. All punchlist items have been corrected or completed and the Work is ready for final inspection.
- C. The Engineer will, within reasonable time, make an inspection to verify the status of completion after receipt of such certification.
- D. Should the Engineer consider that the Work is incomplete or defective:
 - 1. The Engineer will promptly notify the Contractor in writing, listing the incomplete or defective work.
 - 2. Contractor shall take immediate steps to remedy the stated deficiencies, and send another written certification to the Engineer that the Work is complete.
 - 3. The Engineer will, within a reasonable amount of time, reinspect the Work and the Contractor shall be liable for reinspection fees as described in Paragraph 1.04, herein.
- D. When the Engineer finds that the Work is acceptable under the Contract Documents, the Contractor may make closeout submittals.

1.04 REINSPECTION FEES

- A. Should the Engineer perform reinspections due to failure of the Work to comply with the claims of status of completion made by the Contractor:
 - 1. Contractor will compensate the Owner for such additional services.
 - 2. Owner will deduct the amount of such compensation from the final payment to the Contractor.

1.05 CONTRACTOR'S CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Warranties and Bonds: To requirements of Section 01740.
- B. Evidence of Payment and Release of Liens: To requirements of General and Supplementary Conditions.
- C. Certificate of Insurance for Products and Completed Operations.

1.06 FINAL ADJUSTMENT OF ACCOUNTS

A. Submit a final statement of accounting to the Engineer.

- B. Statement shall reflect all adjustments to the Contract Sum:
 - 1. The original Contract Sum.
 - 2. Additions and deductions resulting from:
 - a. Previous change orders or written amendments.
 - b. Allowances.
 - c. Unit prices.
 - d. Deductions for uncorrected work.
 - e. Penalties and bonuses.
 - f. Deductions for liquidated damages.
 - g. Deductions for reinspection payments.
 - h. Other adjustments.
 - 3. Total Contract Sum, as adjusted.
 - 4. Previous payments.
 - 5. Sum remaining due.
- C. Engineer will prepare a final Change Order, reflecting approved adjustments to the Contract Sum which were not previously made by Change Orders.

1.07 FINAL APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT

A. Contractor shall submit the final Application for Payment in accordance with procedures and requirements stated in the Conditions of the Contract.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

SECTION 01710 CLEANING

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work: Execute cleaning, during progress of the Work and at completion of the Work.

1.02 DISPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

A. Conduct cleaning and disposal operations to comply with codes, ordinances, regulations, and anti-pollution laws.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. Use only those cleaning materials which will not create hazards to health or property and which will not damage surfaces.
- B. Use only those cleaning materials and methods recommended by manufacturer of the surface material to be cleaned.
- C. Use cleaning materials only on surfaces recommended by cleaning material manufacturer.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 DURING CONSTRUCTION

- A. Execute daily cleaning to keep the Work, the site and adjacent properties free from accumulations of waste materials, rubbish and windblown debris, resulting from construction operations or personal activities.
- B. Provide on-site containers for the collection of waste materials, debris and rubbish.
- C. Remove waste materials, debris and rubbish from the site periodically, or as directed by the Owner, and dispose of at legal disposal areas away from the site.

3.02 DUST CONTROL

- A. The Contractor shall employ construction techniques that minimize the production and distribution of dust.
- B. Clean interior spaces prior to the start of finish painting and continue cleaning on an asneeded basis until painting is finished.
- C. Schedule operations so that dust and other contaminants resulting from cleaning process will not fall on wet or newly-coated surfaces.

3.03 FINAL CLEANING

- A. Employ skilled workmen for final cleaning.
- B. Remove grease, mastic, adhesives, dust, dirt, stains, fingerprints, labels, and other foreign materials from sight-exposed interior and exterior surfaces.
- C. Prior to final completion, or Owner occupancy, Contractor shall conduct an inspection of sight-exposed interior and exterior surfaces and all work areas, to verify that the entire Work is clean.

SECTION 01720 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Scope of Work: Maintain at the site for the Owner one (I) record copy of:
 - 1. Drawings.
 - 2. Specifications.
 - 3. Addenda.
 - 4. Change Orders and other modifications of the Contract.
 - 5. Engineer's Field Orders or written instructions.
 - 6. Approved Shop Drawings, Working Drawings and Samples.
 - 7. Field test records.
 - 8. Construction photographs.
- B. Related Requirements Described Elsewhere:
 - 1. Field Engineering: Section 01050.
 - 2. Shop Drawings, Working Drawings and Samples: Section 01340.
 - 3. Construction Photographs: Section 01380.

1.02 MAINTENANCE OF DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES

- A. Store documents and samples in Contractor's field office apart from documents used for construction.
 - 1. Provide files and racks for storage of documents.
 - 2. Provide locked cabinet or secure storage space for storage of samples.
- B. File documents and samples in accordance with CSI format with section numbers as provided herein.
- C. Maintain documents in a clean, dry, legible, condition and in good order. Do not use record documents for construction purposes.
- D. Make documents and samples available at all times for inspection by the Engineer or the Owner.
- E. As a prerequisite for monthly Progress payments, the Contractor is to exhibit the currently updated "Record Documents" for review by the Engineer and Owner. Payment may be withheld if record documents are not satisfactorily maintained.

1.03 MARKING DEVICES

A. Provide felt tip marking pens for recording information in the color code designated by the Engineer.

1.04 RECORDING

- A. Label each document "PROJECT RECORD" with a rubber stamp having one (1) inch high letters.
- B. Record information concurrently with construction progress.
 - 1. Do not conceal any work until required information is recorded.
- C. Drawings: Legibly and clearly mark, to scale, each drawing to record actual construction:
 - 1. Depths of various elements of foundation in relation to finish first floor datum.
 - 2. All underground piping with elevations and dimensions. Changes to piping location. Horizontal and vertical locations of underground utilities and appurtenances, referenced to permanent surface improvements. Actual installed pipe material, class, etc.
 - 3. Location of internal utilities and appurtenances concealed in the construction, referenced to visible and accessible features of the structure.
 - 4. Field changes of dimension and detail.
 - 5. Changes made by Field Order or by Change Order.
 - 6. Details not on original Contract Drawings.
 - 7. Equipment and piping relocations.
 - 8. Major architectural and structural changes including relocation of doors, windows, etc.
 - 9. Architectural schedule changes according to Contractor's records and shop drawings.
- D. Specifications and Addenda: Legibly mark each section to record:
 - 1. Manufacturer, trade name, catalog number of Supplier of each product and item of equipment actually installed.
 - 2. Changes made by Field Order or by Change Order.
- E. Shop Drawings (after final review and approval): Provide six (6) sets of record shop drawings within the Operation and Maintenance Manual, for each process equipment, piping, electrical system and instrumentation system (see Section 01730).

1.05 SUBMITTAL

- A. At Contract closeout, deliver Record Documents to the Engineer for the Owner.
- B. Accompany submittal with transmittal letter in duplicate, containing:
 - 1. Date.
 - 2. Project title and number.
 - 3. Contractor's name and address.
 - 4. Title and number of each Record Document.
 - 5. Signature of Contractor or his authorized representative.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED

SECTION 01740 WARRANTIES AND BONDS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Related Work Described Elsewhere:
 - Contract Closeout: Section 01700.

1.02 SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Assemble warranties, bonds and service and maintenance contracts, executed by each of the respective manufacturers, suppliers, and subcontractors.
- B. Number of original signed copies required: Two (2) each.
- C. Table of Contents: Neatly typed, in orderly sequence. Provide complete information for each item.
 - 1. Product of work item.
 - 2. Firm, with name of principal, address and telephone number.
 - 3. Scope.
 - 4. Date of beginning of warranty, bond or service and maintenance contract.
 - 5. Duration of warranty, bond or service maintenance contract.
 - 6. Provide information for Owner's personnel:
 - a. Proper procedure in case of failure.
 - b. Instances which might affect the validity or warranty or bond.
 - 7. Contractor, name of responsible principal, address and telephone number.

1.03 FORM OF SUBMITTALS

- A. Prepare in duplicate packets.
- B. Format:
 - 1. Size 8-1/2 inches by 11 inches, punch sheets for standard three (3) ring binder.
 - a. Fold larger sheets to fit into binders.
 - 2. Cover: Identify each packet with typed or printed title "WARRANTIES AND BONDS". List:
 - a. Title of Project.
 - b. Name of Contractor.

C. Binders: Commercial quality, three (3) D-ring type binders with durable and cleanable white plastic covers and maximum D-ring width of two (2) inches. Binders shall be presentation type with clear vinyl covers on front, back, and spine. Binders shall include two sheet lifters and two horizontal inside pockets.

1.04 WARRANTY SUBMITTALS REQUIREMENTS

- A. For all major pieces of equipment, submit a warranty from the equipment manufacturer. The manufacturer's warranty period shall be concurrent with the Contractor's for eighteen (18) months, unless otherwise specified, commencing at the time of final acceptance by the Owner.
- B. The Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining certificates for equipment warranty for all major equipment specified under Divisions 11: Equipment; 13: Special Construction; 15: Mechanical; and 16: Electrical. The Engineer reserves the right to request warranties for equipment not classified as major. The Contractor shall still warrant equipment not considered to be "major" in the Contractor's one-year warranty period even though certificates of warranty may not be required.
- C. In the event that the equipment manufacturer or supplier is unwilling to provide an eighteen (18) month warranty commencing at the start of the Correction Period, the Contractor shall obtain from the manufacturer a two (2) year warranty commencing at the time of equipment delivery to the job site. This two (2) year warranty from the manufacturer shall not relieve the Contractor of the one (1) year warranty, starting at the time of Owner's acceptance of the equipment.
- D. The Owner shall incur no labor or equipment cost during the guarantee period.
- E. Guarantee shall cover all necessary labor, equipment, materials, and replacement parts resulting from faulty or inadequate equipment design, improper assembly or erection, defective workmanship and materials, leakage, breakage or other failure of all equipment and components furnished by the manufacturer or the Contractor.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF DIVISION

SECTION 02050 DEMOLITION

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work:

- This Section includes furnishing all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals required for demolition of various existing Plant components as shown on the Drawings.
- 2. This Section provides for the complete or partial removal and disposal of specified existing structures, foundations, slabs, piping, mechanical equipment, electrical systems, and miscellaneous appurtenances encountered during demolition operations.
- 3. The Contractor shall be responsible for:
 - a. Removal and proper disposal of all demolished contents.
 - b. Removal and disposal of structures, piping, and equipment as designated on the Drawings.
 - c. Termination and plugging of abandoned subsurface piping.
 - d. Termination of abandoned electric facilities in accordance with local codes and the NEC.
 - e. Termination and plugging of abandoned potable and non-potable water piping.
 - f. Site restoration.
- 4. The Contractor shall examine the various drawings regarding the proposed site, visit the proposed site and determine for himself the extent of the demolition work, the extent work whichever is affected therein and all conditions under which he is required to perform the various operations.
- 5. Demolition of existing plant components shall not proceed until successful completion, startup and clearance of all new pump station and pipeline components of the project.

1.02 PERMITS AND NOTICES

- A. Permits and Licenses: Contractor shall obtain all necessary permits and licenses for performing the demolition work and shall furnish a copy of same to the Engineer prior to commencing the work. The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the permits.
- B. Notices: Contractor shall issue written notices of planned demolition to companies or local authorities owning utility conduit, wires or pipes running to or through the project site. Copies of said notices shall be furnished to the Engineer.
- C. Utility Services: Contractor shall notify in writing utility companies or local authorities furnishing gas, water, electrical, telephone or sewer service to remove any equipment owned by them in structures to be demolished and to remove, disconnect, cap or plug

their services to facilitate demolition. Copies of said notices shall be furnished to the Engineer.

1.03 CONDITIONS OF STRUCTURES

A. Conditions existing at the time of inspection for bidding purposes will be maintained by the Owner insofar as practicable. However, variation among the structures may occur prior to the start of demolition work.

1.04 RULES AND REGULATIONS

- A. The Florida Building Code, 5th Edition shall control the demolition, modification or alteration of the existing buildings or structures.
- B. No blasting shall be done on site. The Contractor shall not bring or store any explosives on site.

1.05 DISPOSAL OF MATERIAL

- A. Salvageable material shall become the property of the Owner, if the Owner so requests. The Contractor shall dismantle all materials to such a size that it can be readily handled, and deliver any of this salvageable material requested by the Owner to a storage area designated by the Owner.
- B. The following materials are examples of the type that the Owner desires to keep:
 - 1. Pipes and valves greater than 1-1/2 inches in diameter.
 - 2. All machinery and equipment.
 - 3. All electric panels.
 - 4. Scrap aluminum or other valuable recyclable metals.
- C. Any materials that the Owner rejects shall become the Contractor's property and must be removed from the site.
- D. Waste concrete and masonry shall be hauled to a legal disposal site by the Contractor.
- E. All other waste metal, wood and other material shall be hauled to a waste disposal site by the Contractor.
- F. The storage of or sale of removed items on the site shall not be allowed.

1.06 SUBMITTALS

- A. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineers for approval, the proposed demolition and removal plan for the structures and modifications as shown on the Drawings or as specified herein prior to the start of work. The Contractor shall include in the schedule the coordination of shutoff, capping and continuation of utility service as required. The demolition and removal plan shall include as a minimum, the following:
 - 1. A detailed sequence of demolition and removal work to ensure the uninterrupted progress of the Plant operations and the expeditious completion of the work.

- 2. Written evidence of approval by the Owner of the work plan.
- 3. Sequencing and coordination of the work with inspections and subsequent repairs.
- B. Before commencing work, all modifications necessary to bypass the facilities to be demolished shall be completed. Contractor shall coordinate with the Owner's personnel to determine the locations of the relevant valves and fittings.

1.07 TRAFFIC AND ACCESS

- A. The Contractor shall conduct demolition and modification operations, and the removal of equipment and debris to ensure minimum interference with roads, streets and walks, both on-site and off-site, and to ensure minimum interference with occupied or used facilities
- B. The Contractor shall direct special attention towards maintaining safe and convenient access to the existing site.
- C. Before the necessary closure of any street or sidewalk, the Contractor must obtain all ROW permits from Lake County and Town of Lady Lake.

1.09 EXISTING UTILITIES

- A. The Contractor shall cooperate with the Owner and utility companies to shut off utilities serving structures of the existing facilities as required by demolition operations.
- B. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for making all necessary arrangements and for performing any necessary work involved in connection with the discontinuance or interruption of all public and private utilities or services under the jurisdiction of the County or utility companies.

1.10 POLLUTION CONTROL

- A. The Contractor shall use water sprinkling, temporary enclosures, and/or other suitable methods as necessary to limit the amount of dust rising and scattering in the air to the lowest level practical. The Contractor shall comply with the governing regulations governing such nuisances.
- B. The Contractor shall clean up all dust, dirt and debris caused by demolition operations. The Contractor shall return all plant and adjacent areas to conditions existing prior to the start of work.

PART 2 - MATERIALS (NOT USED)

PART 3 – EXECUTION

3.01 SEQUENCE OF WORK

A. The sequence of demolition and renovation of existing facilities shall proceed in accordance with the approved demolition and removal plan specified in Paragraph 1.06 of this Section.

3.02 REMOVAL OF EXISTING PROCESS EQUIPMENT, PIPING AND APPURTENANCES

- A. Existing equipment, non-buried valving and piping, and appurtenances shall be removed or abandoned in-place as shown or indicated on the Drawings, and as specified herein.
- B. All non-buried equipment, piping and appurtenances shall be cleaned. Equipment to be retained by the Owner as specified in Paragraph 1.05, above, shall be dismantled sufficiently to permit thorough cleaning. All valves shall be left open.

3.03 QUALITY CONTROL

- A. The Contractor shall protect all existing materials and equipment to be salvaged or reused from damage.
- B. The Contractor shall cap or plug all lines to be abandoned as shown on the drawings. The Contractor shall place covers and label all junction boxes, conduits and wire as abandoned.
- C. The Contractor shall promptly repair any and all damage caused to remaining facilities at no cost to the Owner.

SECTION 02110 CLEARING, GRUBBING, AND STRIPPING

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Scope of Work: This Section describes the work included in clearing, grubbing, stripping, and otherwise preparing the project site for construction operations.
- B. Related Work Specified Elsewhere:
 - 1. Earthwork: Section 02200.

C. Definitions:

- 1. Clearing: Remove and dispose of shrubs, brush, limbs, and other vegetative growth. Remove all evidence of their presence from the surface including sticks and branches. Remove and dispose of trash piles and rubbish that currently is scattered over the construction site or collects there during construction. Protect trees, shrubs, vegetative growth, and fencing which are not designed for removal. Clearing operations shall be conducted so as to prevent damage to existing structures and installations, and to those under construction, so as to provide for safety of employees and others.
- 2. Grubbing: Grubbing shall consist of the complete removal of all stumps, roots larger than 1-1/2 inches in diameter, matted roots, brush, timber, logs, and any other organic or metallic debris remaining after clearing not suitable for foundation purposes, resting on, under or protruding through the surface of the ground to a depth of 18 inches below the subgrade. All depressions excavated below the original ground surface for or by the removal of such objects, shall be refilled with suitable materials and compacted to a density conforming to the surrounding ground surface.
- 3. Stripping: Remove and dispose of all organics and sod, topsoil, grass, and grass roots, and other objectionable material remaining after clearing and grubbing from the areas designated to be stripped. Grass, grass roots and organic material in areas to be excavated or filled shall be stripped to the depth as noted in the soils report. In areas so designated, topsoil shall be stockpiled. Strippings and other unsuitable material, such as deet, shall be disposed of by the Contractor unless directed otherwise by the Engineer.

PART 2 - MATERIALS

2.01 GENERAL

A. Trees and Shrubbery: Existing designated trees and shrubbery, and other vegetative material is not shown on the Drawings: Inspect the site so as to determine the nature, location, size, and extent of vegetative material to be removed or preserved, as specified herein. Preserve, in place, trees that are specifically shown on the Drawings and designated to be preserved.

- B. Preservation of Trees, Shrubs, and Other Plant Material:
 - 1. All plant materials (trees, shrubbery, and plants) beyond the limits of clearing and grubbing shall be saved and protected from damage resulting from the work. No filling, excavating, trenching, or stockpiling of materials will be permitted within the drip line of these plant materials. The drip line is defined as a circle drawn by extending a line vertically to the ground from the outermost branches of a plant or group of plants. To prevent soil compaction within the drip line area, no equipment will be permitted within this area.
 - 2. When trees are close together, restrict entry to area within drip line by fencing. In areas where no fence is erected, the trunks of all trees 2 inches or greater in diameter shall be protected by encircling the trunk entirely with boards held securely by 12-gauge wire and staples. This protection shall extend from ground level to a height of 6 feet. Cut and remove tree branches where such cutting is necessary to affect construction operation. Remove branches other than those required to affect the work to provide a balanced appearance of any tree. Scars resulting from the removal of branches shall be treated with a tree sealant.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 GENERAL

- A. Clearing and Grubbing Limits: All excavation areas associated with new structures, slabs, and roadways shall be cleared and grubbed to the following depths:
 - 1. Roadway and Paved Area: 2 feet below existing grade and replace with compacted backfill.
 - 2. Proposed Structures: 2 feet below existing grade within a 5-foot margin beyond each structure, dimension, and replaced with compacted backfill as specified herein.
 - 3. Building Site Areas not specifically noted above: 2 feet below existing grade and replaced with compacted backfill as specified herein.
 - 4. All other areas: 1 foot below completed surface grade.
- B. Disposal of Clearing and Grubbing Debris: No burning of combustible materials will be allowed. Remove all cleared and grubbed material from the work site and dispose of at an approved site.
- C. Areas to be Stripped: All excavation and embankment areas associated with new structures, slabs, walks, and roadways shall be stripped. Stockpile areas shall be stripped.
- D. Disposal of Strippings: Remove all stripped material and dispose off-site, at an approved location unless otherwise directed.

SECTION 02140 DEWATERING

PART 1-GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work: The work to be performed under this section shall include the design and installation of a temporary dewatering system until completion of construction to remove subsurface waters from structure or utility trench excavations as required.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Qualifications: The temporary dewatering system, if necessary, shall be designed by a firm who regularly engages in the design of dewatering systems and who is fully experienced, reputable and qualified in the design of such dewatering systems. The firm shall have a successful record of operation for a minimum of five (5) years prior to bid date. The design firm shall supply the Engineer with previous installation details of at least three (3) successful dewatering operations of a similar nature in the State of Florida.
- B. In lieu of experience, the Contractor shall provide a performance and warranty bond for 1.0 times the total installed cost of the temporary dewatering system. This bond shall be executed prior to award and/or contract execution.
- C. Standards: The dewatering of any excavation areas and the disposal of water during construction shall be in strict accordance with all local and state government rules and regulations. If a consumptive use permit is required by local Water Management District, the Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining said permit.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit to the Engineer for review, the proposed methods of construction, including dewatering, excavation, bedding, filling, compaction, and backfilling for the various portions of the work. Review shall be for method only. The Contractor shall remain responsible for the adequacy and safety of the methods.
- B. Submittals shall be in accordance with Section 01340, and shall include the following:
 - 1. Design Notes and Drawings.
 - 2. Descriptive literature of the temporary dewatering system.
 - 3. Layout of all piping involved.
 - 4. Observation well locations.

1.04 CRITERIA

A. The dewatering system shall be developed to the point that is capable of dewatering the site surrounding all structures or utility trenches as shown on the Drawings. Each wellpoint system shall be capable of dewatering and maintaining groundwater levels at the respective excavations. Observation wells shall be constructed for the purpose of testing each system.

B. Observation Wells:

- 1. Prior to excavation, the Contractor shall install groundwater observation wells at locations as directed by the Contractor's Geotechnical Engineer and as approved by the Engineer adjacent to structures under construction for the purpose of measuring water levels during excavations. The observation well shall consist of screen, casing and cap of approved size and material of construction. The observation well shall be placed in a 2 1/2-inch bore hole which shall be carried to an elevation at least to final bottom grade of structure. The annular space surrounding the intake point and the riser pipe shall be sealed in such a way as to prevent infiltration from surface water. The observation well shall be developed in such a manner as to ensure proper indication of subsurface water levels adjacent to the well.
- The Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining the observation wells and for observing and recording the elevation of groundwater in them until adjacent structure of utilities are completed and backfilled. Each observation well shall be observed and recorded daily. Measurements shall be supplied daily to the Engineer. The Engineer may require that the observation wells reflect true groundwater levels by adding water to the well, recording the drop in the level from the time the water was added. Any plugged observation well shall be redeveloped if necessary to indicate true groundwater levels.
- 3. Observation wells shall be abandoned when directed by the Engineer, and in a manner acceptable to the Engineer.

1.05 PUMPING AND DRAINAGE

- A. The Contractor shall at all times during construction provide and maintain proper equipment and facilities to remove all water entering excavations, and shall keep such excavations dry so as to obtain a satisfactory undisturbed subgrade foundation condition until the fills, structures or pipes to be built thereon have been completed to such extent that they will not be floated or otherwise damaged by allowing water levels to return to natural levels. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer, for review, a plan for dewatering systems prior to commencing work. The dewatering system installed shall be in conformity with overall construction plan, and certification of this shall be provided by a Geotechnical Engineer. The Geotechnical Engineer shall be required to monitor the performance of the dewatering systems during the progress of the work and require such modifications as may be required to assure that the systems are performing satisfactorily.
- B. Dewatering shall at all times be conducted in such a manner as to preserve the undisturbed bearing capacity of the subgrade soils at proposed bottom of excavation and to preserve the integrity of adjacent structures. As a minimum, the water level shall be two (2) feet below the trench bottom. Well or sump installations shall be constructed with proper sand filters to prevent drawing of finer grained soil from the surrounding soils.
- C. Water entering the excavation from surface runoff shall be collected in shallow ditches around the perimeter of the excavation, drained to sumps, and pumped from the excavation to maintain a bottom free from standing water.
- D. The Contractor shall take all additional necessary precautions and prevent uplift of any structure during construction.

- E. The conveying of water other than stormwater surface runoff in open ditches or trenches will not be allowed. Permission to use any storm sewers, or drains, for water disposal purposes shall be obtained from the controlling authority. Any requirements and costs for such use shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. However, the Contractor shall not cause flooding by overloading or blocking up the flow in the drainage facilities, and the Contractor shall leave the facilities unrestricted and as clean as originally found. Any damage to facilities shall be repaired or restored at no cost to the Owner.
- F. Flotation shall be prevented by the Contractor by maintaining a positive and continuous operation of the dewatering system. The Contractor shall be fully responsible and liable for all damages which may result from failure of this system.
- G. Removal of dewatering equipment shall be accomplished after the Contractor and the Engineer agree that the system is no longer required; the material and equipment constituting the system shall be removed by the Contractor.
- H. The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions to preclude the accidental discharge of fuel, oil, or other contaminants in order to prevent adverse effects on groundwater or receiving water quality.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 GENERAL

- A. The equipment specified herein shall be standard dewatering equipment of proven ability as designed, manufactured, and installed by firms having experience in the design and production of such equipment. The equipment furnished shall be designed, constructed and installed in accordance with the best practices and methods.
- B. The Contractor shall engage a Professional Engineer registered in the State of Florida, to design the temporary dewatering system for all structures. The Contractor shall submit a conceptual plan for the dewatering system prior to commencing work. The dewatering system installed shall be in conformity with the overall construction plan and certification of this shall be provided by the Geotechnical Engineer. The Geotechnical Engineer shall be required to monitor the performance of the dewatering system at the Contractor's expense during the progress of the work and require such modifications as may be required to assure that the systems will perform satisfactorily. Dewatering system shall be designed in such a manner as to preserve the undisturbed bearing capacity of the subgrade soils at the proposed structures or utilities and to preserve the integrity of any adjacent structures.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Dewatering: The Contractor shall install the approved dewatering system for the removal of subsurface water encountered during construction of the proposed structures or utilities.
- B. Consumptive Use Permit (CUP): If pumping requirements exceed certain limits, the Contractor shall pay for and obtain a CUP from the local water management district for such pumped volumes.

3.02 PROTECTION AND SITE CLEAN-UP

- A. At all times during the progress of the work the Contractor shall use all reasonable precautions to prevent either tampering with the wellpoints (if used) or the entrance of foreign material into the site's storm drain system.
- B. Immediately upon completion of the dewatering operations, the Contractor shall remove all of his equipment, materials, and supplies from the site of the work, remove all surplus materials and debris, fill in all holes or excavations, and grade the site to elevations of the surface levels which existed before the work started. The site shall be thoroughly cleaned and graded as directed by the Engineer.

SECTION 02200 EARTHWORK

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Scope of Work: This section includes materials, testing, and earthwork for excavations, fills, and embankments.
- B. Related Work Specified Elsewhere:
 - 1. Excavation, Backfilling and Compaction: Section 02220.
 - Cast-In-Place Concrete: Section 03300.
 - 3. Dewatering: Section 02140.

1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit excavation and shoring drawings for worker protection in accordance with the Section 01340: Shop Drawings, Working Drawings and Samples.
- B. Submit six (6) copies of a report from a testing laboratory verifying that any off-site borrow material conforms to the gradation specified.

1.03 TESTING REQUIREMENTS

- A. Determination of laboratory moisture-density relationship and maximum density shall be by the Modified Proctor Method of ASTM D-1557. At least one (I) test per soil type shall be made.
- B. In place soil density shall be determined either by use of a Nuclear Density Meter per ASTM D-2922 or by use of the Drive Sleeve Method per ASTM D-2937. In place field densities shall be taken at one (I) every 5,000 square feet and at not greater than 1 foot vertical intervals for all fill areas under structures and pavement. One (I) density test is required for each pad or isolated footing and for every 20 linear feet of strip/wall footing length.
- C. Compaction shall be deemed to comply with the Specifications when no tests fall below the specified relative compaction. The Contractor shall pay the costs of any retesting of work not conforming to the Specifications.
- D. Relative compaction is defined as the ratio, expressed as a percentage, of the in-place density to the laboratory maximum density.
- E. Density tests will be made for determination of specified compaction by an independent testing laboratory provided by the Contractor as approved by the Engineer. Tests will be made in locations reviewed and approved by the Engineer. If any tests are unsatisfactory, re-excavate and recompact the fill or backfill until the desired compaction is obtained. Additional compaction tests will be taken to each side of an unsatisfactory test at locations approved by the Engineer to determine the extent of re-excavation and recompaction necessary.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 FILL AND BACKFILL

- A. Fill and backfill shall be clean, granular sand that is free from organic matter, roots, debris, and rocks larger than three inches in the greatest dimension and having less than 10 percent (10%) passing the No. 200 U.S. sieve size.
- B. Water for Compaction: Water shall be free of acid, alkali, or organic materials and shall have a pH of 7.0 to 9.0, a maximum chloride concentration of 500 mg/l, and a maximum sulfate concentration of 500 mg/l. Provide all water needed for earthwork. Provide temporary piping and valves to convey water from the source to the point of use. Provide any meters if the water is taken from a water district or agency pipeline.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS

- A. Unless otherwise specified or shown on the Drawings, compact fill, embankments, and backfills to 95 percent (95%) Modified Proctor Density.
- B. Dewatering: Provide and operate equipment adequately to keep excavations and trenches free of water per Section 02140. Remove water during period when concrete is being deposited, when pipe is being laid, during the placing of structural fill and backfill, and for inspection/testing of the structural subgrade. Avoid settlement or damage to adjacent property.
- C. Excavation is unclassified. Perform all excavation regardless of the type, nature, or condition of the material encountered to accomplish the construction.
- D. Placing and Compacting Fill Material:
 - 1. Excavated material which conforms to the specifications may be used for fill or backfill.
 - 2. Place all materials at optimum moisture content.
 - 3. Compact each lift to the extent specified.

E. Foundation Requirements:

- 1. All structure foundation bottoms shall be recompacted and retested after excavation to densify soils loosened in the excavation process.
- 2. Soils placed adjacent to footings or walls shall be carefully compacted to avoid damaging the footing or wall. Approved structural sand fills placed in footing excavations above the bearing level, in trench of pipeline excavations within the structure area plus 10 feet beyond the perimeter walls, and in other areas which are expected to provide slab support and/or foundation embedment constraint shall be placed in loose lifts not exceeding 6 inches.

F. Moisture Control of Earth Material: During the compaction operations, maintain optimum practicable moisture content required for compaction purposes in each lift of the material. Maintain moisture content uniform throughout the lift. Insofar as practicable, add water to the material at the site of excavation. Supplement by sprinkling the material. At the time of compaction, the water content of the material shall be at optimum water content or within 2 percentage points above optimum. Aerate material containing excessive moisture by blading, discing, or harrowing to hasten the drying process.

G. Site Grading:

- 1. Perform earthwork to the lines and grades shown on the Drawings. Shape, trim and finish slopes to conform with the lines, grades and cross-sections as shown on the Drawings. Make slopes free of exposed roots and loose rocks exceeding 3 inches in diameter. Round tops of banks to circular curves to not less than a 5 foot radius.
- 2. Neatly and smoothly trim rounded surfaces. Do not over-excavate and backfill to achieve the proper grade.
- 3. Final grades shall be within 0.1 foot of the required elevation.
- H. Disposal of Excess Excavation: Dispose of excess excavated suitable materials at designated on-site soil areas indicated on the Drawings or directed by the Engineer. If on-site disposal is not indicated or directed by the Engineer, dispose of excess excavated materials off-site. Contractor shall make his own arrangements for the disposal of all excess suitable or unsuitable material and bear all costs incidental to such disposal.

SECTION 02210 SITE GRADING

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Scope of Work: The work in this section consists of furnishing all necessary labor, equipment, material necessary to bring the project site to the lines and grades shown on the Drawings.
- B. The Contractor must determine for himself the volume of material required for the site.

C. Definitions:

- 1. Open Areas: Open areas shall be those areas that do not include building sites, limerock areas, access road right-of-way and parking areas.
- 2. Maximum Density: Maximum weight in pounds per cubic foot (pcf) of a specific material.
- 3. Optimum Moisture: Percentage of water in a specific material at maximum density.
- 4. Rock Excavation: Excavation of any hard natural substance which requires the use of special impact tools such as, jackhammers, sledges, chisels, or other similar devices specifically designed for use in cutting or breaking rock, but exclusive of trench excavating machinery.

D. Related Work Described Elsewhere:

1. Excavation, Backfilling and Compaction: Section 02220.

1.02 SUBMITTALS

A. Submit six (6) copies of a report from a testing laboratory verifying that off-site borrow material conforms to the gradation specified.

1.03 TESTING REQUIREMENTS

- A. Determination of laboratory moisture-density relationship and maximum density shall be by the Modified Proctor Method of ASTM D-1557. At least one (1) test per soil type shall be made.
- B. In place soil density shall be determined either by use of a Nuclear Density Meter per ASTM D-2922 or by use of the Drive Sleeve Method per ASTM D-2937. In place field densities shall be taken at one (1) every 5,000 square feet at not greater than 1 foot vertical intervals for all fill areas under structures and pavement. One (1) density test is required for each pad or isolated footing and for every 20 lined feet of strip/wall footing length.

- C. Compaction shall be deemed to comply with the Specifications when no tests fall below the specified relative compaction. The Contractor shall pay the costs of any retesting of work no conforming to the Specifications.
- D. Relative compaction is defined as the ratio, expressed as a percentage, of the in-place density to the laboratory maximum density.
- E. Density tests will be made for determination of specified compaction by an independent testing laboratory provided by the Contractor as approved by the Engineer. Tests will be made in locations reviewed and approved by the Engineer. If any tests are unsatisfactory, re-excavate and recompact the fill or backfill until the specified compaction is obtained. Additional compaction tests will be taken to each side of an unsatisfactory test at locations approved by the Engineer to determine the extent of re-excavation and recompaction necessary.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. Suitable: Suitable materials for fills shall be classified as A-1, A-3 or A-2-4 in accordance with AASHTO Designation M-145 and shall be free from vegetation and organic material. Not more than 10 percent (10%) by weight of fill material shall pass the No. 200 sieve. The Contractor shall furnish all additional fill material required.
- B. Suitable Material To Be Placed In Water: Suitable material for fills to be placed in water shall be classified as A-I or A-3 in accordance with AASHTO Designation M-145.
- C. Unsuitable: Unsuitable materials are classified as A-2-5, A-2-6, A-2-7, A-4, A-5, A-6, A-7 and A-8 in accordance with AASHTO Designation M-145.
- D. Water for Compaction: Water shall be free of acid, alkali, or organic materials and shall have a pH of 7.0 to 9.0, a maximum chloride concentration of 500 mg/l, and a maximum sulfate concentration of 500 mg/l. Provide all water needed for earthwork. Provide temporary piping and valves to convey water from the source to the point of use. Provide any meters if the water is taken from a water district or agency pipeline.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 PERFORMANCE

A. Unless otherwise specified or shown on the Drawings, compact fill, embankments, and backfills to 95 percent (95%) Modified Proctor Density.

B. Excavation:

- 1. Excavation shall conform to the limits indicated on the plans or specified herein. This work shall included shaping and sloping and other work necessary in bringing the earthwork to the required grade, alignment and cross section.
- 2. All suitable materials removed from the excavation shall be used as far as practicable in the formation of the embankments, subgrades, shoulders, building sites and other places as directed. No excavated material shall be wasted without permission, and where necessary to waste much material it shall be at

the direction of the Engineer. Unsuitable material shall be removed to the required depth and replaced to the satisfaction of the Engineer with suitable material. Unsuitable material existing in open areas may remain, and these open areas may be used for disposal areas for the unsuitable material as directed by the Engineer.

C. Fills:

- 1. Fills shall be formed of suitable material placed in layers of not more than 8 inches in depth measured loose and rolled and/or vibrated with suitable equipment until compacted. Thickness of layers may be increased provided the equipment and methods used are proven by field density testing to be capable of compacting thicker layers to specified densities. Layer thickness shall be decreased if equipment and methods used are proven to be incapable of compacting the layers to specified densities.
- 2. Rock that will not pass through a 6 inch diameter ring shall not be placed within the top 12 inches of the surface of the completed fill. Rock that will not pass through a 3 inch diameter ring shall not be placed within the top 4 inches of the completed fill. Broken concrete or asphaltic pavement shall not be used in fills.
- 3. Muck or other unsuitable material may be used in areas designated in the drawings or as directed by the Engineer. Muck material used as fill shall be placed in layers of not more than 12 inches in depth measured loose. When dry or as directed by the Engineer, this layer shall be disced and harrowed to break up large pieces of the material placed.
- 4. Final elevations shall be within 0.1 foot of the required elevation and surfaces shall be sloped to drain as shown on the Drawings.
- D. Excess excavation of suitable materials shall become, unless otherwise noted, the property of the Owner and shall be disposed of on-site at an area to be determined by the Owner. The Owner may elect to not keep the material in which case the Contractor shall make arrangements and bear all cost of disposing the material off-site. All unsuitable excess material shall be disposed off-site by the Contractor.
- E. Moisture Control of Earth Material: During the compaction operations, maintain optimum practicable moisture content required for compaction purposes in each lift of the material. Maintain moisture content uniform throughout the lift. Insofar as practicable, add water to the material at the site of excavation. Supplement by sprinkling the material. At the time of compaction, the water content of the material shall be at optimum water content or within 2 percentage points above optimum. Aerate material containing excessive moisture by blading, discing, or harrowing to hasten the drying process.

SECTION 02212 FINISH GRADING

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Scope of Work:
 - 1. Finish grade sub-soil.
 - 2. Cut out areas to receive stabilizing base course materials for paving and sidewalks.
 - 3. Place, finish grade and compact topsoil.
- B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:
 - 1. Earthwork: Section 02200.
 - 2. Site Grading: Section 02210.
 - 3. Loaming and Sodding: Section 02822.
 - 4. Loaming and Mulching: Section 02922.

1.02 PROTECTION

A. Prevent damage to existing fencing, trees, landscaping, natural features, bench marks, pavement and utility lines. Correct damage at no cost to the Owner.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

A. Topsoil: Friable loam free from subsoil, roots, grass, excessive amounts of weeds, stones, and foreign matter; acidity ranges (pH) of 5.5 to 7.5; containing a minimum of 4 percent (4%) and a maximum of 25 percent (25%) organic matter. Use topsoil stockpiles on site if conforming to these requirements.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 SUB-SOIL PREPARATION

- A. Rough grade sub-soil systematically to allow for a maximum amount of natural settlement and compaction. Eliminate uneven areas and low spots. Remove debris, roots, branches, stones, etc. Remove sub-soil which has been contaminated with petroleum products.
- B. Cut out areas to sub-grade elevations, which are to receive stabilizing base for paving and sidewalks.

- C. Bring sub-soil to required levels, profiles, and contours. Make changes in grade gradual. Blend slopes into level areas.
- D. Slope grade away from building minimum 2 inches in 10 feet unless indicated otherwise on the Drawings.
- E. Cultivate sub-grade to a depth of 3 inches, where topsoil is to be placed. Repeat cultivation in areas where equipment, used for hauling and spreading topsoil, has compact sub-soil.

3.02 PLACING TOPSOIL

- A. Place topsoil in areas where seeding, sodding, and planting are to be performed. Place to the following minimum depths, up to finished grade elevations.
 - 1. 6 inches for seeded areas.
 - 2. 4-1/2 inches for sodded areas.
 - 3. 12 inches for shrub beds.
- B. Use topsoil in relatively dry state. Place during dry weather.
- C. Fine grade topsoil eliminating rough and low areas to ensure positive drainage. Maintain levels, profiles, and contours of sub-grade.
- D. Remove stone, roots, grass, weeds, debris and other foreign material while spreading.
- E. Manually spread soil around trees, plants, buildings, to prevent damage which may be caused by grading equipment.
- F. Lightly compact placed topsoil.

3.03 SURPLUS MATERIAL

- A. Remove surplus sub-soil and topsoil from site.
- B. Leave stockpile areas and entire job site clean and raked, ready to receive landscaping.

SECTION 02220 EXCAVATION, BACKFILLING, AND GRADING

PART I - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work: The work included under this Section consists of dewatering, excavating, trenching, sheeting/shoring, grading, backfilling, and compacting those soil materials required for the construction of the structures, piping, ditches, utility structures and appurtenances as shown on the Drawings and specified herein.

B. Definitions:

- Maximum Density: Maximum weight in pounds per cubic foot of a specific material.
- 2. Optimum Moisture Content: The optimum moisture content shall be determined by ASTM D 1557 specified to determine the maximum dry density for relative compaction. Field moisture content shall be determined on the basis of the fraction passing the 3/4-inch sieve.
- 3. Rock Excavation: Excavation of any hard natural substance which requires the use of special impact tools such as jack hammers, sledges, chisels or similar devices specifically designed for use in cutting or breaking rock, but exclusive of trench excavating machinery.
- 4. Suitable: Suitable materials for fills shall be classified as A-1, A-3 or A-2-4 in accordance with AASHTO Designation M-145 and shall be free from vegetation, organic material, marl, silt or muck. Not more than 10 percent (10%) by weight of fill material shall pass the No. 200 Sieve. The Contractor shall furnish all additional fill material required.
- 5. Unsuitable: Unsuitable materials are classified as A-2-5, A-2-6, A-2-7, A-4, A-5, A-6, A-7, and A-B in accordance with AASHTO Designation M-145.

C. Plan For Earthwork:

- The Contractor shall be responsible for having determined to his satisfaction, prior to the submission of his bid, the conformation of the ground, the character and quality of the substrata, the types and quantities of materials to be encountered, the nature of the groundwater conditions, the prosecution of the work, the general and local conditions and all other matters which can in any way affect the work under this Contract according to the General Conditions.
- 2. Prior to commencing the excavation, the Contractor shall submit a plan of his proposed operations to the Engineer for review. The Contractor shall reflect the equipment and methods to be employed in the excavation. Prices established in the Proposal for the work to be done will reflect all costs pertaining to the work. No claims for extras based on substrata or groundwater table conditions will be allowed.

D. Trench Safety Act: The Contractor shall comply with all of the requirements of the Florida Trench Safety Act (Chapter 90-96, CS/CB 2626, laws of Florida). The Contractor shall acknowledge that included in various items of his bid proposal and in the total bid price are costs for complying with the provisions of the Act. Additionally, the Contractor is required to break out the costs for complying with the Florida Trench Safety Act. FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE REQUEST IN THIS SECTION SHALL RESULT IN THE BID BEING DECLARED NONRESPONSIVE. Failure to comply with the provisions of the Act shall result in a per item penalty of \$1,000 per day that the work is out of compliance.

1.02 APPLICABLE PUBLICATIONS

A. All publications and standard specifications referred to herein are the latest or current issue of that publication or specification as of the specification date.

1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. The requirements for testing and laboratory services is specified in Section 01410: Testing and Testing Laboratory Services.

1.04 FEDERAL AND STATE REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

A. All trench excavations which exceed 4 feet in depth shall comply with the applicable trench safety standards as stated in the OSHA excavation safety standards 29 CFR S. 1926.650 Subpart P as regulated and administered by the Florida Department of Labor and Employment Security as the "Florida Trench Safety Act."

1.05 JOB CONDITIONS

A. If, in the opinion of the Engineer, conditions encountered during construction warrant a change in the footing elevation, or in the depth of removal of unsuitable material from that indicated in the soils report, an adjustment will be made in the contract price, as provided in the General and Special Conditions.

1.06 PROTECTION

- A. Pre-Construction Survey:
 - 1. Prior to commencing excavation, backfill or dewatering, the Engineer and Contractor shall jointly conduct a survey of those existing structures which, in the opinion of the Engineer, may be subject to settlement or distress resulting from excavation or dewatering operations.
 - 2. The Engineer will monitor the structures surveyed to ascertain evidence of settlement or distress. If settlement or distress becomes evident the Contractor shall be required to repair the structures to the previous condition to the satisfaction of the Engineer. Costs shall be paid by the Contractor.

1.07 SUBMITTALS

A. Submit to the Engineer for review the proposed methods of construction, including dewatering, excavation, bedding, filling, compaction and backfilling for the various portions of the work. Review shall be for method only. The Contractor shall remain responsible for the adequacy and safety of the methods.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

A. General:

- 1. All fill material from on and off-site sources shall be subject to the approval of the Engineer.
- 2. All fill material shall be unfrozen and free of organic material, trash, or other objectionable material. Excess or unsuitable material as designated by the Engineer shall be removed from the job site by the Contractor.

B. Common Fill Material:

- 1. Common fill shall be sand not containing stones, rock, concrete or other rubble larger than 2 inches in diameter. It shall have physical properties which allow it to be easily spread and compacted.
- 2. The Contractor shall utilize as much excavated material as possible for reuse in accordance with the contract drawings and specifications or as directed by the Engineer.
- 3. The Engineer shall direct the Contractor on the type of material allowed in certain sections of the earthwork operations.
- C. Structural Fill: Structural fill shall be well graded sand to gravelly sand having the following gradation:

<u>U.S. Sieve Size</u>	Percent Passing By Weight
1 - inch	100
No. 4	75-100
No. 40	15-80
No. 100	0-30
No. 200	0-10

- D. Class I Soils¹: Manufactured angular, granular material, 1/4 to 1-1/2 inches (6 to 40 mm) in size, including materials having significance such as crushed stone or rock, broken coral, crushed slag, cinders, or crushed shells. Sieve analysis for crushed stone is given below separately.
 - 1. Crushed Stone: Crushed stone shall consist of clean mineral aggregate free from clay, loam or organic matter, conforming with ASTM C33 stone size No. 89 and with particle size limits as follows:

U.S. Sieve Size	Percent Passing By Weight
1/2	100
3/8	90-100
No. 4	20-55
No. 8	5-30
No. 16	0-10
No. 50	0-5

¹ Soils defined as Class I soils are not defined in ASTM D2487.

-

E. Class II Soils²:

- 1. GW: Well-graded gravels and gravel-sand mixtures, little or no fines. 50 percent (50%) or more retained on No. 4 sieve. More than 95 percent retained on No. 200 sieve. Clean.
- 2. GP: Poorly graded gravels and gravel-sand mixtures, little or no fines. 50 percent (50%) or more retained on No. 4 sieve. More than 95 percent retained on No. 200 sieve. Clean.
- 3. SW: Well-graded sands and gravelly sands, little or no fines. More than 50 percent (50%) passes No. 4 sieve. More than 95 percent retained on No. 200 sieve. Clean.
- 4. SP: Poorly graded sands and gravelly sands, little or no fines. More than 50 percent (50%) passes No. 4 sieve. More than 95 percent retained on No. 200 sieve. Clean.
- F. Coarse Sand: Sand shall consist of clean mineral aggregate with particle size limits as follows:

U.S. Sieve Size	Percent Passing By Weight
No. 10	100
No. 20	0-30
No. 40	0-5

G. Other Material: All other material, not specifically described, but required for proper completion of the work shall be selected by the Contractor and approved by the Engineer.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 PREPARATION

- A. Clearing and Grubbing:
 - 1. Clearing and grubbing shall be performed in accordance with Section 02110.
 - 2. Strip and dispose of topsoil on-site, unless otherwise directed to stockpile the material by the Engineer

3.02 PROTECTION

A. Sheeting and Bracing:

1. Furnish, put in place, and maintain sheeting and bracing as required to support the sides of excavations, to prevent movement which could in any way diminish the width of the excavation below that necessary for proper construction, and to protect adjacent structures, and to protect workers from hazardous conditions or other damage. Such support shall consist of braced steel sheet piling, braced wood lagging and soldier beams or other approved methods. If the Owner is of

² In accordance with ASTM D2487, less than 5 percent (5%) pass No. 200 sieve.

the opinion that sufficient or proper supports have not been provided, he may order additional supports be installed at the expense of the Contractor, and compliance with such order shall not relieve or release the Contractor from his responsibility for the sufficiency of such supports. Care shall be taken to prevent voids beside the sheeting, but if voids are formed, they shall be immediately filled and compacted. Where soil cannot be properly compacted to fill a void, lean concrete shall be used as backfill at no additional expense to the Owner.

- 2. The Contractor shall construct sheeting outside the neat lines of the foundation unless deemed otherwise for his method of operation. Sheeting shall be plumb and securely braced and tied in position. Sheeting and bracing shall withstand all pressure to which the structure or trench will be subjected. Any deformation shall be corrected by the Contractor at his own expense so as to provide the necessary clearances and dimensions.
- 3. Where sheeting and bracing is required to support the sides of excavations for structures, the Contractor shall engage a Professional Geotechnical Engineer, registered in the State of Florida, to design the sheeting and bracing. The sheeting and bracing installed shall conform with the design, and certification of this shall be provided by the Professional Geotechnical Engineer.
- 4. The installation of sheeting, particularly by driving or vibrating, may cause distress to existing structures. The Contractor shall evaluate the potential for such distress and, if necessary, take all precautions to prevent distress of existing structures because of sheeting installation.
- 5. The Contractor shall leave in place to be embedded in the backfill, all sheeting and bracing not shown on the Drawings but which the Owner directs him in writing to leave in place at any time during the progress of the work for the purpose of preventing injury to structures, utilities, or property, whether public or private. The Owner may direct that timber used for sheeting and bracing be cut off at any specified elevation.
- 6. All sheeting and bracing not left in place shall be carefully removed in such manner as not to endanger the construction, or other structures, utilities, or property. All voids left or caused by withdrawal of sheeting shall be immediately refilled with sand by ramming with tools especially adapted for that purpose, or otherwise directed by the Owner.
- 7. The right of the Owner to order sheeting and bracing left in place shall not be construed as creating any obligation on his part to issue such orders, and his failure to exercise his right to do so shall not relieve the Contractor from liability for damages to persons or property occurring from or upon the work occasioned by negligence or otherwise, growing out of a failure on the part of the Contractor to leave in place sufficient sheeting and bracing to prevent any caving or moving of the ground.
- 8. No wood sheeting is to be withdrawn if driven below mid-diameter of any pipe, and under no circumstances shall any wood sheeting be cut off at a level lower than 1 foot above the top of any pipe.

B. Pumping and Drainage:

1. The Contractor shall at all times during construction provide and maintain proper equipment and facilities to remove all water entering excavations, and shall keep

such excavations dry so as to obtain a satisfactory undisturbed subgrade foundation condition until the fills, structures or pipes to be built thereon have been completed to such extent that they will not be floated or otherwise damaged by allowing water levels to return to natural levels as stipulated in Section 02140. The Contractor shall engage a Professional Geotechnical Engineer registered in the State of Florida, to design the dewatering systems for all structures. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer for review a plan for dewatering systems prior to commencing work. The installed dewatering system shall be in conformity with the overall construction plan, and certification of this shall be provided by the Professional Geotechnical Engineer. The Professional Geotechnical Engineer shall be required to monitor the performance of the dewatering systems during the progress of the work and require such modifications as may be required to assure that the systems are performing satisfactorily.

- 2. Dewatering shall at all times be conducted in such a manner as to preserve the undisturbed bearing capacity of the subgrade soils at the bottom of the excavation and to preserve the integrity of adjacent structures. Well or sump installations shall be constructed with proper sand filters to prevent intermixing of finer grained soil from the surrounding ground.
- 3. Water entering the excavation from surface runoff shall be collected in shallow ditches around the perimeter of the excavation, drained to sumps, and pumped from the excavation to maintain a bottom free from standing water.
- 4. The Contractor shall take all additional precautions to prevent buoyant uplift of any structure during construction.
- 5. The conveying of dewatered liquids in open ditches or trenches will not be allowed. Permission to use any storm sewers, or drains, for water disposal purposes shall be obtained from the authority having jurisdiction. Any requirements and costs for such use shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractor shall not cause flooding by overloading or blocking up the flow in the drainage facilities, and he shall leave the facilities unrestricted and as clean as originally found. Any damage to facilities shall be repaired or restored as directed by the Owner or the authority having jurisdiction, at no cost to the Owner.
- 6. Flotation shall be prevented by the Contractor by maintaining a positive and continuous operation of the dewatering system. The Contractor shall be fully responsible and liable for all damages which may result from failure of this system.
- 7. Removal of dewatering equipment shall be accomplished after the system is no longer required; the material and equipment constituting the system, shall be removed by the Contractor.
- 8. The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions to preclude the accidental discharge of fuel, oil, etc. in order to prevent adverse effects on groundwater quality.
- C. Utility Protection and Changes Where public or private utilities are encountered:
 - 1. Maintain, support, and save all public utilities from damage.

- 2. Allow reasonable time and space for owners of private utilities to cooperate in maintaining their facilities.
- 3. Excavate test pits:
 - a. A minimum of two (2) working days or 500 ft. in advance of construction to determine precise location of obstructions and existing utilities which may effect alignment of the Work.
 - b. Size: 3 feet square to the depth required, unless larger pit is required to adequately investigate utility locations.
 - c. Prior to excavation, notify the Engineer, and affected utility owners.
 - d. Test pits shall include excavation, temporary sheeting, dewatering, backfilling, compaction and pavement replacement.

3.03 EXCAVATION

- A. Excavating for Structures and Utilities:
 - Excavation work shall be performed in a safe and proper manner with appropriate precautions being taken against all hazards. Excavations shall provide adequate working space and clearances for the work to be performed therein and for installation and removal of concrete forms. In no case shall excavation faces be undercut for extended footings.
 - 2. Excavation shall be made to such dimensions as will give suitable room for bracing and supporting, for pumping and draining, for installing the pipelines, and for all other work required.
 - a. Excavation for precast or prefabricated structures shall be carried to an elevation two (2) feet lower than the proposed outside bottom of the structure to provide space for the backfill material.
 - b. Excavation for structures constructed or cast-in-place in dewatered or dry excavations shall be carried down to the 2-feet below the bottom of the structure where dewatering methods are such that a dry evacuation bottom is exposed and the naturally occurring material at this elevation leveled and left ready to receive construction. Material disturbed below the founding elevation in dewatered excavations shall be replaced with Class B concrete.
 - 3. Immediately document the location, elevation, size, material type and function of all new subsurface installations, and utilities encountered during the course of construction.
 - 4. Excavation equipment operators and other concerned parties shall be familiar with subsurface obstructions as shown on the Drawings, and should anticipate the encounter of unknown obstructions during the course of the work.
 - 5. Encounters with subsurface obstructions shall be hand excavated.
 - 6. Excavation and dewatering shall be accomplished by methods which preserve the undisturbed state of subgrade soils. Subgrade soils which become soft, loose, "quick" or otherwise unsatisfactory for support of structures as a result of inadequate dewatering or other construction methods, shall be removed and replaced by crushed stone as required by the Engineer at the Contractor's expense.

- 7. The bottom of excavations shall be rendered firm and dry before placing any structure or pipe. Excavated material not suitable for backfill shall be removed from the site and disposed of by the Contractor in a legal manner. The bedding schedule for pipes shall be as shown on the drawings.
- 8. Excavated material shall be stockpiled in such a manner as to prevent nuisance conditions. Surface drainage shall not be hindered.
- 9. All structure and pipe locations and elevations as required herein must be permanently documented by the Contractor, on the Record Drawings prior to the Engineer's approval of the Application for Payment for that work.

3.04 DRAINAGE

- A. The Contractor shall at all times during construction provide and maintain proper equipment and facilities to remove promptly and dispose of properly all water entering excavations, and keep such excavations dry so as to obtain a satisfactory undisturbed subgrade foundation condition. The dewatering method used shall prevent disturbance of earth below grade.
- B. All water pumped or drained from the excavated area shall be disposed of in a suitable manner without undue interference with other work, without damage to surrounding property, and in accordance with pertinent rules and regulations.
- C. No construction, including pipe laying, shall be allowed in water. Groundwater shall be maintained at least 24 inches below excavation. No water shall be allowed to come into contact with masonry or concrete within 24 hours after being placed. The Contractor shall constantly guard against damage due to water and take full responsibility for all damage resulting from his failure to do so.
- D. The Contractor will be required at his expense to excavate below grade and refill with approved fill material if the Owner determines that adequate drainage has not been provided.

3.05 UNDERCUT

A. If the bottom of any excavation is below that shown on the Drawings or specified because of Contractor error, convenience, or unsuitable subgrade due the Contractor's excavation methods, he shall refill to normal grade with fill at his own cost. Fill material and compaction method shall be as directed by the Engineer.

3.06 STABILIZATION

- A. Subgrades for concrete structures and trench bottoms shall be firm dense, and thoroughly compacted and consolidated; shall be free from mud and muck; and shall be sufficiently stable to remain firm and intact.
- B. Subgrades for concrete structures or trench bottoms which are otherwise solid, but which becomes mucky on top due to construction operations, shall be reinforced with one or more layers of crushed rock or gravel. Not more than 1/2 inch depth of mud or muck shall be allowed to remain on stabilized trench bottoms when the pipe bedding material is placed thereon. The finished elevation of stabilized subgrades for concrete structures shall not be above subgrade elevations shown on the Drawings.
- C. All stabilization work shall be performed by and at the expense of the Contractor.

3.07 FILL AND COMPACTION

A. Materials:

- 1. To the maximum extent available, excess earth obtained from structure and trench excavation shall be used for the construction of fills and embankments.
- 2. Materials used as backfill shall be free from rocks or stones larger than 2 inches in their greatest dimension; brush, stumps, logs, roots, debris, and organic or other deleterious materials; and must be acceptable to the Engineer.
- 3. Backfilling and construction of fills and embankments during freezing weather shall not be done except by permission of the Engineer. No backfill, fill, or embankment materials shall be installed on frozen surfaces, nor shall frozen materials be in any backfill, fill or embankment.

B. Placement and Compaction:

- 1. Backfill materials shall be placed in approximately horizontal layers not to exceed 8 inches in uncompacted thickness. Material deposited in piles or windrows by excavating and hauling equipment shall be spread and leveled before compaction.
- 2. Each layer of material being compacted shall have the best practicable uniform moisture content to ensure satisfactory compaction. The Contractor will be required to add water and harrow, disc, blade, or otherwise work the material in each layer to ensure uniform moisture content and adequate compaction. Each layer shall be thoroughly compacted by rolling or other method acceptable to the Engineer to 95 percent of relative density at optimum moisture content as determined by Modified Proctor Method, ASTM D1557, (latest).
- 3. Whenever a trench passes through a backfill or embankment, material shall be placed and compacted to an elevation 12 inches above the top of the pipe before the trench is excavated
- C. Compact and backfill excavations and construct embankments for structures according to the drawings.
- D. Pipe shall be laid in open trenches unless otherwise indicated on the Drawings or elsewhere in the Contract Documents.
- E. Excavations shall be backfilled to the original grade or as indicated on the Drawings. Deviation from this grade because of settling shall be corrected. Backfill operation shall be performed to comply with all rules and regulations and in such a manner that it does not create a nuisance or safety hazard.
- F. Embankments shall be constructed true to lines, grades and cross sections shown on the plans or ordered by the Owner. Embankments shall be placed in successive layers of not more than 8 inches in thickness, loose measure, for the full width of the embankment. As far as practicable, traffic over the work during the construction phase shall be distributed so as to cover the maximum surface area of each layer.
- G. If the Contractor requests approval to backfill material utilizing lifts and/or methods other than those specified herein, such request shall be in writing to the Engineer. Approval

will be considered only after the Contractor has performed tests, at the Contractor's expense, to identify the material used and density achieved throughout the backfill area utilizing the method of backfill requested. The Engineer's approval will be in writing.

H. Foundation Preparation

- 1. The existing ground beneath proposed tankage, building foundations and equipment base slabs and slabs on grade shall be removed and the area proof-rolled. Proof-rolling should consist of at least 10 passes of a self-propelled vibrator compactor capable of delivering a minimum impact force of 30,000 to 35,000 pounds per drum to the soils. Each pass should overlap the preceding pass by 30 percent (30%) to insure complete coverage. Backfilled areas shall be compacted in 8-inch layers to a density of not less than 95 percent (95%) of Modified Proctor Dry Density as determined by ASTM D1557 (latest) for a depth of not less than 2-feet below the bottom of the foundations or concrete slabs. Any unsuitable foundation material shall be removed and replaced with suitable material.
- 2. Slabs On Grade: Subgrades for concrete slabs shall be removed, backfilled, and compacted to the required grade. The top 2-feet of concrete slab subgrade in cut sections and all fill material shall be compacted in 8-inch layers to a density of not less than 95 percent of Modified Proctor Dry Density as determined by ASTM D1557, (latest).

3.08 TRENCH EXCAVATION (SEE DRAWINGS FOR DETAIL)

- A. The Contractor shall not open more trench in advance of pipe laying than is necessary to expedite the work. Four hundred (400) feet shall be the maximum length of open trench on any line under construction. All trench excavation shall be open cut from the surface.
 - 1. Alignment, Grade, and Minimum Cover: The alignment and grade or elevation of each pipeline shall be fixed and determined from offset stakes. Vertical and horizontal alignment of pipes, and the maximum joint deflection used in connection therewith shall be in conformity with requirements of the section covering installation of pipe.
 - Where pipe grades or elevations are not definitely fixed by the contract drawings, trenches shall be excavated to a depth sufficient to provide a minimum depth of backfill cover over the top of the pipe of 42 inches where in paved or graded streets where surface grades are definitely established and 36 inches in other locations. Greater pipe cover depths may be necessary on vertical curves or to provide necessary clearance beneath existing pipes conduits, drains, drainage structures, or other obstructions encountered at normal pipe grades. Measurement of pipe cover depth shall be made vertically from the outside top of pipe to finished ground or pavement surface elevation.

B. Limiting Trench Widths:

1. Trenches shall be excavated to a width which will provide adequate working space and sidewall clearances for proper pipe installation, jointing, and embedment. However, minimum permissible sidewall clearances between the installed pipe and each trench wall, expressed in inches, shall be as follows:

	IVIIIIIIIIIIII
Pipe Size	Sidewall Clearance
60	24
54	21
48	19
36 or smaller	12

Minimum

- 2. Stipulated minimum sidewall clearances are not minimum average clearances but are minimum clear distances which will be required.
- 3. Cutting trench banks on slopes to reduce earth load to prevent sliding and caving will be permitted only in areas where the increased trench width will not interface with surface features or encroach on right-of-way limits. Slopes shall not extend lower than one foot above the top of the pipe.

C. Mechanical Excavation:

- 1. The use of mechanical equipment will not be permitted in locations where its operation would cause damage to trees, buildings, culverts, and other existing property, utilities, or structures above or below ground. In all such locations, hand excavating methods shall be used.
- 2. Mechanical equipment used for trench excavation shall be of the type, design, and construction, and shall be so operated, that the rough trench excavation bottom elevation can be controlled, that uniform trench widths and vertical sidewalls are obtained at least from an elevation one foot above the top of the installed pipe to the bottom of the trench, and that trench alignment is such that pipe when accurately laid to specified alignment will be centered in the trench with adequate clearance between the pipe and sidewalls of the trench. Undercutting the trench sidewall to obtain clearance will not be permitted.

D. Pavement Cutting:

- Cuts in concrete pavement, asphalt pavement, and asphalt base pavements shall be no larger than necessary to provide adequate working space for proper installation of pipe and appurtenances. Cutting shall be started with an asphalt or concrete saw in a manner which will provide a clean groove for the full depth of pavement along each side of the trench and along the perimeter of cuts for structures.
- 2. Asphalt pavement and asphalt base pavement over trenches excavated for pipelines shall be removed so that a shoulder not less than 6 inches in width at any point is left between the cut edge of the pavement and the top edge of the trench. Trench width at the bottom shall not be greater than at the top and no undercutting will be permitted. Pavement cuts shall be made to and between straight or accurately marked curved lines which, unless otherwise required, shall be parallel to the centerline of the trench.
- 3. Pavement removed for connections to existing lines or structures shall not be greater than necessary for the installation as determined by the Engineer.
- E. Artificial Foundations in Trenches: Whenever so ordered by the Engineer, the Contractor shall excavate to such depth below grade as the Engineer may direct and the trench bottom shall be brought to grade with such material as the Engineer may order installed. All piling, concrete, or other foundations made necessary by unstable soil shall

be installed as directed by the Engineer. Compensation for extra excavation and piling, concrete, or other foundations, except where provided by contract unit prices, shall be made in accordance with the contract provisions for extra work.

F. Bell Holes: Bell holes shall provide adequate clearance for tools and methods used in installing pipe. No part of any bell or coupling shall be in contact with the trench bottom, trench walls, or granular embedment when the pipe is jointed.

3.09 TESTS

A. Testing is specified in Section 01410: Testing and Testing Laboratory Services.

3.10 DRAINAGE

A. Trenches across roadways, driveways, walks, or other trafficways adjacent to drainage ditches or water courses shall not be backfilled prior to completion of backfilling the trench on the upstream side of the trafficway to prevent impounding water after the pipe has been laid. Bridges and other temporary structures required to maintain traffic across such unfilled trenches shall be constructed and maintained by the Contractor. Backfilling shall be done so that water will not accumulate in unfilled or partially filled trenches. All material deposited in roadway ditches or other water courses crossed by the line of trench shall be removed immediately after backfilling is completed and the original sections, grades, and contours of ditches or water courses shall be restored. Surface drainage shall not be obstructed longer than necessary.

3.11 FINAL GRADING

- A. After other outside work has been finished, and backfilling completed and settled, all areas on the site of the work which are to be graded shall be brought to grade with the tolerance of +/- 0.1 feet at the indicated elevations, slopes, and contours where seeding or sodding is not required or, where sodding is required within 3 inches of finished grade. Use of graders or other power equipment will be permitted for final grading and dressing of slopes, provided the result is uniform and equivalent to hand work. All surfaces shall be graded to secure effective drainage. Unless otherwise shown, a slope of at least one percent shall be provided.
- B. After grading and where seeding is required, topsoil shall be evenly spread to a minimum depth of 6 inches. Topsoil shall be from an Engineer approved source and shall be clear of trash, debris and surface vegetation more than 6 inches in height.
- C. Grading and surfacing shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Engineer.

3.12 EXCESS EXCAVATED MATERIALS

- A. Insofar as needed, suitable excavated materials shall be used in fills and embankments shown on the Drawings. All suitable excess excavated material shall be placed at an on-site stockpile area as directed by the Owner.
- B. The Contractor shall segregate different types of excavated materials (i.e. sands, clayey sands) as possible in the stockpile area. All unsuitable materials shall be disposed of by the Contractor offsite in a legal manner.
- C. The Contractor shall slope and compact the stockpile with a light roller type vehicle to maintain stability.

D. The Contractor shall maintain proper soil and erosion control measures.

3.13 SETTLEMENT

- A. The Contractor shall be responsible for all settlement of backfill, fills, and embankments which may occur within the correction period stipulated in the General Conditions.
- B. The Contractor shall make, or cause to be made, all repairs or replacements made necessary by settlement within 30 days after notice from the Engineer or Owner.

SECTION 02822 SOLID SODDING

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work: The work specified in this Section consists of establishing a stand of grass, within the areas indicated on the Drawings, by furnishing and placing grass sod. Also included are fertilizing, watering and maintenance as required to assure a healthy stand of grass. Work performed in the County and State Right-of-Ways and private property shall be replaced with like sod.

1.02 SUBMITTALS

A. A certification of sod quality by the producer shall be delivered to the Engineer 10 days prior to use.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 GRASS SOD

- A. Grass sod shall be Bahia or grass and shall be well matted with grass roots. The sod shall be taken in rectangles, preferably 12 inch by 24 inch, shall be a minimum 2 inches in thickness and shall be live, fresh and uninjured at the time of planting.
- B. It shall be reasonably free of weeds and other grasses and shall have a soil mat of sufficient thickness adhering firmly to the roots to withstand all necessary handling. The sod shall be planted as soon as possible after being dug and shall be shaded and kept moist until it is planted.

2.02 FERTILIZER

- A. Commercial fertilizer shall comply with the state fertilizer laws.
- B. The numerical designations for fertilizer indicate the minimum percentages (respectively) of (1) total nitrogen, (2) available phosphoric acid and (3) water-soluble potash contained in the fertilizer.
- C. The chemical designation of the fertilizer shall be 6 percent (6%) nitrogen, 6 percent (6%) phosphorus, and 6 percent (6%) potash. At least 50 percent (50%) of the nitrogen shall be derived from organic sources. At least 50 percent (50%) of the phosphoric acid shall be from normal super phosphate or an equivalent source which will provide a minimum of two (2) units of sulfur. The amount of sulfur shall be indicated on the quantitative analysis card attached to each bag or other container.

2.03 WATER FOR GRASSING

A. The water used in the sodding operations shall be obtained as provided for in Section 01500: Temporary Facilities.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 PREPARATION OF GROUND

A. The area over which the sod is to be placed shall be scarified or loosened to a depth and then raked smooth and free from debris. Where the soil is sufficiently loose and clean, the Engineer, at his discretion, may authorize the elimination of ground preparation.

3.02 APPLICATION OF FERTILIZER

- A. Before applying fertilizer, the soil pH shall be brought to a range of 6.0 to 7.0.
- B. The fertilizer shall be spread uniformly over the area to be sodded at the rate of 700 pounds per acre, or 16 pounds per 1,000 square feet, by a spreading device capable of uniformly distributing the material at the specified rate. Immediately after spreading, the fertilizer shall be mixed with the soil to a depth of approximately 4 inches.
- C. On steep slopes, where the use of a machine for spreading or mixing is not practicable, the fertilizer shall be spread by hand and raked in and thoroughly mixed with the soil to a depth of approximately 2 inches.

3.03 PLACING SOD

- A. The sod shall be placed on the prepared surface, with edges in close contact and shall be firmly and smoothly embedded by light tamping with appropriate tools.
- B. Where sodding is used in drainage ditches, or on slopes of four (4) to one (1) or greater, the setting of the pieces shall be staggered so as to avoid a continuous seam along the line of low. Along the edges of such staggered areas, the offsets of individual strips shall not exceed 6 inches. In order to prevent erosion caused by vertical edges at the outer limits, the outer pieces of sod shall be tamped so as to produce a featheredge effect.
- C. On slopes greater than two (2) to one (1), the Contractor shall, if necessary, prevent the sod from sliding by means of wooden pegs driven through the sod blocks into firm earth, at suitable intervals.
- D. Sod which has been cut for more than 72 hours shall not be used unless specifically authorized by the Engineer after his inspection thereof. Sod which is not planted within 24 hours after cutting shall be stacked in an approved manner and maintained and properly moistened. Any pieces of sod which, after placing, show an appearance of extreme dryness shall be removed and replaced by fresh, uninjured pieces.
- E. Sodding shall not be performed when weather and soil conditions are, in the Engineer's opinion, unsuitable for proper results.

3.04 WATERING

A. The areas on which the sod is to be placed shall contain sufficient moisture, as determined by the Engineer, for optimum results. After being placed, the sod shall be kept in a moist condition to the full depth of the rooting zone for at least 2 weeks. Thereafter, the Contractor shall apply water as needed until the sod roots and starts to grow for a minimum of 60 days (or until final acceptance, whichever is latest).

3.05 MAINTENANCE

- A. The Contractor shall, at his expense, maintain the sodded areas in a satisfactory condition until final acceptance of the project. Such maintenance shall include repairing of any damaged areas and replacing areas in which the establishment of the grass stand does not appear to be developing satisfactorily.
- B. Replanting or repair necessary due to the Contractor's negligence, carelessness or failure to provide routine maintenance shall be at the Contractor's expense.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 02922 LOAMING, SEEDING, AND MULCHING

PART 1- GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. Scope of Work: Furnish all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals required to prepare lawn bed, seed and mulch and establish a stand of grass for temporary erosion and sedimentation control. All areas disturbed by construction and not shown or specified to receive sodding shall receive seeding and mulching.
- B. Submit to Engineer as provided in Section 01340, identification labels and certification that all seed is Argentine Bahia.
- C. Areas seeded shall include all areas disturbed during construction except structures, roadways, walkways, and areas to be sodded. Areas to be sodded will include areas within 2 feet of buildings.

1.02 SUBMITTALS

A. Submit to the Engineer as provided in Section 01340, identification labels and certification that all seed is Argentine Bahia.

PART 2 - PRODUCT

2.01 LOAM

A. Loam (topsoil) shall be fertile, natural soil, typical of the locality, free from large stones, roots, sticks, peat, weeds and sod and obtained from naturally well drained areas. It shall not be excessively acid or alkaline nor contain toxic material harmful to plant growth. Topsoil stockpiled under other Sections of this Division may be used, but the Contractor shall furnish additional loam at his own expense, if required.

B. Soil Conitioners

Fertilizers:

- 1. Fertilizer shall be a complete fertilizer, the elements of which are derived from organic sources. Fertilizer shall be a standard product complying with State and Federal fertilizer laws.
- 2. Percentages of nitrogen, phosphorus and potash shall be based on laboratory tests on soils outlined in Paragraph 1.02.A and approved by the Engineer. For the purpose of bidding, assume 6% nitrogen, 6% phosphorus and 6% potash by weight. At least 50% of the total nitrogen shall contain no less than 3% water-insoluble nitrogen.
- 3. Fertilizer shall be delivered to the site, mixed as specified, in the original unopened standard size bags showing weight, analysis and name of manufacturer. Containers shall bear the manufacturer's guaranteed

statement of analysis, or a manufacturer's certificate of compliance covering analysis shall be furnished to the Engineer. Store fertilizer in weatherproof place and in such a manner that it will be kept dry and its effectiveness will not be impaired.

Superphosphate shall be composed of finely ground phosphate rock as commonly used for agricultural purposes containing not less than 20 available phosphoric acid.

Lime shall be ground limestone.

C. Seed

- 1. Species shall be Argentine Bahia Seed. Argentine Bahia grass seed shall have a minimum pure seed content of 95 percent with a minimum germiniation of 80 percent.
- 2. Dry Mulch: The mulch material used shall normally be dry mulch of straw or hay, consisting of oat, rye, or wheat straw, or of pangola, peanut, coastal Bermuda or bahia grass hay. Only undeteriorated mulch which can readily be cut into the soil shall be used.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 PREPARATION

A. See section on Preparation for Ground, Section 02934 Paragraph 3.01.

3.02 INSPECTION AND TESTING

- A. Verify that soil preparation and related preceding work has been completed.
- B. Do not start work until conditions are satisfactory.

3.03 INSTALLATION

- A. Apply the lawn seed with a drop type spreader while soil is still loose at the rate of eight (8) pounds per one thousand (1,000) square feet.
- B. Apply half the seed in one direction and the remainder at right anges to the first seeding.
- C. After applying the seed, rake the seed into the seed bed to a depth of one half inch.
- D. Approximately two inches, loose thickness, of mulch material shall be applied uniformly over the seed bed and cut into the soil so as to produce a loose mulched thickness of three to four inches. The area shall be rolled thoroughly with a lawn roller immediately after completion of the seeding and mulching.
- E. Water the seeded area lightly and again roll the area with a light lawn roller to assure firm contact of the soil and see.

3.04 MAINTENANCE

- A. Soil shall be kept continuously moist, but not too wet, until seed has germinated and become well establishe.
- B. The Contractor shall, at his expense, maintain the planted areas in a satisfactory condition as required for temporar erosion and sedimentation control. Such maintenance shall include watering, mowing, and filling, leveling, and repairing of any washed or eroded areas, as may be necessary. The Engineer may require replanting of any areas in which the establishment of the grass stand does not appear to be developing satisfactorily. Replanting shall be performed at the Contractor's expense. The Contractor shall mow grassed areas once per week until final completion of the Project.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 02960 PIPING

PART 1: GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Scope of Work:
 - 1. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials and equipment to install and complete all underground yard piping for potable water distribution, non-potable water distribution, sanitary drains, process transfer piping, forcemains and air piping.
- B. The Contractor shall complete the connections of all installed underground piping to the respective existing and new equipments, tanks, and above-ground piping.

PART 2 - MATERIALS (See respective Mechanical, Division 15 herein.)

The Contractor shall provide underground yard piping as shown on the drawing and as listed below:

A. Potable Water/ - 4"-12" - C900 PVC or Class 350 DIP
Reclaimed Water -> 12" - C900 PVC or Class 250 DIP

- 3" or less – Schedule 40 PVC

- Color - Blue or Blue Adhesive Striping

B. Sanitary Drains - SDR 35 PVC

- Color - Green

C. Force Mains - C900 PVC or class 250 DIP

- Color - Green

PART 3 - SEE EXCAVATION, BACKFILLING AND GRADING, SECTION 02220. SEE RESPECTIVE PIPING INSTALLATIONS, MECHANICAL, DIVISION 15, HEREIN.

END OF DIVISION

SECTION 03100 CONCRETE FORMWORK

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. The work included in this Section consists of providing all labor, materials and equipment necessary for providing and installing formwork for concrete.
- B. Related Work Described Elsewhere:
 - 1. Concrete Reinforcement: Section 03200.
 - Concrete Joints and Accessories: Section 03150.
 - 3. Cast-in-Place Concrete: Section 03300.
 - 4. Concrete Finishes: Section 03350
- C. General Design: The Contractor shall be responsible for the design of all formwork and for safety in its construction and removal.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Qualifications: Formwork shall be constructed in accordance with the specified standards, as well as all pertinent codes and regulations. Where provisions of pertinent codes conflict with the requirements of this section of these specifications, the more stringent provisions shall govern.
- B. Standards: Unless otherwise indicated, all materials, workmanship and practices shall conform to the following standards:
 - 1. Florida Building Code.
 - 2. ACI 347 "Recommended Practice for Concrete Formwork".
 - 3. Local Codes and regulations.
- C. Preplacement checklist: The Contractor, as part of his Quality Control Plan, shall develop and submit for review, a Preplacement Checklist form to cover the following items:
 - 1. Reference Drawings covering the placement for all trades and disciplines.
 - 2. Date and time schedule for placement and the actual date and time of placements.
 - 3. Foreman name, placement number, number of truckloads and number of cylinders.

- 4. Checklist items such as embeds (list each), subgrade, rebar, forms alignment, plumbness, etc.
- 5. Signoff's for foreman, Contractor's Quality Control representative, each subcontractor foreman (major subs, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, etc.) and Engineer.
- D. Tolerances: Formwork shall be constructed to insure that finished concrete surfaces will be in accordance with the tolerances listed in ACI-347. Camber shall be provided as necessary to compensate for anticipated deflection in formwork and concrete due to weight and pressure of fresh concrete and other construction loads.
- E. No concrete may be placed until the checklist is properly and completely signed off. Failure to comply with this provision can be grounds for rejecting the work. The checklist shall be weather protected and located with the foreman or at the foreman's station.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

Materials: Submit manufacturer's literature on form ties, spreaders, corner formers, form coatings and bond breakers in accordance with the General Conditions and Division 1.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. Form Lumber: Use form lumber when in contact with exposed concrete, conforming to one (1) of the following, a combination thereof, or equivalent as approved by the Engineer.
 - 1. Lumber: Douglas Fir-Larch No. 2 grade, or better, surfaced on four (4) sides.
 - 2. Plywood: "Plyform", Class I or II, bearing the label of the Douglas Plywood Association (minimum 3/4 inch thickness).
- B. Form Ties: Use form ties which do not leave an open hole through the concrete and which permit neat and solid patching at every hole. Use embedded rods with integral waterstops and cones to provide a 1 inch breakback. Wire ties and wood spreaders will not be permitted.
- C. Form Coatings: Form release coating shall be a paraffin base oil or mineral oil coating which effectively prevents absorption of moisture, prevents bonding with concrete, is non-staining to concrete and leaves the concrete with a paintable surface.
- D. Chamfer Strips: Chamfer strips shall be polyvinyl strips or approve equal, designed to be nailed in the forms to provide a 3/4 inch chamfer (unless indicated otherwise) at exposed edges of concrete members.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Construction of Formwork: Forms shall be sufficiently strong to withstand the pressure resulting from the placement and vibration of concrete and shall be sufficiently rigid to maintain specified tolerances. Forms shall be sufficiently tight to prevent loss of mortar, and shall be adequately braced against lateral, upward or downward movement.
- B. Coating of Forms: Apply form coating to bare forms prior to placing reinforcing. Keep form coatings off steel reinforcing, items to be embedded and previously place concrete.

C. Form Erection

- Provide a means of holding adjacent edges and ends of panels and sections tightly together and in accurate alignment so as to prevent the formation of ridges, fins, offsets, or similar surface defects of the finished concrete. Insure that forms may be removed without injury to the surface of the finished concrete.
- 2. Provide a positive means of adjustment of shore and struts. Insure that all settlement is taken up during concrete placing.
- 3. Temporary openings shall be provided in wall forms to limit the free fall of concrete to a maximum of six (6) feet unless an elephant truck is used. Such openings shall be located to facilitate placing and consolidation and shall be spaced no more than eight (8) fee apart. Temporary openings shall also be provided in the bottom of wall and column forms and elsewhere as necessary to facilitate cleaning and observation immediately prior to placing.
- 4. Do no embed any form-tying device of part thereof other than metal in concrete.
- Form surfaces of concrete members except where placement of the concrete against the ground is shown on the Drawings. The dimensions of concrete members shown on the Drawings apply to formed surfaces, except where otherwise indicated.
- D. Formwork Reuse: Reuse only forms which maintain a uniform surface texture on exposed concrete surfaces. Apply light sanding between uses to obtain such a uniform texture. Plug unused tie rod holes with corks, shave flush, and sandpaper in the concrete surface side.

E. Removal of Formwork

1. Forms and shoring for elevated structural slabs, girders, or beams shall remain in place until the concrete has reached a compressive strength equal to the specified 28-day compressive strength as determined by test cylinders. The Table 03100-A indicates the minimum allowable time after the last concrete is

placed before forms, shoring, or bracing may be removed.

- 2. Do not remove forms from concrete which have been placed with outside air temperatures below 50 degrees Fahrenheit without first determining if the concrete has properly set without regard for time. Do not apply any loading on green concrete. Immediately after forms are removed, the surface of the concrete shall be carefully examined and any irregularities in the surface shall be repaired and finished as specified.
- F. Formed Openings: Openings shall be sufficient size to permit final alignment of the items within it without deflection or offsets of any kind and to allow space for packing where the items pass through the wall to insure water tightness around openings so formed. Provide openings with waterstops where required, and provide a slight flare to facilitate grouting and the escape of entrained air during grouting. Provide formed openings with reinforcement as indicated and specified. Reinforcing steel shall be at least 2 inches clear from the opening.
- G. Embedded Items: Set anchor bolts and other embedded items accurately and hold securely in position in the forms until the concrete is placed and set. Check all special castings, channels, or other metal parts that are to be embedded in the concrete prior to and again after concreting. Check all nailing, blocks, plugs and strips necessary for the attachment of trim, finish and similar work prior to concreting.
- H. Pipes and Wall Spools Cast in Concrete
 - 1. Install wall spools, wall flanges and wall anchors before placing concrete. Do no weld, tie or otherwise connect the wall spools to the reinforcing steel.
 - Support pipe and fabricated fittings to be encased in concrete on concrete piers or pedestals. Carry concrete supports to firm foundations so that no settlement will be possible during construction.

I. Form Tolerances

- Failure of the forms to produce the specified concrete surface tolerance shall be grounds for rejection of the concrete work. Rejected work shall be repaired or replaced at no cost to the Owner. Comply with ACI-347 if more stringent than listed herein.
- 2. The following table indicates tolerances or allowable variations from dimensions or positions of structural concrete work:

Maximum Tolerance (inches)		The plane or axes from which the tolerances are to be measured
Sleeves and Inserts	+1/8 to -1/8	Centerline of sleeve or insert
Projected ends of anchors	+1/4 to 0.0	Plane perpendicular to the end of the anchor as located on the Drawing
Anchor bolt setting	+1/8 to -1/8	Centerline of anchor bolt
Finished concrete, all locations	+1/4 to -1/4 in 10 feet length	The concrete surface as located on the Drawings

3. Where equipment is to be installed, comply with the manufacturer's tolerances if more severe than above.

Table 03100 -A Minimum Allowable Time for Removal of Forms, Shoring and/or Bracing	
Structural Item Minimum Allowable Time	
Bottom side of slabs, girders, beams	When concrete reaches specified 28- day compressive strength, and minimum 4 days
Vertical sides of beams and girders	48 hours
Walls not supporting vertical or horizontal loads	48 hours
Walls supporting vertical or horizontal loads	When concrete reaches specified 28- day compressive strength, and minimum 4 days
Footings, pipe encasements, pipe supports	24 hours

END OF SECTION

SECTION 03150 CONCRETE JOINTS AND ACCESSORIES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK:

Furnish all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals required and install, complete, the permanent accessories for concrete joints as shown on the Drawings and specified herein to minimize leakage from the basins, to minimize groundwater leakage into the structures, to allow for the expansion and contraction of the structure and to protect the concrete joints from damage.

1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submittals shall be in accordance with the General Conditions and Division 1.
- B. The following Layout Drawings shall be submitted for review prior to submittal of reinforcing Shop Drawings and the start of concrete work.
 - 1. Layout Drawings showing the location of all concrete joints as shown on the Drawings and those additional concrete construction joints proposed by the Contractor facilitate the construction. Submitting the contract documents shall not be considered as compliance with this section.
- C. The following technical information shall be submitted for review prior to their installation.
 - 1. Catalogue cut sheets for all products.
 - 2. Additional product information and/or samples requested by the Engineer to determine their conformance with the specifications.

1.03 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

- A. Sealants shall be stored in unopened containers, under cover, in a cool dry place.
- Plastic products shall be stored in a cool dry place out of direct sunlight.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS - WATER CONTAINMENT STRUCTURES

- A. Waterstop (Plastic)
 - 1. Plastic waterstops shall be as shown on drawings and shall be extruded from an elastomeric plastic compound with virgin polyvinyl chloride as the basic resin. The compound shall contain no reprocessed materials. The waterstops shall meet the performance criteria in the Corps of Engineers' Specification CRD_C_572.

- B. Premolded Joint Filler: Self_expanding cork premolded joint filler shall be as shown on the Drawings and shall conform to ASTM D 1752, Type III, as manufactured by W.R. Grace Co., W.R. Meadows, Inc. or equal.
- C. Joint Backing: Joint backing shall be bond breaker tape and shall be an adhesive_backed polyethylene or glazed butyl tape which will satisfactorily adhere to the premolded joint filler or concrete surface as required. The tape shall be the same width as the joint.
- D. Sealant: Sealant shall be Sikaflex 1a manufactured by Sika Corporation, or equal.
- E. Primer: Primer shall be as recommended by sealant manufacturer.

2.02 MATERIALS NON_WATER CONTAINMENT STRUCTURES

A. Premolded Joint Filler: Asphalt expansion joint filler shall be as shown on the Drawings and shall conform to ASTM D 994 as manufactured by W.R. Grace Co., W.R. Meadows, Inc. or equal.

PART 3 _ EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. PVC waterstops shall be spliced and/or joined in conformity with the manufacturer's recommendations to form a continuous seal along the joints and at intersections. The finished splices and connections shall have a tensile strength of not less than 80 percent of the unspliced section. The splices and connections shall not be subjected to any force for ten (10) minutes after making the splice or connection. Where the waterstop is discontinuous at the top of walls, it shall be terminated eight inches from the top surface unless otherwise detailed on the Drawings.
- B. Each side of the PVC serrated waterstop shall be tied to the reinforcement at least 12_inches on center for horizontal joints and at least 18_inches on center for vertical joints to prevent displacement during the concreting operations. Serrated waterstops shall be secured by passing the tie wires through punched or drilled holes between the first and second rib on each side. Center bulb type waterstops shall be installed with the center bulb centered in the joint. Waterstops without center bulbs shall be positioned with midpoint of the waterstop centered on the joint. Care shall be taken to place the concrete equally on each side of vertically oriented waterstops without distorting or displacing the waterstop. Concrete shall be placed under horizontally oriented waterstops and shall be completely visually checked for continuous contact with the concrete without entrapment of air before concrete is placed on the top side of the waterstops. Waterstops in vertical joints shall be held rigid by split bulkhead forms.
- D. Premolded joint fillers shall be attached to the concrete with a bonding agent compatible with the joint sealant and joint filler. All installations shall be in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations. Premolded joint filler shall be precut to butt tightly against the waterstop if present and to leave the recess detailed on the Drawings for sealant. All butt splices shall be taped to prevent intrusion of the second concrete placement into the filler joint.

- E. Preformed control joints shall be installed straight, flush with the top of the slab, and with equipment and methods approved by the manufacturer of the joint material.
- F. Sealants shall be installed in clean recesses at the locations indicated on the Drawings. The application of the sealant shall conform to all the manufacturer's recommendations including temperature, moisture, primer, primer cure time and joint and recess preparation. Masking tape shall be applied to each side of the joint prior to the installation of the sealant and removed afterwards along with any spillage to leave a sealant installation with straight edges and a neat orderly appearance. Gray colored sealants shall be used unless otherwise specified or shown on the Drawings.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 03200 CONCRETE REINFORCEMENT

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

Furnish all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals required and install all concrete reinforcement as shown on the Drawings and specified herein.

1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submittals shall be in accordance with the General Conditions and Division 1.
- B. The following shall be submitted for review prior to the fabrication of reinforcement.
 - 1. Placing drawings for steel reinforcement. All pipes, ducts, conduits, and other openings shall be shown on shop drawings.
 - 2. Bar bending details.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS

Steel reinforcement in concrete shall conform to ACI 318 and ACI 350R unless otherwise specified herein.

1.04 PRODUCT DELIVERY AND HANDLING

- A. Reinforcing shall be substantially free from mill scale, rust, dirt, grease, or other foreign matter.
- B. Reinforcement shall be shipped and stored with bars of the same size and shape fastened in bundles with durable tags, marked in a legible manner with waterproof markings showing the same designations as shown on the submitted placing drawings.
- C. Reinforcing steel shall be stored off the ground and shall be protected from moisture and kept free from dirt, oil, or injurious contaminants.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. Materials shall be new, be of domestic manufacture and shall conform to the following material specifications.
 - 1. Concrete reinforcing bars: ASTM A 615, Grade 60 deformed bars.
 - 2. Welded wire fabric: ASTM A 185.
 - Plastic protected bar supports: CRSI Bar Support Specifications, Class 1 -Maximum Protection.

- 4. Precast concrete block bar supports: CRSI Bar Support Specifications, Precast Blocks with Wires.
- 5. Tie wires for reinforcement: 16-gage or heavier, black annealed wire.

2.02 FABRICATION OF REINFORCEMENT

- A. Fabrication tolerances shall be in accordance with the CRSI, Code of Standard Practice Fabrication.
- B. Bars shall be cold bent.
- C. Bars shall be bent around a revolving collar having a diameter of not less than that recommended by the CRSI, Code of Standard Practice Detailing. Hooks shall conform to the same Code.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Surface condition, bending, spacing, and tolerances of placement of reinforcement shall conform to the CRSI, Code of Standard Practice Field Erection.
- B. Except as otherwise indicated on the Drawings, the minimum concrete cover of reinforcement shall be as follows:
 - 1. Concrete cast against and permanently exposed to earth; 3 inches.
 - 2. Formed concrete surfaces in contact with soil, water, or exposed to the weather; 2 inches.
 - 3. Formed concrete surfaces not in contact with soil, water, sewage, or exposed to the weather.
 - a. Beams, girders, columns: principal reinforcement, ties, stirrups or spirals; 1-1/2 inches.
 - b. Walls and bottom steel of slabs; 3/4 inch.
 - c. Shells and top steel of slabs; 3/4 inch.
- C. Reinforcement which is to be exposed for a considerable length of time after being placed shall be painted with a heavy coat of neat cement slurry, if required by the Engineer.
- D. No reinforcing bars shall be welded either during fabrication or erection unless specifically called for on the Drawings, specified herein, or with prior written approval of the Engineer. All bars that have been welded, including tack welds, without such approval shall be immediately removed from the work. When welding of reinforcement is approved or called for, it shall conform to the AWS Structural Welding Code Reinforcing Steel, AWS D 1.4.

3.02 REINFORCEMENT AROUND OPENINGS

Place an equivalent area of steel to that interrupted by an opening, pipe penetration, or duct penetration around the opening or penetration. The bars shall have sufficient length to

develop bond at each end beyond the opening or penetration.

3.03 SPLICING OF REINFORCEMENT

- A. Except as otherwise indicated on the Drawings, compression embedment and lap splices shall be 30 diameters, but not less than 12 inches. The lap splice length for column vertical bars shall be based on the bar size in the column above.
- B. Except as otherwise indicated on the Drawings, tension lap splices shall be in accordance with the applicable tables in the ACI 315 Detailing Manual. Class B splices shall be used.
- C. Compression type mechanical connectors may be used for No. 9 or larger reinforcing bars in compression if approved in writing by the Engineer. The splice shall include concentric bearing from one bar to the other bar and shall be capable of developing 125 percent of specified yield strength. Splices in adjacent bars shall be offset at least 30 bar diameters.
- D. Splices in welded wire fabric shall be lapped not less than 2 courses or 12-in. The spliced fabrics shall be tied together with wire ties at least 24-in on center.

3.04 ACCESSORIES

- A. The Contractor is solely responsible for determining, providing and installing accessories such as chairs, chair bars, and the like in sufficient quantities and strength to adequately support the reinforcement and prevent its displacement during the erection of the steel and the placement of concrete.
- B. Precast concrete blocks with wires shall be used where the reinforcing steel is to be supported over soil.
- C. Plastic bar supports shall be used to firmly hold vertical reinforcement (beams, columns, walls) in position.
- D. Precast concrete blocks with wires or plastic bar supports shall be used to support reinforcing steel on formwork. If the bottom of the precast blocks will be exposed to view after the removal of forms, the color and appearance of the block shall match that of the adjacent concrete.
- E. Alternate methods of supporting top steel in slabs, such as steel channels supported on the bottom and top mats, may be used if approved by the Engineer.

3.05 INSPECTION

In no case shall any reinforcing steel be covered with concrete until the amount and position of the reinforcement has been observed by the Engineer and his permission given to proceed with the concreting. The Engineer shall be given ample prior notice of the availability of set reinforcement for his review.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 03300 CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. Furnish all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals required to place all cast-inplace concrete, including equipment pads and grout for structural steel, machinery, and equipment bearing plates; reinforcing steel; forms; waterstops; and miscellaneous related items including sleeves, reglets, anchor bolts, inserts and embedded items specified under other Sections.
- B. All cast-in-place concrete work shall be performed in accordance with ACI 318 and ACI 350R except as hereinafter specified.

1.02 REFERENCE SPECIFICATIONS

- A. American Concrete Institute (ACI)
 - 1. ACI 301 Specifications for Structural Concrete for Buildings.
 - 2. ACI 304 Recommended Practice for Measuring, Mixing, Transporting, and Placing Concrete.
 - 3. ACI 305 Hot Weather Concreting.
 - 4. ACI 306 Cold Weather Concreting.
 - 5. ACI 308 Standard Practice for Curing Concrete.
 - 6. ACI 309 Standard Practice for Consolidation of Concrete.
 - 7. ACI 318 Building Code Requirements for Concrete Formwork.
 - 8. ACI 347 Recommended Practice for Concrete Formwork.
 - 9. ACI 350R Concrete Sanitary Engineering Structures.
- B. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM)
 - 1. ASTM C33 Specification for Concrete Aggregates.
 - 2. ASTM C94 Specification for Ready-mix Concrete.
 - 3. ASTM C150 Specification for Portland Cement.
 - 4. ASTM C260 Specification for Air-Entraining Admixtures for Concrete.
 - 5. ASTM C494 Specification for Chemical Admixtures for Concrete.
- C. National Ready-Mixed Concrete Association Truck Mixer and Agitator Standards.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit to the Engineer for review, in accordance with The General Conditions and Division 1 complete shop drawings, working drawings and product data showing placement of forms, form joints, locations of form ties in exposed exterior concrete, rustications, major inserts, and blockouts.
- B. Submit to the Engineer for review, the proposed method of concrete placement, curing and protection.
- C. Submit to the Engineer for review, in accordance with The General Provisions the proposed concrete mixes designed within the limits of these specifications, listing the brand and type of cement, source and results of tests of aggregates and admixtures, at least 14 days prior to the beginning of placing concrete.
- D. Deliver to the Engineer concrete mix tickets as hereinafter specified.

1.04 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. The actual acceptance of aggregates and development of mix proportions to produce concrete conforming to the specific requirements shall be determined prior to the placement of any concrete, by means of laboratory tests made with the constituents to be used on the work.
- B. The limiting strengths, water-cement ratios and cement factors as shown on Table A shall apply. Maximum water-cement (#/#) for water retaining structures shall be 0.45.

TABLE A

Minimum	Maximum	Minimum
Comp. Str.	Water Content	Cement Factor
psi at 28 days	gals/100 lbs*	100 lbs/cu yd**
3000	7.4	4.30
4000	5.4	5.64

- * Maximum; decrease if possible. This represents total water in mix at time of mixing, including free water on aggregates, and water in admixture solution.
- ** Minimum; increase as necessary to meet other requirements. These cement factors apply to "controlled" concrete subject to specific inspection.
- C. When high-early-strength portland cement is permitted, the same strength requirements shall apply except that the indicated strengths shall be attained at seven (7) days instead of twenty eight (28) days.
- D. If, during the progress of the work, it is impossible to secure concrete of the required work ability and strength with the materials being furnished, the Engineer may order such changes in proportions or materials, or both, as may be necessary to secure the desired properties. All changes so ordered shall be made at the Contractor's expense.

- E. If, during the progress of the work, the Contractor desires to use materials other than those originally approved, or if the materials from the sources originally approved change in characteristics, the Contractor shall, at his own expense, have made new acceptance tests of aggregates and establishment of new basic mixtures and submit them to the Engineer for approval.
- F. Under special circumstances, the Engineer may allow minor deviations from the material requirements specified, provided the resulting concrete quality is not adversely affected or provide a suitable adjustment in cement content is made to compensate for such deviations without cost to the Owner.
- G. Consistency of the concrete as measured by the ASTM Designation C143 shall be as shown in Table B.

TABLE B

	Slump (inches)	
Aggregate Type	Maximum	Minimum
Regular Mix Chat Mix	5 7	3 4

- H. Concrete shall be of such consistency and mix composition that it can be readily worked into the corners and angles of the forms and around the reinforcement, inserts, and wall castings without permitting materials to segregate or free water to collect on the surface, due consideration being given to the methods of placing and compacting.
- I. No excessively wet concrete shall be permitted, and if at any time concrete of such consistency beyond the limits of Table B is delivered to the job, the Engineer may direct the Contractor to reject same or to add extra cement for which no additional payment will be made. A supply of the approved cement shall be kept available at the site for this purpose. No additional water shall be added by drivers of transit-mix trucks except that established for the design. Failure to comply with this requirement shall be justification for rejecting the concrete.
- J. The entrained air, as measured by the Pressure Method, ASTM C231, shall be as shown in Table C.

TABLE C

Location	Total Air Measured at Discharge from Truck (%)
All	2.0-4.0

1.05 ACCEPTANCE TESTS

A. Conformity of aggregates to these Specifications, and the actual proportions of cement, aggregates, and water necessary to produce concrete conforming to the requirements set forth in Table A, shall be determined by tests made with representative samples of the materials to be used on the work. Tests will be made

- by an accredited testing laboratory selected by the Contractor and approved by the Engineer.
- B. Cement may be subject to testing to determine that it conforms to the requirements of this Specification. Methods of testing shall conform to the appropriate specification, but the place, time, frequency, and method of sampling will be determined by the Engineer in accordance with the particular need.
- C. Samples of fine and coarse aggregates shall be delivered to the laboratory for examination and testing at least three weeks before the Contractor proposes to use them in the work.
- D. Water content of the concrete shall be based on a curve showing the relation between water content and 7 and 28_day compressive strengths of concrete made using the proposed materials. The curves shall be determined by four or more points, each representing an average value of at least three test specimens at each age, and shall have a range of values sufficient to yield the desired data, including all the compressive strengths called for on the Drawings, without extrapolation. The water content of the concrete to be used, as determined from the curve, shall correspond to the test strengths of the laboratory trial mixtures as shown on Table D.

TABLE D

	Minimum Lab Strength	
Design Strength	7 Days	28 Days
3000 4000	2500 3500	3600 4600

E. In no case, however, shall the resulting mix conflict with the limiting values for maximum water-cement ratios and minimum cement contents as specified in Table A.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

A. Concrete shall be of portland cement, fine aggregate, coarse aggregate, water and admixtures as specified and shall be ready-mixed, or transit-mixed concrete produced by a plant acceptable to the Engineers. All constituents, including admixture, shall be batched at the central batch plant in accordance with ASTM C94. Materials shall conform to these Specifications and any State or local specification requirements.

B. Cement:

- 1. Cement for all cast in place concrete shall be a domestic portland cement (ASTM C150, Type II) or high early strength portland cement (ASTM C150, Type III) free from injurious water soluble salts or alkalies.
- 2. High early strength cement may only be used with written approval of the Engineer.

- 3. Air entraining cements shall not be used.
- 4. Cement brands shall be subject to approval of the Engineer.
- C. Flyash: The use of flyash is at the discretion of the Contractor. The flyash shall conform to ASTM C618 Class F. The maximum amount of flyash to be used in the mix shall be 20 percent of the total cementing material by weight.

D. Aggregates:

1. Fine aggregate shall consist of washed inert sand conforming to the requirements of ASTM C33, and the following detailed requirements:

Fineness Modulus: 2.30-3.10

Organics: Organic Plate 2, per ASTM C40

Silt: 2.0 percent maximum

Mortar Strength: 95 percent minimum as per ASTM C87, Section 10 Soundness: 8 percent maximum loss, using magnesium sulfate,

subjected to 5 cycles

2. Coarse aggregate shall consist of well-graded crushed rock or washed gravel conforming to the requirements of ASTM C33 and the following detailed requirements:

Organics: Organic Plate 1, per ASTM C40

Silt: 1.0 percent Maximum

Soundness: 8 percent Maximum loss, using magnesium sulfate,

subjected to 5 cycles

3. The following designated sizes of aggregate shall be the maximum employed in concrete:

For reinforced sections 10_in and over in thickness: Regular Mix For reinforced sections less than 10 in thickness: Chat Mix

E. Water:

- 1. Water shall be clean and free from injurious amounts of oils, acid, alkali, organic matter, or other deleterious substances.
- 2. When subjected to the mortar strength test described in ASTM C87, the 28 day strength of mortar specimens made with the water under examination and normal portland cement shall be at least 100 percent of the strength of similar specimens made with distilled water.
- 3. Potable tap water will normally fulfill the above requirements.

F. Admixtures:

1. A water reducing agent such as Pozzolith, WRDA or equal shall be used in all concrete. The admixture shall conform to ASTM C494. Proportioning and mixing shall be as recommended by the manufacturer.

2. Admixtures causing accelerated setting of cement in concrete shall not be used. Air entraining admixtures with demonstrated compatibility with the concrete mix shall be used as required as a moderate addition to the water reducing agent to obtain the specified percent air in the resultant concrete.

G. Non-Shrink Grout:

- 1. Non-shrink Grout for setting bearing plates for structural steel, machinery, and other equipment shall be mixed as recommended by the manufacturer to give the necessary consistency for placing and to give a minimum compressive strength of 3,000 lbs. per square inch in three (3) days, and 6,800 lbs. per square inch in twenty eight (28) days.
- 2. Non-shrink grout shall be Masterflow 713 as manufactured by the Master Builders Company, Euco N-S by Euclid Chemical Co., Five Star Grout by Five Star Products, Inc., Fairfield, CT, or equal.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 MEASURING MATERIALS

- A. Materials shall be measured by weighing except as otherwise specified or where other methods are specifically authorized by the Engineer. The apparatus provided for weighing the aggregates and cement shall be suitably designed and constructed for this purpose. Scales shall have been certified by the local Sealer of Weights and Measures within one year of use. Each size of aggregate and the cement shall be weighed separately. The accuracy of all weighing devices shall be such that successive quantities can be measured to within one percent of the desired amount. Cement in standard packages (sacks) need not be weighed, but bulk cement and fractional packages shall be weighed.
- B. Water shall be measured by volume or by weight. The water-measuring device shall be capable of control to 1/2 percent accuracy. All measuring devices shall have been certified by the local Sealer of Weights and Measures within one year of use. Admixtures shall be dispensed either manually with use of calibrated containers or measuring tanks, or by means of an approved automatic dispenser designed by the manufacturer of the specific admixture.

3.02 MIXING

- A. Concrete shall be ready-mixed, or transit-mixed, as produced by equipment acceptable to the Engineer. No hand-mixing shall be permitted. Adding water in controlled amounts during the mixing cycle shall be done only with the express approval of, and under the direction of, the Engineer.
- B. Ready-mix or transit-mixed concrete shall be transported to the site in watertight agitator or mixer trucks loaded not in excess of rated capacities for the respective conditions as stated on the name plate. Discharge at the site shall be within 1_1/2 hours and within one hour when ambient temperature is above 85°F after cement was first introduced into the mix. Central mixed concrete shall be plant-mixed a minimum of 1_1/2 minutes per batch and then shall be truck-mixed or agitated a minimum of 8 minutes. Agitation shall begin immediately after the pre-mixed concrete is place in the truck and shall continue without interruption until discharge.

Transit-mixed concrete shall be mixed at mixing speed for at least 10 minutes immediately after charging the truck, followed by agitation without interruption until discharged.

- C. All central plant and rolling stock equipment and methods shall conform to ACI 304, ASTM C94, and the latest Truck Mixer and Agitator Standards of the Truck Mixer Manufacturers' Bureau of the National Ready-Mixed Concrete Association.
- D. The retempering of concrete or mortar which has partially hardened, that is, mixing with or without additional cement, aggregate, or water, will not be permitted.
- E. Attention is called to the importance of dispatching trucks from the batching plant so that they shall arrive at the site of the work just before the concrete is required, thus avoiding excessive mixing of concrete while waiting or delays in placing successive layers of concrete in the forms.
- F. Deliver to the Engineer at the time of each truckload transported to the site a mix ticket, showing at least the following: concrete plant identification, date, quantity of ingredients (including water) added at the batch plant, time of charge, and truck number.

3.03 INSPECTION AND CONTROL

- A. The preparation of forms, placing of reinforcing steel, conduits, pipes, and sleeves, batching, mixing, transportation, placing, curing, and testing of concrete shall be at all times under the inspection of the Engineer.
- B. The Contractor shall engage the services of an accredited testing laboratory approved by the Engineer in accordance with the General Provisions to establish the basic mixtures of concrete as required by the specifications, to test field control cylinder specimens, and to conduct other tests as specified herein or as deemed required by the Engineer to insure the quality of concrete as specified. All tests shall be performed in accordance with the applicable ASTM standard methods.

3.04 FIELD TESTS

- A. Sets of five field control cylinder specimens shall be taken for every fifty (50) cubic yards of concrete placed. During cold weather concreting, one additional test cylinder shall be taken and cured on the job site under the same conditions as the concrete it represents. Not less than one set of specimens shall be taken on any one day when concrete is being placed. One slump test shall be performed for each set of test cylinders taken and for each concrete mixer truck load delivery. All specimens shall be taken in conformance with ASTM C31. When average ultimate 28_day strength of control cylinders in any set falls below the required ultimate strength or below proportional minimum 7-day strengths where proper relation between 7 and 28-day strengths have been established by tests, proportions, water content, or temperature conditions shall be changed to secure the required strength.
- B. The Contractor shall cooperate in the making of such tests to the extent of allowing free access to the work for the selection of samples, providing heated (when required) moist storage facilities for specimens, affording protection to the specimens against injury or loss through his operations, and furnishing material and labor required for the purpose of taking concrete cylinder samples, curing boxes, and shipping boxes.

C. Air entrainment shall be measured by the testing laboratory at time of concrete deposit in accordance with ASTM C231.

3.05 CONCRETE APPEARANCE

- A. Concrete for every part of the work shall be of homogeneous structure which, when hardened, shall have the required strength, durability and appearance.
- B. Form work, mixtures and concrete placement workmanship shall be such that concrete surfaces, when exposed, will require only minimal finishing with no excess honeycombing, voids or irregular color lines.

3.07 PLACING AND COMPACTING

- A. For wall pours, place 4"-6" of grout (same mix except without coarse aggregate) upon horizontal water stops immediately prior to concrete placement.
- B. Concrete shall not be placed until reinforcing steel, pipes, conduits, sleeves, hangers, anchors, and other work required to be built into concrete have been inspected and approved by the Engineer. Remove water and foreign matter from forms and excavation. Place no concrete on frozen soil, and provide adequate protection against frost action during freezing weather. All soil bottom for slabs and footings shall be approved by the Engineer before placing concrete.
- C. Transport concrete from mixer to place of final deposit as rapidly as practicable by methods which prevent separation of ingredients and displacement of reinforcement, and which avoid rehandling. Partially hardened concrete shall not be used.
- D. "Cold joints" are to be avoided, but if they occur, are to be treated as bonded construction joints.
- E. At construction joints the surfaces of the concrete already placed, including vertical and inclined surfaces, shall be thoroughly cleaned of foreign materials and laitance, and weak concrete and roughened with suitable tools to expose a fresh face. At least two hours before and again shortly before the new concrete is deposited, the joints shall be saturated with water. After glistening water disappears, the joints shall be given a thorough coating of neat cement slurry mixed to the consistency of very heavy paste. The surfaces shall receive a coating at least 1/8_inch thick, well scrubbed-in by means of stiff bristle brushes whenever possible. New concrete shall be deposited before the neat cement dries.
- F. Deposit concrete to maintain, until the completion of the unit, a horizontal plastic surface. Vertical lifts shall not exceed 24 inches and preferably 18 inches.
- G. Chutes for conveying concrete shall be of U-shaped design and sized to insure a continuous flow of concrete. Flat (coal) chutes shall not be employed. Chutes shall be metal or metal-lined and each section shall have approximately the same slope. The slope shall not be less than 25 nor more than 45 degrees from the horizontal and shall be such as to prevent the segregation of the ingredients. The discharge end of the chute shall be provided with a baffle plate or spout to prevent segregation. If the discharge end of the chute is more than 5 feet above the surface of the concrete in the forms, a spout shall be used, and the lower end maintained as near

the surface of deposit as practicable. When the operation is intermittent, the chute shall discharge into a hopper. Chutes shall be thoroughly cleaned before and after each run, and the debris and any water shall be discharge outside the forms. Concrete shall not be allowed to flow horizontally over distances exceeding 5 feet.

- H. The pumping of concrete is an acceptable method. The proposed equipment and concrete mix shall be submitted to the Engineer for review prior to usage. The Contractor shall submit his entire plan of operation from time of discharge of concrete from the mixer to final placement in the forms and the steps to be taken to prevent the formation of cold joints in case the transporting of concrete by chute, conveyer, or pumps is disrupted.
 - 1. Aluminum alloy pipelines shall not be used for delivery of concrete.
 - 2. The trial mixes intended for pumping shall be prepared and tested in laboratory in accordance with all applicable ASTM Standards, and comply to all above mentioned requirements.
 - 3. The selected trial mixes shall be tested for pumpability. The pumpability test(s) involves a duplication of anticipated job conditions from beginning to end. The batching and truck mixing shall be the same as will be used, the same pump and operator shall be present and the pipe and/or hose layouts shall reflect the maximum height and distance contemplated.
 - 4. If a go-devil device pushed by water is used to clean out the pipe, additional measures to prevent water spillage into the placement area shall be taken.
 - 5. Sampling as indicated by the Engineer at both the truck discharge and points of final placement shall be employed to determine if any changes in the slump, air content and other significant mix characteristic occur. However, only the quality of the concrete at the placement end of the line will be considered.
 - 6. The addition of water shall not be permitted in order to increase workability.
 - 7. Pumps shall be operated and maintained so that a continuous stream of concrete is delivered into the forms without air pockets, segregation, or change in slump. When pumping is completed, concrete to be used remaining in the pipeline shall be ejected without contamination of concrete or segregation of ingredients. After each operation, equipment shall be thoroughly cleaned, and the flushing water shall be wasted outside the forms. Standby equipment shall be provided to assure continuity of operation when clogging or breakdown occur.
- I. In thin sections of considerable height, concrete shall be placed using suitable hoppers, spouts with restricted outlets, or otherwise, as required or approved.
- J. Concrete during and immediately after depositing shall be thoroughly compacted by means of suitable tools. Internal type mechanical vibrators shall be employed to produce required quality of finish. Vibration shall be done by experienced operators under close supervision and shall be carried on long enough to produce homogeneity and optimum consolidation without permitting segregation of the solid constituents or "pumping" or migration of air. All vibrators shall be supplemented by proper wooden spade puddling adjacent to forms to remove and preclude bubbles and honeycomb. This is essential for the top lifts of walls. All vibrators shall travel at

- least 10,000 rpm and be of adequate capacity. At least one vibrator shall be used for every 10 cubic yards of concrete placed per hour. In addition, one spare vibrator in operating condition shall be on the site.
- K. Concrete slabs on the ground shall be well-tamped into place and foundation material shall be wet, tamped, and rolled until thoroughly compacted prior to placing concrete.
- L. Concrete shall be deposited continuously in layers of such thickness that no concrete will be deposited on concrete which has hardened sufficiently to cause the formation of seams and planes of weakness within the section. If a section cannot be placed continuously, construction joints may be located at points as provided for in the Drawings or approved by the Engineer.

3.08 CURING AND PROTECTION

- A. Protect all concrete work against injury from the elements and defacements of any nature during construction operations. Special curing procedures shall be implemented as described herein to minimize the cracking of concrete in water retaining structures.
- B. Concrete placed at air temperature below 40°F shall have a minimum temperature of 60°F. When the air temperature is below 40°F or near 40°F and falling, the water and aggregates shall be heated before mixing. Accelerating chemicals shall not be used to prevent freezing. All concrete shall be so protected that the temperature at the surface will not fall below 50°F for at least 7 days after placing. The Contractor shall submit for approval by the Engineer the methods he proposes to use against low temperatures. No salt, manure, or other chemicals shall be used for protection.
- C. All concrete, particularly exposed surfaces, shall be treated immediately after concreting or cement finishing is completed to provide continuous moist curing above 50°F for at least 7 days, regardless of the ambient air temperature. Walls and vertical surfaces may be covered with continuously saturated burlap, or other approved means; horizontal surfaces, slabs, etc., shall be ponded to a depth of 1/2 inch or kept continuously wet by use of sprinklers.
 - Slabs of water retaining structures shall be wet cured continuously with approve means for a minimum of 14 days if Type II cement is used or for 3 days if Type III cement is used.
 - 2. Walls of water retaining structures shall have all their exposed surfaces covered from direct sunlight and forms left in place for a minimum of 3 days. Curing shall commence within four hours after concrete placement.
- D. In cold weather supplementary continuous warm curing (above 50°F) shall provide a total of 350_day degrees (i.e., 5 days 70°F. etc.) of heat.
- E. In hot weather, concrete when deposited shall have a placing temperature which will not cause difficulty from loss of slump, flash set or formation of cold joints. In no case shall the temperature of concrete being placed exceed 90°F.
- F. Finished surface and slabs shall be protected from the direct rays of the sun to prevent checking and crazing.

3.09 REMOVAL OF FORMS

A. Except as otherwise specifically authorized by the Engineer, forms shall not be removed before the concrete has cured as specified above in subparagraph 3.08C and the concrete has attained a strength of at least 30 percent of the ultimate strength prescribed by the design, and not before reaching the following number of day-degrees (whichever is the longer):

Forms for Day-degree*

Beams and slabs: 500

Walls and vertical surfaces (non-water retaining): 100 Walls and vertical surfaces (water retaining): 150

- * Day-degree: Total number of days times average daily air temperature at surface of concrete. For example, 5 days at a daily weighted average temperature of 60°F equal 300 day-degrees. (Days with temperatures below 50°F not to be included).
- B. Shores shall not be removed until the concrete has attained at least 60 percent of the specified strength and also sufficient strength to support safely its own weight and the construction live loads upon it, but concrete shall be minimum age of 14 days before such removal.

3.10 FAILURE TO MEET REQUIREMENTS

- A. Should the strengths shown by the test specimens made and tested in accordance with the above provisions fall below the values given in Table A, the Engineer shall have the right to require changes in proportions as outlined above to apply to the remainder of the work. Furthermore, the Engineer shall have the right to require additional curing on those portions of the structure represented by the test specimens which failed. The cost of such additional curing to be at the Contractor's expense. In the event that such additional curing does not give the strength required, as evidenced by core and/or load tests, the Engineer shall have the right to require strengthening or replacement of those portions of the structure which fail to develop the required strength. The cost of all such core borings and/or load tests and any strengthening or concrete replacement required because strengths of test specimens are below that specified, shall be entirely at the expense of the Contractor. In such cases of failure to meet strength requirements the Contractor and Engineer shall confer to determine what adjustment, if any, can be made in conformity with Sections 16 and 17 of ASTM C94.
- B. When the tests on control specimens of concrete fall below the required strength, the Engineer will permit check tests for strengths to be made by means of typical cores drilled from the structure in accordance with ASTM C42 and C39. In case of failure of the latter, the Engineer, in addition to other recourses, may require, at the Contractor's expense, load tests on any one of the slabs, beams, piles, caps, and columns in which such concrete was used. Test need not be made until concrete has aged 60 days.
- C. Slabs or beams, under load test, shall be loaded with their own weights plus a superimposed load of 2 times design live load. The load shall be applied uniformly over portion being tested in approved manner, and left in position for 24 hours. The

structure shall be considered satisfactory if deflection "D" in feet, at end of 24-hour period does not exceed value:

D equals 0.001(LxL)/t

in which "L" is span in feet, "t" is depth of slab or beam in inches.

D. If deflection exceeds "D" in the above formula, the concrete shall be considered faulty unless within 24 hours after removal of the load, slab or beam under test recovers at least 75 percent of observed deflection.

3.11 PATCHING AND REPAIRS

- A. It is the intent of these Specifications to require that forms, mixture of concrete and workmanship shall be such that concrete surfaces, when exposed, will require minimal finishing as specified in Article 3.05 above.
- B. As soon as the forms have been stripped and the concrete surfaces exposed, fins and other projections shall be removed, recesses left by the removal form ties (except where ties are left in place during sandblasting) shall be filled, and surface defects which do not impair structural strength shall be repaired. Clean all exposed concrete surfaces and adjoining work stained by leakage of concrete, to approval of the Engineer.
- C. Immediately after removal of forms remove plugs and break off metal ties as required by Article 3.06. Holes are then to be promptly filled upon stripping as follows: Moisten the hole with water, followed by a 1/16-inch brush coat of neat cement slurry mixed to the consistency of a heavy paste. Immediately plug the hole with a 1-1.5 mixture of cement and concrete sand mixed slightly damp to the touch (just short of "balling"). Hammer the grout into the hole until dense, and an excess of paste appears on the surface in the form of a spider web. Trowel smooth with heavy pressure. Avoid burnishing. When patching or repairing exposed surfaces the same source of cement and sand as used in the parent concrete shall be employed. Adjust color if necessary by addition of proper amounts of white cement.
- D. Rub lightly with a fine carborundum stone at an age of 1 to 5 days if necessary to bring the surface down with the parent concrete. Exercise care to avoid damaging or staining the virgin skin of the surrounding parent concrete. Wash thoroughly to remove all rubbed matter.
- E. Defective concrete and honeycombed areas shall be chipped down reasonably square and at least 1_inch deep to sound concrete by means of hand chisels or pneumatic chipping hammers. Irregular voids or surface stones need not be removed if they are sound, free of laitance, and firmly embedded in the parent concrete, subject to Engineer's final inspection. If honeycomb exists around reinforcement, chip to provide a clear space at least 3/8-inch wide all around the steel. For areas less than 1 ½-inch deep, the patch may be made in the same manner as described above for filling form tie holes, care being exercised to use adequately dry (nontrowelable) mixtures and to avoid sagging. Thicker repairs will require build-up in successive 1 ½-inch layers on successive days, each layer being applied (with slurry, etc.) as described above. To aid strength and bonding of the multiple layer repairs, the Engineer may order the use of Embeco non-shrink, metallic aggregate by the Master Builders Company, Cleveland, OH or Ironite by Fox Industries, Madison, IL or equal as an additive as follows:

<u>Material</u>	<u>Volumes</u>	<u>Weights</u>
Cement	1.0	1.0
Embeco	0.15	0.25
Sand	1.5	1.5

F. For very heavy (generally formed) patches; the Engineer may order the addition of pea gravel to the mixture and the proportions modified as follows:

<u>Material</u>	<u>Volumes</u>	<u>Weights</u>
Cement	1.0	1.0
Embeco	0.2	0.33
Sand	1.0	1.0
Pea Gravel	1.5	1.5

G. In cases where the Embeco is employed in multiple patches and a rusty finish is not desired on the surface, such as exposed faces of walls, etc., the final layer (or at least the final 1/2_inch) shall be composed of the 1_1.5 grout without Embeco. After hardening, rub lightly as described above for form tie holes.

3.12 INSTALLATION SCHEDULE

- A. Concrete for all structures shall have minimum compressive strength at 28 days of 4000 psi unless otherwise shown on the Drawings.
- B. Concrete fill, grout fill, thrust blocks, pipe encasement and duct encasement shall have a minimum compressive strength at 28 days of 2500 psi.

3.13 FIELD CONTROL

- A. The Contractor shall advise the Engineer of his readiness to proceed at least six working hours prior to each concrete placement. The Engineer will inspect the preparations for concreting including the preparation of previously placed concrete, the reinforcing and the alignment and tightness of formwork. No placement shall be made without the prior approval of the Engineer.
- B. The Engineer may have cores taken from any questionable area in the concrete work such as construction joints and other locations as required for determination of concrete quality. The results of tests on such cores shall be the basis for acceptance, rejection or determining the continuation of concrete work.
- C. The Contractor shall cooperate in the obtaining of cores by allowing free access to the work and permitting the use of ladders, scaffolding and such incidental equipment as may be required. The Contractor shall repair all core holes to the satisfaction of the Engineer. The work of cutting and testing the cores will be at the expense of the Engineer if cores test satisfactorily and will be at the expense of the Contractor if cores test unsatisfactorily.

3.14 MISCELLANEOUS WORK

A. All bolts, anchors, miscellaneous metals or other sleeves and steel work required to be set in the concrete forms for attachment of masonry, structural, and mechanical equipment shall be set or installed under this Section. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for the setting of such materials in the forms and shall correct all such not installed in a proper location or manner at his own expense. All bolts, anchors,

- sleeves, pipes and miscellaneous metals to be set in concrete shall receive a coating of bitumastic at least 48 hours prior to pouring the concrete.
- B. Electric conduits shall be installed in the concrete as required by the Drawing and specified elsewhere in these Specifications. Outlet boxes and fixtures shall be located in reference to the final floor, wall or ceiling finish and shall be as secured that they will not be displaced by concrete placing.
- C. Pipes or conduits for embedment, other than those merely passing through shall not be larger in outside diameter than one-third the thickness of the slab, wall, or beam in which they are embedded, unless indicated on the Drawings, nor shall they be spaced closer than three (3) diameters on center, nor so located as to unduly impair the strength of the construction. The Engineer shall approve the location of all conduits and fixtures.
- D. Concrete foundations, supports and bases for all equipment and machinery shall be built to the equipment manufacturer's requirements, as approved by the Engineer, with anchor bolts installed.
- E. All motor control centers and power control centers shall be installed on 4-in. minimum depth concrete bases as specified above.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 03350 CONCRETE FINISHES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

Furnish all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals required to finish cast-in-place concrete surfaces as specified herein.

1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit to the Engineer: shop drawings, the proposed chemical hardener, Manufacturers' surface preparation and application procedures.
- B. Submittals shall be in accordance with General Conditions and Division 1.

1.03 SCHEDULE OF FINISHES

- A. Concrete for the project shall be finished in the various specified manners either to remain as natural concrete or to receive an additional applied finish or material under another Section.
- B. The base concrete for the following conditions shall be finished as noted and as further specified herein:

Finish Designation	Area Applied
F-1	Exterior walls below grade not exposed to water: Repair defective concrete, fill holes larger than 1/2 inch and fill tie holes.
F-2	Exterior and interior walls of all structures: Repair defective concrete, remove fins, fill holes and fill tie holes.
F-3	Walls of all structures or buildings and underside of formed floors or slabs to be painted: In addition to Finish F-2, fill airholes with mortar. Dampen surfaces and then spread a slurry within 72 hours of removing forms consisting of one part cement and one and one-half (1-1/2) parts sand by volume on the surface with clean burlap pads or sponge rubber floats. Remove any surplus by scraping and then rubbing with clean burlap.
F-4	Surfaces to receive coatings (per 09900): Immediately after removing forms and upon inspection approval, pressure wash surfaces and then apply a slurry consisting of one part cement and one and one-half parts sand by volume to the surface. Work slurry into airholes and depressions. Remove excess slurry and

rub smooth. Thereafter, fill the holes and repair defective concrete. Omit application of slurry from defective areas (e.g., exposed aggregate or honeycomb) until immediately after repairs are made. Water cure. Do not remove more formwork from areas than can be finished the same day.

- S-1 Slabs and floors not traffic bearing. Smooth steel trowel finish.
- S-2 Slabs and floors which are water bearing. Slab Surfaces on which mechanical equipment moves. Steel trowel finish free from trowel marks and all irregularities.
- S-3 Interior slabs and floors of structures or buildings exposed to view. Steel trowel finish without local depressions or high points and apply a light hair-broom finish. Do not use stiff bristle brooms or brushes. Leave hair-broom lines parallel to the direction of slab drainage.
- S-4 Exterior or frequently wetted slabs and floors and slopes greater than 10 percent. Steel trowel finish without local depressions or high points. Apply a stiff bristle broom finish. Leave broom lines perpendicular to the direction of slope drainage.
- E-1 Exposed edges of slabs, floors and tops of walls. Finish with a 1/4 inch radius edge if a chamfer is not indicated.
- E-2 Tops of walls, beams and similar unformed surfaces occurring adjacent to formed surface shall be struck smooth after concrete is placed and shall be floated to a texture reasonably consistent with that of formed surfaces.

1.04 RESPONSIBILITY FOR CHANGING FINISHES

- A. The surface finishes specified for concrete to receive additional applied finishes or materials are the finishes required for the proper application of the actual products specified under other Sections. Where different products are approved for use, it shall be the Contractor's responsibility to determine if changes in finishes are required and to provide the proper finishes to receive these products.
- B. Changes in finishes made to accommodate products different from those specified shall be performed at no additional cost to the Owner. Submit the proposed finishes and their construction methods to the Engineer for approval.

1.05 MANUFACTURER'S SUPERVISION

A. The Manufacturer of the metallic aggregate hardener material shall make available at no additional cost to the Owner, upon 72 hours notification, the services of a qualified

field representative to make to the Contractor the proper application of the product under prevailing job conditions and to observe installation as required.

B. The Contractor shall make arrangements for the field representative.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

A. Portland cement and component materials required for finishing the concrete surfaces shall be specified in Section 03300.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 FORMED SURFACES

- A. Forms shall not be stripped before the provisions of Section 03300 article 3.09, Paragraph A have been met.
- B. Care shall be exercised to prevent damaging edges or obliterating the lines of chamfers, rustications or corners when removing the forms or doing any work adjacent thereto.
- C. Clean all exposed concrete surfaces and adjoining work stained by leakage of concrete, to the satisfaction of the Engineer.
- D. Off-form finish. Fins and other projections shall be removed. Tie cone holes and other minor defects which do not impair structural strength (as determined by the Engineer) shall be repaired to attain a smooth concrete surface, matching the appearance of unaffected concrete surfaces. Procedures for these repairs shall be as specified in Section 03300.
- E. Rub Finish: Fins and other projections shall be removed. Tie cone holes and other minor defects which do not impair structural strength (as determined by the Engineer) shall be repaired to attain a smooth concrete surface, matching the appearance of unaffected concrete surfaces. Procedures for these repairs shall be as specified in Section 03300. Rub Finish per ACI 301-84. Section 10.3.2 grout cleaned finish, requirements.

3.02 FLOORS AND SLABS

- A. Floors and slabs shall be screeded to the established grades and shall be level with a tolerance of 1/8-inch when checked with a 10 foot straightedge, except where drains occur, in which case floors shall be pitched to drains as indicated. Failure to meet either of above shall be cause for removal, grinding, or other correction.
- B. After Article 3.02 Paragraph A, procedures are accomplished, floors and slabs for particular conditions shall be completed as scheduled in one of the following finishes:

- 1. Wood float finish. Hand wood float with no coarse aggregate visible, maintaining the surface tolerance to provide a grained, non-slip finish as approved.
- 2. Broomed finish. Hand wood float maintaining the surface tolerance and then broom with a stiff bristle broom in the direction of drainage to provide a non-slip finish as approved.
- 3. Steel trowel finish. Steel trowel to a perfectly smooth, hard even finish free from high or low spots or other defects as approved and described in Article 3.02 Paragraph C, herein.
- 4. Power Steel Trowel Finish.
- C. Following screeding as specified above, power steel trowel as follows:
 - 1. Immediately after final screeding a dry cement/sand shake in the proportion of 2 sacks of Portland cement to 350-pound of coarse natural concrete sand shall be sprinkled evenly over the surface at the rate of approximately 500 pounds per 1,000 square feet of floor. Neat, dry cement shall not be sprinkled on the surface. This shake shall be thoroughly floated into the surface with an approved disc type power compacting machine weighing at least 200 pounds if a 20-inch disc is used or 300 pounds if a 24-inch disc is used (such as a "Kelly Float" as manufactured by the Weiner-Ramp Corporation of Buffalo, New York). A mechanical blade-type float or trowel is not acceptable for this work.
 - a. NOTE: This operation (application of the cement/sand shake) may be eliminated at the discretion of the Engineer if the base slab concrete exhibits adequate fattiness and homogeneity, and the need is not indicated.
 - 2. In lieu of power steel troweling, small areas shall be compacted by hand troweling with the dry cement/sand shake as ordered.
 - The floor or slab shall be compacted to a smooth surface and the floating operation continued until sufficient mortar is brought to the surface to fill all voids. The surfaces shall be tested with a straightedge to detect high and low spots which shall be eliminated.
 - 4. Compaction shall be continued only until through densification is achieved and a small amount of mortar is brought to the surface. Excessive floating shall be avoided.
 - 5. After the surface moisture has disappeared, surface shall be steel-troweled to a smooth, even, impervious finish, free from trowel marks. After cement has set enough to ring the trowel, the surfaces of all slabs except concrete roof slabs and bottom tanks shall be given a second steel-troweling to a burnished finish.

3.03 APPROVAL OF FINISHES

A. All concrete shall be inspected during the finishing process by the Engineer.

B.	Surfaces which, in the opinion of the Engineer, are unsatisfactory shall be refinished or reworked until approved by the Engineer.
	END OF SECTION

SECTION 09900 PAINTING

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. The work of this section consists of furnishing all materials, labor, equipment and incidentals required and performing all the painting necessary to complete this Contract in its entirety.
- B. It is the intent of these Specifications to paint all proposed concrete, exposed miscellaneous metal, pipe, fittings, valves, equipment and all other work obviously required to be painted unless otherwise specified. It is also intended to paint all existing interior and exterior surfaces affected or damaged by this project which may be exposed to view in the finished work including, but not limited to, concrete, metals, pipe, fittings, valves, equipment and all other existing items similar to proposed items specified for painting. Table 09900-A outlines the painting system to be applied to specific areas. Items omitted in the Table shall be included in the work of this Section where they come within the general intent of the specifications as stated herein.
- C. In general the following surfaces are to be painted unless specified specifically not to be painted in Table 09900-A or 1.01 D below.
 - 1. Exposed piping and other metal surfaces, interior and exterior.
 - 2. All exterior above-ground building concrete.
 - 3. The interior of structures.
 - 4. Equipment furnished without factory furnished surfaces or damaged factory surfaces.
 - 5. Doors, woodwork and architectural trim work.
- D. The following surfaces or items are NOT required to be painted, unless noted otherwise:
 - Portions of metal, other than aluminum, embedded in concrete. This does not apply to the back face of items mounted to concrete or masonry surfaces which shall be painted before erection. Aluminum to be embedded in or in contact with concrete shall be coated to prevent electrolysis.
 - 2. Aluminum gratings, checkered plates, hatches, handrails, toeboards, stairways and walkways.
 - 3. Stainless steel, brass, bronze, and aluminum other than exposed tubing.
 - 4. Aluminum, galvanized, or vinyl fencing.
 - 5. Piping buried in the ground or embedded in concrete.
 - 6. Ducts, pipes and other miscellaneous items covered with insulation or plastic coated.
 - 7. Concealed concrete or masonry.

- 8. Seamless flooring.
- 9. Concrete walkways.
- 10. Furring.
- 11. Finish hardware.
- 12. Manhole frames and covers.
- 13. Nonferrous architectural metals.
- 14. Fiberglass.
- 15. Packing glands and other adjustable parts and nameplates of mechanical equipment.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Manufacturer's Qualifications
 - 1. It is the intent of this specification that all paints specified in this section be supplied by one paint supplier and be the product of one manufacturer, unless a specialty paint not available from that manufacturer is specified.
 - 2. The paint manufacturer shall have supplied paint for water and wastewater facilities for a minimum of ten (10) years, and products supplied shall be contained within the manufacturer's standard water and wastewater brochure.
 - 3. Acceptable manufacturers are listed in Part 2 of this section. Only those manufacturers that can provide performance data to those as listed.
- B. As a minimum, all cleaning, surface preparation, painting and coating of surfaces shall conform to the applicable requirements of the Steel Structures Painting Manual, Volume 2, Systems and Specifications (most recent edition), as published by the Steel Structures Painting Council.
- C. The applicator shall be a licensed contractor having practical experience and successful history in the application of the specified products to surfaces and facilities of water and wastewater treatment plants. Upon request, this requirement shall be substantiated by furnishing a written list of references.
- D. Surface Preparation:
 - Evaluation of surface preparation will be upon comparison with the "Pictorial Surface Preparation Standards for Painting Steel Surfaces," SSPC-VIS 1-02 ASTM Designated D 2220-13 and Standard Methods of Evaluating Degrees of Rusting on Painted Steel Surfaces, SSPC-VIS 2, ASTM D610-08.
 - 2. To facilitate inspection, the Contractor shall on the first day of sandblasting operations, sandblast metal panels (12" x 12" x 1/4") to the degree called for in the specification and as noted above. Once a sample panel has been approved, it shall establish the quality of all subsequent work by reference. The sample shall then be stored in a dry, sealed plastic container on the job site. Sample panels shall be prepared and approved for each type of sandblasting specified and shall be

maintained and utilized by the Engineer throughout the duration of sandblasting operations as reference standards of quality. Coatings shall be applied only at temperatures and conditions recommended by the paint manufacturer.

E. Thickness and Holiday Checking: Thickness of coatings shall be checked with a nondestructive, magnetic type thickness gauge. Coating integrity of interior coated surfaces shall be tested with an approved holiday detection unit per the paint manufacturer's recommendation. All pinholes shall be marked, repaired in accordance with the paint manufacturer's printed recommendations and re-tested. No pinholes or other irregularities will be permitted in the final coating. In cases of dispute concerning film thickness or "holidays," the Engineer's/Engineer's properly calibrated instruments and measurements shall predominate and the Contractor shall abide by their decision unless independent tests are performed by a certified lab at the Contractor's expense. Wide film thickness discrepancies shall be measured and verified with a micrometer or other standard approved measuring instrument. The coating manufacturer should be involved with any discrepancies.

F. Inspection Devices:

- The Contractor shall furnish, until final acceptance of such coatings, inspection devices in good working condition for the detection of holidays and measurement of dry-film thickness of protective coatings. The Contractor shall also furnish U.S. Department of Commerce, National Bureau of Standards certified thickness calibration plates to test accuracy of dry film thickness gauge and certified instrumentation to test accuracy of holiday detectors.
- 2. Dry film thickness gauges shall be made available for the Engineer's use at all times while painting is being done, until final acceptance of such coatings. Holiday detection devices shall be operated only in the presence of the Engineer and coating supplier
- 3. Acceptable devices include, but are not limited to, Tinker Rasor Model holiday detectors for coatings in excess of twenty mils (0.50 mm) dry-film thickness, Model M-1 67 1/2 volt non-destructive holiday detector for coatings up to twenty mils (0.50 mm) dry-film thickness and Mikrotest units for dry-film thickness gauging. Inspection devices shall be operated in strict accordance with the manufacturer's printed instructions.
- G. Meteorological Equipment: The Contractor shall have on site the following equipment:
 - 1. Thermometer
 - 2. Sling psychrometer or other approved device to measure atmospheric humidity.
 - 3. Appropriate charts.

This equipment shall be made available to the Engineer.

H. Warranty Inspection: Warranty inspection shall be conducted during the eleventh month of the two (2) year warranty period following completion of all painting work. All defective work shall be repaired in strict accordance with this specification and to the satisfaction of the paint manufacturer and the Owner or his duly appointed representative.

1.03 SAFETY AND HEALTH REQUIREMENTS

- A. General: In accordance with the requirements of the OSHA Regulations for Construction, the Contractor shall provide and require the use of personal protective and lifesaving equipment for all persons working in or about the project.
- B. Head and Face Protection and Respiratory Devices: Applicable health and safety precautions required by appropriate regulatory agencies such as OSHA, ANSI, etc., should be followed.
- C. Ventilation: Ventilation shall be adequate to reduce the contamination of air contaminant to the degree that a hazard to the worker does not exist.
- D. Sound Levels: Whenever the occupational noise exposure exceeds the maximum allowable sound levels, the Contractor shall provide and require the use of approved ear protective devices.
- E. Illumination: Adequate illumination shall be provided while work is in progress. Whenever required by the Engineer, the Contractor shall provide additional illumination and necessary support sufficient to cover all areas to be checked. The level of illumination required for observation purposes shall be determined by the Engineer.
- F. Temporary Ladders and Scaffolding: All temporary ladders and scaffolding shall conform to the applicable requirements of the OSHA Regulations for Construction. They shall be erected where requested by the Engineer to facilitate proper construction observation and be moved by the Contractor to locations requested by the Engineer.

1.04 SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit to the Engineer as provided in the General Conditions and Division 1, shop drawings, manufacturer's specifications and data on the proposed paint systems and detailed surface preparation, application procedures and dry film thickness.
- B. Schedule of Painting Operations: The Contractor shall submit for approval a complete Schedule of Painting Operations within 30 days after the Notice to Proceed. This schedule is imperative so that the various fabricators may be notified of the proper shop prime coat to apply. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to properly notify and coordinate the fabricators' surface preparation and painting operations with these Specifications. This Schedule shall include for each surface to be painted, the brand name, the volume solids, the coverage and the number of coats the Contractor proposes to use in order to achieve the specified dry film thickness, and color charts. When the schedule has been approved, the Contractor shall apply all material in strict accordance with the approved Schedule and the manufacturer's instructions. Wet and dry paint film gauges may be utilized by the Engineer to verify the proper application while work is in progress.
- C. Certification: Submit certification by the paint manufacturer that the primer used on equipment/materials is compatible with the finish coat paint (see 09865, 1.02 Submittals).
- D. One copy of references specified in 1.02 D.1.
- E. Test panels/samples: At the request of the Engineer, samples of the finished work prepared in strict accordance with these Specifications shall be furnished and all painting shall be equal in quality to the approved samples. Finished areas shall be adequate for the purpose of determining the quality of workmanship. Experimentation with color tints shall be furnished to the satisfaction of the Engineer where, standard chart colors are not

satisfactory.

1.05 PRODUCT DELIVERY STORAGE AND HANDLING

- A. All painting materials shall be delivered to the project site in unbroken containers, bearing the manufacturer's brand and name. They shall be used without adulteration and mixed, thinned, and applied in strict accordance with the manufacturer's directions for the applicable materials and surfaces and with the Engineer's approval before using.
- B. Work areas will be designated by the Engineer for storage and mixing of all painting materials. Materials shall be in full compliance with the requirements of pertinent codes and fire regulations. Proper containers outside of the buildings shall be provided and used for painting wastes, and no plumbing fixture shall be used for this purpose.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 GENERAL

- A. All painting materials shall be fully equal in generic type and performance to those manufactured by Tnemec. The painting schedule has been prepared on the basis of Tnemec products (unless otherwise noted) and their recommendations for applications. No other brand will be considered for approval unless sufficient data substantiated by certified tests to demonstrate its equality to the paint(s) specified is submitted in writing to the Engineer for approval within 30 days after the Notice to Proceed. The type and number of tests performed shall be subject to the Engineer's approval.
- B. Shop priming shall be done with primers that are certified by the paint manufacturer to be compatible with the finish paints to be used.
- C. No paint containing lead shall be allowed.

2.02 PAINTING SYSTEMS

- A. The following summarizes the painting systems for various types of applications. Table 09900-A outlines, in general, specific job application locations.
- B. All colors will be selected by the Owner from color charts supplied by the Contractor.
- C. Minimum thickness shall be per manufacturer's recommendations unless a greater thickness is specified.
- D. The following surfaces shall have the types of paint scheduled below applied at the minimum dry film thickness (MDFT) in mils per coat noted or at the dry film thickness (DFT) in mils per coat noted. The schedule is applicable to existing and proposed surfaces, with the exception that priming for existing surfaces is only required as specified in Paragraph 3.04.

Coat	TNEMEC
1.	Unpainted wood finished shelving, window frames, door frames, door casework, and trim finish with 3 coats
	of exterior premium Clear Urethane. Sanding or steel wool shall be used between coats.
2.	Wood-painted finish (interior or exterior) non-submerged:
Prime	1 coat Series 10-99W at 2.0 to 3-5 MDFT
Finish	2 coats Series 1029 Enduratone, at 2.0 – 3.0 MDFT per coat.

Coat	TNEMEC
3.	Interior non-submerged concrete walls poured or precast, not subject to spray, splash and dampness:
Prime	Series 54 WB Masonry Filler at 80 – 100 sq ft/gal.
Finish	2 coats Series 1026 Tneme-Cryl, 2.0 to 3.0 MDFT per coat
4.	Exterior non-submerged concrete, masonry, or stucco above grade:
Prime	1 coat Series 1254WB at 100 – 150 sq ft/gal
Finish	2 coats Series 1026 Tneme-Cryl, 2.0 to 3.0 MDFT per coat
5.	Exterior non-submerged concrete or masonry surfaces below grade to be backfilled:
Prime	1 coat Series 46H-413, thinned 33%, 4-6 MDFT
Finish	1 coat Series 46H-413, High Build Tneme-Tar 14.0 - 20.00 MDFT total.
6.	Interior non-submerged concrete masonry units:
Prime	1 coat Series 1254WB at 80 – 120 sq ft/gal.
Finish	2 coats Series 1028 Enduratone at 2.0 - 3.0 MDFT per coat.
7.	Concrete submerged or subject to spray – black (non-potable):
Prime	Clean per Section 3.02.H.5. Surface with Tnemec Series 218-1000 MortarClad at min 1/16",Then Apply 1 coat Series N69 -1211 Hi-Build Epoxline II 4.0 – 8.0 MDFT spray and backrolled.
Finish	2 coats Series 104 HS Epoxy at 6.0 – 8.0 MDFT per coat
8.	Concrete submerged or subject to spray concrete – Color:various
Prime	Clean per section 3.02.H.5. Surface with Tnemec Series 218-1000 MortarClad at min 1/16", then apply Series 104 HS Epoxy at 3.0 to 5.0 MDFTspray and backrolled.
Finish	2 coats Series 104 HS Epoxy, 6.0 – 8.0 MDFT per coat
	Total: 14.0 to 16.0 MDFT
	For potable water application, must NSF certified and approved color. For Potable water, Apply 2 coats of Tnemec Series N140 or Series 20HS at 6.0 - 8.0 mils dft per coat. Total film thickness should be 14.0 – 17.0 mils dft.
9.	Concrete floors subject to moisture and traffic.
Prime	Apply one (1) coat of Series 287 Enviro-Pox at 2.0 – 4.0 MDFT
Finish	Apply one (1) coat of Series 287 Enviro-Pox at 2.0 – 4.0 mils dft. Apply one (1) finish coat of Series 291 CRU at 2.0 – 3.0 mils dft. For a semi-gloss orange peel texture use Tnemec Series 290 CRU at the same thickness. Use Tnemec Series S211-0213 Fine Glass Beads for a non-skid additive. Robert: If these floors are subject to higher traffic, the original system is better but requires a different primer and
	more surface preparation. The system would require a ICRI CSP 3 surface prep.
	Prime with Tnemec Series 201 Epoxoprime at 4.0 – 8.0 mils dft.
	Intermediate coat of Tnemec Series 280 Tneme-Glaze at 6.0 – 10.0 mils dft.
	Finish (optional for UV exposure): Apply one (1) finish coat of Series 291 CRU at 2.0 – 3.0 mils dft. For a semi- gloss orange peel texture use Tnemec Series 290 CRU at the same thickness. Use Tnemec Series S211-0213
	Fine Glass Beads for a non-skid additive.
	Total for this system is a 12- 15 mils dft.
	Total: 8.5 MDFT min
10.	Interior Cement Plaster or Gypsum dry walls:
Prime	Series 151 Elasto-Grip FC or quality Series 51 PVA primer 1.0 - 1.5 MDFT
Finish	2 coats Series 1028 Enduratone 2.0 - 3.0 MDFT per coat. For a semi-gloss finish, Series 1029 can be substituted at the same thickness. Total: 7.0 MDFT
	Note: Laboratory areas shall receive special titanium base epoxy paint containing no other metals that may
	affect testing procedure. For laboratory areas or high demand use Tnemec Series 113/114 H.B. Tufcoat in lieu Series 1028 Enduratone. Apply 2 coats of Series 113 or Series 114 at 4.0 – 6.0 mils per coat.
11.	All submerged ferrous metals and ferrous metals subject to submergence or splashing (for contact with non-potable water) – Black:
Prime	1 coat Series Apply one (1) coat of Tnemec Series 1 Omnithane at 2.5 – 3.5 mils dft.
Finish	2 coats Series 104 HS Epoxy at 6.0 - 8.0 MDFT. Use alternating colors.
	

Coat	TNEMEC
12.	All submerged ferrous metals and ferrous metals subject to submergence or splashing (for contact with
<u> </u>	potable water) – Color – must be NSF certified and approved color:
Prime	Series N140 Pota-Pox Plus 6.0 -8.0 MDFT
Finish	Stripe all welds and edges with Series N140. Apply Series N140 Pota-Pox Plus at 6.0 - 8.0 MDFT. Use alternating colors.
	Total: 12.0 – 15.0 mils dft. 17.0 max MDFT
13.	Interior non-submerged ferrous metal:
Prime	Series 27WB Typoxy at 4.0 – 6.0 MDFT.
Finish	2 coats Series N69 Hi-build Epoxoline II at 4.0 to 6.0 MDFT each coat or 2 coats of Tnemec Series 66HS Hi-Build Epoxoline at the same thickness.
	Total: 14.0 to 16.0 MDFT
14.	Exterior non-submerged ferrous metals:
Prime	Shop prime with Series 90-97 Tneme-Zinc or Series 90G-1K97 Tneme-Zinc at 2.5 – 3.5 MDFT. Field prime bare metals with Series N69 Hi-Build Epoxoline II at 4.0 – 6.0 MDFT or Series 66HS Hi-Build Epoxoline.
Finish	Series N69 Hi-Build Epoxoline II or Series 66HS Hi-Build Epoxoline, 4.0 to 6.0 MDFT
	Series 73 Endurashield, 2.5 to 5.0 MDFT. For safety colors use Series 73U for better color retention.
	Total: 11 MDFT
15.	Ferrous metals – high temperature (over 150° F up to 1200° F):
Prime	Series 90E-92 Tneme-Zinc, 2.0 to 3.5 MDFT
Finish	Series 90E-92 Tneme-Zinc, 2.0 to 3.5 MDFT
16.	Plastic Piping – Coating not required except as noted. Exposed piping shall be painted as required in the color coding schedule.
17.	Secondary Containment areas including HydroFluorosilicic acid storage areas:
	Allow concrete to cure for a minimum of 28 days at 75°F. Mechanically abrade the surface to an ICRI CSP 3 minimum. Test for moisture using a "plastic tape down test" ASTM D 4263-83.
	Prime: 1 coat of Tnemec Series 201 Epoxoprime at 4.0 – 8.0 mils dft. Finish: 2 coats Series 282 Tneme-Glaze (in alternating colors) at 8.0 ft.
18.	Shop priming:
	To reduce field priming costs consider having the steel shop primed. Abrasive blast all steel to be coated to a minimum SSPC SP6 Commercial Grade Finish for atmospheric exposures. The minimum blast profile is 1.5 mils.
	Series 90-97 Tneme-Zinc at 2.5 – 3.5 mils dft. (Ship to the jobsite.)
19.	Severe Wastwater Exposure including HeadWorks, Lift Stations and Wet Wells:
	These should be areas of high levels of H_2S either in immersion or in the vapor phase. Prepare the concrete per section 3.02.H.5 to obtain an ICRI CSP 5.
Prime	Surface with Tnemec Series 218 -1000 MortarClad to a minimum 1/16". For areas requiring concrete restoration, use Tnemec Series 217 MortarCrete. Then apply the Series 218-1000.
	Second coat of Tnemec Series 434 Perm-Shield H₂S at 1/8" dft
Finish	Series 435 Tneme-Glaze at 15.0 -20.0 mils dft
20.	Existing Pre-Stressed Concrete Tanks:
	Pressure wash per Section 3.02.H.5 to remove all dirt, contamination etc. Use a degreaser- cleaner such as TSP or Chlorine bleach to help clean the surface.
Prime	Tnemec Series 151 Elasto-Grip FC at 0.70 – 1.5 mils dft
Etasta la	Strip bare and damaged areas with 1 coat of Series 156 4.0 - 6.0 mils dft
Finish	Series 156 Enviro-Crete overall at 4.0 6.0 mils dft
21.	New Pre-Stressed Concrete Tank: Pressure Clean per section 3.02.H.5 to remove all dirt, contamination, etc.
	2 coats Series 156 at 4.0 – 6.0 mils dft Minimum thickness of 10 mils dft.
22.	Parking stall lines on asphalt pavement: Prime with approved reflective pavement marking paint, white or
23.	yellow in color, conforming to AASHTO standards for materials and installation. Steel Pipe (exterior only): See applicable ferrous metal system above.
0.4	
24.	Ductile Iron Pipe: See applicable ferrous metal system above.

Coat	TNEMEC
	For interior pipe Tnemec Series 431 Perma—Shield PL

E. Any surfaces not specifically named in the Schedule and not specifically excepted shall be prepared, primed and painted in the manner and with materials consistent with these Specifications. The Engineer shall select which of the manufacturer's products, whether the type is indicated herein or not, shall be used for such unnamed surfaces. No extra payment shall be made for this painting.

2.03 EXTRA PAINT

A. Furnish one unopened gallon can of each type and each color of paint used, properly marked for future use by Owner.

PART 3 – EXECUTION

3.01 GENERAL

- A. All coating and painting shall conform to the applicable requirements of the Steel Structures Painting Council Manual (most recent edition). Any material applied upon improperly prepared surfaces shall be removed and redone to the satisfaction of the Engineer at the sole expense of the Contractor.
- B. All work shall be done by skilled craftsmen who are qualified to perform the required work and shall be done in a manner comparable with the best standards of practice found in that trade.
- C. The Contractor shall provide a supervisor to be at the work site during blast cleaning and coating operations. The supervisor shall have the authority to coordinate the work and make other decisions pertaining to the fulfillment of their contract.
- D. All dust, dirt, oil, or any contaminants which would affect the adhesion or durability of the finish coating must be removed before painting by cleaning per SPC-SP-1. Slag and weld metal accumulation and spatters shall be removed by chipping and grinding. All sharp edges shall be peened, ground or otherwise blunted as required and directed by the Engineer.
- E. The Contractor's coating and painting equipment shall be designed and suitable for the application of the specific materials herein specified. Equipment shall be maintained in condition required to obtain the specified coating application. Compressors shall have suitable traps and filters installed to remove water and oils from the air. The Contractor's equipment shall be subject to the approval of the Engineer based on the manufacturer's data.
- F. Sandblasting and priming shall be completed on any particular area, and the application of the primer shall follow immediately after surface preparation and cleaning prior to formation of any form of corrosion. Prime before any rust bloom forms. If the surface is not primed within 24 hours, preparation shall be repeated.
- G. Prior to assembly, all surfaces that will be made inaccessible after assembly, shall be prepared as specified herein and shall receive the paint or coating system as specified herein.

H. Coating shall not be applied to wet or damp surfaces and shall not be applied in inclement weather. Do not apply when the surface temperature is less than 5° F above the dew point. Dew or moisture condensation should be anticipated and if such conditions are prevalent, coating should be delayed until the surfaces are dry. Further, the day's coating should be completed well in advance of when condensation will occur, in order to permit the film a sufficient drying time prior to the formation of moisture.

3.02 SURFACE PREPARATION

- A. General: The following referenced surface preparation specifications of the Steel Structures Painting Council shall form a part of this specification:
 - Solvent Cleaning (SSPC-SP1): Solvent such as water, mineral spirits, xylol, toluol, etc., are used to remove solvent-soluble foreign matter from the surface of ferrous metal. Rags and solvents must be replenished frequently to avoid spreading the contaminant rather than removing it. Low-pressure (1500-4000 psi) high volume (3-5 gal/min) water washing with appropriate cleaning chemicals is a recognized "solvent cleaning" method. All surfaces should be cleaned per this specification prior to using hand tools or blast equipment.
 - 2. Hand Tool Cleaning (SSPC-SP2) (SSI-St2): A mechanical method of surface preparation involving wire brushing, scraping, chipping and sanding. Not the most desirable method of surface preparation, but can be used for mild exposure conditions. Optimum performances of protective coatings system should not be expected when hand tool cleaning is employed.
 - 3. Power Tool Cleaning (SSPC-SP3) (SSI-St3): A mechanical method of surface preparation widely used in industry and involving the use of power sanders or wire brushes, power chipping hammers, abrasive grinding wheels, needle guns, etc. Although usually more effective than hand tool cleaning, it's not considered adequate for use under severe exposure conditions or for immersion applications.
 - 4. White Metal Blasting (SSPC-SP5), (SSI-Sa3), or (NACE #1): The removal of all visible rust, mill scale, paint, and contaminants, leaving the metal uniformly white or gray in appearance. This is the ultimate in blast cleaning. Use where maximum performance of protective coatings is necessary due to exceptionally severe conditions such as constant immersion in water or liquid chemicals.
 - 5. Commercial Blast (SSPC-SP6, (SSI-Sa2), or (NACE #3): All oil, grease, dirt, rust scale and foreign matter are completely removed from the surface and all rust, mill scale and old paint are completely removed by abrasive blasting except for slight shadows, streaks or discolorations caused by rust stain, mill scale oxides or slight, tight residues of paint or coating that may remain. If the surface is pitted, slight residues of rust or paint may be found in the bottom of pits, at least two-thirds of each square inch of surface area shall be free of all visible residues and the remainder shall be limited to the light residues mentioned above.
 - 6. Brush-Off Blast (SSPC-SP7, SSI-Sa1), or (NACE #4): A method in which all oil, grease, dirt, rust scale, loose mill scale, loose rust, and loose paint or coatings are removed completely. Tight mill scale and tightly-adhered rust, paint and coatings are permitted to remain. However, all mill scale and rust must have been exposed to the abrasive blast pattern sufficiently to expose numerous flecks of the underlying metal fairly uniformly distributed over the entire surface.
 - 7. Near White Blast (SSPC-SP10), SSI-Sa2½) or (NACE #2): In this method, all oil,

grease, dirt, mill scale, rust, corrosion products, oxides, paint or other foreign matter have been completely removed from the surface by abrasive blasting, except for very light shadows, very slight streaks or slight discolorations caused by rust stain, mill scale oxides or slight, tight residues of paint or coating. At least 95% of each square inch of surface areas shall be free of all visible residues, and the remainder shall be limited to the light discoloration mentioned above. From a practical standpoint, this is probably the best quality surface preparation that can be expected today for existing plant facility maintenance work.

8. High and Ultra-High Pressure Water Jet Cleaning (SSPC-SP12) or (NACE #5): As part of the surface preparation, deposits of oil, grease, and foreign matter must be removed by ultra-high pressure water jetting, by steam cleaning with detergent, or by methods in accordance with SSPC-SP1. The difference in degrees of surface cleanliness is defined by the amount of pressure as follows:

Low Pressure Water Cleaning (LP WC)	34 MPa	(5,000 psi)
High Pressure Water Cleaning (HP WC)	34 to 70 MPa	(5,000-10,000 psi)
High Pressure Water Jetting (HP WJ)	70 to 170 MPa	(10,000-25,000 psi)
Ultra-High Pressure Water Jetting (UHP WJ)	Above 170 Mpa	(25,000 psi)

- B. The abrasive used in blast cleaning shall produce a height profile in accordance with the recommendations of the manufacturer of the protective coating which is to be applied to the surface being cleaned.
- C. Field blasting cleaning for all surfaces shall be accomplished by dry sandblasting method unless otherwise directed.
- D. At all times during the blast cleaning operations, adequate means shall be employed to absolutely insure that existing protective coatings shall not be exposed to abrasion from blast cleaning operations.
- E. The Contractor shall at all times keep the area of his work in reasonably clean condition shall not permit blasting materials to accumulate in an uncontrolled manner such as to constitute a nuisance or hazard to the satisfactory prosecution or the work (or operation of the existing facilities).
- F. All blast cleaned surfaces shall be carefully dried and cleaned prior to application or specified coatings. No coatings or paint shall be applied over damp or moist surfaces.
- G. All welds shall be neutralized with a suitable solvent or other acceptable cleaner compatible with the specified Coating System materials.
- H. Specified Surface Preparation: Surface preparation for the specific Service Condition shall be as follows:
 - Ferrous Metals Subject to Corrosive Moisture or Atmosphere and Condensation: All surfaces shall be field sand blasted in conformance with Steel Structures Painting

Council Specification SSPC-SP10 (Near-white blast cleaning). Robert: Typically here a minimum SSPC SP6 Commercial Grade sandblast is required. This info is reflected in the Tnemec literature.

- Ferrous Metals Submerged or Subject to Spray and Splash: All surfaces shall be field sand-blasted in conformance with Steel Structures Painting Council Specification SSPC-SP5 (White blast cleaning). Robert: Typically here a minimum SSPC SP10 Near White Abrasive Blast is required. This info is reflected in the Tnemec literature.
- 3. Ferrous Metals (High Temperature): AB surfaces shall be field sand-blasted in conformance with Steel Structures Painting Council Specification SSPC-SP10 (Near-white metal).
- 4. Non-ferrous and Galvanized Metals: All surfaces shall be field brush-blasted or solvent-cleaned in conformance with Steel Structures Painting Council Specification SSPC-SP7 or SP1.
- 5. Masonry and Concrete: All concrete shall be cured 45 days, minimum. All surfaces in immersion service shall be thoroughly cleaned by abrasive blasting or mechanical means, removing all traces of previous materials. Remove all loose concrete by chipping, etc. to leave only sound firmly bonded concrete. Cracks and voids shall be repaired with manufactures repair mortar or filled with grout, mixed and placed in strict accordance with manufacturer's instructions. In general, final surface shall be reasonably smooth and free to voids, cavities, dirt, dust, oils, grease, laitance or other contaminants. Concrete subject to submergence shall be mechanically cleaned and finished to an ICRI standard. Coatings in immersion require a minimum ICRI CSP 5. All other concrete and CMU to be painted shall be pressure washed at a minimum 3500 psi.(SSPC- SP6 only applies to metal.) Interior Block only requires a high pressure wash to remove all grease and oil. Remove and level all protrusions.
- 6. Plastic pipe shall be degreased and lightly sanded. Remove all dust before proceeding.

7. Wood Surfaces:

- a. These surfaces, other than stained or natural finish, shall be primed and finish-coated as specified. Wood surfaces to be painted shall be cleaned of dirt, oil, and other foreign substances with mineral spirits, scrapers, and/or sandpaper. Finish surfaces exposed to view shall be made smooth by sanding. All wood items to be painted and in contact with or built into concrete, masonry, or plaster shall be back primed. Small, dry seasoned knots shall be surface scraped and thoroughly cleaned, and shall be given a thin coat of knot sealer before application of the priming coat. Pitch on large, open, unseasoned knots and all other beads or streaks of pitch shall be scraped off, or if still soft, shall be removed with mineral spirits or turpentine and the resinous area thinly coated with knot sealer. After priming, all holes and imperfections in finish surfaces shall be filled with putty or plastic woodfiller colored to match the finish coat, allowed to dry, and sanded smooth. Unless otherwise authorized, painting shall proceed only when the moisture content of the wood does not exceed 12 percent as measured by a moisture meter.
- b. Stained or Natural Finish: Interior wood surfaces to receive stained or

natural finish shall be properly prepared to the approved shade and lightly sanded. Oak, and other open-grained wood, shall be given the same treatment and, in addition, shall be given a coat of paste wood filler not less than eight hours after the application of the stain. Excess filler shall be removed and the surface then sanded smooth. Each coat shall be lightly sanded prior to application of subsequent coat.

- 8. Exposed Pipe: Bituminous coated pipe shall not be used in exposed locations. Pipe which shall be exposed after project completion shall be factory primed. Follow the recommendations in section 2.02, System 12 prime only after installation all exterior, exposed flanged joints shall have the gap between adjoining flanges sealed with a single component Thiokol caulking to prevent rust stains.
- 9. Shop-Finished Surfaces: All shop-coated surfaces shall be protected from damage and corrosion before and after installation by treating damaged area immediately upon detection. Abraded or corroded spots on shop-coated surfaces shall be "Hand-Cleaned" and then touched up with the same materials as the shop coat. All shop coated surfaces which are faded, discolored, or which require more than minor touch up in the opinion of the Engineer shall be repainted. Cut edges of galvanized sheets and exposed threads and cut ends of galvanized piping, electrical conduit, and metal pipe sleeves, not to be finish painted, shall be "Solvent Cleaned" and primed.
- 10. Plaster Surfaces: These surfaces shall be clean, free from grit, loose plaster, and surface irregularities, and shall have an instrument-measured moisture content not exceeding eight (8) percent.
- 11. Aluminum embedded or in contact with concrete must be painted with one shop coat of primer followed by one heavy coat of aluminum pigmented asphalt paint.

3.03 PREPARATION OF SURFACES - EXISTING FACILITIES

A. All existing facilities to be painted shall be thoroughly washed with a high strength chlorine solution cleaner degreaser or a trisodium phosphate solution to provide a surface suitable for finish painting. Any corrosion of ferrous surfaces shall be removed by sandblasting, and the area primed with the appropriate primer specified in the paint schedule.

3.04 WORKMANSHIP

A. General:

- 1. Primer (spot) and paint used for a particular surface shall, in general, be as scheduled for that type of new surface. Confirm with the paint manufacturer that the paint proposed for a particular re-paint condition will be compatible with the existing painted surface. Sample re-painted areas on the actual site will be required to insure this compatibility. Finished repainted areas shall be covered by the same guarantee specified for remainder of work.
- 2. Protection of furniture and other movable objects, equipment, fittings, and accessories shall be provided throughout the painting operations. Canopies of lighting fixtures shall be loosened and removed from contact with surface, covered and protected and reset upon completion. Remove all electric plates, surface hardware, etc., before painting, protect and replace when completed. Mask all machinery nameplates and all machined parts not receiving a paint finish. Dropped or spattered paint shall be promptly removed. Lay drop clothes in all areas where

- painting is being done to adequately protect flooring and other work from all damage during the operation and until the finished job is accepted.
- 3. On metal surfaces apply each coat of paint at the rate specified by the manufacturer to achieve the minimum dry mil thickness required. If material has thickened or must be diluted for application by spray gun, the coating shall be built up to the same film thickness achieved with undiluted material. One gallon of paint as originally furnished by the manufacturer shall not cover a greater area when applied by spray gun than when applied unthinned by brush. Deficiencies in film thickness shall be corrected by the application of an additional coat(s). On masonry, application rates will vary according to surface texture, however, in no case shall the manufacturers stated coverage rate by exceeded. On porous surfaces, it shall be the painter's responsibility to achieve a protective and decorative finish either by decreasing the coverage rate or by applying additional coats of paint.
- 4. All safety equipment shall be painted in accordance with OSHA Standards.
- 5. Paints shall be mixed in proper containers of adequate capacity. All paints shall be thoroughly stirred before use and shall be kept stirred while using. No unauthorized thinners or other materials shall be added to any paint.
- 6. Only skilled painters shall be used on the work and specialists shall be employed where required.

B. Field Priming:

- Steel members, metal castings, mechanical and electrical equipment and other
 metals which are shop primed before delivery at the site will not require a prime coat
 on the job. All piping and other bare metals to be painted shall receive one coat of
 primer before exposure to the weather, and this prime coat shall be the first coat as
 specified in the painting schedule.
- 2. Equipment which is customarily shipped with a baked enamel finish or with a standard factory finish shall not be field painted unless the finish has been damaged in transit or during installation. Surfaces that have been shop painted and have been damaged, or where the shop coats or coats of paint have deteriorated, shall be properly cleaned and retouched before any successive painting is done on them in the field. All such field painting shall match as nearly as possible the original finish.

C. Field Painting:

- 1. All painting at the site shall be designated as Field Painting.
- 2. All paint shall be conditioned per the manufactures printed literature at room temperature before applying, and no painting shall be done when the temperature is below 50 degrees F, in dust-laden air, when rain or snow is falling, when relative humidity exceeds manufacturer's recommendation when temperature is less than 5° F above the dew point, or until all traces of moisture have completely disappeared from the surface to be painted.
- 3. Each application of paint shall be applied at the recommended thickness, free to sags, runs, with no evidence of poor workmanship. Care shall be exercised to avoid lapping on glass or hardware. Paint shall be sharply cut to lines. Finished surfaces shall be free from defects of blemishes.

- 4. Protective coverings or drop cloths shall be used to protect floors, fixtures and equipment. Care shall be exercised to prevent paint or coating from being spattered onto surfaces which are not to be painted. Surfaces from which such materials cannot be removed satisfactorily shall be painted or repainted, as required to produce, a finish satisfactory to the Engineer.
- 5. Successive coats of paint shall be tinted by the factory so as to make each coat easily distinguishable from each other with the final undercoat tinted to the approximate shade of the finished coat.
- 6. All welds and irregular surfaces shall receive a brush coat of the specified product prior to application of the first complete coat.
- 7. Finish surfaces shall not show brush marks or other irregularities. Under coats shall be thoroughly and uniformly sanded with No. 00 sandpaper or equal to remove defects and provide a smooth even surface. Top and bottom edges of doors shall be painted and all exterior trim shall be back-primed before installation.
- 8. Painting shall be continuous and shall be accomplished in an orderly manner so as to facilitate inspection. All exterior concrete and masonry painting shall be performed in one continuous manner structure by structure. Materials subject to weathering shall be prime coated as quickly as possible. Surfaces of exposed members that will be inaccessible after erection shall be cleaned and painted before erection.
- 9. All materials shall be brush painted unless spray painting is specifically approved by the Engineer. If spray painting is approved, Contractor shall accept all responsibility for any damage caused by overspray and/or drifting paint mist.
- 10. All surfaces to be painted as well as the atmosphere in which painting is to be done shall be kept warm and dry by heating and ventilation, if necessary, until each coat of paint has hardened. Any defective paint shall be removed and repainted in accordance with the Engineer's directions.
- 11. Before final acceptance of the work, all damaged surfaces of paint shall be cleaned and repainted as directed by the Engineer.
- 12. The aluminum work noted on the Drawings or in the Painting Schedule except all structural walkways, supports, railings, toeboards, grating, and checkered plate shall be field painted.

3.05 CLEANUP

- A. The premises shall at all times be kept free from accumulation of waste material and rubbish caused by employees or work. At the completion of the painting remove all tools, scaffolding, surplus materials, and all rubbish from and about the buildings and leave work "broom clean" unless more exactly specified.
- B. Upon completion, remove all paint where it has been spilled, splashed, or splattered on all surfaces, including floors, fixtures, equipment, furniture, etc., leaving the work ready for inspection.

3.06 COLOR CODING FOR PIPES AND EQUIPMENT

A. Color coding is required and shall consist of color code painting and identification of all

exposed conduits and pipelines for the transport of gases, liquids and semi-liquids including all accessories such as valves, insulated pipe coverings, fittings, junction boxes, bus bars, connectors and all operating accessories which are integral to be whole functional mechanical pipe and electrical conduit system. The color coding schedule shall be in accordance with Table 09900-B.

- B. All hangers and pipe support floor stands shall be painted. The system shall be painted up to and including the flanges attached to the mechanical equipment. Colors shall be as selected by the Owner.
- C. All systems which are an integral part of the equipment, that is originating from the equipment and returning to the same piece of equipment, shall be painted between and up to but not including, the fixed flanges or connections on the equipment.
- D. The color code establishes, defines and assigns a definite color for each category of pipe. Pipelines which are not listed on the Paint Color Code Schedule shall be assigned a color by the Engineer and shall be treated as an integral part of the Contract.
- E. All pipes, equipment, and accessories shall be painted according to Paint Color Code Schedule attached. All pipes shall have 6" long color coded flow arrows with letters defining its function (i.e., potable water, air, sludge, etc.).

3.07 FABRICATED EQUIPMENT

- A. Unless otherwise indicated, all fabricated equipment shall be shop primed and shop or field finished.
- B. All items to be shop primed shall be thoroughly cleaned of all loose material prior to priming. If, in the opinion of the Engineer, any prime coating shall have been improperly applied or if material contrary to these Specifications shall have been used, that coating shall be removed by sandblasting to white metal and reprimed in accordance with these Specifications.
- C. All shop prime coats shall be of specified materials and applied in accordance with these Specifications. The Contractor shall remove any prime coats not in accordance with these Specifications by sandblasting and apply the specified prime coat at no additional cost to the Owner.
- D. Shop primed surfaces shall be cleaned thoroughly and retouched with the specified primer before the application of successive paint coats in the field.
- E. Shop finish coats may be the standard finish as ordinarily applied by the manufacturer when approved by the Engineer. All pumps and motors shall be repainted after installation.
- F. The Contractor shall be responsible for and take whatever steps are necessary to properly protect the shop prime and finish coats against damage from weather or any other cause.
- G. If, in the opinion of the Engineer, a shop finish coat does not give the protection quality of other work of similar nature, the Contractor shall apply the coat or coats of paint as directed by the Engineer to accomplish the desired protection quality.
- H. Wherever fabricated equipment is required to be sandblasted, the Contractor shall protect all motors, drives, bearings, gears, etc., from the entry of grit. Any equipment found to contain grit shall be promptly and thoroughly cleaned by the Contractor.

TABLE 09900-B PAINT COLOR CODE SCHEDULE (COLOR SHALL MATCH EXISTING, WHERE APPLICABLE)

Equipment and Materials	Paint Color	Code Label
Chlorine Gas	Yellow	CG
Chlorine Solution	Yellow w/Brown Bands	CS
Chlorine Liquid	Yellow w/Alum. Bands	CL
Compressed Air	Black	CA
Potable Water	Blue	PW
Non-Potable Water	Lt. Green	PEW
Drains	Battleship Grey	D
Electrical conduit (above 220 volts)	Black w/Yellow Bands	EC
Electrical Conduit in MCC	Match Existing	EC
Return Activated Sludge	Medium Brown	RAS
Raw Sewage Piping	Dark Green	RS
Primary and Digester Sludge	Dark Brown	SL
Partially Treated Effluent	Medium Green	OE
Completed Treated Effluent	Light Green	TE
Electrical Motors, Blower	White	N/A
Electrical Pumps, Compressors	Battleship Grey	N/A
Pipe Hangers	Match Piping	N/A
Waste Activated Sludge	Light Brown	WAS
Scum Waste	Dark Brown	SCM
Clarified Effluent	Medium Green	CE
Plant Recycle	Medium Green	PR
Fuel Oil Vent	Red	FOV
Fuel Oil Return	Red	FOR
Fuel Oil Supply	Red	FOS
Filter Influent	Medium Green	FI
Filter Effluent	Light Green	FE
Backwash	Patio Green	BW
Pretreatment Effluent	Dark Green	PRE
Vent	White	V
Fire Sprinkler Piping	Blue	FS
Dirty Backwash Piping	Dark Green	DBW
Caustic Soda	Orange w/White Bands	COS
Filter Effluent	Light Green	FE
		SPD
Sump Pump Discharge Waste	Battleship Grey Dark Green	W
	Brown	TS
Thickened Sludge		HWS
Reuse Hot Water Supply Return Reuse Hot Water Return	Green w/Red Bands Green w/Red Bands	HWR
L.P. Gas	Red	LPG
Cationic Polymer Solution	Aluminum	POS
Liquid Polymer	Aluminum	POL
Methane Gas	Orange	MEG
Peroxide	Orange w/Green Band	PER
Bleach	_	BL
	Orange w/Plue Ten	N/A
Fire Hydrant (PCW)	Orange w/lt Crash Tan	
Fire Hydrant (PEW)	Orange w/Lt. Green Top	N/A
Safety Barrier Post	Orange	N/A
Acid	Orange w/Black Band – Chemical Name	As Noted
Buildings Tanks	Special Beige (Northside) Special Beige (Northside)	As Noted
ıaııvə	opecial beige (Northblue)	AS MOLEU

	Key to Classification of Predominant Colors for Piping	Color	Color of Letters for Stenciling		
(F)	Fire Protection	Red	White		
(D)	Dangers	Yellow Orange	Black Black		
(S)	Safe	Green White Black Light Gray Dark Gray Aluminum	Black Black White Black White Black		
(P)	Protective	Blue	White		
Width	n of color bands and letter siz	ze shall conform to the f	ollowing schedule:		
Outside Diameter of Pipe or Size of Width of Color Band Covering (Inches) Legend (Inches) Letters (Inches)					
	3/4 to 1 1/4 1 1/2 to 2 3 1/2 to 6 8 to 10 Over 10	8 8 12 24 32			

TABLE 09900-C SPECIAL APPLICATIONS

For severe exposure then the Tnemec Perma-Shield system should be used as specified in Section 2.02, System 19.

A. Special Coating:

- 1. Surface preparation and coating application shall be as recommended by the manufacturer.
- 2. Coating shall be Sauereisen No. 210 trowel applied or FOSROC epoxy liner trowel applied and no others.
- 3. Coating shall be applied by the coating manufacturer's trained and approved applicator.
- 4. Thickness shall be 3/8-inch, minimum.
- 5. Completed application shall be spark-tested in the presence of the Engineer.
- 6. The coating manufacturer shall certify the coating has been properly applied in writing.
- 7. The coatings manufacturer shall provide a written 5-year warranty for the coating and the concrete under the coating. The manufacturer shall repair or replace the concrete and coating and shall pay for all labor and materials if the coating or concrete fails.

END OF DIVISION

SECTION 15044 PRESSURE TESTING OF PIPING

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- Scope of Work: This section specifies the leakage testing requirements for plant piping.
- B. Test Pressures: Test pressures for the various services and types of piping are shown in Table 15044A, at the end of this Section.

C. Testing Records:

- 1. Provide a record of each piping installation during the testing. These records shall include:
 - a) Date of test.
 - b) Identification of pipeline tested or retested.
 - c) Identification of pipeline material.
 - d) Identification of pipe specification.
 - e) Test fluid.
 - f) Test pressure.
 - g) Remarks: Leaks identified (type and location), types of repairs, or corrections made.
 - h) Certification by Contractor that the leakage rate measured conformed to the Specifications.
 - i) Signature of Owner's representative witnessing pipe test.
- 2. Submit five (5) copies of the test records to the Engineer's representative upon completion of the testing.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 GENERAL

A. Testing fluid shall be water for all hydrostatic tests, unless pneumatic test is included.

2.02 MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

A. Provide pressure gauges, pipes, bulkheads, pumps, and meters to perform the hydrostatic and pneumatic testing.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 TESTING PREPARATION

- A. Pipes shall be in place and anchored before commencing pressure testing.
- B. Conduct hydrostatic and pneumatic tests on exposed and aboveground piping after the piping has been installed and attached to the pipe supports, hangers, anchors, expansion joints, valves, and meters.
- C. Before conducting hydrostatic tests, flush pipes with water to remove dirt and debris. For pneumatic tests, blow air through the pipes.
- D. Test new pipelines which are to be connected to existing pipelines by isolating the new line from the existing line by means of pipe caps, special flanges, or blind flanges. After the new line has been successfully tested, remove caps or flanges and connect to the existing piping.
- E. Conduct hydrostatic tests on buried pipe after the trench has been completely backfilled. The pipe may be partially backfilled and the joints left exposed for inspection for an initial leakage test. Perform the final test, however, after completely backfilling and compacting the trench.

F. Pressure Test:

- 1. All tests shall be made in the presence of and to the satisfaction of the Owner or Engineer and also, to the satisfaction of any local or state inspector having jurisdiction.
 - a. Provide not less than three (3) days notice to the Owner, Engineer, and the authority having jurisdiction when it is proposed to make the tests.
 - b. Any piping or equipment that has been left unprotected and subject to mechanical or other injury in the opinion of the Engineer shall be retested in part or in whole as directed by the Engineer.
 - c. The piping systems may be tested in sections as the work progresses, but no joint or portion of the system shall be left untested.
- 2. All elements within the system that may be damaged by the testing operation shall be removed or otherwise protected during the operation.
- 3. Repair all damage done to existing or adjacent work or materials due to or on account of the tests.

3.02 INSPECTION AND TESTING

A. Hydrostatic Testing of Aboveground or Exposed Piping: Open vents at high points of the piping system to purge air while the pipe is being filled. Subject the piping system to the test pressure indicated. Maintain the test pressure for a minimum of 4 hours. Examine joints, fittings, valves, and connections for leaks. The piping system shall show no leakage or weeping. Correct leaks and retest until no leakage is obtained.

- B. Hydrostatic Testing of Buried Piping:
 - 1. Where any section of the piping contains concrete thrust blocks or encasement, do not make the pressure test until at least 10 days after the concrete has been poured. When testing mortar-lined piping, fill the pipe to be tested with water and allow it to soak for at least 48 hours to absorb water before conducting the pressure test.
 - 2. Apply and maintain the test pressure by means of a hydraulic force pump. Maintain the test pressure for a minimum duration of 4 hours. After the test pressure is reached, use a meter to measure the additional water added to maintain the pressure during the four hours. This amount of water is the loss due to leakage in the piping system. The allowable leakage rate is defined by the formula.

 $L = \frac{SD(P)^{1/2}}{133,200}$

in which:

L = allowable leakage (gallons/hour) during the test period.

S = length of pipe (feet)

D = diameter of the pipe (inches)
P = specified test pressure (psig)

3. Repair and retest any pipes showing leakage rates greater than that allowed.

TABLE 15044A
PIPING PRESSURE TEST SCHEDULE

Service	Mark	Test Pressure (psig)
Domestic Wastewater Pipe	WW	150

END OF SECTION

SECTION 15062 DUCTILE IRON PIPE AND FITTINGS

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Scope of Work: Furnish all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals required and install, in the locations inside, and under buildings and structures as shown on the Drawings, all ductile iron piping, cast or ductile iron fittings, and appurtenances as specified herein.
- B. General Design: The equipment and materials specified herein is intended to be standard types of ductile iron pipe and cast or ductile iron fittings for use in transporting sewage, sludges, water, and reclaimed water. All materials that contact drinking water or drinking water chemicals shall comply with AWWA Standards and NSF Standard 61.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Qualifications: All of the ductile iron pipe and cast or ductile iron fittings shall be furnished by manufacturers who are fully experienced, reputable, and qualified in the manufacture of the materials to be furnished. The pipe and fittings shall be designed, constructed, installed in accordance with the best practices and methods and shall comply with these specifications as applicable.

B. Standards

1. ANSI A 21.50/AWWA C150

5. ANSI A-21.53/AWWA C153

2. ANSI A-21/AWWA C151

6. ANSI A-21.5/AWWA C105

3. ANSI A-21/AWWA C104

7. AWWA C600

4. ANSI A-21.10/AWWA C110

8. AWWA C651

C. Factory Tests: The manufacturer shall perform the factory tests described in ANSI A-21.51/AWWA C151.

D. Quality Control

- 1. The manufacturer shall establish the necessary quality control and inspection practice to ensure compliance with the referenced standards.
- In addition to the manufacturer's quality control procedures, the Owner may select an independent testing laboratory to inspect the material at the foundry for compliance with these specifications. The cost of foundry inspection requested by the Owner will be paid for by the Owner.

E. Equipment Manufacturers

1. American Cast Iron Pipe Co.

4. McWane Ductile

2. U.S. Pipe and Foundry

5. Or equal

Griffin- US Pipe

1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Materials and Shop Drawings
 - Submit shop drawings, including pipeline layouts, within and under buildings and structures. Shop drawings shall include dimensioning, methods and locations of supports and all other pertinent technical specifications. Shop drawings shall be prepared by the pipe manufacturer. Shop drawings for piping within and under buildings and structures shall be submitted within 30 days of Execution of Contract.
- B. Operating Instructions: Submit Operation and Maintenance Manuals in accordance with Division One.
- C. Manufacturer's Certification: Submit certification of compliance with the following, sworn by a corporate officer of the manufacturer and witnessed by a notary:
 - 1. Factory tests and results
 - 2. Dimensions and weights of fittings per respective AWWA Standard.

1.04 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

- A. Delivery and Storage: Delivery and storage of the materials shall be in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations.
- B. Handling: Care shall be taken in loading, transporting and unloading to prevent damage to the pipe or fittings and their respective coatings. Pipe or fittings shall not be rolled off the carrier or dropped. Unloading shall be done by lifting with a forklift or crane. All pipe or fittings shall be examined before laying, and no piece shall be installed which is found to be defective.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. Ductile Iron Pipe
 - Standards: ANSI A-21.50, AWWA C150, and ANSI A-21.51, AWWA C151
 - 2. Thickness
 - a. Below ground piping: Pipes shall be the following minimum thickness class unless otherwise noted or specified:

1) 12-inch or smaller (unless otherwise noted or specified)
 2) 14-20 inch diameter
 3) Class 350
 Class 250
 Class 200

4) 30 to 64-inch diameter Class 150

- b. Above ground piping:
 - 1) Flanged, Class 53 (minimum)

Joints

- a. Push-on or Mechanical Joints (below ground piping):
 - 1) Standards: ANSI A21.11/AWWA C111
 - 2) Class: The working pressure of the joint shall be equal to or exceed the rated working pressure of the pipe.
 - 3) Gaskets: SBR (Styrene Butadine Rubber)
- b. Flanged (above ground or inside below ground vaults):
 - 1) Standards: ANSI A21.15/AWWA C115, ANSI B16.1
 - 2) Class: 125 lb factory applied screwed long hub flanges, plain faced without projection.
 - 3) Gaskets
 - (a) Spans less than 10 feet: full face 1/8-inch neoprene rubber
 - (b) Spans greater than 10 feet: Toroseal gaskets as manufactured by American Cast Iron Pipe or equal.
- c. Restrained Joints
 - 1) "Manufactured": "Flex-Ring" or "Lok-Ring" restrained joint system as manufactured by American Cast Iron Pipe, "Tyton" as manufactured by McWane, or equal.
 - 2) "Gasket": "Fast-Grip" as manufactured by American Ductile Iron Pipe, "Field Lok" as manufactured by U.S. Pipe, or equal.
 - (a) May be used only for pipe sizes 4-inch through 24-inch on straight runs of pipe.
 - (b) Shall not be used for:
 - (1) Fittings
 - (2) Within bore and jack casings
 - 3) "Mechanical" Restraining Devices: MegaLug system as manufactured by EBAA Iron or equal.
 - 4) Class: 250psi (minimum) design pressure rating.
 - 5) Standard mechanical joint retainer glands will not be acceptable.
- d. Joint Accessories
 - 1) Mechanical joint bolts, washers and nuts: Ductile iron or Stet steel.
 - 2) Flanged joint bolts, washers and nuts:
 - (a) Above Ground: Hot dipped galvanized, Grade B, ASTM A-307
 - (b) Below Ground: 304 stainless steel
- e. Pipe Length (below ground installation): 20 feet maximum nominal length.

B. Fittings

- 1. Materials: Ductile iron or grey cast iron, AWWA C110
- 2. Pressure Class
 - a. Mechanical Joint, Restrained Joint: Minimum 250 psi pressure rating.
 - b. Flanged Joint: Class 125, plain

3. Compact Fittings: ANSI/AWWA A21.53/C153 (4-inch through 24-inch diameter only)

C. Wall Penetrations

- 1. Wall Pipes
 - a. Material: Ductile iron or cast iron
 - b. Type: Welded-on wall collar/water stop located in the center of the wall.
 - c. Design: Full thrust at 250 psi transmitted to the structure wall. Tapped mechanical joint wall pipes may be used to facilitate concrete form work.
- 2. Wall Sleeves
 - a. Material: Galvanized Schedule 40 Steel Pipe, ASTM A120
 - b. Design: as manufactured by Thunderline Corporation, "Link Seal" or equal.

2.02 COATINGS, MARKING AND LININGS

- A. Exterior Coatings
 - 1. Below ground or in a casing pipe
 - a. Type: Asphaltic coating, 1.0 mil DFT
 - b. Markings: (continuous 2-inch wide stripe within top 90 degrees of pipe minimum drying time 30 minutes before backfill). All ductile iron pipe shall be marked with a continuous stripe located within the top 90 degrees of the pipe. Said stripe shall be a minimum 2 inches in width and shall be oil based paint, blue in color for potable water, green for wastewater, and purple for reuse. Backfill shall not be placed for 30 minutes following paint application. At the Contractor's option, the pipe may be stripe-marked prior to pipe installation as follows:

Up to 8-inch diameter: (2) 2-inch wide @ 180° 10 to 16-inch diameter: (3) 2-inch wide @ 120° 18 to 24-inch diameter: (4) 2-inch wide @ 90° 30 to 54-inch diameter: (6) 2-inch wide @ 60°

Alternately, all ductile iron pipe may be marked along the crown of the pipe with an adhesive Underground Utility marking tape. Said tape shall be a minimum 6 inches wide with a minimum 4.0 mil overall thickness inert plastic film formulated for extended use underground. Tape shall be specified and supplied in accordance with the A.P.W.A. national color code and shall be imprinted with the appropriate legend to define the type of utility line it protects.

c: Color: Potable water: blue Wastewater: green

Wastewater: green Reclaimed water: purple

2. Above Ground

- a. Not subject to non-potable water submergence or splashing: see Division 9.
- b. Subject to non-potable water submergence of splashing: see Division 9.
- c. Color: see Division 9.
- B. Interior Lining (applied by pipe manufacturer)
 - 1. Wastewater (use as indicated on the Drawings)
 - a. Epoxy Interior Lining: Ductile iron pipe, fittings, and specials shall be lined with Protecto 401 Ceramic Epoxy, a high build multi-component amine cured Novalac epoxy lining, containing at least 20 percent by volume of ceramic quartz pigment, manufactured by Indurall Coatings, Inc., Birmingham, Alabama, or approved equal. The interiors of the ductile iron pipe, fittings, and specials shall receive 40 mils dry film thickness (DFT) of the ceramic epoxy protective lining. Storage, surface preparation, application, and safety precautions shall strictly follow manufacturer's instructions.
 - b. Cement-Motor Interior Lining: Ductile iron pipe, fittings, and specials shall be cement lined in accordance with ANSI/AWWA C104, current revision, "Cement-Mortar Lining for Ductile Iron and Gray Iron Pipe and Fittings for Water." The cement lining shall have standard thickness.
 - 2. Reuse Water: Cement mortar lining with a seal coat of asphaltic material in accordance with ANSI/AWWA A21.4/C104.
 - 3. Potable Water: Cement-mortar lining for ductile iron pipe and ductile and gray iron fittings for water service is in accordance with ANSI/AWWA C104/A21.4, and is listed by ANSI/NSF Standard 61 for potable water contact.
- C. Polyethylene Encasement (required for all below ground piping, fittings, and appurtenances located less than 10 feet from a gas main and as indicated on the Drawings):
 - 1. Standard: ANSI A21.5/AWWA C105, 8 mil minimum thickness.
 - 2. Color: Color coded per paragraph A.1 above.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Standards: AWWA C600-87
- B. Underground Ductile Iron Pipe and Fittings
 - 1. Bedding for Ductile Iron Pipe: Minimum bedding requirements shall be Type 4 as defined in ANSI/AWWA C600, latest revision. Provide proper bedding required, in accordance with thickness class of pipe being laid and depth of cover. Proper pipe

laying conditions shall be in accordance with ANSI/AWWA C150and C151, latest revisions, and ANSI/AWWA C600, latest revision.

2. Placement

- a. Alignment: In accordance with lines and grades shown on the Drawings. Deflection of joints shall not exceed 75 percent of that recommended by the manufacturer.
- b. Polyethylene encasement: Provide polyethylene wrap around piping, fittings and appurtenances located less than 10 feet from a gas main and as indicated on the Drawings.
- 3. Cutting: When required, cutting shall be done by machine, leaving a smooth cut at right angles to the axis of the pipe. Cut ends of the pipe to be used with a push-on bell shall be beveled.

4. Joints

- a. Joint Placement
 - 1) Push on joints: Pipe shall be laid with the bell ends facing upstream. The gasket shall be inserted and the joint surfaces cleaned and lubricated prior to placement of the pipe. After joining the pipe, a metal feeler shall be used to verify that the gasket is correctly located.
 - 2) Mechanical Joints: Pipe and fittings shall be installed in accordance with the "Notes on Method of Installation" under ANSI A21.11/AWWA C111. The gasket shall be inserted and the joint surfaces cleaned and lubricated with soapy water before tightening the bolts to the specified torque.
- C. Above ground and interior ductile iron pipe and fittings
 - 1. Pipe Supports
 - a. General: All piping shall be properly supported with hangers, supports, base elbows and tees, concrete piers and pads as shown on the Drawings. All pipe and appurtenances connected to equipment shall be supported to prevent any strain from being imposed on the equipment.
 - b. Support spacing: 8 feet on centers and at each fitting, and where shown on the Drawings.
 - c. Hangers for horizontal piping
 - 1) Material: heavy malleable iron
 - 2) Type: Adjustable, swivel, split ring or adjustable swivel, pipe-roll
 - d. Hangers for vertical piping
 - 1) Material: Wrought iron
 - 2) Type: Clamp

2. Placement

- a. Alignment: In accordance with lines and grades shown on the Drawings. Each section of pipe shall be cleaned thoroughly prior to installation.
- 3. Flanged Joints: Joints shall be fitted so that the contact faces bear uniformly on the gasket.

D. Thrust Restraint

- 1. General: Thrust restraint shall be accomplished by restrained joints.
- 2. Length of Restrained Joints: In accordance with the lengths listed in Table 15062-A.

E. Thrust Blocks

- 1. Location: Provide only where shown on the Drawings or as directed by the Engineer.
- 2. Bearing Area: As shown on the Drawings.
- 3. Concrete: Minimum 28 day compressive strength of 2500 psi.
- 4. Formwork: At the back of the thrust block, the concrete shall be placed against undisturbed material. Wood side form shall be provided.

Restrictions

- a. Concrete shall not cover joints, bolts or nuts or interfere with the removal of any joint.
- b. Joints shall be protected by heavy visquene prior to placing the concrete thrust block.
- c. Where undisturbed trench walls are not available, the Contractor shall furnish a suitable thrust restraint system which is subject to approval by the Engineer.

3.02 CLEANING

- A. General: At the conclusion of the work, the Contractor shall thoroughly clean the new pipe lines by flushing with water or other means to remove all dirt, stones, or other material which may have entered the line during the construction period.
- B. Correction of Non-Conforming Work: All non-conforming work shall be repaired or replaced by the Contractor at no additional expense to the Owner. Non-conforming work shall be defined as failure to adhere to any specific or implied directive of this Project Manual and/or the drawings, including but not limited to pipe not laid straight, true to the lines and grades as shown on the drawings, damaged or unacceptable materials, misalignment or diameter ring deflection in pipe due to bedding or backfilling, visible or detectable leakage and failure to pass any specified test or inspection.

3.03 FIELD TESTING

A. General: At least ten (10) days prior to beginning testing, the Contractor shall submit a testing plan to the Engineer for review.

B. Gravity Piping

- 1. The Contractor shall perform low pressure air test on all gravity piping.
- 2. Standard: UNI-B-6-98, "Recommended Practice for Low-Pressure Air Testing of Installed Sewer Pipe, as published by UNI-Bell Plastic Pipe Association.
- 3. Test Section: Between adjacent manholes, not to exceed 400 feet.
- 4. Test Pressure: 4.0 psig greater than the average back pressure of any groundwater above the pipe invert, but not greater than 9.0 psig.

5. Preparation

- a. Before testing, the Contractor shall determine groundwater level and adjust the test pressure accordingly.
- b. Before testing, the Contractor shall flush all gravity lines to obtain free flow through each line.

6. Low Pressure Test Procedure

- a. Low pressure air shall be slowly introduced into the sealed line until the internal air pressure reaches the specified test pressure.
- b. When temperatures have been equalized and pressure stabilized at the specified test pressure, the air supply shall be shut off.
- c. If the time shown in the Table elapses before the air pressure drops 1.0 psig, the section undergoing the test shall have passed.
- d. Should the section fail to meet test requirements, the Contractor shall determine the sources of leakage, make necessary repairs and repeat the test until the test section passes.
- 7. Closed Circuit Television Inspection: (by Contractor)
 - a. Internal video inspection for the gravity sewer shall be performed by the Contractor to check for alignment and deflection. The television inspection shall also be used to check for cracked, broken or otherwise defective pipe, and overall pipe integrity.
 - b. The video internal inspection will be performed in two stages. The first inspection will be within 30 days after the installation of the gravity sewer pipe, provided the road base is in place and the manhole rings and covers are to grade. The requirement of road base being in place shall be waived if the top of the sewer is 12 feet below the finished grade. In such cases, the video inspection shall be performed once the trench has been compacted up to the road base. The second inspection of the gravity sewer

pipe will be before the end of the one-year warranty period.

- c. If the first or second video inspection reveals cracked, broken, or defective pipe, or pipe misalignment resulting in vertical sags in excess of 1-1/2" and in the case of PVC pipe a ring defection in excess of 5 percent, the Contractor shall be required to repair or replace the pipeline. Successful passage of both the low pressure air exfiltration test and video inspection is required before acceptance by the Owner.
- d. Prior to repair or replacement of failed sewer pipe, the method of repair or replacement shall be submitted to the Engineer for approval. Pressure grouting of pipe or manholes shall not be considered as an acceptable method of repair.

	SPECIFICATION TIME REQUIRED FOR A 1.0 PSIG PRESSURE DROP FOR SIZE AND LENGTH OF PIPE INDICATED FOR Q = 0.0015										
1 Pipe Diamet	2 Minimu m	3 Length for	4 Time for Longer		SPECIFICATION TIME FOR LENGTH (L) SHOWN (MIN:SEC)						
er (in.)	Time (min:.s ec)	Minimu m Time (ft)	()						400 FT	450 FT	
4	3:46	597	.380 L	3:46	3:46	3:46	3:46	3:46	3:46	3:46	3:46
6	5:40	398	.854 L	5:40	5:40	5:40	5:40	5:40	5:40	5:42	6:34
8	7:34	298	1.50 L	7:34	7:34	7:34	7:34	7:36	8:52	10:08	11:24
10	9:26	239	2.374 L	9:26	9:26	9:26	9:53	11:52	13:51	15:49	17:48
12	11:20	199	3.418 L	11:20	11:20	11:24	14:15	17:05	19:56	22:47	25:38
15	14:10	159	5.342 L	14:10	14:10	17:48	22:15	26:42	31:09	35:36	40:04
18	17:00	133	7.692 L	17:00	19:13	25:38	32:03	38:27	44:52	51:16	57:41
21	19:50	114	10.470 L	19:50	26:10	34:54	43:37	52:21	61:00	69:48	78:31
24	22:40	99	13.674 L	22:47	34:11	45:34	56:58	68:22	79:46	91:10	102:33
27	25:30	88	17.306 L	28:51	43:16	57:41	72:07	86:32	100:57	115:22	129:48
30	28:20	80	21.366 L	35:37	53:25	71:13	89:02	106:50	124:38	142:26	160:15
33	31:10	72	25.852 L	43:05	64:38	86:10	107:43	129:16	150:43	172:21	193:53
36	34:00	66	30.768 L	51:17	76:55	102:34	128:12	153:50	179:29	205:07	230:46

C. Pressure Piping

- 1. General: The Contractor shall perform hydrostatic pressure and leakage tests on all pressure piping.
- 2. Standard: AWWA C600, Section 4, with the exceptions required herein and the exception that the Contractor shall furnish all gauges, meters, pressure pumps and other equipment needed to test the lines.
- 3. Hydrostatic Pressure Test:
 - a. Test Pressure: 50 percent above the normal working pressure, but not less than 150 psi, unless otherwise noted on the drawings.
 - b. Test Duration: 24 hours
 - c. Air Release: Corporation cocks at least 3/4-inch in diameter, pipe riser and

angle glove valves shall be provided at each dead-end to bleed air from the line

- 4. Hydrostatic Leakage Test
 - a. General: Following the pressure test, the Contractor shall perform the leakage test. The line shall be filled with water and all air removed for the test. The Contractor shall provide a pump to maintain the test pressure for the entire test period.
 - b. Test Pressure: Maximum operating pressure as determined by the Engineer but not less than 150 psi unless otherwise noted.
 - c. Test duration: 2 hours.
 - d. Allowable Leakage

$$L = \frac{SD(P)^{0.5}}{133,200}$$
 for 18-foot pipe lengths

$$L = \frac{SD(P)^{0.5}}{148,000}$$
 for 20-foot pipe lengths

L=Allowable leakage (gallons per hour)

S=Length of pipe tested (feet)

D=Nominal diameter of pipe (inches)

P=Average test pressure maintained (psig)

- e. Visible Leakage: All leaks evident at the surface shall be repaired and leakage eliminated regardless of the measured total leakage.
- f. Leakage Measurement: The amount of water required to maintain the test pressure in the leakage.
- g. Leakage Repair: Repairs to leaks shall be completed in strict accordance with the pipe manufacturer's <u>written</u> recommendations.

3.04 DISINFECTING POTABLE WATER PIPELINES

- A. General: Before being placed in service, all potable and reclaimed water pipelines shall be disinfected by chlorination. Taps for chlorination and sampling shall be uncovered and backfilled by the Contractor as required. The disinfection procedure shall be approved by the Engineer.
- B. Standard: AWWA C651-14, "Standard for Disinfecting Water Mains."
- C. Procedure
 - 1. Flush all dirty or discolored water from the line and introduce chlorine in approved dosages through a tap at one end while water is being withdrawn at the other end of the line.
 - 2. The chlorine solution shall remain in the pipeline for 24 hours.

- 3. Following the chlorination period, all treated water shall be flushed from the line and replaced with water from the distribution system.
- 4. Bacteriological sampling and analysis shall be made in full accordance with AWWA Manual C651-92 and the appropriate FDEP permit. If necessary, the Contractor will be required to rechlorinate.
- 5. Sampling and analysis shall be done by the Owner.
- D. Approval: The line shall not be placed in service until the requirements of the State and County Public Health Department are met, and the Letter of Clearance is obtained from the Department of Environmental Protection.

TABLE 15062-A

LOW PRESSURE SYSTEMS Test Pressure 10 to 35 PSI – RESTRAINED JOINT LENGTH (FT)								
Pipe Diameter	Wye Lateral	Tee	22 ½ Bend	45 Bend	90 Bend	Dead End		
4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 24 30 36 42 48 54	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 4 4 5 5	1 2 2 2 3 3 3 4 4 5 5 6 7 7 8	3 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 14 17 19 22 24 26	7 9 12 14 17 19 22 24 27 32 39 45 52 58 64		
	Test I		M PRESSURE SY PSI – RESTRICTE		l (FT)			
Test Pressure 36 to 60 PSI – RESTRICTED JOINT LENGTH (FT) 4								

(TABLE 15062-A Continued)

HIGH PRESSURE SYSTEMS Test Pressure 61 to 100 PSI – RESTRICTED JOINT LENGTH (FT)

Pipe Diameter	Wye Lateral	Tee	22 ½ Bend	45 Bend	90 Bend	Dead End
4	0	0	2	4	9	18
6	0	0	3	5	12	25
8	0	0	3	7	15	33
10	0	0	4	8	19	40
12	0	1	5	9	22	48
14	0	8	5	11	25	55
16	0	15	6	12	28	62
18	0	22	7	13	31	69
20	0	28	7	14	34	76
24	0	41	8	17	39	89
30	0	60	10	20	47	109
36	3	78	11	23	54	129
42	10	96	13	26	61	147
48	17	113	14	28	68	165
54	23	130	15	31	74	182

NOTES:

- 1. The tables indicate minimum lengths of restrained joints one each side of fittings and changes in direction. Where practical, full lengths of restrained pipe shall be laid to achieve the required restraint.
- 2. Where combinations of fittings are used, the piping between the fittings shall be restrained. The minimum restrained length of pipe required upstream and downstream of the combination of fittings shall be determined on the basis of one equivalent fitting (i.e., 2-45° bends will be considered as though a 90° bend were located midway between the two 45° bends).
- 3. For pipe that is encased in polyethylene, restrained joints minimum lengths shall be increased by 50 percent.
- 4. For fittings other than those presented in the above tables, restrained joint lengths shall be determined in accordance with "Thrust restraint Design for Ductile Iron Pipe, Second Edition, 1989" by the Ductile Iron Pipe Research Association. Restrained joint lengths for a given pressure range shall be based on the maximum pressure for the test pressure range, cohesive granular soil, 3-feet depth, laying condition No. 5 and factor of safety of 1.5.
- 5. For a 150 psi test pressure, the required restrained joint lengths shall be 1.5 times the lengths specified in the table for "High Pressure Systems."
- 6. In Line Valves: If the straight run of pipe on both sides of the valve exceeds the length required for "dead ends," then no restrained joints are necessary.
- 7. Wye Laterals: if the straight run of pipe upstream of a wye lateral exceeds the length required for "wye laterals," then no restrained joints are necessary.
- 8. All pressure piping shall be hydrostatically tested at a pressure equivalent to one and one-half times the working pressure, but not less than 150 psi, unless otherwise noted.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 15064 POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVC) PIPE AND FITTINGS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

- A. Scope of Work: Furnish all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals required and install and test all polyvinyl chloride (PVC) piping, fittings and appurtenances as shown on the Drawings and specified herein.
- B. General Design: The equipment and materials specified herein is intended to be standard types of polyvinyl chloride (PVC) pipe and cast or ductile iron fittings for use in transporting sewage, sludges, and water.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Qualifications: All of the polyvinyl chloride (PVC) pipe and cast or ductile iron fittings shall be furnished by manufacturers who are fully experienced, reputable, and qualified in the manufacture of the materials to be furnished. The pipe and fittings shall be designed, constructed, installed in accordance with the best practices and methods and shall comply with these specifications as applicable.

B. Standards

- 1. AWWA C900/M23 and C905
- 2. ASTM D1784; ASTM D1785; ASTM D2241; ASTM D2466; ASTM D2564; ASTM D2729; ASTM D2774; ASTM D3034; ASTM D3139; ASTM D3212
- 3. NSF 14
- 4. UNI-B-1, UNI-B-15-10
- 5. ANSI B16.5
- C. Factory Tests: The manufacturer shall perform the factory tests described in Section 3 -AWWA C900.

D. Quality Control

- 1. The manufacturer shall establish the necessary quality control and inspection practice to ensure compliance with the referenced standards.
- In addition to the manufacturer's quality control procedures, the Owner may select an
 independent testing laboratory to inspect the material at the foundry for compliance with
 these specifications. The cost of foundry inspection requested by the Owner will be paid
 for by the Owner.

E. Equipment Manufacturers

- 1. JM Eagle
- 2. North American Pipe Corporation
- 3. Diamond Plastics
- 4. Or equal

1.03 SUBMITTALS

- A. Materials and Shop Drawings: Submit shop drawings to the Engineer in accordance with Section 01340. The location of all pipes shall conform to the Contract Drawings. In some cases, however, a certain amount of flexibility in pipe position will be allowed where new pipes connect to existing piping or when avoiding potential conflicts.
- B. Operating Instructions: Submit Operation and Maintenance Manuals in accordance with Section 01730.
- C. Manufacturer's Certification: Submit sworn certification of factory tests and their results.

1.04 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

- A. Delivery and Storage: Delivery and storage of the materials shall be in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations.
- B. Handling: Care shall be taken in loading, transporting and unloading to prevent damage to the pipe or fittings and their respective coatings. Pipe or fittings shall not be rolled off the carrier or dropped. Unloading shall be done by lifting with a forklift or crane. All pipe or fittings shall be examined before laying, and no piece shall be installed which is found to be defective.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) Pipe
 - 1. Standards: AWWA C900 and C905/ASTM D1784/ASTM-D3034/ASTM-D2241
 - 2. Compounds: Class 12454-A or Class 12454-B.
 - 3. Dimension Ratio/Thickness
 - a. Pressure Systems
 - Potable Water: DR 18
 - 4. Joints
 - a. Push-on integral bell (nominal diameter four (4) inches or larger.)
 - 1. Standards: ASTM D3139 and F477/UNI-B-1
 - 2. Gaskets: Flexible elastomeric ring type
 - b. Solvent weld (nominal diameter less than four (4) inches)
 - 1. Standards: ASTM D2466/D2564
 - 2. Type: Slip Fitting Socket (tapered)
 - 3. Exclusions: Plastic saddle and flange joints will not be used.
 - c. Pipe Length
 - 1. Pressure systems: 20 feet maximum nominal length.
 - 2. Gravity systems: 13 feet nominal length

- B. Fittings Pressure Systems (nominal diameter four (4) inches or larger)
 - 1. Materials: Ductile iron or grey cast iron, AWWA C110
 - 2. Joints: Mechanical Joint, Minimum 250 psi pressure rating.
 - 3. Gaskets: SBR (Styrene Butadine Rubber)
 - 4. Compact Fittings: ANSI/AWWA A21.53/C153 (4-inch through 24-inch diameter only)
 - 5. Exclusions: Standard double bell couplings will not be accepted where the pipe will slip completely through the coupling.
- C. Fittings Pressure Systems (nominal diameter less than four (4) inches)
 - 1. Material: Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC)
 - 2. Joints: Slip fitting tapered socket with solvent weld
 - 3. Solvent: In accordance with ASTM D2564
 - 4. Exclusions: Plastic saddle and flange joint fittings will not be used.

2.02 LOCATION MARKINGS AND IDENTIFICATION

- A. Location Detection Wire
 - 1. Materials: Continuous, insulated 8 gauge copper wire.
 - 2. Installation: Directly above (1" maximum) centerline of PVC pipe terminating at top of each valve box and be capable of extending 12 inches above top of box in a manner so as not to interfere with valve operation.
- B. Identification Markings
 - 1. Pipe furnished in solid color or white with color lettering as indicated below. For pipes over 12" diameter, the pipes shall be solid color.
 - a. Lettering along top 90° of pipe, minimum 3/4" in height with appropriate wording appearing one or more times every 21 inches along the entire length of the pipeline.
 - b. Color: Potable Water: blue

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Standards: AWWA C900 and C905
- B. Underground Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) Pipe and Fittings
 - 1. Bedding: Firm, dry and even bearing of suitable material. Blocking under the pipe will not be permitted.

- 2. Placement/Alignment: In accordance with lines and grades shown on the Drawings. For pressure systems, deflection of joints shall not exceed 75 percent of maximum limits recommended by the manufacturer and as set forth in applicable AWWA standards.
- 3. Cutting: When required, cutting shall be done leaving a smooth cut at right angles to the axis of the pipe. Cut ends of the pipe to be used with a push-on bell shall be beveled.

4. Joints

a. Joint Placement

- Push on Joints: Pipe shall be laid with the bell ends facing upstream. The gasket shall be inserted and the joint surfaces cleaned and lubricated prior to placement of the pipe. After joining the pipe, a metal feeler shall be used to verify that the gasket is correctly located.
- 2. Mechanical Joints: Pipe and fittings shall be installed in accordance with the "Notes on Method of Installation" under ANSI A21.11/AWWA C111. The gasket shall be inserted and the joint surfaces cleaned and lubricated with soapy water before tightening the bolts to the specified torque.
- C. Thrust Restraint: Thrust restraint for PVC pipes shall be by mechanical restraining devices for PVC as manufactured by JCM 610 Sur-grip, Romac GripRing (611, 612, 613) EBAA Iron (2000 series, 1500 series, and 2800 series) or equal.
- D. Concrete Thrust Blocks N/A

3.02 CLEANING

- A. General: At the conclusion of the work, the Contractor shall thoroughly clean the new pipe lines by flushing with water or other means to remove all dirt, stones or other material which may have entered the line during the construction period.
- B. Correction of Non-Conforming Work: All non-conforming work shall be repaired or replaced by the Contractor at no additional expense to the Owner. Non-conforming work shall be defined as failure to adhere to any specific or implied directive of this Project Manual and/or the drawings, including but not limited to pipe not laid straight, not true to the lines and grades as shown on the drawings, damaged or unacceptable materials, misalignment or diameter ring deflection in pipe due to bedding or backfilling, visible or detectable leakage and failure to pass any specified test or inspection.

3.03 FIELD TESTING

A. General: At least ten (10) days prior to beginning testing, the Contractor shall submit a testing plan to the Engineer for review.

B. Pressure Piping

- 1. General: The Contractor shall perform hydrostatic pressure and leakage tests on all pressure piping.
- 2. Standard: AWWA C600, Section 4, with the exceptions required herein and the exception that the Contractor shall furnish all gauges, meters, pressure pumps and other equipment needed to test the lines.
- 3. Hydrostatic Pressure Test

- a. Test Pressure: 50 percent above the normal working pressure, but not less than 150 psi, unless otherwise noted on the drawings.
- b. Test Duration: 24 hours
- c. Air Release: Corporation cocks at least 3/4-inch in diameter, pipe riser and angle globe valves shall be provided at each dead-end to bleed air from the line.

4. Hydrostatic Leakage Test

- a. General: Following the pressure test, the Contractor shall perform the leakage test. The line shall be filled with water and all air removed for the test. The Contractor shall provide a pump to maintain the test pressure for the entire test period.
- b. Test Pressure: Maximum operating pressure as determined by the Engineer but not less than 150 psi unless otherwise noted.
- c. Test Duration: 2 hours.
- d. Allowable Leakage

```
L = SD(P)^{0.5} (for 18 ft pipe length); SD(P)^{0.5} (for 20 ft pipe length); SD(P)^{0.5} (for 20 ft pipe length);
```

L = Allowable leakage (gallons per hour)

S = Length of pipe tested (feet)

D = Nominal diameter of pipe (inches)

P = Average test pressure maintained (psig)

- e. Visible Leakage: All leaks evident at the surface shall be repaired and leakage eliminated regardless of the measured total leakage.
- f. Leakage Measurement: The amount of water required to maintain the test pressure is the leakage.
- g. Leakage Repair: Repairs to leaks shall be completed in strict accordance with the pipe manufacturer's <u>written</u> recommendations.

3.04 DISINFECTING POTABLE WATER PIPELINES

- A. General: Before being placed in service, all potable water pipelines shall be disinfected by chlorination. Taps for chlorination and sampling shall be uncovered and backfilled by the Contractor as required. The disinfection procedure shall be approved by the Engineer
- B. Standard: AWWA C651-14, "Standard for Disinfecting Water Mains".

C. Procedure

- 1. Flush all dirty or discolored water from the line and introduce chlorine in approved dosages through a tap at one end while water is being withdrawn at the other end of the line.
- 2. The chlorine solution shall remain in the pipeline for 24 hours.
- 3. Following the chlorination period, all treated water shall be flushed from the line and replaced with water from the distribution system.
- Bacteriological sampling and analysis shall be made in full accordance with AWWA Manual C651-14 and the appropriate FDEP permit. If necessary, the Contractor will be required to rechlorinate.
- 5. Sampling and analysis shall be done by the Owner.

D. Approval: The line shall not be placed in service until the requirements of the State and County Public Health Department are met, and the Letter of Clearance is obtained from the Department of Environmental Protection.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 15065 FUSIBLE PVC PIPE

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE

This specification covers the material requirements of extruded PVC pipe designated as fusible C900, Fusible C905, and Fusible PVC.

1.02 REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

- A. The following documents are references for this specification:
 - ASTM D1784-02 Standard Specification for Rigid PVC and CPVC Compounds
 - 2. AWWA C900-97 AWWA Standard for Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) Pressure Pipe and Fabricated Fittings, 4in. through 12 in. (100mm through 300mm), for Water Distribution
 - 3. AWWA C905-97 AWWA Standard for Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) Pressure Pipe and Fabricated Fittings, 14 in. through 48in. (350mm-1200mm), for Water Transmission
 - 4. AWWA C605-94 AWWA Standard for Underground Installation of Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) Pressure Pipe and Fittings for Water
 - 5. NSF-61 Drinking Water System Components—Health Effects
 - 6. PPI PVC Range Composition Listing of Qualified Ingredients TR-2/2003

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 SIZES

- A. Fusible C900 sizes for 4" through 12" nominal outside diameter shall have a Dimension Ratio of DR14, 18 or 25, as specified.
- B. Fusible C905 sizes for 14" through 48" nominal outside diameter shall have a Dimension Ratio of DR14, 18, 21, 25, 32.5, 41, and 51, as specified.
- C. Fusible PVC sizes are 2" through 48"nominal outside diameter. <u>Fusible PVC pipe for</u> force mains shall be DR18.

2.02 PHYSICAL PROPERTIES

- A. The material properties of Fusible C900/C905/PVC are as defined in ASTM D 1784-02. The Cell Classification is 12454B.
- B. The formulation for extrusion of Fusible C900, Fusible C905, and Fusible PVC shall be compounded to the specific proprietary recipe for Fusible pipe and meet the requirements of PPI TR-2.

- C. The pipe shall be extruded with plain ends. The ends shall be square to the pipe and free of any bevel or chamfer.
- D. The pipe length to be supplied with this project shall be 30'.
- E. Any scratch or gouge greater than 10% of the wall thickness will be considered significant and can be rejected unless determined acceptable by the project engineer or owner.
- F. Fusible C900™ and C905™ will be blue in color.
- G. Fusible PVC™ will be blue for potable water applications, purple for recycled or reclaimed water, green for sanitary sewer or force main applications, and white for irrigation or storm sewer applications.

2.03 MARKING

- A. Fusible C900 and Fusible C905 will be marked per the appropriate sections of the AWWA Standard. This includes nominal size, PVC, Dimension Ratio, AWWA pressure class or rating, AWWA Standard designation number, NSF-61 Seal or mark verifying suitability for potable water service, extrusion production-record code, the trade mark name of Fusible C900 or C905, and Underground Solutions. Cell Classification 12454B and/or PVC material code 1120 may also be included.
- B. Fusible PVC will be marked with the nominal size, PVC, cell classification and /or material code, pressure rating, extrusion production-record code, the trade name of Fusible PVC, and Underground Solutions. The NSF-61 mark will be included for potable water applications.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 TESTING

- A. Fusible C900/C905/PVC pipe is tested at the extrusion facility for the pipe properties required to meet AWWA Standards for C900 and C905.
- B. Tests during extrusion will be done at the frequency as determined by AWWA Standards C900 and C905. Where frequency of testing is determined by the purchaser, UGSI will set the frequency with the extruder.
- C. For each extrusion run, the test results will be summarized and reported. Copies of the test report are available to the project engineer, owner, or sponsor.
- D. Tests included in a typical extrusion run meet AWWA C900/C905 requirements. These test generally are:
 - ➤ Dimensional Checks
 - ➤ Acetone Immersion
 - >> Flattening
 - >> Burst Pressure
- E. After installation, the recommended pressure test is a hydrostatic test at 1.5 times

the normal operating pressure of the system. The test is recommended for a duration of one hour.

3.02 INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS

- A. Fusible pipe will be handled in a safe manner and in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations.
- B. Fusible products will be joined per the supplier's recommendations.
- C. The pipe will be installed in a manner not to exceed the supplier's recommended bending radius.
- D. Where pipe is installed by pulling in tension, the supplier's recommended Safe Pulling Force will not be exceeded.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 15070 HORIZONTAL DIRECTIONAL DRILLING OF PRESSURE MAINS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work: Furnish and install underground utilities using the horizontal directional drilling (HDD) method of installation, also commonly referred to as directional boring or guided horizontal boring for pressure pipe. This Work shall include all piping services, equipment, materials, and labor for the complete and proper installation testing, restoration of underground utilities, and environmental protection and restoration.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Qualifications

- Directional drilling Contractor or Subcontractor shall have a minimum of 4-years experience constructing water, wastewater, or reclaimed water experience to include pipelines of the same or larger diameter and the same or greater lengths. All pipe and appurtenances of similar type and material shall be furnished by a single manufacturer.
- 2. The Contractor's operations shall be in conformance with the Directional Crossing Contractors Association (DCCA) published guidelines (latest edition) and pipe manufacturer's guidelines and recommendations.

1.03 SHOP DRAWINGS AND SUBMITTALS

- A. Submittals shall be submitted to the OWNER for review and acceptance prior to construction in accordance with the General Conditions and specifications Section 01340.
 - 1. Work Plan.
 - 2. Pipe.
 - 3. Couplings.
 - 4. HDPE mechanical joint adapters.
 - 5. Training and experience of directional boring machine operator.
 - 6. Directional drilling equipment Specifications including calibration records.
- B. Prior to beginning Work, the Contractor must submit a work plan to the OWNER detailing the procedure and schedule to be used to execute the Project. The Work plan should include the following:
 - 1. A description of all equipment to be used.

- 2. Down-hole tools.
- 3. A list of personnel and their qualifications and experience.
- 4. List of Subcontractors.
- 5. A schedule of work activity.
- 6. A safety plan and traffic control plan (if applicable).
- 7. An environmental protection plan.
- 8. Contingency plans for possible problems.

C. Equipment

- 1. The Contractor will submit specifications on directional drilling equipment to be used to ensure that the equipment will be adequate to complete the Project. Equipment shall include but not be limited to the following:
 - a. Drilling rig
 - b. Mud system
 - c. Mud motors (if applicable)
 - d. Down-hole tools
 - e. Guidance system
 - f. Rig safety systems

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 GENERAL

- A. All material supplied shall be one of the products specified in the OWNERS "List of Approved Products".
- B. The directional drilling equipment shall consist of the following:
 - 1. A directional drilling rig of sufficient capacity to perform the bore and pullback operations.
 - 2. A drilling fluid mixing, delivery, and recovery system of sufficient capacity to complete the crossing.
 - 3. A drilling fluid recycling system to remove solids from the drilling fluid so that the fluid can be reused.
 - 4. A magnetic guidance system to accurately guide boring operations.
 - 5. A vacuum truck of sufficient capacity to handle the drilling fluid volume and

- 6. Trained and competent personnel shall operate the system.
- C. All equipment shall be in good, safe operating condition with sufficient supplies, materials, and spare parts on hand to maintain the system in proper working order.

2.02 DRILLING SYSTEM

The directional drilling machine shall consist of a hydraulically powered system to rotate, push, and pull hollow drill pipe into the ground at a variable angle while delivering a pressurized fluid mixture to a guidable drill (bore) head. The machine shall be anchored to the ground to withstand the pulling, pushing, and rotating pressure required to complete the crossing. The hydraulic power system shall be self-contained with sufficient pressure and volume to power drilling operations. Hydraulic system shall be free of leaks. Rig shall have a system to monitor and record maximum pullback pressure during pullback operations. The rig shall be grounded during drilling and pullback operations. There shall be a system to detect electrical current from the drilling string and an audible alarm that automatically sounds when an electrical current is detected.

2.03 PIPE

A. Pipe shall be PVC or HDPE pipe with ductile iron pipe outside diameters in accordance with AWWA C900 (C905) or C906 respectively. The dimension ratio shall be verified by the Contractor based on the pipe, joint, and material pull strength required for the directional drilling.

B. PVC Pipe

1. PVC restrained joint pipe shall have maximum dimension ratios equal to the following table:

Table 1

Maximum Dimension Ratios for PVC Pipe

Type of Pipe System	Maximum Dimension Ratio
Wastewater	18
Reclaimed Water	18
Water	18

- 2. PVC pipe shall meet the requirements of AWWA C900. The pipe shall be joined using separate couplings that have beveled edges, built-in sealing gaskets and restraining grooves or steel ring-and-pin gasketed joints. The restraining splines shall be square and made from Nylon 101. Pipe and couplings shall be Underwriters Laboratory and Factory Mutual approved.
- 3. Installation Curvature: The pipeline curvature shall not have a radius less than as shown in Table 2.

Table 2
PVC Pipe Deflection Information

Pipe Diameter	Minimum Radius	Offset per 20 ft	Deflection per 20-ft		
•		•	•		
(inches)	es) of Curvature (feet) Length (inches)		Length (degrees)		
4	133	17.25	8.6		

6	200	12.00	5.7
8	266	9.00	4.3
10	333	6.75	3.5
12	400	6.00	2.9
16	532	4.50	1.5

C. HDPE Pipe

1. HDPE pipe and related fittings shall be made with prime virgin resins exhibiting a minimum cell classification as defined in ASTM D3350 and meeting the PE 3408 code designation with maximum dimension ratios equal to the following.

Table 3
Maximum Dimension Ratios for HDPE Pipe

Type of Pipe System	Maximum Dimension Ratio
Wastewater	11
Water	11
Reclaimed Water 11	11

- 2. HDPE pipe 4-inch and larger nominal diameter shall be joined by means of zero leak-rate butt (thermal heat) fusion welds and/or approved flanged joints. Joints shall provide axial pullout resistance. Pipe shall meet the requirements of ANSI/AWWA C906, and have an outside diameter dimension of ductile iron pipe. Flanged joints shall not be used below finished grade for horizontal directional drilling applications.
- 3. HDPE pipe shall have been continuously marked by the manufacturer with permanent printing indicating at a minimum the following:
 - a. Nominal size (inches)
 - b. Dimension ratio (DR)
 - c. Pressure rating (psi)
 - d. Trade name
 - e. Material classification (PE 3408)
 - f. Plant, extruder, and operator codes
 - g. Resin supplier code
 - h. Date produced and HDPE pipe used for portable water mains shall bear the NSF Seal of Approval.
- 4. HDPE pipe shall be black in color with permanent colored stripes extruded into the pipe length or shall be 1 solid-color, per the applicable service.

Table 4
Pipe Color

Pipe Use	Color Coding
Potable Water	Blue
Wastewater	Green
Reclaimed Water	Purple

5. Installation Curvature: The pipeline curvature shall not have a radius less than as shown in Table 5.

Table 5
HDPE Pipe Deflection Information

Pipe Diameter (inches)	Minimum Radius of Curvature (feet)	Offset per 20-ft Length (inches)
4	23	9.3
6	34	6.1
8	44	4.6
10	56	3.5
12	67	3.0
16	88	2.3

2.04 LOCATING WIRE

- A. Locating wire shall be 10-gauge continuous single strand solid core copper wire with non-metallic insulation.
- B. Color-coding shall be similar to pipeline identification colors.
- C. A minimum of 3 locating wires shall be attached with nylon wire ties at different radial locations around the pipe to ensure continuity in at least 1 wire subsequent to installation. Contractor shall be required to provide as many wires as necessary to maintain continuity throughout the length of the directional bore. Failure of continuous continuity in the locating wire shall result in abandonment and reinstallation of the directional drill, at the discretion of the OWNER.

2.05 DRILLING FLUIDS

Drilling fluids shall consist of a mixture of potable water and gel-forming colloidal material, such as bentonite or a polymer surfactant mixture producing a slurry of custard-like consistency.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Responsible representatives of the Contractor and Subcontractor(s) shall be present at all times during directional drilling operations. A responsible representative as specified herein is defined as a person experienced in the type of work being performed and who has the authority to represent the Contractor in a routine decision making capacity concerning the manner and method of carrying out the Work.
- B. The Contractor and Subcontractor(s) shall have sufficient number of competent

workers on the Project at all times to ensure the utility placement is made in a timely, satisfactory manner. Adequate personnel for carrying out all phases of the directional drilling operation (where applicable: tunneling system operators, operator for removing spoil material, and laborers as necessary for various related tasks) must be on the job site at the beginning of Work. A competent and experienced supervisor representing the Contractor or Subcontractor that is thoroughly familiar with the equipment and type of work to be performed, must be in direct charge and control of the operation at all times. In all cases, the supervisor must be continually present at the project site during the directional drilling operation.

3.02 WORK PLAN

- A. Work plan should be comprehensive, realistic, and based on actual working conditions for this particular Project. Plan should document the requirements to complete the Project.
 - Calibration records for guidance equipment shall be included. Specifications for any drilling fluid additives that the Contractor intends to use or might use shall be submitted.

3.03 COORDINATION OF WORK

- A. The Contractor shall notify the OWNER at least 3-days in advance of starting Work. In addition, the actual crossing operation shall not begin until the OWNER is present at the project site and agrees that proper preparations for the crossing have been made. The OWNER approval for beginning the crossing shall in no way relieve the Contractor from the ultimate responsibility for the completion of the Work.
- B. The Contractor and the OWNER shall select a mutually convenient time for the crossing operation to begin in order to avoid schedule conflicts.

3.04 PROCEDURE

The installation of appropriate safety and warning devices in accordance with the "FDOT Manual on Traffic Control and Safe Practices" shall be completed prior to beginning Work.

3.05 INSTALLATION

- A. Erosion and sedimentation control measures and on-site containers shall be installed to prevent drilling mud from spilling out of entry and/or exit pits. Drilling mud shall be disposed of off-site in accordance with local, state, and federal requirements and/or permit conditions.
 - No other chemicals or polymer surfactant shall be used in the drilling fluid without written consent of the OWNER and after a determination is made that the chemicals to be added are not harmful or corrosive to the facility and are environmentally safe.
- B. Pilot Hole: Pilot hole shall be drilled on bore path with no deviations greater than 2% of depth over a length of 100-feet. In the event that pilot does deviate from bore path more than 2% of depth in 100-feet, the Contractor shall notify the OWNER. The OWNER may require the Contractor to pullback and re-drill from the location along

bore path before the deviation.

- C. Reaming: Upon successful completion of pilot hole, the Contractor will ream borehole to a minimum of 25% greater than outside diameter of pipe using the appropriate tools. Contractor will not attempt to ream at one time more than the drilling equipment and mud system are designed to safely handle.
- D. Pullback: After successfully reaming borehole to the required diameter, Contractor shall put the pipe through the borehole. In front of the pipe shall be a swivel and barrel reamer to compact bore hole walls. Once pullback operations have commenced, operations must continue without interruption until pipe is completely pulled into borehole. During pullback operations, the Contractor shall not apply more than the maximum safe pipe pull pressure at any time. A break away head rated at the maximum safe pull pressure shall be utilized.
- E. As-built variance from the designed bore path shall not exceed \pm (plus or minus) 1-foot in the vertical plane and \pm 2-feet in the horizontal plane. The Contractor shall submit any proposed deviations from the design bore path with Shop Drawings.
- F. The pipe entry area shall be graded to provide support for the pipe to allow free movement into the borehole. The pipe shall be guided in the borehole to avoid deformation of, or damage to, the pipe.
- G. If unexpected subsurface conditions are encountered during the bore, the procedure shall be stopped. The installation shall not continue until the OWNER has been consulted.
- H. The pipe shall be pulled back through the borehole using the wet insertion construction technique. The pipe shall be installed full of water.
- I. The pipe shall be installed in a manner that does not cause upheaval, settlement, cracking, movement or distortion of surface features.
- J. A boring log shall be kept with horizontal and vertical location every 10-feet. The horizontal location of the bore shall be marked in the field during the bore. The Surveyor shall locate these marks and include this information with the bore depths in the Record Drawings. The Surveyor may make a note on the drawing page containing the directional drill and provide an exception for the directional drill only, as the directional drill route cannot be uncovered and physically located.
- K. The pipe shall be installed at a depth of no more than 15-feet below pavement, as measured from the top of pipe.

3.06 FIELD TESTING

A. PVC Pipe

Perform hydrostatic testing for leakage following installation in accordance with the applicable test sections.

B. HDPE Pipe

1. Perform hydrostatic testing for leakage following installation of the directional drill.

- a. Test Duration: The total test time including initial pressurization, initial expansion, and time at test pressure must not exceed 8-hours. If the test is not completed due to leakage, equipment failure, etc., the test section shall be depressurized and allowed to "relax" for a minimum of 8-hours before it is brought back up to test pressure. The test procedure consists of the initial expansion phase and leakage test phase.
- b. Initial Expansion Phase: During the initial expansion phase, the test section is pressurized to the test pressure and enough make-up liquid is added each hour for 3-hours to return to test pressure.
- c. Leakage Test Phase: The leakage test phase follows immediately and shall be either 2 or 3-hours in duration. At the end of the time test, the test section shall be returned to test pressure by adding a measured amount of liquid. The amount of make-up liquid added shall not exceed the values provided in Table 6 plus allowable leakage.

Table 6
Allowance for Make-up Water Under Pressure*

Test Duration	2	4	6	8	12	16	20	24
(hours)		Allo	owance/1	00-feet o	f Pipeline	gallons)	
2	0.11	0.25	0.60	1.00	2.30	3.30	5.50	8.90
3	0.19	0.40	0.90	1.50	3.40	5.50	8.00	13.30
*Applies to test period and not to initial expansion phase								

C. Pressure Testing

The test pressure for the pipe shall be 150-psi for water and reclaimed water and 100-psi for wastewater.

D. Mandrel Testing

Perform mandrel testing through the entire length of the installed pipe. The mandrel size shall be 90% of the inside diameter of the pipe.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 15071 HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE (HDPE) PIPE AND FITTINGS

PART 1- GENERAL

1.01 DESCRIPTION

A. Scope of Work:

1. Furnish all labor, materials, equipment and incidentals required and install and test all high-density polyethylene (HDPE) piping, fittings and appurtenances as shown on the Drawings and specified herein. This section includes materials and testing of PE3408 high density, very high molecular weight polyethylene pipe and fittings of sizes up to 24 inches for use in so-called "trenchless" installation and selected services and having a hydrostatic design basis of 1,600 psi at an operating temperature of 74°F. Pipe diameter basis is cast iron equivalent outside diameter (OD). With standard dimension ratio (SDR) and pressure class as specified herein.

B. General Design:

- 1. The equipment and materials specified herein is intended to be standard types of density polyethylene (HDPE) pipe and fittings for use in transporting sewage, sludges, reclaimed and potable water.
- C. The location of all pipes shall conform to the Contract Drawings. In some cases, however, a certain amount of flexibility in pipe position will be allowed where new pipes connect to existing piping or when avoiding potential conflicts.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Qualifications:

1. All of the high-density polyethylene (HDPE) pipe and fittings shall be furnished by manufacturers who are fully experienced, reputable, and qualified in the manufacturer of the materials to be furnished. The pipe shall be extended from pre-compounded resin. In-plant blending of resin is unacceptable. The pipe and fittings shall be design, constructed, installed in accordance with the best practices and methods and shall comply with these specifications as applicable.

B. Standards:

- 1. AWWA C901 (Pipe 1/2 inch through 3 inches)
- 2. AWWA C906 (Pipe 4 inches and larger)
- 3. NSF Standard 14
- 4. NSF Standard 61

C. Factory Test:

1. The manufacturer shall perform the factory tests described in Section 4- AWWA C906.

D. Quality Control:

- 1. The manufacturer shall establish the necessary quality control and inspection practice to ensure compliance with the referenced standards.
- 2. In addition to the manufacturer's quality control procedures, the Owner may select an independent testing laboratory to inspect the material at the foundry for compliance with these specifications. The cost of foundry inspection requested by the Owner will be paid for by the Owner.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

A. Materials and Shop Drawings

1. Submit shop drawings to the Engineer in accordance with the conditions of the Contract and Section 01340. Submit manufacturer's recommended methods for butt-fusing joints and connections between dissimilar materials.

B. Operating Instructions:

1. Submit Operation and Maintenance Manuals in accordance with Section 01730.

C. Manufacturer's Certification

- 1. The polyethylene pipe manufacturer shall provide certification that stress regression testing has been performed on the specific product. Certification shall include a stress life curve per ASTM D2837.
- 2. Provide certification that the material is listed by the Plastic Pipe Institute in PPI TR-4 with 73° F. Hydrostatic design stress rating of 800 psi. The PPI listing shall be in the name of the pipe manufacturer and shall be based on ASTM D3350 and PPITR-3 testing and Validation of samples of the pipe manufacturer's production pipe.
- The manufacturer's certification shall state that the pipe was manufactured from one specific resin in compliance with these specifications. The certificate shall state the specific resin used, its source, and List its compliance to these specifications.
- 4. Submit certified lab data to verify specified physical properties. Certify that tests are representative of pipe supplied for this project.
- 5. Submit affidavit of compliance with referenced standards (e.g., AWWA C901, C906, etc.)
- 6. Submit qualification certificates for operators of the heat fusion equipment.
- 7. Submit schedule for placement of and removal of test bulkheads.

8. Submit certification that materials intended to contact potable water are listed under NSF 61.

1.04 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A. Delivery and Storage:

1. Delivery and storage of the materials shall be in accordance with the Manufacturer's recommendations.

B. Inspection:

1. All materials furnished are subject to inspection by the Owner.

C. Handling:

 Care shall be taken in loading, transporting and unloading to prevent damage to the pipe of fittings. Pipe or fittings shall not be rolled off the carrier or dropped. Unloading shall be done by lifting with a forklift or crane. All pipe or fittings shall be examined before laying, and no piece shall be installed which is found to be defective.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. High density polyethylene (HDPE) Pipe
 - 1. Standards: AWWA C901 & C906 / ASTM D3350
 - 2. Dimension Ratio: Pipe shall have a nominal iron pipe size (IPS) OD with minimum standard dimension ratio of SDR 11.
 - 3. Pressure Class Rating: Pipe shall have a minimum Pressure class 160 for water mains and 100 for force mains with hydrostatic design basis (HDB) of 1,600 psi, as determined in accordance with ASTM D2837.
 - 4. Pipe Materials: Materials used for the manufacture of polyethylene pipe and fitting shall be very high molecular weight, high density ethylene/hexene copolymer PE 3408 polyethylene resin meeting the physical property and pipe performance requirements listed in the following table:

B. Fittings:

- 1. Materials: Fittings shall be made from material meeting the same requirements as the pipe. Fittings shall be fabricated by the manufacturer of the pipe.
- 2. Fittings shall meet the appropriate AWWA standard for the size involved (C901 or C906).
- 3. Molded fittings shall be manufactured in accordance with ASTM C3261 and shall be so marked.

- 4. Mechanical fittings, when used, shall be specifically designed for, or tested and found to be acceptable for use with HDPE pipe.
- 5. Fittings used to connect with dissimilar pipe materials shall be provided as per the manufacturer.

C. Joints:

- Sections of polyethylene pipe shall be fused into continuous length on the job site above ground. The joining method shall be the butt fusion method and shall be performed in strict accordance with the pipe manufacturer's recommendations. The butt fusion equipment used in the joining procedures shall be capable of meeting all conditions recommended by the pipe manufacturer.
- Butt fusion foiling shall result in joint weld strength equal to or greater than the tensile strength of the pipe. Socked fusion shall not be used. Flanges, unions, grooved couplers, transition fittings, and some mechanical couplers mat be used to connect HDPE pipe mechanically without butt fusion only where shown in the drawings.
- D. Nipples and Flanged Stub Ends:
 - 1. Short nipples and stub end shall be the same material as the HDPE.

2.02 LOCATION WIRE AND IDENTIFICATION MARKINGS

- A. Location Detection Wire:
 - 1. Materials: Continuous, insulated 10 gauge copper wire.
 - 2. Installation: Directly above (1" maximum) centerline of pipe terminating at top of each valve box collar and be capable of extending 12-inches above top of box in a manner so as not to interfere with valve operation.
- B. Identification Markings:
 - Pipe furnished in solid color or black/grey with color stripe or color lettering as indicated below.
 - a. Stripe shall be continuous along the top 90° of pipe, minimum 2" in width. Lettering along top 90° of pipe, minimum 3/4 in height with appropriate working appearing one or more times every 21 inches along the entire length of the pipeline.

1) Raw Wastewater: Green

2) Treated Wastewater: Black

3) Reclaimed Water: Purple

4) Raw Water or Stormwater: Black

5) Potable Water: Blue

15071-4

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 QUALIFICATION OF FUSION OPERATORS

Each operator performing fusion joining shall be qualified in the use of the manufacturer's recommended fusion procedure(s) by the following:

- A. Appropriate training or experience in the use of the fusion equipment and procedure.
- B. Making a sample joint according to the procedure that passes the following inspections and tests:
 - 1. The joint shall be visually examined during and after joining and found to have the same appearance as a photograph or sample of an acceptable joint that joined in accordance with the manufacturer's procedure.
 - 2. The joint shall be tested or examined by one of the following methods:
 - a. Pressure and tensile as described in 49 CFR 192.283.
 - b. Ultrasonic inspection and found to be free of flaws that would cause failure.
 - c. Cut into at least three longitudinal straps, each of which is:
 - (1) Visually examined and found to be free of voids or unbonded areas on the cut surface of the joint.
 - (2) Deformed bending, torque, or impact and if failure occurs, it must not initiate in the joint area.
 - 3. Each operator shall be requalified under the procedure, if, during any 12- month period he:
 - a. Does not make any joints under the procedure.
 - b. Has three joints or three percent of the joints he has made, whichever is greater, that are found unacceptable by testing under 49 CFR 192.513.

3.02 DELIVERY AND TEMPORARY STORAGE OF PIPE AT SITE

- A. Limit on site pipe storage to a maximum of one day.
- B. Transport individual pipe lengths to the job site on padded bonds with nylon tie down straps or padded bonding to protect the pipe. Coiled HDPE pipe shall be stored in a manner to ensure safely. Protect the pipe from sharp objects. Anchor pipe securely to prevent slippage.

- C. Store individual pipe lengths on earth beams or timber cradles in the numerical order of installation. Stack the heaviest series of pipe at the bottom. Do not stack pipe in excess of 20 rows high.
- D. Protect the pipe from stones and sharp objects.
- E. Store fitting in their original cartons.

3.03 HANDLING OF PIPES

- A. Lift pipes with handling beams or wide belt slings near the middle of joints as recommended by the pipe manufacturer. Do not use cable slings, chains, or hooks.
- B. Before installation, check pipe and fittings for cuts, scratched, gouges, buckling, kinkling, or splitting. Remove any pipe section containing defects by cutting out the damaged section in a complete cylinder.

3.04 SANITATION OF PIPE INTERIOR

- A. During fusion operations and laying operations, do not place tools, clothing, or other materials in the pipe.
- B. When pipe laying is not in progress, including the noon hour, close the ends of the pipe by a vermin proof plug.

3.05 HEAT FUSION

- A. Use fusion equipment specially designed for heat fusion of HDPE such as offered by McElroy Manufacturing, Inc. Tulsa, Oklahoma or approved equal. The equipment utilized shall be regulated for the different melt strength materials. Compatibility fusion techniques shall be used when polyethylene of different melt indexes are fused together.
- B. Use the following procedure to butt fuse HDPE pipe. If an operation contradicts Manufacturer's directions, follow the manufacturer's recommendation.
 - 1. Maintain the proper temperature of the heater plate as recommended by the pipe manufacturer. Check it with Tempilstik or pyrometer for correct surface temperature.
 - 2. Clean pipe ends inside and outside with a clean cotton cloth to remove dirt, water, grease, and other foreign materials.
 - 3. Square (face) the pipe ends using facing tools of the fusion machine. Remove all burs, chips and fillings before joining pipe or fittings.
 - 4. Check line-up of pipe ends in fusion machine to see that pipe ends meet squarely and completely over the entire surface to be fused. Make sure the clamps are tight so that the pipe does not slip during fusion process.
 - 5. Insert clean heater plate between aligned ends and bring ends firmly in contact with plate but do not apply pressure while achieving melt pattern. Allow pipe ends to heat and soften.

- 6. Carefully move the pipe ends away from the heater plate and remove the plate (if the softened materials sticks to the heater plate, discontinue the joint, clean heater plate, resquare pipe ends, and start over).
- 7. Bring melted ends together rapidly. Do not slam. Apply enough pressure to form a double roll-back bead to the body of the pipe around the entire circumference of the pipe about 1/8-inch to 3/16-inch wide. Pressure is necessary to cause the heated material to flow together.
- 8. Allow the joint to cool and solidify properly. Remove the pipe from the clamps and inspect the joint appearance.

3.06 SIDEWALL FUSION

- A. Side fusion procedure for HDPE shall be accomplished in the field using 2-inch through 12-inch McElroy (or approved equal) Fusion units and proper heater plate adapters. When branch outlets are larger than 12 inches in outside diameter, sidewall fusion shall be accomplished in a fitting fabrication shop.
- B. Use the following procedure to side fuse the HDPE pipe. If an operation contradicts manufacturer's directions, follow manufactures recommendation. Clean the pipe with a cotton cloth.
 - 1. Prepare surface of the pipe (main) by roughing with 60 grit or coarser utility cloth.
 - 2. Prepare the base of the branch by roughing with 60 grit or coarser utility cloth.
 - 3. Align branch on the main and tighten clamp.
 - 4. Check branch for square alignment on main.
 - 5. Retract moveable clamp, roll in, and center heater plat with adapter between base branch and main.
 - 6. For all sizes, apply a strong, firm, continuous pressure until compete melt bead can be seen on main. Release pressure to light pressure. Continue heat soak cycle on branch and main. Watch base of branch for:

<u>Main Sizes</u>	<u>Heat Soak Cycle</u>
(Inches)	Fitting Base Bead
2"	1/8" Melt Bead
3" and Larger	1/8" to 3/16" Melt Bead

- 7. Retract movable clamp and cleanly remove heater plate.
- 8. Bring melted surfaces together rapidly. Do not slam. Apply continuous progressive pressure until proper fusion bead is formed. Maintain pressure until joint has cooled.

3.07 OPERATIONS INCIDENTAL TO JOINT COMPLETION

- A. Install identification wire where detailed in the drawings.
- B. Plan joint completion to accommodate temporary test bulkheads for hydrostatic testing on the day of installation.

3.08 CONNECTIONS

A. Mechanical joining to other piping materials (fittings, valves, tanks, pumps, etc.) Shall be accomplished as follows:

1. Ductile Iron to HDPE Connections

- a. Connections between ductile iron pipe or fittings and PVC pipe or fitting shall use flange to flange or ductile iron mechanical joint glands conforming to AWWA C111 and AWWA C153. Gaskets, bolts and hexagonal nuts shall be standard rubber gaskets conforming to AWWA C111. Follower gland shall match class 350 'compact" fittings.
- b. An HDPE flange adaptor with backing rings or HDPE mechanical joint adaptor shall be provided for the specific connection.
- c. HDPE pipe stiffeners shall be constructed of stainless steel and shall be flanged on one end to prevent over-insertion into the receiving pipe.
- d. Install mechanical joints in accordance with AWWA C600 and manufacturer's recommendations.
- e. When connection is being made to HDPE pipe or fittings, insert pipe stiffener into connection end of HDPE pipe until flared end of HDPE pipe seats against cut face.
- f. All connections to same or different materials shall be restrained. Mechanical joint restraints shall be wedge type EBAA Iron megalug or similar.

2. PVC to HDPE Connections

- a. The joining end of the HDPE pipe shall have a butt- fused flange piece attached in accordance with manufacture's recommendations.
- b. Connection to PVC shall use a fully-restrained ductile iron mechanical joint confirming to the requirements of AWWA C111 to C153.
- c. Butt-fuse flange piece to connection end of HDPE pipe in accordance with manufacturer's recommendation.
- d. Install fully-restrained mechanical joint on PVC connection end in accordance with AWWA C600 and manufacturer's recommendation.

- B. Flange adapters shall be pressure rated the same as the pipe. Flange adapters shall be heat fused to the pipe as outlined in the heat fusion section.
- C. Gaskets shall be used between the polyethylene flange adapters when recommended by the HDPE pipe manufacturer. Sufficient torque shall be applied evenly to the bolts to prevent leaks. After initial installation and tightening of flanged connections, allow the connections to set for a few hours. Then conduct a final tightening of the bolts.
- D. Lubricate nuts and bolts with oil or graphite prior to installation. Check operation of valves connected to molded stub end flange adapters. Insert polyethylene spacer if recommended by pipe manufacturer for clearance.

3.09 CLEANING AND FIELD TESTING

A. General:

At the conclusion of the work, the Contractor shall provide all associated cleaning and field testing as specified in associated section of these specifications.

B. Pressure Testing:

Pressure testing of Polyethylene piping shall be in accordance with the following standards: AWWA Manual M55 and the Plastic Pipe Institute, Handbook of Polyethylene Pipe.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 15100 VALVES AND APPURTENANCES

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.1 SCOPE OF WORK

A. Scope of Work: Furnish, install, support, and test valves, gates, hydrants, strainers, stops and faucets, (hereinafter referred to as "valves") in the location(s) and of the size(s) and quantities shown on the Drawings. The requirements of this specification apply to all valves specified.

B. General Design

- 1. All of the equipment and materials specified herein are intended to be standard for use in controlling the flow of sewage, water, sludge, chemicals, air, etc., depending on the applications.
- 2. All valves and appurtenances shall have the name of the manufacturer and the working pressure for which they are designed cast in raised letters upon some appropriate part of the body.
- 3. For all buried valves in which the operating nut is deeper than four (4) feet from the finish ground surface, an extension rod with 2 inch operating nut and upper guide shall be installed permanently in the riser section.
- 4. All exposed valves shall have "open/closed" position indicators. The position indicators shall be conveniently located for easy visibility. Values shall open counter clockwise.
- 5. All valves installed such that actuators are more than six feet above the floor shall have chain wheel operated geared actuators with stainless steel chains. Gear actuators shall be bevel or spur gear as recommended by the manufacturer.
- 6. All exposed valves 6 inches and larger shall be handwheel operated.
- 7. Valve packing shall be replaceable without removing the valve from service.

1.2 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Qualifications

- 1. All equipment furnished under this Specification shall be new and unused and shall be a standard product which has a successful record of reliable service in similar installations for a minimum of five (5) years.
- 2. All valves of same type and duty shall be furnished by a single manufacturer.

B. Standards

1. ANSI 3. SSPC

2. AISI 4. AWWA

- C. Warranty: Provide manufacturer's warranty in accordance with the General Conditions and Division 1.
- D. Equipment Manufacturers
 - 1. Equipment manufacturers are named in each individual valve specification.
 - 2. The naming or reference to a specific manufacturer does not indicate that the manufacturer's standard equipment is acceptable in lieu of the specified component features. This reference is only an indication that the named manufacturers may have the capability of supplying the equipment as specified.

1.3 SUBMITTALS

- A. Materials and Shop Drawings: Copies of all materials required to establish compliance with the Specification shall be submitted in accordance with the provisions of the General Conditions and Division 1. Submittals shall include at least the following:
 - 1. Certified shop drawings showing all important details of construction, dimensions (including laying length), and weight.
 - 2. Descriptive literature, bulletins, and/or catalogs showing all valve parts, and describing material of construction by material and specifications, e.g. AISI.
 - 3. Schedule of valves, referencing each valve type, end connections and actuators to the proposed location/application on the Drawings.
 - 4. Valve coatings and linings, if any.
 - 5. Valve Tag Identification Schedule (see PART 2).
 - 6. See individual sections for additional requirements.
- B. Operation and Maintenance Manuals: For all valves furnished under this Section, the Contractor shall submit operation and maintenance manuals in accordance with Division1, to include the following:
 - 1. Equipment function.
 - 2. Description.
 - 3. Normal and limiting operating characteristics.
 - 4. Installation instructions (assembly, alignment and adjustment procedures).
 - 5. Operation instructions (normal start-up and shut-down procedures, normal operating conditions and emergency situations).
 - 6. Lubrication and maintenance instructions.
 - 7. Troubleshooting guide.
 - 8. Parts list and predicted life of parts subject to wear.

9. Drawings - cross-sectional view, assembly diagrams.

1.4 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A. Delivery of Materials and Equipment

- 1. All parts shall be properly protected so that no damage or deterioration will occur during a prolonged delay from the time of shipment until installation is completed.
- 2. Factory assembled parts and components shall not be dismantled for shipment unless permission is received in writing from the Engineer.
- 3. Finished surfaces of all exposed openings shall be protected by wooden blanks, strongly built and securely bolted thereto.
- 4. Finished iron or steel surfaces not painted shall be properly protected to prevent rust and corrosion.
- 5. After hydrostatic or other tests, all entrapped water shall be drained prior to shipment, and proper care shall be taken to protect parts from the entrance of water during shipment, storage and handling.
- 6. Each box or package shall be properly marked to show its net weight in addition to its contents.

B. Storage of Materials and Equipment

- 1. Store valves and accessories in an area on the construction site protected from weather, moisture, or possible damage.
- 2. Do not store valves or accessories directly on the ground or in the open.

C. Handling of Materials and Equipment

- 1. Handle valves and accessories to prevent damage of any nature.
- 2. Carefully inspect all materials for:
 - a. Defects in workmanship and materials.
 - b. Removal of debris and foreign material in valve openings and seats.
 - c. Proper functioning of all operating mechanisms.
 - d. Tightness of all nuts and bolts.

1.5 SPECIAL TOOLS AND SPECIAL PARTS

A. Special Tools

1. All special tools required for normal operation and maintenance shall be provided in accordance with Division 1.

2. One (1) each tee handle operator shall be provided for every three (3) buried valves

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 GENERAL

- A. Materials shall be as indicated in specific sections, or on the Drawings, and compatible with intended use.
- B. Valves shall have the name of the manufacturer and the size of the valve cast or molded onto the valve body or bonnet or shown on a permanently stainless steel attached plate.
- C. Bolts, washers, nuts, and gaskets for flanged valves shall be as described in the specific piping sections.
- D. Coat metal valves located above ground or in vaults and structures the same as the adjacent piping. Apply the specified prime coat at the place of manufacture. Apply finish coat in field. Finish coat shall match the color of the adjacent piping. All prime and finish coats shall be in compliance with Division 9.

2.2 VALVE IDENTIFICATION

- A. On all valves except shut-off valves located at a fixture or piece of equipment, the Contractor shall provide a coded and numbered tag attached with brass chain and/or brass "S" hooks.
 - Tag types
 - a. Tags for valves on pipe and tube lines conducting hot medium (steam, condensate, hot water, air, etc.) shall be brass or anodized aluminum.
 - b. Tags for all other valves shall be color plastic.
 - c. Colors for aluminum and plastic tags shall, where possible, match the color code of the pipe line on which installed.
 - d. Square tags shall be used to indicate normally closed valves and round tags shall indicate normally open valves.
 - 2. Coding: In addition to the color coding, each tag shall be stamped or engraved with wording or abbreviations to indicate the line service. All color and letter coding shall be approved by the Engineer.
 - 3. Manufacturer: Tags shall be as manufactured by Seton Name Plate Corporation, Floy Tag & Manufacturing Co., or approved equal
 - 4. Valve Schedule: The Contractor shall provide a typed list of all tagged valves giving tag color, shape, letter code and number, the valve size, type, use and general location within building.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 INSTALLATION

- A. Install valves and accessories in strict accordance with manufacturer's instructions and recommendations, as shown on the Drawings and/or as directed by the Engineer.
- B. Carefully erect all valves and support them in their respective positions free from distortion and strain.
- C. Bolt holes of flanged valves shall straddle the horizontal and vertical centerlines of the pipe run to which the valves are attached. Clean flanges by wire brushing before installing flanged valves. Clean flange bolts and nuts by wire brushing, lubricate threads with oil and graphite, and tighten nuts uniformly and progressively. Clean threaded joints by wire brushing or swabbing. Apply Teflon joint compound or Teflon tape to pipe threads before installing threaded valves. Joints shall be watertight.
- D. Support all valves connected to pumps and equipment, and in piping systems that cannot support valves.
- E. Repair any scratches, marks and other types of surface damages, etc., with original prime coating as supplied by the factory.
- F. Apply finish coating in accordance with Division 9.

3.2 INSPECTION AND TESTING

- A. Check and adjust all valves and accessories for smooth operation.
- B. Test valves for leakage at the same time that the connecting pipelines are tested. Protect or isolate any parts of valves, operators, or control and instrumentation systems whose pressure rating is less than the pressure tests.
- C. If flanges leak under pressure testing, loosen or remove the nuts and bolts, reseat or replace the gasket, reinstall or retighten the bolts and nuts, and retest the joints.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 15116 VALVE BOXES

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

Furnish and install valve boxes of type and size and in the location shown on the Drawings and as specified herein.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Qualifications: See Section 15100.
- B. Standards: All curb boxes shall be the product of one manufacturer.
- C. Warranty: See Section 15100.
- D. Equipment Manufacturers
 - 1. Tyler Union 461S (18"-24") Tyler Union 562S (25"-36")
 - 2. Or Equal

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

- A. All buried valves shall have cast iron, two (2) piece valve boxes. Valve boxes shall be provided with suitable heavy bonnets and to extend to such elevation at or slightly above the finished grade surface as directed by the Engineer.
- B. The barrel shall be screw type, having 5-1/4" diameter shaft. The lower section shall have a flange at the bottom having sufficient bearing area to prevent settling and shall be complete with cast iron covers.
- C. Covers shall have "WATER" cast into the top for all water mains and "SEWER" cast into the top of all wastewater force mains and "REUSE" cast into the top of all reclaimed water mains.
- D. All valves shall have actuating nuts extended to top of valve boxes. Valve boxes shall be provided with smooth finish concrete base and valve nameplate as detailed on the Drawings.

PART 3 – EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Install as shown on the Drawings and/or as directed by the Engineer.
- B. When installation is complete, no pressure shall be exerted by the valve box on either of the valve or the pipe.

SECTION 15117 PLUG VALVES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. Scope of Work: Furnish and install plus valves of the type(s) and size(s) and in the location(s) shown on the Drawings and as specified herein. All valves shown on the Drawings shall be plug valves unless specifically called otherwise on the Drawings.
- B. General Design:
 - 1. Comply with the requirements of Section 15100.
 - 2. All valves shall be 100% full port eccentric plug valves.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Qualifications: See Section 15100.
- B. Standards:
 - 1. See Section 15100.
 - 2. Plug valves shall be tested in accordance with AWWA C504. Leakage test shall be applied to the face of the plug (i.e., unseating pressure).
- C. Warranty: See Section 15100.
- D. Equipment Manufacturers:
 - 1. All plug valves of same type shall be by one manufacturer.
 - 2. Plug valves shall be manufactured by Henry-Pratt, Val-Matic, Dezurik or equal.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

A. General: Submittals shall be in accordance with Section 15100.

1.04 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A. General: Product delivery, storage and handling shall be in accordance with Section 15100.

1.05 SPECIAL TOOLS AND SPARE PARTS

A. General: Provide special tools in accordance with Section 15100.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

- A. All body, bonnet and flange thickness shall be designed and rated in accordance with ANSI/AWWA C504-450, and/or ANSI B16.1, Class 125, as per the service. Mechanical joint ends shall be to the AWWA Standard C111-12. Screwed ends shall be to the NPT standard.
- B. All exposed nuts, bolts, springs and washer shall be 304 stainless steel, unless otherwise noted.
- C. Valves shall be furnished with permanently lubricated 316 stainless steel or oilimpregnated bronze upper and lower plug stem bushings. These bearings shall comply with AWWA Standard C507-15.
- D. Seats in 4-inch and larger valves shall have a welded-in overlay of a high nickel content on all surfaces contacting the plug face which comply with AWWA Standard 507.
- E. Valve shaft seals shall comply with AWWA Standard C507.
- F. Valve bodies shall be of ASTM A126 Class B, in compliance with AWWA Standard C507. Port areas for valves 6 inches and smaller shall be 100 percent of full pipe area. Valves 8 inches through 30 inches shall have a minimum port area of 80 percent of full pipe area. Resilient plug facings shall be of Hycar or Neoprene.

2.02 MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

- A. Two-Way Valves:
 - 1. Non-lubricated, eccentric type, cast iron body with end type as shown on the Drawings.
 - 2. Packing shall be BUNA (VEE) with a maximum temperature of 350 degrees F.
 - 3. Bearings shall be stainless steel or bronze as required.
 - 4. Suitable for particular service in piping in which installed.
- B. Three-Way and Four-Way Valves:
 - 1. Equal to that specified for two-way valves.
 - 2. Port location, style, and arrangement as shown on the Drawings and as required.
- C. Actuators (type as shown on the Drawings and specified herein):
 - 1. Lever and Tee Handle Actuators: Size and length as required with a 2-inch square socket end for use on 2-inch square actuating nut. Attached handle to valve with a 4-foot length of chain.

- Handwheel Actuators:
 - a. Totally enclosed gear type.
 - b. Sized for the operating conditions encountered.
 - c. Use on all valves 6 inches in size and larger, and on smaller valves when valve location does not allow lever actuator.
- 3. Chain Wheel Actuators:
 - a. Totally enclosed gear type.
 - b. Chain shall extend to 3 feet above floor unless otherwise shown.
 - c. Supplied with chain guides and chain wheel, chain guides shall be stainless steel.
 - d. Use for all valves that are located with centerline 5 feet or more above floor.

2.03 ACCESSORIES

- A. Manual valves shall have lever actuators or gear actuators with tee wrenches, extension stems, floorstands, etc. as indicated on the plans. All valves 6 inches and larger shall be equipped with gear actuators. All gearing shall be enclosed in a semi-steel housing and be suitable for running in a lubricant with seals provided on all shafts to prevent entry of dirt and water into the actuator. All actuator shafts shall be supported on permanently lubricated bronze bearings. Actuators shall clearly indicate valve position and an adjustable stop shall be provided to set closing torque. All exposed nuts, bolts, and washers shall be stainless steel. Valve packing adjustment shall be accessible without disassembly of the actuator.
- B. Valves and gear actuators for buried or submerged service shall have seals on all shafts and gaskets on the valve and actuator covers to prevent entry of water. Actuator mounting brackets for buried or submerged service shall be totally enclosed and shall have gasket seals. All exposed nuts, bolts, springs and washers shall be stainless steel.
- C. All buried plug valves shall have a remote position indicator in the valve box showing position of the valve. A centering and identification plate shall be provided showing open and close position and number of turns to open for each valve. The position indicator shall be stainless steel or other material protected from corrosion.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Orientation: Install valves in such a manner that plug rotates to top of the valve when opened.
- B. Valves shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions.

END OF SECTION

Division 15 15117 - 1

SECTION 15120 PIPING SPECIALITIES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. Scope of Work: This section includes materials and installation of the miscellaneous piping specialties.
- B. General Design:
 - 1. Comply with the requirements of Section 15100, Article 1.01.B1, 2 and 3.
 - 2. Specialties shall have a working pressure rating equal to or greater than the pipinginstalled in.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Qualifications: Comply with Section 15100.
- B. Standards: Comply with Section 15100.
- C. Warranty: Comply with Section 15100.
- D. Equipment Manufacturers: See PART 2.

1.03 SUBMITTALS:

A. Submittals shall be in accordance with Section 15100.

1.04 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING:

A. Product delivery, storage, and handling shall be in accordance with Section 15100.

1.05 SPECIAL TOOLS AND SPARE PARTS:

A. Provide special tools in accordance with Section 15100.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 SOLENOID VALVES:

Solenoid valves shall be designed for not less than 150 psi water working pressure and shall be installed where shown. Electrical operators for solenoid valves shall be in accordance with electrical drawings. Valves shall be two-way pattern, screwed, brass-body type, ASCO No. 8210 through 8223.

2.02 TAPPING VALVES AND SLEEVES:

Tapping valves and sleeves shall be as manufactured by:

- A. Tapping Valves, 4" and larger: Mueller H687, American Flow AFC 2500, Kennedy C515
- B. Tapping Sleeve (Fabricated Steel), 4" and Larger: Mueller H-615, American Flow 2800, Ford-FTSC Fast
- C. Tapping Sleeves Size on Size Tap (Stainless Steel): Mueller H-304, JCM 432. Sleeve shall typically be mechanical joint; with tapping valves which outlet to a flanged connection for the above ground applications, and outlet to a mechanical joint connection for buried pipe taps. Exact O.D. of pipe to be tapped shall be field measuredprior to ordering sleeve.

2.03 HOSE BIBS:

Hose bibs shall be equal to Watts No. SC-3 or SC-4 of the size shown on the Drawings.

2.04 CORPORATION STOPS:

Corporation stops shall be equal to Mueller, Hayes, or Ford, threaded on the inlet side with Mueller threads and the outlet side fitted with connections to suit connecting pipe or tubing.

2.05 CURB STOPS:

Curb stops shall be equal to Mueller H 10203 for stops less than 1 inch and smaller and Mueller H 10288 for stops 1 and greater inch in size.

2.06 QUICK CONNECT COUPLINGS:

Quick connect couplings shall be Model 633-F hose shank adapter and Model 633-C hose shank coupler as manufactured by Dover Corporation OPW Division, Cincinnati, Ohio, equal by Ever-tite Coupling Co., Inc., New York, New York, or equal.

2.07 SERVICE CLAMPS:

Service clamps shall be of the double strap type. Straps and bodies shall be bronze or silicon bronze. Tap sizes on the outlet shall be 3/4-inch through 2 inches to accommodate the connecting piping or corporation stops. Service clamps shall be JCM 406, Smith-Blair 317 (coated), Mueller (coated), or equal.

2.08 STRAINERS:

Strainers shall be installed as shown on the Drawings and shall be of the "Y" type. Strainers shallhave bronze bodies with a removable bronze screen and shall be as manufactured byMueller Steam, Watts, or equal.

2.09 FLOW METERS / TRANSMITTERS

- A. Water flow meters shall be Water Specialties Model ML-04 Flanged Tube Meters. Materials used on all meters and flow ranges shall meet or exceed AWWA standard C704. The meter shall be capable of use in applications with up to 150 psi working pressure. Flanged ends are 150 lb. AWWA class D flat face steel flanges. Meters shall have straightening vanes and shall be protected internally and externally with 12-15 mils of NSF approved fusion epoxy resin.
- B. Installation is made similar to placing a short length of flanged end pipe in the line. The meter shall be capable of being installed in any of the following positions: vertically, horizontally or inclined on suction or discharge lines. The indicator-totalizer must be positioned in the upward direction on the top of the pipe only.
- C. Propeller is to be magnetically coupled with the drive mechanism through the sealed oil filled gearbox. The propeller shall be a conical shaped three bladed propeller, injection molded of thermoplastic material resistant to normal water corrosion and deformity due to high flow velocities.
- D. Bearing in propeller shall be a water lubricated ceramic sleeve and spindle bearing system with a ceramic/stainless steel spindle. Dual ceramic thrust bearings shall handle flows in both forward and reverse directions. Bearings within the sealed meter mechanism shall be shielded precision stainless steel bearings and be factory lubricated for the life of the meter.
- E. Transmitter shall be Water Specialties Model TR16 Indicator-Totalizer- Transmitters and shall provide an instantaneous flow rate indication, a totalization of flow volume and both a 4-20 mA current signal and a pulse rate output signal proportional to the rate of flow when mounted on the propeller meters. The unit features a mechanically driven indicator- totalizer, and solid state construction.
- F. Installation shall be made at the factory when the meter is assembled.
- G. Construction of the indicator-totalizer-transmitter shall feature an O-ring sealed housing conforming to NEMA 4X standards.
- H. Indicator-Totalizer shall be mechanically driven by the meter mechanism and feature a full 4" diameter, 250 degree sweep dial with a six digit, straight reading type totalizer and sweep test hand. The indicator drive mechanism shall be temperature compensated so the indicator will be accurate at all points on the dial when operated between 32° and 140° F. The indicator dial shall be furnished in GPM. The bonnet, shall be provided with a padlock hasp, and be o-ring sealed to the meter head.
- I. Transmitter shall utilize an optic switch (open collector transistor output). The standard 4- 20 mA sourcing type current output shall give 4 mA output at zero flow and 20 mA output at maximum scale range. The standard pulse rate output (open collector transistor output) is 150 pulses per minute at the maximum flow range of the instrument that the transmitter is controlling. A four-lead shielded cable, four feet long, shall be furnished with each transmitter equipped with a pulse output. A two-lead shielded cable, four feet long, shall be furnished if 4-20 mA only is required.

PARTS 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION:

A. Install piping specialties of the sizes and types in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions, and in the locations shown on the Drawings or specified herein.

END OF DOCUMENT

SECTION 15122 AIR RELEASE AND VACUUM RELEASE VALVES

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

A. Scope of Work: This section includes materials and installation of various types of air and vacuum valves and air release valves for water service and sewage service.

B. General Design:

- 1. Valves shall have a working pressure rating of 150 psi, minimum.
- 2. Combination air/vacuum valves shall vent large quantities of air when the pipeline is filling, release small quantities of air when the pipeline is pressurized and allow reentry or air into the pipeline when pumps stop to prevent vacuum. Air release valves shall vent small quantities of air while the pipeline is pressurized.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Qualifications: All air and vacuum release valves, for the same service, shall be manufactured by one manufacturer and shall be in accordance with Section 15100.
- B. Warranty: See Section 15100.
- C. Equipment Manufacturers (see also PART 2 of this section): Dezurik APCO or approved equal.

1.03 SUBMITTALS

A. Submittals shall be in accordance with Section 15100.

1.04 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A. Product delivery, storage, and handling shall be in accordance with Section 15100.

1.05 SPECIAL TOOLS AND SPARE PARTS

A. Provide special tools in accordance with Section 15100.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. Vertical Turbine Pump Air Release Valves (combination air release valve with slow closing surge check valve):
 - 1. Shall allow quantities of air to escape out of orifice when the pump is started and close water tight when the liquid enters the valve. The air valve shall also permit large quantities of air to re-enter through the orifice when the pump is stopped to prevent a vacuum from forming in the pump column.

- 2. A baffle shall protect the float from direct contact of the rushing air and water to prevent the float from closing prematurely in the valve. The seat shall be fastened into the valve cover, without distortion, and shall be easily removed, if necessary.
- 3. The entire float and baffle assembly must be shrouded with a perforated water column entering the valve from slamming the float shut and eliminate water hammer in the system.
- 4. The discharge orifice shall be fitted with an adjustable throttling device to regulate the flow of air escaping to establish a pressure loading on the rising column of water to minimize shock to the pump and check valve.
- 5. The float shall be center guided stainless steel, designing to withstand a minimum of 1000 psi.
- 6. Cast iron body, cover, and baffle, with Buna-N seat, brass diffuser, and all other parts shall be stainless steel or bronze.
- 7. Apco Series 1700 Air and Vacuum Valve with double acting throttling device and water diffuser.

C. Valve End Connections:

- 1. Valves smaller than 4 inches shall have threaded ends. Valves 4 inches and larger shall have flanged ends.
- 2. Flanges for Class 150 valves shall comply with ANSI B16.1, Class 125. Flanges for Class 300 valves shall comply with ANSI B16.1, Class 250.
- 3. Threaded ends shall comply with ANSI B2.1.
- D. Bolts and Nuts for Flanged Valves:
 - 1. Bolts and nuts for flanged valves located indoors and in vaults and structures shall be carbon steel, ASTM A-307, Grade B.
 - 2. Bolts and nuts for flanged valves located outdoors above ground shall be Type 316 stainless steel conforming to ASTM A-193, Grade B8M or bolts, and ASTM A-194, Grade 8M for nuts.
- E. Gaskets: Gaskets for flanged end valves shall be as described in the detail piping specifications.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Install valves in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions and recommendations and as shown on the Drawings. Direct tapping may be utilized in lieu of service saddles with ductile iron pipe for tapping sizes up to 1-inch tap size provided that the D.I.P. wall thickness will effect three full AWWA C800 Standard threads.
- B. Install all valves in the vertical position and allow sufficient clearance around valve for proper maintenance and removal.

- C. Clean flanges by wire brushing before installing flanged valves. Clean flange bolts and nuts by wire brushing, lubricate threads with oil and graphite, and tighten nuts uniformly and progressively. If flanges leak under pressure testing, loosen and remove the nuts and bolts, reseat or replace the gasket, reinstall or retighten the bolts and nuts, and retest the joints. Joints shall be watertight.
- D. Clean threaded joints by wire brushing or swabbing. Apply Teflon joint compound or Teflon tape to pipe threads before installing threaded valves. Joints shall be watertight.
- E. Valve Pressure Testing: Test valves at the same time that the connecting pipelines are pressure tested. Protect or isolate any part of valves, operators, or control and instrumentation systems whose pressure rating is less than the test pressure.

3.02 STARTUP

Check-out all valves and demonstrate all valves for proper operation in accordance with Division One.

END OF SECTION